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In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington,

Northern Division.

No

MINERS' & MERCHANTS' BANK, a corpora-

tion,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY & GUARANTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant in Error.

NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF COUNSEL.

JOHN W. ROBERTS, Esq., Attorney for Plain-

tiff in Error,

1304 Alaska Building, Seattle, Washington.

GEORGE L. SPIRK, Esq., Attorney for Plaintiff

in Error,

1304 Alaska Building, Seattle, Washington.

HENRY F. McCLURE, Esq., Attorney for Defend-

ant in Error,

1509 Hoge Building, Seattle, Washington.

WALTER A. McCLURE, Esq., Attorney for De-

fendant in Error,

1509 Hoge Building, Seattle, Washington.

WM. E. McCLURE, Esq., Attorney for Defendant

in Error,

1509 Hoge Building, Seattle, Washington.
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E. C. HUGHES, Esq., Attorney for Defendant in

Error,

661 Colman Building, Seattle, Washington.

MAURICE McMICKEN, Esq., Attorney for De-

fendant in Error,

661 Colman Building, Seattle, Washington,

WM. T. DOVELL, Esq., Attorney for Defendant

in Error,

661 Colman Building, Seattle, Washington.

H. J. RAMSEY, Esq., Attorney for Defendant in

Error,

661 Colman Building, Seattle, Washington.

COMPLAINT.

Comes now the plaintiff. Miners & Merchants

I>ank, and for cause of action against the defendant,

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, com-

plains and alleges

:

I.

That at all times herein mentioned the plaintiff.

Miners & Merchants Bank, was and is a corpora-

tion duly organized, incorporated and existing un-

der and by virtue of the laws of the State of Wash-

ington, and doing a general banking business at

Ketchikan, Alaska. And has paid its amiual license

tax last past due.

II.

That at all times herein mentioned the defend-

ant. United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company,

was and is a corporation duly organized, incorpo-
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rated and existing under and by virtue of the laws

of the State of Maryland, and duly authorized to

transact a surety business in the State of Wash-

ington and within the District of Alaska, and was

and is transacting such surety business within the

State of Washington and Territory of Alaska, and

was and is engaged in writing surety bonds in said

territory and state.

III.

That on or about the first day of May, 1906,

the defendant. United States Fidelity & Guaranty

Company, through its duly authorized agents and

representatives, solicited the plaintiff to write

fidelity bonds for and upon its employees in its

banking house at Ketchikan, Alaska, and particu-

larly to write a bond upon Mack A. Mitchell, cashier

of plaintiff, and did apply to the plaintiff to be

allowed to fully indemnify and keep indemnified

the plaintiff bank against any and all harm, loss or

damage on account of any wrongful acts on the

part of its cashier, said Mack A. Mitchell.

IV.

That the said defendant held out to the plain-

tiff, its officers and agents, as an inducement to be

allowed, for a consideration and an annual premium

to be paid by the plaintiff to the defendant, to write

said fidelity bond, that it would at all times, until

such time as said bond should be cancelled or termi-

nated, keep the plaintiff bank wholly and fully in-

sured and indemnified against any and all loss or

damage on account of the wrongful acts of said
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defendant, Mack A. Mitchell, and represented to

the plaintiff and did agree to and with the plaintiff

that it would from time to time and from year to

j^ear cause said bond to be renewed, continued and

extended without any additional cost, expense,

trouble or annoyance to the plaintiff or its officers,

except the payment of the annual premium, and

would keep said bond in force and renewed, con-

tinued and extended, and would keep the plaintiff

fully insured and indemnified against loss or damage

in connection with or on account of the wrongful

acts or conduct of said Mack A. Mitchell, its cashier.

V.

That the said defendant. United States Fidelity

& Guaranty Company, as a further inducement to

this plaintiff to place the insurance of its cashier

with defendant, and as a part consideration for the

premium to be paid by the plaintiff to the defendant,

stated and represented to this plaintiff and agreed

to and with the plaintiff that the defendant w^as in a

position to give and would give to the plaintiff at

all times while said insurance or any renewal or

extension thereof were in force, the very best of

service and the very highest grade of insurance to

be had in that line of surety and fidelity insurance,

and that if there should be any changes, altera-

tions, amendments or improvements in the form of

the bonds to be written and executed to banks or

bankers indemnifying or insuring such bank or

bankers against loss by or through their employees,

that the said defendant would at all times furnish
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to plaintiff such improved or changed form of bond,

and see that such bonds were furnished to the

plaintiff and that plaintiff should at all times have

the benefit and advantage of the most liberal and

advantageous bond written by any surety company,

and whether it was so expressed in the bond or

not, the plainitff should and w^ould at all times have

the benefit and advantage of the most liberal pro-

visions contained in any fidelity bond written, or

which could or would be wriften by any like com-

pany, and did promise and guarantee that plaintiff

should have at all times the fullest and best insur-

ance written or to be had or secured from any

surety company.

VI.

That the plaintiff, relying upon said representa-

tion, statements and agreements and at the earnest

solicitation and request of defendant. United States

Fidelity & Guaranty Company, did on or about the

1st day of May, 1906, pay to the defendant. United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, the sum of

$100, as the annual premium upon a bond to be

written for the period of one year from the 1st day

of April, 1906, to the 1st day of April, 1907, insur-

ing the plaintiff against any unlawful acts on the

part of the said Mack A. Mitchell, who was at that

time cashier of the plaintiff bank, and who continued

to be cashier of said bank and to act in that capacity

until on or about the 31st day of December, 1913;

and in pursuance of said premium duly paid to

defendant corporation, the defendant corporation
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did make, execute and deliver to plaintiff its cer-

tain fidelity bond, a copy of which is hereto at-

tached, marked exhibit "A" and made a part of this

complaint.

VII.

That by the terms and conditions of said bond

and the contract had between plaintiff and defend-

ant, it was expressly contracted, understood and

agreed that the United States Fidelity & Guaranty

Company, as insurer, for an annual premium of

$100, guaranteed to pay to the Miners & Merchants

Bank of Ketchikan, Alaska, the employer, any and

all pecuniary loss which the said bank should sus-

tain of moneys, bonds, debentures, scrip, certifi-

cates, warrants, transfers, coupons, bills of ex-

change, promissory notes, checks, bank notes, ac-

counts, merchandise or other property, including

that for which the bank was responsible, occasioned

by any act or acts of fraud, dishonesty, forgery,

theft, embezzlement, larceny, wrongful abstraction,

misapplication or misappropriation or any criminal

acts by said Mack A. Mitchell, or through comiiv-

ance in any position or at any location in the bank's

employ, and during the period named in said bond

and continuing in the sum of $25,000, until said

insurance should be terminated, and did expressly

agree to indemnify the plaintiff against any and

all pecuniary loss that might be sustained by the

bank by reason of the fraud or dishonesty of the

said Mack A. Mitchell in connection with the duties

of his office or position amounting to embezzlement
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or larceny, and which should have been committed

during the continuance of said insurance or any

renewal thereof.

VIII.

That prior to the expiration of said bond the

same was renewed and continued in force, and ex-

tended by the defendant, United States Fidelity &
Guaranty Company to be effective on the 1st day

of April, 1910, said renewal and extension having

been made wholly by the United States Fidelity &
Guaranty Company, its representatives and agents,

and by reason of the original agreement and mider-

standing under which said insurance was written

and through and under which said defendant cor-

poration, by its duly authorized representatives,

agreed at all times to keep this plaintiff fully in-

demnified with the best insurance of that character

to be obtained with nothing to be done on behalf of

plaintiff except to pay the annual premium, which

annual premium was paid by plaintiff to the de-

fendant, and received and accepted by defendant,

and a written agreement of extension delivered by

the defendant corporation to plaintiff, a copy of

which extension agreement is hereby attached,

marked Exhibit "B" and made a part of this

complaint.

IX.

That the defendant corporation continued to

renew said surety and fidelity agreement from year

to year and until the 1st day of April, 1914, and

that plaintiff did, for each year, pay the defendant
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corporation in advance its annual premium, and the

defendant corporation did during each year receive

and accept said annual premium, which amiual

premium continued to be the sum of $100, until the

first day of April, 1913, when the premium was

reduced to the sum of $62.50, and the said defend-

ant surety company did at all times continue to re-

new its agreement of insurance and indemnity to

this plaintiff as against the said Mack A. Mitchell,

and any and all loss on account of wrongful acts

of said Mack A. Mitchell, and said insurance was

at all times kept in full force and effect; that the

said renewals and extensions until the 1st day of

April, 1913, were made in the same way and in

the same manner as the one hereto attached, marked

Exhibit "B," and were of like tenor and effect.

X.

That on the 1st day of April, 1913, the defend-

ant. United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company,

made, executed and delivered to the plaintiff a cer-

tain bond in writing, a copy of which is hereto at-

tached marked Exhibit "C" and made a part of

this complaint. That said bond was given by the

defendant corporation to the plaintiff bank by,

through, under and in pursuance of the original

agreement and contract indemnifying and insuring

said bank as hereinabve stated and as a part of

the same transaction. That said bond was and is

in the sum of $25,000, and was made for a period

of one year from the 1st day of April, 1913, and

is still in full force and effect. That the plaintiff
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paid to the defendant and the defendant received

and accepted from the plaintiff as consideration for

said execution, renewal and extension of said bond

the sum of $62.50, and then and thereby said insur-

ance agreement and contract was extended and con-

tinued in full force and effect until the 1st day of

April, 1914.

XI.

That as a consequence of said contract of insur-

ance and in consideration of the payment of the

said annual premiums by plaintiff to defendant,

the plaintiff was, and has been and is insured and

indemnified by the defendant and indemnified and

insured by defendant against any and all loss or

damage which the said plaintiff should, on account

of said Mack A. Mitchell, sustain of moneys, bonds,

debentures, scrip, certificates, warrants, transfers,

coupons, bills of exchange, promissory notes, checks,

bank notes, accounts, merchandise or other prop-

erty, including that for which the bank was respon-

sible, occasioned by any act or acts of fraud, dis-

honesty, forgery, theft, embezzlement, larceny,

wrongful abstraction, misapplication or misappro-

priation or any criminal acts by said Mack A.

Mitchell, or through connivance in any position or

at any location in the bank's employ, and during

the period named in said contract of insurance

and continuing in the full sum of $25,000, and until

the termination of said insurance, which is still in

force and has, since April 1st, 1906, been insured
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against all wrongful acts of said Mack A. Mitchell

amounting to larceny or embezzlement.

XII.

That on or about the 9th day of December, 1913,

the plaintiff, Miners & Merchants Bank, discovered

certain facts in relation to said Mack A. Mitchell,

and conduct on the part of the said Mack A.

Mitchell, its cashier, which led the plaintiff to be-

lieve that the said Mack A. Mitchell had been

guilty of acts or conduct which would give rise to a

claim under said contract of insurance, and did

thereupon and immediately prepare and serve upon

the local agent and representative of the United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, at Seattle,

Washington, and did mail to the United States

Fidelity & Guaranty Company, at its head office at

Baltimore, Maryland, a certain notice in writing, a

copy of which is hereto attached marked Exhibit

"D" and made a part hereof. That the said plain-

tiff did prepare in writing the said notice, claim

and demand, a copy of which is hereto attached

marked Exhibit "C," and did, in strict compliance

with the terms and conditions of said bond, ad-

dress said written notice to the United States

Fidelity & Guaranty Company at its head office at

Baltimore, Maryland, and did serve upon the local

agent and representative of the defendant corpora-

tion in the City of Seattle, Washington, a like copy

of said notice, claim and demand, and did assert

then and there and at that time as against said cor-

poration a claim and demand on account of said
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insurance in the sum of $25,000, the full penalty of

said contract of insurance.

XIII.

That it was stated and set forth in said notice

that the plaintiff had dispatched an expert account-

ant to Ketchikan, Alaska, to examine the books and

records of the bank and the accounts of Mack A.

Mitchell, and that upon the return of said expert

accountant, further notice would be given, and full

information and particulars of all kinds furnished

by plaintiff to defendant, in strict compliance with

all the terms and conditions of said contract of

insurance.

XIV.

That plaintiff did send immediately to Ketchi-

kan, Alaska, an expert accountant and thereafter

and upon his return the plaintiff did serve upon and

deliver to the United States Fidelity & Guaranty

Company, in strict compliance with the terms and

conditions of said contract of insurance a further

notice, claim and demand, a copy of which is hereto

attached, marked Exhibit "E" and made a part of

this complaint, which said notice was duly served

upon said corporation on the 17th day of December,

1913, and receipt thereof duly acknowledged by the

said corporation on the said 17th day of December,

1913.

XV.
That said Mack A. Mitchell was and is guilty

of having wrongfully, dishonestly and fraudulently

taken or abstracted from the plaintiff bank a total
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sum of money in excess of $25,000, the full penalty

of said contract of insurance and fidelity bond.

That said Mack A. Mitchell was and has been guilty

of having violated the terms, conditions and pro-

visions of said indemnity insurance and fidelity

bonds as herein before fully set forth, and that said

wrongful acts and conduct on the part of said Mack

A. Mitchell began on or about the 15th day of

May, 1913, and continued to and including the 14th

day of August, 1913, during all of which period

said contract of insurance was in full force and

effect, and that during said period the said Mack

A. Mitchell, in express violation of the terms, con-

ditions and provisions of said contract of insur-

ance, did wrongfully and unlawfully take, abstract

and remove from said bank a sum of money in excess

of $25,000, for all of which the defendant corpora-

tion was and is liable to this plaintiff and to the

full extent of $25,000.

XVI.

That subsequent to the service of the written

notices and demands herein referred to and hereto

attached, the plaintiff furnished and supplied to

the defendant and to its representatives all facts,

circumstances and conditions of the misconduct on

the part of said Mack A. Mitchell, and did furnish

to the defendant corporation all reasonable particu-

lars and proofs of the correctness of said claim and

did freely and willingly at all times give, deliver

and furnish to said corporation all the particulars

of said larceny and embezzlement on the part of
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said Mack A. Mitchell, and of all the facts and par-

ticulars showing the said Mack A. Mitchell to have

been guilty of fraud and dishonesty in connection

with the duties of his office and position, which

amounted to embezzlement and larceny and which

was committed during the continuance of said con-

tract of insurance, and that the plaintiff did sub-

mit and furnish to the said defendant all the books

and records of plaintiff bank, together with all

papers in connection with the said pecuniary loss

sustained by plaintiff, or was occasioned by the

wrongful act or acts of fraud, dishonesty, embezzle-

ment and wrongful abstraction or misapplication or

misappropriation of funds and property of plain-

tiff, all of which was and is alleged and af&med by

the plaintiff that the said Mack A. Mitchell was and

is guilty. That the plaintiff not only brought all

its books, records and papers to Seattle, Washing-

ton, and submitted the same to the defendant cor-

poration and its representatives, but at its own

expense sent an expert accountant to Ketchikan,

Alaska, in company with a representative of de-

fendant corporation, for the purpose of further in-

vestigating and examining all the books, papers and

records of plaintiff bank, and of placing the de-

fendant corporation in the possession of full and

complete data, facts and particulars in connection

with the transactions of said Mack A. Mitchell, as

cashier of plaintiff bank during the period of said

term of insurance.
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XVII.

That diirmg all the period between the 15th

day of May, 1911, and the 15th day of August, 1913,

all the best and most responsible surety companies

doing business in the State of Washington and the

Territory of Alaska did write and were writing

surety and fidelity bonds known as the Bankers'

Form of Bond, and containing all the guarantees

and liberal provisions of plaintiff's Exhibit "C,"

and during all of said period the best and most

responsible surety companies were writing bonds

more liberal in their provisions than Exhibit "C"
and carrying and containing better and more sub-

stantial guarantys as against loss or damage on

account of employees. But for the agreement, prom-

ises and representations expressly made to plaintiff

by the defendant, through its duly authorized agents

and representatives, that it was giving plaintiff the

best form of bond and the best insurance to be had,

this plaintiff could and would at all times have

obtained from other good and responsible surety

companies insurance fully indemnifying and guar-

anteeing it against loss against any wrongful act or

acts of its employees. But the plaintiff at all times

relied solely and wholly upon the promises and rep-

resentations of the defendant and its duly author-

ized agents, and at all times depended solely upon

the assurance of defendant and its representatives

that plaintiff was fully insured against any loss,

harm or damage on account of any of said wrongful
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acts of the said Mack A. Mitchell and left the matter

of the continuation and renewal of said insurance

and of giving the plaintiff at all times the best

insurance to be had entirely to the defendant and

its representatives and agents.

XVIII.

That during all of the period hereinabove

named the defendant charged the plaintiff for said

contract of insurance on account of the said Mack

A. Mitchell, the highest premium charged or col-

lected by any other surety or fidelity company doing

business within the State of Washington or the

Territory of Alaska, and did during all of the eight

consecutive years charge and collect from this plain-

tiff the full premium charged by any and all of the

most substantial and responsible insurance com-

panies doing business within the Territory or

State named, and did at all times charge this plain-

tiff and collect and receive from this plaintiff during

said entire period the premium charged for the

best, most modern and up-to-date insurance of that

character to be had from any surety company, which

premium was at all times paid by plaintiff upon

and under the agreement and understanding that it

was receiving at the hands of defendant at all times

the most modern and up-to-date policy and insur-

ance of that kind or character to be procured.

XIX.

That notwithstanding the above and foregoing

facts, circumstances and agreements, the defendant,
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United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, now

seeks to repudiate and has repudiated its entire lia-

bility and obligation and has denied and denies that

it ever agreed or promised to write a modern and

up-to-date policy and denies that it was giving or

attempting to give the highest class or best class of

insurance of the character named which was being

written by good and responsible surety companies

in this field, and denies that it promised or agreed

to give or write a modern and up-to-date policy or

to furnish the best insurance of the kind in this

or any other instance or that it promised any of

its patrons or customers to give or write for them

up-to-date policies containing the broad and liberal

provisions and guarantys of the form of policy

known as the Bankers ' Form, and denies and repudi-

ates any and all obligation on account of any of the

wrongful acts of said Mack A. Mitchell as herein

fully set forth.

XX.
That this plaintiff has made due demand upon

said Mack A. Mitchell for the return of the money

so wrongfully abstracted by him as aforesaid, and

that said Mack A. Mitchell has wholly neglected,

failed and refused to repay the same or any part

thereof, and that there is now justly due and owing

from the said Mack A. Mitchell on account of the

matters and things hereinabove set forth a sum of

money largely in excess of $25,000.
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XXI.
That the plaintiff bank has at all times since

it entered into the contract of insurance with the

defendant fully complied with all the terms, condi-

tions and provisions of said contract of insurance,

and has fully kept and performed all the terms,

conditions and provisions of said contract of insur-

ance by it to be kept and performed. That it has

fully and promptly paid all premiums, and since

the discovery of said wrongful acts and conduct on

the part of said Mack A. Mitchell, has fully com-

plied with all the terms and conditions of said con-

tract of insurance on its part to be kept and per-

formed.

XXII.

That notwithstanding said Mack A. Mitch4

has wholly violated and breached the terms and con-

ditions and provisions of said bond and has been

guilty of all the wrongful acts enumerated in said

contract of insurance, and notwithstanding the said

Mack A. Mitchell has been guilty of wrongful acts

amounting to larceny and embezzlement and not-

withstanding the said Mack A. Mitchell has been

and is guilty of causing pecuniary loss to plaintiff

bank of moneys, bonds, debentures, scrip, certifi-

cates, warrants, transfers, coupons, bills of ex-

change, promissory notes, checks, bank notes, ac-

counts, merchandise or other property, including

that for which the bank was responsible, occasioned

by the act or acts of fraud, dishonesty, forgery,

theft, embezzlement, larceny, wrongful abstraction,
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misappropriation or criminal acts of said Mack A.

Mitchell, or through connivance in any position or

at any location in the bank's employ, and during

the period named in said contract of insurance and

continuing in the full sum of $25,000, and notwith-

standing the said Mack A. Mitchell has been and is

guilty of wholly breaching and violating said con-

tract of insiu'ance, and has been and now is guilty

of said wrongful and unlawful acts against which

the defendant corporation expressl}^ insured and in-

demnified this plaintiff, and notwithstanding the

said Mack A. Mitchell has between the 15th day of

May, 1911, and the 15th day of August, 1913, wrong-

fully abstracted and taken from the plaintiff bank

a sum of money largely in excess of $25,000.00, to-

wit, the sum of $40,337.83, all of which was em-

bezzled, stolen, taken, abstracted and removed from

said bank by said Mack A. Mitchell, during the

term of said insurance; and notwithstanding the

fact that the plaintiff bank has paid to the defend-

ant corporation. United States Fidelity & Guaranty

Company, the annual premiums charged by said

corporation for said insurance for a period of eight

consecutive years, having paid the said corporation

eight consecutive annual premiums upon its con-

tract of insurance upon and against the said Mack

A. Mitchell, the said defendant corporation has

wrongfully repudiated and now repudiates all lia-

bility on account of the said contract of insurance

and has refused and refuses to pay to plaintiff the

penalty of said bond or any part thereof, and wholly
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repudiates its said contract and denies all liability

and obligation to plaintiff, and refuses to repay to

plaintiff its said loss and damage or any part

thereof to the loss and damage of plaintiff in the

full and just sum of $25,000.

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff, Mmers' & Mer-

chants' Bank, prays for judgment against the de-

fendant, United States Fidelity & Guaranty Com-

pany in the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars

($25,000), together with interest thereon at the

rate of six per cent (6%) per annum from the 6th

day of December, 1913, until paid, together with all

proper costs of this action.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

STATE OF WASHINGTON, ]

rSS

COUNTY OF KING,
J

L. H. Woolfolk, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says, that he is the Secretary of the

Miners' & Merchants' Bank, plaintiff in the above

and foregoing entitled cause of action and that he

makes this verification as such Secretary; that he

has read the foregoing complaint, knows the con-

tents thereof and believes the same to be true.

L. H. WOOLFOLK.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of April, 1914.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
Notary Public in and for the State of

. Washington, residing at Seattle.
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[Cover]

Exhibit ''A."

THE

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND

GUARANTY COMPANY.

FIDELITY BOND

No

In Behalf of

MACK A. MITCHELL

to

MINERS' & MERCHANTS' BANK,

Ketchikan, Ala.

Date, April 1st, 1906.

Expires, April 1st, 1907.

CALHOUN, DENNY & EWING,

DISTRICT AGENTS

Seattle, Wash.

Form O. S. 1 M—9-7-03.

CAPITAL PAID IN CASH, $1,700,000.

Amount, $25,000.00. Annual Premium, $100.00

Bond No. 450. No. 5764.
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THE UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY.

Home Office,

Baltimore, Md.

WHEREAS, MINERS' & MERCHANTS'
BANK, KETCHIKAN, ALASKA, hereinafter

called "The Employer," is employing or intends to

employ MACK A. MITCHELL in the capacity of

CASHIER, hereinafter called "The Employe," and

has filed with THE UNITED STATES FIDEL-
ITY AND GUARANTY COMPANY, hereinafter

called "The Company," an application specifying

the amomit of security required from said Employe,

and has applied to the Company for the grant of

this bond; and

WHEREAS, the Company in consideration of

the sum of one hundred and 00/100 dollars, now

paid as a premium from April 1st, 1906, to April

1st, 1907, at 12 o'clock noon, has agreed upon the

terms, provisions and conditions herein contained

to issue this bond to the Employer ; and

WHEREAS, the Employer has heretofore de-

livered to the Company certain representations and

promises relative to the duties and accounts of the

Employe, and other matters, it is hereby understood

and agreed that those representations and such

promises, and any subsequent representation or

promise of the Employer, hereafter required by or

lodged with the Company, are hereby expressly

warranted to be true.
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NOW, THEREFORE, THIS BOND, WIT-
NESSETH, That for the consideration of the

premises, the Company shall, during the term above

mentioned, or any subsequent renewal of such term

and subject to the conditions and provisions herein

contained, at the expiration of three months next,

after proof, satisfactory to the Company, as herein-

after mentioned, make good and reimburse to the

said Employer, such pecuniary loss as may be sus-

tained by the Employer by reason of the fraud or

dishonesty of the said Employe in connection with

the duties of his office or position, amounting to

embezzlement or larceny, and which shall have been

committed during the continuance of said term, or

of any renewal thereof, and discovered during said

continuance or of any renewal thereof, or within

six months thereafter, or within six months from

the death or dismissal or retirement of said Employe

from the service of the Employer within the period

of this Bond, whichever of these events shall first

happen ; the Company 's total liability on account of

said Employe under this Bond or any renewal there-

of, not to exceed the sum of TWENTY-FIVE
THOUSAND ($25,000) DOLLARS.

PROVIDED, That on the discovery of any act

capable of giving rise to a claim hereunder, the

Employer shall, at the earliest practical moment,

give notice thereof to the Company, and any claim

made under this Bond shall be in writing addressed

to the Company at its head office in the City of

Baltimore; and shall mthin three months after
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the discovery thereof, at the Employer's expense,

furnish to the Company reasonable particulars and

proofs of the correctness of said claim, and such

particulars, if required, shall be verified by affidavit.

PROVIDED FURTHER, That the Company

shall not be lial^le, by virtue of this Bond, for any

act or thing done or left undone by the Employe in

obedience to, or in pursuance of an instruction

or authorization received by him from the Employer

or any superior officer, or for any mere error of

judgment or bona fide mistake, or any injudicious

exercise of discretion on the part of the Employe, in

and about all or any matters wherein he shall have

been vested with discretion either by instruction or

by the rules and regulations of the Employer.

PROVIDED FURTHER, That the Company

shall not be liable under this Bond for the amount

of any balance that may be found due the Employer

from the Employe, and which may have accrued

prior to the date hereof, it being the true intent

and meaning of this Bond that the Company shall

be responsible as aforesaid for moneys, securities,

or property diverted from the Employer within the

period specified in this Bond.

AND PROVIDED, ALSO, That this Bond is

granted upon the express understanding or agree-

ment that as against every corporation or person

now being or hereafter becoming security or surety

and upon every security held by the Employer for

the Employe in his employment as aforesaid, the

Company shall have and possess the right of ratable
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contribution and all other rights and remedies, both

legal and equitable, of co-sureties.

AND ALSO, That, should the Employe become

guilty of an offence covered by this Bond, the Em-

ployer will immediately, on being requested by the

surety to do so, lay information before a proper

officer covering the facts and verify the same as

required by law and furnish the Company every aid

and assistance, not pecuniary, capable of being ren-

dered by the Employer, his or its agents and serv-

ants, which will aid in bringing the Employe

promptly to justice, and such action when required

of the Employer shall be a condition precedent to

recover under this Bond.

PROVIDED, That the Company shall have the

right, upon giving thirty days' notice in writing to

the Employer, to cancel this Bond at the expiration

of said thirty days ; and if the bond shall be so can-

celled, the Company shall refund the proportion of

the premium for the unexpired term of risk.

PROVIDED, That the Employe may perform

other duties than those properly belonging to the

position mentioned in this Bond without notice of

such change being given to the Company.

PROVIDED, That the premium due the Com-

pany for becoming surety for the Employe named in

this Bond shall be paid within thirty days after

the delivery hereof, and if not so paid, this Bond

shall be void from the beginning, and the Company

shall not be liable for any loss hereunder.
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AND PROVIDED, LASTLY, That this Bond

is also subject to the following conditions:

THAT, any misstatement or suppression of

fact in any claim made hereunder renders this Bond

void from the beginning.

THIS BOND will become void as to any claim

for which the Company would otherwise be liable,

if the employer shall fail to notify the Company

of the occurrence of the act or commission out ot

which said claim shall arise immediately after it

shall come to the knowledge of the Employer; and

the knowledge of a President, Vice-President, Di-

rector, Secretary, Treasurer, Manager, Cashier or

other like executive officer shall be deemed under

this contract the knowledge of the Employer. And
upon the making of any claim hereunder, this Bond

shall wholly cease and determine as regards any

act or omission of the Employe, committed subse-

quent to the making of such claim, and it shall be

surrendered to the Company on the payment of

such claim.

THAT, after the expiration of the Company's

liability hereunder, and no claim having been pre-

sented the then unexpired portion, if any, of the

term for which this bond was granted, shall apply

to any new Employe whose risk, to the same amount,

the said Company may at that time assume or the

Company shall at the election of the Employer re-

turn to the Employer the unearned premium on

return of this Bond for cancellation.
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IT IS FURTHER MADE AN EXPRESS
CONDITION of this Bond that no suit or action

of any kind against the Company for the recovery

of any claim upon, under or by virtue of this Bond,

shall be sustainable in any court of law or equity,

unless such suit or action shall be commenced, and

the process served on the Company within the term

of twelve months next after the date of filing notice

of a claim therefor as hereinbefore provided ; in case

any suit or action shall be commenced against the

Company after the expiration of said period of

twelve months the lapse of time shall be taken and

deemed as conclusive evidence against the validity

of the claim thereby so attempted to be enforced.

THAT no one of the above conditions, or of the

provisions contained in this Bond, shall be deemed

to have been waived by or on behalf of the Com-

pany, unless the waiver be clearly expressed in writ-

ing over the signature of its President and Secre-

tary, and its seal thereto affixed.

THAT the Company, upon the execution of this

Bond, shall not thereafter be responsible to the Em-

ployer, under any bond previously issued to the

Employer on behalf of said Employe, and upon the

issuance of any Bond subsequent hereto upon said

Employe in favor of said Employer, all responsi-

bility hereunder shall cease and determine, it being

mutually understood that it is the intention of this

provision that but one (the last) Bond shall be in

force at one time, unless otherwise stipulated be-

tween the Employer and the Company.
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AND THE EMPLOYE doth hereby for him-

self, his heirs, executors, and administrators, cove-

nant and agree to and with the Company that he

will save, defend and keep harmless the Company
from and against all loss and damage of whatever

nature or kind, and from all legal and other costs

and expense, direct or incidental, which the Com-

pany shall or may at any time sustain or be put to

(whether before or after any legal proceedings by

or against it to recover under this Bond, and with-

out notice to him thereof) or for, or by reason or in

consequence of, the Company having entered into

the present Bond.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said MACK
A. MITCHELL (the Employe) has hereunto set

his hand and seal, and the Company has caused this

Bond to be sealed with its corporate seal, duly at-

tested by the signatures of its Attorneys in Fact,

this 1st day of May, one thousand nine hundred

and six.

Signed, sealed and delivered by the Employe

at

L. S.

In the presence of

THE UNITED STATES FIDELITY
AND GUARANTY COMPANY,

A. KENNARD, DOUGLAS R. TATE,

Attorney-in-Fact. Attorney-in-Fact.
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Exhibit "B."

Continuation Certificate No. T-450.

Amount, $25,000.00. Premium, $100.00.

Fidelity Department.

THE UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY.

Home Office,

Baltimore, Maryland.

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE SUM OF
ONE HUNDRED ($100.00) DOLLARS, THE
UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY hereby continues in force Bond

T-450 in the sum of Twenty-five Thousand ($25,000)

Dollars, on behalf of MACK A. MITCHELL in

favor of MINERS AND MERCHANTS BANK
of Ketchikan, Alaska, for the period beginning the

1st day of April, 1910, and ending on the 1st day

of April, 1912, subject to all the covenants and con-

ditions of said original bond heretofore issued,

dating from the 1st day of April, 1906.

WITNESS the signature of its Attorney-in-

Fact under corporate seal this 1st day of April,

1910.

DOUGLAS R. TATE,
Attorney-in-Fact.
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Exhibit ''C."

UNITED STATES FIDELITY & GUARANTY
COMPANY.

Capital Paid in Cash, $2,000,000.

Total Resources Over $7,400,000.

Home Office:

Baltimore, Md.

No. 27999. $25,000.00.

The UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY, as Insurer, for a

premium of SIXTY-TWO and 50/100 ($62.50)

DOLLARS, hereby guarantees to pay to the

MINERS & MERCHANTS BANK of KETCHI-
KAN, ALASKA, the Employer, such pecuniary loss

as the Employer shall sustain (limited only by the

provisos hereof) of money, bonds, debentures, scrips,

certificates, warrants, transfers, coupons, bills

of exchange, promissory notes, checks, bank notes,

currency, merchandise or other property, including

that for which Employer is responsible, occasioned

by any act or acts of fraud, dishonesty, forgery,

theft, larceny, embezzlement, wrongful abstraction

or misapplication or misappropriation or any

criminal act by MACK A. MITCHELL, directly

or through connivance in any position and at any

location in the Employer's employ, and during the

period commencing upon the date hereof and con-

tinuing in the sum of TWENTY-FIVE THOU-
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SAND ($25,000.00) DOLLARS until the termina-

tion of this insurance.

PROVISOS:

1. In the event of the recovery of any loss, or

portion thereof, from other than insurance, the Em-

ployer shall be entitled thereto until fully reim-

bursed, the excess, if any, to be paid to the Insurer.

2. The Employer shall deliver notice of any

default hereof to the Insurer at its Home Office

within ten (10) days after the discovery of such

default. All claims shall be submitted, showing the

items and dates of the losses, and delivered in writ-

ing to the Insurer at its Home Office within three

(3) months after their discovery. The Insurer shall

have two (2) months after claim has been presented

in which to verify and pay the same, during which

time no legal proceeding shall be brought against

the Insurer as to that claim, nor at all as to that

claim after the expiration of twelve (12) months

from its date.

3. This insurance shall only terminate by

:

(1) The Employer giving notice in writing to

the Insurer specifying the date of termination.

(2) The Insurer giving thirty (30) days' notice

in writing to the Employer. (The Insurer to re-

fund unearned premium in the above cases.)

(3) The nonpayment of premium for a period

of three (3) months beyond date due; all premiums

being due in advance.

4. The discovery of any loss through the Em-

ployee.
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, THE
UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY has hereunto set its seal. Wit-

ness the hand of its Attorney-in-Fact, on this 1st

day of April, 1913.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY,

By C. H. CAMPBELL,
(Seal.) Attorney-in-Fact.

Exhibit "D."

The United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company,

a corporation, Baltimore, Maryland, and Se-

attle, Washington.

On the first day of May, 1906, youi' company,

as insurer, executed to the MINERS & MER-
CHANTS BANK, Ketchikan, Alaska, as employer,

a fidelity bond upon Mack A. Mitchell in the ca-

pacity of Cashier of said Miners & Mercahants

Bank, conducting a general banking business at

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Your bond was in the amount of Twenty-five

Thousand Dollars ($25,000), and has been renewed

each succeeding year, including the the year 1913,

the bond for the year 1913 bearing date April 1st,

1913, your bond having been continuously in force

in the same amount since the said 1st day of May,

1906.

The Miners & Merchants Bank hereby notifies
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you, under and by virtue of the terms of said

various bonds and renewals thereof, that Mr. J. E.

Chilberg, of Seattle, Washington, as President of

the Miners & Merchants Bank of Ketchikan,

Alaska, left Seattle on Sunday, November 30th, for

Ketchikan, and has just returned to Seattle and that

the Miners & Merchants Bank, through its officers,

have just made discoveries which lead the bank and

its officers to believe that the said Mack A. Mitchell,

as Cashier of said bank, has been guilty of acts

giving rise to a claim imder your bond and that the

Miners & Merchants Bank does hereby make claim

upon and against your company for any and all

and such loss as it may sustain by reason ofj or on

account of the acts and conduct of the said Mack A.

Mitchell, as set forth in the bonds, to the full extent

of the indemnity, to-wit, $25,000.

Immediately upon suspecting any wrong-doing

on the part of Mitchell the bank placed an expert

accountant upon the books. This accountant is still

at work and it is expected that he will return to

Seattle on or about the 16th day of December, 1913,

and when he does return a more full and definite

report will be made to your company. It is impos-

sible for the bank at this time to make to you a

definite statement of claim as to details and

amounts, but it takes this earliest opportunity to

place before you such information as it has. It is

the belief of the bank at this time that the abstrac-

tions from the bank by the cashier and the probable
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loss to the bank on account thereof will exceed the

sum of $40,000.

The money in question has been taken from the

bank through the medium of a concern known as the

Revilla Fish Company, in which Mitchell appears

to be a stockholder. As nearly as the bank has

been able to ascertain the fish corporation is in-

solvent, and that said corporation has not now and

never has had any assets of any particular value.

The exact date that Mitchell began to take

moneys from the bank cannot at this time be given,

but subject to correction we state that it was about

, 1911. The entire transaction has

been at all times concealed from the bank and its

officers by Mitchell and in his reports made to the

officers of the Bank at Seattle, from time to time,

he concealed the transaction and harmonized the

reports by understating the actual amount of de-

posits, his reports to the officers each time showing

the deposits to be less in an amount actually

equivalent to the shortage.

Upon the return of the expert accountant

everything which he obtains will be at your com-

mand and the bank will furnish to your company

everything which his report discloses. Mitchell has

been removed from his position and is still at Ketchi-

kan, Alaska.

Dated December 9th, 1913.

MINERS & MERCHANTS BANK,
By J. E. Chilberg.

Attest:—L. H. Woolfolk, Secretary.

Address : 1113 Alaska Bldg., Seattle, Wash.
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Exhibit "E."

The United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company,

Baltimore, Maryland, and Seattle, Washington.

Gentlemen :

—

December 9th, 1913, the undersigned, MINERS
AND MERCHANTS BANK, doing business at

Ketchikan, Alaska, served upon you a statement

and a claim against your company on account of

Mack A. Mitchell, Cashier of the undersigned bank.

The undersigned Miners and Merchants Bank

does, in accordance with the statement made in the

claim of December 9th, 1913, hereby supplement said

claim and makes the following further statement

:

The abstraction of money from the bank by

Mack A. Mitchell began on the 15th day of May,

1911, and continued to and including the 14th day

of August, 1913, and during that period the said

Mitchell has wrongfully, dishonestly and fraudu-

lently taken from the bank a total sum of Forty

Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-seven and 83/100

($-10,337.83) Dollars. That said sum of Forty Thou-

sand Three Hundred Thirty-seven and 83/100 ($40,-

337.83) Dollars was fraudulently taken from the

bank by the said Mitchell as follows

:

From May 15, 1911 to May 1st, 1912 $20,722.06

From May 1st, 1912, to May 1st, 1913 18,927.50

From May 1st, 1913, to August 14, 1913 688.27

Total $40,337.83



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 35

That said Mack A. Mitchell covered up the

transactions from time to time by pretending to

give this money to a corporation which was known

first as Revilla Reduction Works, the name of which

was afterwards changed to the Revilla Fish Prod-

ucts Company. Mitchell was a stockholder and

officer in this corporation. The corporation had no

assets of any kind except as Mitchell gave it money

from the bank, and it now has property, which the

undersigned bank has had appraised and as nearly

as it can arrive at the value, believes it does not

exceed Three Thousand Five Hundred ($3,500)

Dollars.

Mitchell took no notes from the corporation and

no evidence of any kind of the indebtedness. He
now claims it was "overdrafts" and the entire

transaction was at all times concealed from the

officers of the bank.

On Jmie 30th, 1911, Mitchell prepared a report

to the Clerk of the United States District Court at

Juneau, Alaska, and another copy to the Honorable

William L. Distin, Secretary of Alaska, both of

which reports are required by law to be made, and

he caused said reports to be filed at that time under

oath, and said reports did not show any overdrafts,

although Mitchell at that time had taken from the

bank and given over to the fish company Thirteen

Hundred Eighty-eight and 05/100 ($1,388.05) Dol-

lars of the bank's money. In order to balance his

account in the report he deducted $1,388.05 from the
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deposits and made a false representation and caused

a false affidavit to be filed as to the actual amount of

the deposits in the bank. Mitchell at the same time

made like statements and reports to the officers of

the bank and practiced the same deceit upon the

officers of the bank.

On December 30th, 1911, in conformity with the

rules and regulations of his Board of Directors and

superior officers, he caused to be prepared a state-

ment of the condition of the Miners and Merchants

Bank and which statement was by him submitted

to the Board at Seattle and said statement, account

and report was made and submitted and showed no

overdraft and no evidence of the monev taken from

the bank by Mitchell, and which he now claims he

turned over to the fish company, althoujrh at that

time and on that date he had taken the sum of Four

Thousand Three Hundred Seventy-four and 90/100

($4,374.90) Dollars, but in his report he made no

account of such sum or any part thereof, but abso-

lutely concealed it from the officers of the bank by

reducing the amount of money actually on deposit

in the bank.

On June 30th, 1912, Mitchell made another re-

" ort to the Clerk of the United States District Court

at Juneau and caused the same, duly verified, to be

filed as required by law, and at that time he had

wrongfully and fraudulently abstracted and taken

funds of the bank to the amount of Twenty-three

Thousand Six Hundred Nineteen and 60/100 ($23,-
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619.61) Dollars and wholly failed to make any re-

port of such sum or to make any accounting what-

ever of any such sum in the sworn reports filed as

required by law, but dishonestly and fraudulently^

concealed the same both from the officers with whom
the reports are required to be filed and with the

United States Government, and from the bank and

its officers.

On December 31st, 1912, he made another re-

port to his Board of Directors in Seattle and in

addition to his written report was personally pres-

ent before the Board at Seattle and he concealed

the fact that he had in any manner taken money or

any money from the bank; he disclosed nothing in

the way of overdrafts and specifically and expressly

stated and represented to the Board that there was

no overdraft in the bank, although at that time he

had taken from the bank the sum of Thirty-six

Thousand Thirty-one and 19/100 ($36,031.19)

Dollars.

July 15th, 1913, Mitchell again prepared his an-

nual report to the Secretary of the Territory of

Alaska and to the Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court at Juneau and caused said report, duly

verified and sworn to, to be filed in the manner pro-

vided by law and in such reports made no statement

of any overdraft or overdrafts and no accounting

of any kind of shortage, although he had at that

time taken from the bank the sum of Forty Thou-

sand Twenty-eight and 03/100 ($40,028.03) Dol-
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lars. That he likewise made his usual annual re-

port and statement to the Board of Directors of the

bank, and again absolutely deceived the directors

and misrepresented the facts and concealed from

them the fact that the said sum of Forty Thousand

Twenty-eight and 03/100 ($40,028.03) Dollars or

any other sum, had been by him in any manner

taken from the bank and again represented that

there were no overdrafts of any kind and showed

none and both in said sworn reports and in his re-

ports to the directors he had fraudulently and dis-

honestly and falsety misrepresented the amount of

deposits in said bank and had deducted from the

deposits the sum of Forty Thousand Twenty-eight

and 03/100 ($40,028.03) Dollars, in order to cover

up and conceal his wrongful taking of the funds.

Since May 1st, 1913, Mitchell took from the

bank the following sums at the following times, and

in amounts and items as follows, to-wit:

May 29th, 1913 $394.40

July 7th, 1913 3.42

July 8th, 1913 73.25

July 18th, 1913 6.00

August 12th, 1913 203.80.

August 14th, 1913 100.00

Total $780.87

In the claim made and served upon you on the

9th day of December in this matter for the sum of

Twenty-five Thousand ($25,000) Dollars, as pro-
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vided in your several bonds and the renewals there-

of, it was stated that the bank had- an expert ac-

countant working upon the books of the bank, and

the undersigned now advises you that that account-

ant was Mr. O. S. Larson, whose office is at 1113

Alaska Building, Seattle, Washington, you are at

liberty to take this matter up with Mr. Larson, who

will, on behalf of the bank, furnish you proofs of

the correctness of said claim and give to you all the

information obtained by him from the books of the

bank and all of the items of the account, if you

should desire such items, and all of the knowledge

and information in his possession, and after having

given to you all of such particulars the bank will, if

required by you, have the correctness of the claim

and acount verified by affidavit. Since Mr. Larson

has the records and all data assembled in his office

he would prefer, if it is convenient to you, to have

you come to his office, but if you shall indicate that

you prefer to have Mr. Larson go to your office he

will do so at any time you will name as being con-

venient to you and furnish to you any additional

proof and information.

MINERS & MERCHANTS BANK,
By J. E. CHILBERG, President.

Attest:—L. H. Woolfolk, Secretary.

The undersigned. United States Fidelity &
Guaranty Company, acknowledges receipt of copy
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of the above and foregoing statement this 17th day

of December, 1913.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY &
GUARANTY COMPANY,
By JOHN C. McCOLLISTER,

Manager and Attorney-in-Fact.

Filed in Clerk's office April 4, 1914. W. K.

Sickels, clerk. By F. W. Smith, deputy.

Filed in the U. S. District Court, Western Dis-

trict of Washington, May 14, 1914. Frank L.

Crosby, clerk. By E. M. L., deputy.

ANSWER.

Comes now the United States Fidelity & Guar-

anty Company, a corporation, and answers the com-

plaint of the plaintiff, as follows

:

I.

In answer to Paragraph 1 of said complaint

defendant admits the same.

II.

For answer to Paragraph 2 of the complaint

defendant admits the same.

III.

For answer to Paragraph 3 of the said com-

plaint this defendant denies the same and each and

every allegation therein contained, except that it

admits that it did on or about the first day of May,

1906, engage to indemnify and keep indemnified the

said plaintiff against alleged loss or damage on ac-
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count of the wrongful acts of its cashier, Mack A.

Mitchell, in accordance with the conditions, cove-

nants and stipulations to be contained in a written

bond of indemnity and not otherwise.

IV.

For answer to Paragraph 4 of the complaint

this defendant denies the same and each and every

allegation therein contained, except that the said

defendant admits that it agreed to indemnify the

said plaintiff in accordance with the terms, condi-

tions, covenants and stipulations of such bond of

indemnity as it would issue, and not otherwise.

Y.

For answer to Paragraph 5 of the said com-

plaint this defendant denies the same and each and

every allegation therein contained.

VI.

For answer to Paragraph 6 of the said com-

plaint this defendant admits that on or about the

first day of May, 1906, the said plaintiff did pay

to the defendant the sum of one hundred ($100.00)

dollars as premium upon a bond written for the

period of one year from the first day of April, 1906,

to the first day of April, 1907; and admits that the

said defendant did at the said time, make, execute

and deliver to the said plaintiff its certain fidelity

bond, the terms of which are as set forth in Exhibit

"A," attached to the complaint; and denies each
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and every other aliegation in the said paragraph

contained.

VII.

For answer to Paragraph 7 of the said com-

plaint, this defendant admits that by the terms and

conditions of the said bond, the said defendant

guaranteed to make good and reimburse to the said

plaintiff such pecuniary loss as might be sustained

by the said plaintiff by reason of fraud or dis-

honesty of the said Mack A. Mitchell, in connection

with the duties of his office or position, amounting

to embezzlement or larceny, and which should have

been committed during the continuance of the term

of said bond, to-wit, within one year from the first

day of April, 1906, or any renewal thereof, and dis-

covered during said continuance or within six

months thereafter, but denies each and every other

allegation in said paragraph contained.

VIII.

For answer to Paragraph 8 of the said com-

plaint, this defendant admits that from year to

year until the first day of April, 1913, said bond

was renewed according to the terms expressed in a

contract of renewal issued each year as is set forth

in Exhibit B attached to the plaintiff's complaint,

and denies each and every other allegation in said

paragraph contained.
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IX.

For answer to Paragraph 9 of said complaint,

this defendant admits that the said renewals and

extensions until the first day of April, 1913, were

made in the same way and in the same manner as

the one attached to the complaint, marked Exhibit

B, and were of like tenor and effect, and denies each

and every other allegation in said paragraph con-

tained.

X.

For answer to Paragraph 10 of the said com-
plaint, defendant admits that on or about the 25th

day of November, 1913, a bond, in terms and figures

as is set forth in Exhibit C, attached to the com-

plaint, was delivered to this plaintiff, but denies

each and every other allegation in said paragraph

contained.

XI.

For answer to Paragraph 11 of said complaint,

this defendant denies the same and every allegation

therein contained.

XIL

For answer to Paragraph 12 of said complaint,

this defendant admits that on or about the 9th day

of December, 1913, the said plaintiff did serve upon

the local agent and representative of the defendant

corporation and did mail to the defendant at its

head office at Baltimore, Maryland, a certain notice

in writing, a copy of which is attached to the com-
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plaint, marked Exhibit B, but denies each and every

other allegation in said paragraph contained.

XIII.

For answer to Paragraph 13 of said complaint,

this defendant admits that the matters and things

in said paragraph set forth were stated and set

forth in said Notice marked Exhibit B.

XIV.

For answer to Paragraph 14 of said complaint,

this defendant admits that on or about the 7th day

of December, 1913, the said plaintiff did serve upon

the said defendant, a notice, claim and demand, as

is set forth in Exhibit E attached to the complaint,

but denies each and every other allegation in said

paragraph contained,

XV.

For answer to Paragraph 15 of said complaint,

this defendant denies the same and every allegation

therein contained, and especially denies that the

said Mack A. Mitchell was guilty of having wrong-

fully, dishonestly or fraudulently or at all, taken or

abstracted from the plaintiff bank any sum of

money in excess of Twenty-five thousand ($25,000)

dollars, or any other sum, or at all, and denies that

as set forth in said complaint, or at all, the said

Mack A. Mitchell did wrongfully or unlawfully

take, abstract or remove from the said plaintiff bank

a sum of money in excess of Twenty-five thousand
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($25,000) dollars or any other sum; and denies that

said defendant corporation was or is liable to the

said plaintiff to the extent of Twenty-five thousand

($25,000) dollars, or for any other sum, or at all.

XVI.

For answer to Paragraph 16 of said complaint,

this defendant denies that it has any knowledge or

information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of any of the matters or things set forth in

said paragraph.

XVII.

For answer to Paragraph 17 of said complaint,

this defendant denies the same and every allegation

therein contained.

XVIII.

For answer to Paragraph 18 of said complaint,

this defendant denies the same and every allegation

therein contained.

XIX.

For answer to Paragraph 19 of said complaint,

this defendant denies the same and every allegation

therein contained, and specifically denies that the

said defendant now or at any time seeks to repudiate

or has at any time repudiated its entire or any

liability or obligation upon any bond of indemnity

made between plaintiff and defendant.

XX.

For answer to Paragraph 20 of said complaint,

this defendant denies that there is now due or
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owing from said Mack A. Mitchell on account of

the matters or things set forth in said complaint,

any sum in excess of Twenty-five thousand ($25,000)

dollars, or any sum, and denies it has any knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to any

of the other matters or things set forth in said para-

graph.

XXI.

For answer to Paragraph 21 of said complaint,

this defendant denies the same and every allegation

therein contained.

XXII.

For answer to Paragraph 22 of said complaint,

this defendant admits that it denies all liability and

obligation to plaintiff and refuses to repay to plain-

tiff the sum of Twenty-five thousand ($25,000) dol-

lars or any other sum, and denies each and every

other allegation in said paragraph contained.

And for another and first affirmative defense,

this defendant avers:

I.

That on or about the first day of April, 1906,

the said defendant did make, execute and deliver to

the said plaintiff its certain bond of indemnity, in

words and figures as set forth in Exhibit A attached

to the complaint herein. From year to year there-

after, upon the first day of April, and thereafter,

including the first day of April, 1912, said bond was

renewed by the issuance to the said plaintiff of a
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renewal certificate each year, in words and figures

as is set forth in Exhibit B, attached to the com-

plaint of the plaintiff, and not otherwise.

II.

On the first day of April, 1913, said bond of

indemnity, renewed as heretofore set forth, together

with all liability thereunder, finally expired and

terminated.

III.

That no notice or claim of the discovery of

any alleged loss, if loss there was, or act capable of

giving rise to any claim under said bond, committed

during the continuance of the terms of said bond,

or any renewal thereof, discovered during the con-

tinuance or any renewal thereof, or within six

months thereafter, was made at the earliest prac-

tical moment after the discovery of such alleged loss

or act, if such loss or act there was, as provided in

said bond.

IV.

That the plaintiff herein did not, within six

months after the first day of April, 1913, or at any

time prior to the 9th day of December, 1913, give

notice to the defendant of the discovery of any act

capable of giving rise to a claim under the said bond

dated April 1, 1906, and the renewals thereof, and

did not at any time within six months after April 1,

1913, or at any time prior to the 9th day of De-

cember, 1913, make any claim in writing or other-
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wise against the defendant because of any of the

alleged fraudulent or dishonest acts of the said

Mack A. Mitchell, contrary to the conditions and

provisions of said contract.

And for another and second affirmative defense,

this defendant avers:

I.

That after the termination of said bond and

the various renewals thereof as aforesaid, on April

1, 1913, and on or about the 25th day of November,

1913, the said plaintiff made application to the

said defendant for the issuance to it, the said plain-

tiff, of a bond indemnifying the said plaintiff

against such alleged pecuniary loss as it, the said

plaintiff, should sustain on account of alleged loss

accruing by the act or acts of the said Mack A.

Mitchell.

II.

That at said time the said plaintiff well knew

of all the acts of the said Mack A. Mitchell as set

forth in the complaint herein, and well knew all

the matters and things pertaining to said alleged

loss claimed to have been occasioned by the acts of

the said Mack A. Mitchell to the nlaintiff ; and that

at said time the said defendant had no knowledge

or means of knowledge of any of the said alleged

acts of the said Mack A. Mitchell or of any of the

matters or things pertaining to the said alleged loss

on account of the said alleged acts of the said Mack

A. Mitchell; that thereupon the plaintiff did repre-
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sent to this defendant that there had been no acts

of fraud, theft, larceny, embezzlement, wrongful

abstraction or misappropriation or any criminal

act b,y the said Mack A. Mitchell or any act so as

to occasion any alleged loss to the plaintiff, and did

conceal from the defendant all of the alleged wrong-

ful acts of the said Mack A. Mitchell, and that the

plaintiff did represent to this defendant that the

accounts of the said Mack A. Mitchell were in all

particulars correct; that thereupon the defendant,

relying upon said representations and in ignorance

of all of said alleged acts of the said Mack A.

Mitchell, and not otherwise, did execute and deliver

to the plaintiff the said bond, a copy of which is

attached to the complaint herein, marked Exhibit

C, and did accept said premium of Sixty-two and

50/100 ($62.50) dollars, and did not thereafter dis-

cover that the said plaintiff did claim that the said

Mack A. Mitchell had been guilty of any alleged

fraudulent or wrongful acts until on or about the

10th day of December, 1913, and that immediately

upon the discovery by the defendant of the plain-

tiff's claim herein, and that the plaintiff, on the said

25th day of November, 1913, had concealed from the

defendant the alleged wrongful and fraudulent acts

of the said Mack A. Mitchell on said 10th day of

November, 1913, the said defendant did tender to

the plaintiff the repayment of said Sixty-two and

50/100 ($62.50) dollars, which said tender was

refused by the plaintiff, and the defendant ever
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since has been and is now read}^ and willing to

repay and return to the plaintiff, and does hereby

offer to return and repay to the plaintiff, the said

sum of Sixty-two and 50/100 ($62.50) dollars paid

to the defendant by the plaintiff as premium upon

said bond. That b.y reason of the premises the said

bond, a copy of which is attached to plaintiff's com-

plaint herein as Exhibit C, became and was and is

null and void.

And for another and third affirmative defense,

this defendant avers:

I.

That at the time of the issuance of said bond,

to-wit, on April 1, 1906, and at time of the various

renewals thereof, as heretofore set forth, and as a

condition of the issuance of said bond and the

various renewals thereof, the said plaintiff did agree

with the said defendant that it would from time to

time make new and proper examination of the books

and accounts of the said Mack A. Mitchell and the

said Miners and Merchants Bank, to the end that

any alleged loss because of any act of the said Mack

A. Mitchell, fraudulent or otherwise, might be time-

ly discovered and reported to this defendant. Not-

withstanding said agreement, this plaintiff wrong-

fully failed and neglected to make from time to

time, or at all any sufficient or other examination of

the books or accounts of the said Mack A. Mitchell,

or the said Miners and Merchants Bank; that had

the said examination as agreed as aforesaid been
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made, any alleged loss occasioned by any act of the

said Mack A. Mitchell, if loss there was, would have

been prevented.

And for another and fourth affirmative defense,

against the matters and things set forth in Para-

graphs 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 11, 17 and 19, this defendant

alleges :

I.

That the said alleged agreement, contract or

promise set forth and referred to in said para-

graphs, was not in writing, nor was any note or

memorandum thereof at any time in writing signed

by the parties to be charged therewith, or any per-

son by it lawfully authorized or at all, and that said

alleged agreement, contract or promise set forth

and referred to in said paragraphs, is void under

the provisions of Section 5289 of Bemington d
Ballinger's Annotated Codes and Statutes of Wash-

ington.

Wherefore, this defendant prays that it may
go hence with its costs.

McCLURE & McCLURE and

HUGHES, McMICKEN,
DOVELL & RAMSEY,

Attorneys for Defendant.

STATE OF WASHINGTON,
]

COUNTY OF KING.
J

John C. McCollister, being first duly sworn, on
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oath deposes and says: I am the resident manager

and statutory agent for the State of Washington of

the above named defendant, and make this verifica-

tion in its behalf. I know the contents of the fore-

going Answer, and believe the same to be true.

JOHN C. McCOLLISTER.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 13th

day of July, 1914.

C. P. GOEMMER,
Notary Public in and for the State

(Seal) of Washington, residing at Seattle.

Indorsed : Answer. Filed in the U. S. District

Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Northern Di-

vision, July 13, 1914. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By

E. M. L., Deputy.

REPLY OF PLAINTIFF.

Comes now the plaintiff and for reply to the

answer of defendant, and for reply to the first

affirmative defense of said answer, denies and al-

leges :

I.

For reply to paragraph III of said affirmative

defense plaintiff denies the same and the allegations

therein contained.

II.

For reply to paragraph IV admits that it gave

no notice to defendant prior to the 9th day of De-

cember, 1913, but denies each and every other alle-

gation and averment in said paragraph contained.
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SECOND.

Plaintiff for reply to the second affirmative

defense of the defendant denies and alleges:

I.

For reply to paragraph I, denies the same and

the allegations of said paragraph as therein made

and contained.

II.

For reply to paragraph II admits that on or

about the date named the defendant tendered to

plamtiff the premium of $62.50 and admits that

said tender was by the plaintiff refused ; admits the

execution of the bond attached to the complaint of

plaintiff and marked Exhibit "C" and admits the

delivery of said bond by defendant to plaintiff, and

denies each and every other allegation and aver-

ment in said paragraph contained.

The plaintiff further replying to defendant's

second affirmative defense, alleges:

III.

That said bond marked Exhibit "C" and at-

tached to the complaint of plaintiff was written and

delivered by said defendant to the plaintiff as and

of the 1st day of April, 1913, in pursuance of the

agreement and arrangement between the parties

hereto for the continuance in force of said fidelity

insurance to plaintiff, as, for and on account of the

said Mack A. Mitchell, as cashier of plaintiff bank,

and was and is a continuation of said fidelity
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insurance and contract. That same was written

and delivered by the defendant to plaintiff as a

part of and in pursuance with the agreement and

arrangement existing between the parties hereto,

as fully set forth in the complaint herein, and for

the consideration of the premiums paid and without

any further or additional application having been

made therefor.

IV.

That there was a slight delay in the execution

and delivery of said bond, but that said delay was

caused by the neglect of defendant, and without

notice or knowledge on the part of plaintiff. That

same was caused through no fault or neglect of

plaintiff, but was caused wholly through the fault,

carelessness and neglect of the defendant in failing

to keep and perform its agreements with plaintiff

and by reason of the careless and negligent manner

in which the defendant managed and conducted its

business in connection with said transaction and

bond. That defendant, although having at all

previous renewals dealt with plaintiff's officers in

Seattle, Washington, for the continuous period

from April 1st, 1906, and having at all times col-

lected its premiums from the officers of plaintiff in

Seattle, Washington, did nevertheless wrongfully

and carelessly and negligently and knowingly take

up the matter of continuing said bond for the year

1914 directly with the said Mack A. Mitchell, and

that instead of renewing said bond as it had agreed
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and had been wont to do^ did write to said Mitchell

at Ketchikan, Alaska, inquiring if he, (Mitchell)

wanted said bond renewed. That this communica-

tion with Mitchell was without the knowledge or

consent of the officers of plaintiff and at a time

when plaintiff was relying wholly upon defendant

to renew said bond. That the said Mack A. Mitchell

being then short in his accounts (of which the plain-

tiff had no knowledge) and knowing that he had

breached and violated the terms and conditions of

the bond, and that he had wrongfully removed,

appropriated and embezzled the money, all fully as

alleged in plaintiff's complamt, notified the defend-

ant by letter that he, the said Mack A. Mitchell,

did not want the bond renewed. That said notifica-

tion on the part of the said Mack A. Mitchell was

in writing to the defendant company and upon a

letter head of the plaintiff bank, showing and stating

that the officers of plaintiff were and at all times

had been residents of Seattle and all gentlemen

well known and known to the officers and represen-

tatives of defendant, and that said Mack A. Mitchell

was not himself an officer of the bank. That all of

this was without the knowledge or consent of the

plaintiff and without any knowledge that anything

was wrong with the accounts of said Mitchell. That

immediately upon the discovery upon the part of

plaintiff bank that there had been a delay in the

renewal of said bond, it in turn called the attention

of the defendant to the oversight and neglect of the
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defendant in failing and neglecting to deliver to

plaintiff its renewal bond ; whereupon the defendant

immediately recognized and admitted its oversight

and neglect in the matter and did voluntarily and

forthwith execute said bond (plaintiff's exhibit

"C") to the plaintiff.

THIRD.

Plaintiff for reply to the third affirmative

defense of the defendant, denies and alleges:

I.

For reply to paragraph I of said affirmative

defense denies the same and the allegations and

averments therein contained.

For a further reply to said third affirmative

defense the plaintiff alleges:

That the defendant has fully waived the right

to set up or plead the matters alleged in said

affirmative defense and is estopped from making

and asserting any such claim or defense for the

following reasons and upon and following grounds,

to-wit

:

FIRST: That no such agreement, contract or

arrangement as therein alleged and set forth was

or is contained in or upon the policy of insurance

or any renewal thereof, delivered to the plaintiff by

defendant. That no agreement or arrangement of

the nature pleaded has at any time been in the pos-

session of the plaintiff and has never at any time
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been by defendant delivered to plaintiff, its officers

or agents, and no such agreement or contract as

alleged and set forth in said affirmative defense has

ever at any time during all the period mentioned

in the complaint of plaintiff, been in the possession

or under the control of plaintiff or within the

knowledge of plaintiff, but that if any such agree-

ment or arrangement was at any time attempted

to be made, the same has been by the defendant at

all times retained and kept by it in its possession

and under its control.

SECOND: That it has at all times been well

known and understood by defendant that the bank-

ing house of plaintiff has at all times been and is

now located at Ketchikan, in Alaska. That it was

at the time the original bond was written and has

at all times since been well known to defendant that

said bank was so located in Ketchikan, Alaska, and

at a great distance from Seattle, Washington, the

home office of the corporation, and that it would

at all times be and has at all times been impractical,

inconvenient, expensive and unreasonable to attempt

to make such examinations of said bank or of the

accounts of the cashier (who was at all times at

Ketchikan) and particularly and especially such

examinations or accounts as it is now alleged it

was agreed should be made. That, therefore, de-

fendant well knew and understood at all times that

it would not be convenient, practical or reasonable

to expect that such examinations or accounts would
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or could be made, and that there was no agreement

that any such examinations would be made. That

the defendant well knowing the long distance which

Ketchikan was and is from the city of Seattle, and

that Mitchell was to be and operate the bank at

Ketchikan, and well knowing and understanding

all of the above and foregoing facts and conditions,

and the manner in which the accounts were to be

kept and examined, did write and deliver said bonds

and renewals and accept the premiums therefor,

well knowing and understanding that examinations

such as it has now asserted should be made would

never at any time be made, and that plaintiff had

never contracted to make any such examinations

Plainti:ff alleges and asserts that it at all times

fully complied with all the requirements of any

agreement existing between itself and the defend-

ant, regarding accountings by Mitchell, and with

all provisions of the law in relation to any checking,

verification or examination of the accounts of said

Mack A. Mitchell, or said bank and at all times has

fully kept and performed every promise, statement

or representation made by it to defendant.

THIRD: That no written applications or

statements or representations were at any time

required by defendant or given by the plaintiff

after April 1, 1906. That the defendant executed

the successive renewals of said fidelity insurance

from year to year without any written statement,

representation or warranty or any written applica-
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tion of any kind or character having been required

or made b}' the plaintiff. That the defendant from

year to year executed the new contracts of insur-

ance and collected premiums thereon, and executed

renewal certificates and did from year to year

receive the premiums for said insurance without

plaintiff having made or being required to make

any representation, promise or guaranty in relation

to the examination, verification or checking of the

accounts of the said Mack A. Mitchell, and the plain-

tiff has at all times fully complied with all the terms,

conditions and provisions of any and all agreements

existing between it and the defendant, and all law-

ful requirements in relation to or in connection

with the said fidelity insurance and bonds.

FOURTH.

For reply to the fourth affirmative defense the

plaintiff denies the same and the allegations and

averments therein contained.

WHEREFORE the plaintiff, having fully re-

plied to the answer of defendant, prays for judg-

ment as in its complaint.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

STATE OF WASHINGTON, ]

COUNTY OF KING. J

L. H. WOOLFOLK, being first duly sworn,

upon oath deposes and says:

That he is the Secretary of Miners & Merchants
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Bank, a corporation, plaintiff herein ; that he makes

this verification for and on behalf of said bank being

thereunto duly authorized; that he has read the

foregoing reply, knows the contents thereof, and

believes the same to be true.

L. H. WOOLFOLK.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th

day of July, 1914.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
Notary Public in and for the State

of Washington, residing at Seattle.

Indorsed: Reply of Plaintiff. Filed in the U.

S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

Northern Division, July 24, 1914. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By E. M. L., Deputy.

DECREE.

This cause came on regularly to be heard before

the Honorable Jeremiah Neterer, Judge, and a jury.

The plaintiff was present in Court by John W.
Roberts, its attorney, and the defendant by Hughes,

McMicken, Dovell & Ramsey and McClure & Mc-

Clure, its attorneys. Both sides having announced

themselves ready for trial a jury was called and

duly empaneled, accepted and sworn to try the

cause. Opening statements were made to the jury

by counsel for respective parties.

WHEREUPON Counsel for the defendant be-

fore the offer of any evidence upon the part of the

plaintiff, moved the court to exclude from the con-
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sideration of the jury all testimony upon any part

of the allegations of the complaint of plaintiff, save

and except such as should relate to any loss claimed

under the bond bearing date of April 1st, 1913.

After argument of counsel upon said motion the

court sustained and granted the said motion of

defendant, to which ruling of the court the plaintiff

duly excepted and exception allowed.

THEREUPON The defendant offered, upon

conditions stated in the record at the time, to allow

judgment in favor of the plaintiff and against the

defendant on account of the loss claimed by plaintiff

upon the bond dated April 1st, 1913, for and in the

sum of $688.27.

THEREUPON Counsel for the plaintiff asked

permission to be allowed to prove and made offer

to prove the fact, that the bond of April 1st, 1913,

was a renewal bond and given in pursuance of

previous arrangement and agreement for the con-

tinuation of the insurance and as a renewal and

continuation of the former bond, and to prove the

allegations of its complaint, to which offer of proof

counsel for defendant objected on the ground that

said contract of April 1, 1913, is a contract com-

plete and unambiguous in itself and not subject to

be enlarged or attached by extraneous evidence,

and the further reason that such evidence would

not be material or relevant to any of the issues, and

the objection was by the Court sustained, to which

ruling of the court the plaintiff duly excepted and

exception allowed. It is therefore by the Court



62 Miners' & Merchants' Bank vs.

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED
That the plaintiff, Miners & Merchants Bank, do

have and recover of and from the defendant, United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, judgment

for and in the sum of $688.27, together with interest

thereon at the rate of six per cent, per annum from

the 9th day of December, 1913, until paid, and for

all proper costs and disbursements of the action.

To which judgment the plaintiff excepted and ex-

ception allowed.

Dated at Seattle, Washington, this 22d day of

June, 1915.

ENTER: Jeremiah Neterer, Judge.

Indorsed: Decree. Filed in the U. S. District

Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Northern Di-

vision, June 22, 1915. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By
E. M. Lakin, Deputy.

MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL.

Comes now the plaintiff, Miners & Merchants

Bank, and makes this its motion for a new trial in

this cause, and doth hereby and now move the court

to vacate and set aside, and hold for naught, its

former decision, order and judgment in this cause,

and to grant a new trial to the plaintiff herein, for

the reason and upon the ground that the Honorable

Court erred

—

1st. In sustaining the motions made by the

defendant to exclude testimony on behalf of the

plaintiff, and in sustaining the motions of the de-
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fendant to exclude all testimony except such as

related to the bond of April 1st, 1913.

2nd. In sustaining the motion of defendant to

exclude the testimony touching any alleged loss

occasioned by any wrongful act or conduct of Mack

A. Mitchell, occurring prior to April 1st, 1912.

3rd. In sustaining the motion of defendant to

exclude all testimony touching any alleged loss

occasioned by any wrongful act or conduct of Mack

A. Mitchell, occurring prior to April 1st, 1913.

4th. In refusing to allow the plaintiff to offer

proof to sustain the allegations of its complaint,

and in refusing to allow plaintiff to introduce evi-

dence to establish the facts which it offered to prove.

5th. In excluding the offer of testimony on

behalf of the plaintiff to prove the allegations of

its complaint and to prove that the bond was at all

times during the periods named in the complaint,

renewed and continued in force, and in refusing to

allow plaintiff to prove that the bond of April 1st,

1913, was a continuation and renewal bond, and by

agreement between the parties was to be at all times

so treated and understood.

Dated June 4th, 1915.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
GEORGE L. SPIRK,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Indorsed : Motion for New Trial. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

Northern Division, June 15, 1915. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By E. M. L., Deputy.
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ORDER OVERRULING MOTION FOR NEW
TRIAL.

This cause having come regularly on to be

heard upon the motion of the plaintiff for new trial,

before the Honorable Jeremiah Neterer, Judge of

this Court, and the Judge who tried the cause, plain-

tiff being present by John W. Roberts and George

L. Spirk, its attorneys, and the defendant by

Hughes, McMicken, Dovell & Ramsey, and McClure

& McClure, its attorneys, and the Court having

heard the argument of counsel, and being fully

advised in the premises, doth

OVERRULE and DENY the motion of the

plaintiff for new trial, to which ruling, the plaintiff

duly excepted and exception allowed.

Dated this 21st day of June, A. D. 1915.

Enter: Jeremiah Neterer, Judge.

O. Kj—W. T. Dovell.

Indorsed: Order overruling motion for new

trial. Filed in the U. S. District Court, Western

Dist. of Washington, Northern Division, June 21,

1915. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin,

Deputy.



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 65

In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington,

Northern Division.

No. 2750.

MINERS & MERCHANTS BANK, a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY & GUARANTY
CO., a corporation, DefendatU.

PLAINTIFF'S PROPOSED BILL OF
EXCEPTIONS.

BE IT REMEMBERED, that heretofore and

on, to-wit: the 9th day of June, 1915, the above

entitled cause came regularly on for trial in the

above entitled court before Honorable Jeremiah

Neterer, Judge Presiding;

The plaintiff appearing by John W. Roberts,

Esq., its attorney and counsel;

The defendant ajppearing by Henry F. Mc-

Clure, Esq., of Messrs. McClure & McClure, and by

William T. Dovell, Esq., of Messrs. Hughes, Mc-

Micken, Dovell & Ramsey, its attorneys and counsel

;

Whereupon, the following proceedings were had

and done, to-wit:

A jury was duly empanelled and sworn to try

the cause;

Whereupon Mr. John W Roberts, attorney for

the plaintiff, made the following opening statement

to the jury:

MR. ROBERTS: May it please the Court, and
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you, ladies and gentlemen of the jury:

This case is somewhat complicated, and I desire

to state to you as clearly as I may at this time

just what we expect the evidence will develop.

To begin with, the Miners & Merchants Bank

was organized for the purpose of transacting a

banking business at Ketchikan, Alaska. It had

a paid up capital stock of $30,000.00, with an

authorized capital stock of $50,000.00. At the

time it began its banking operations it pro-

cured the defendant in this action to write a

surety bond, or, what is known as a fidelity

bond, upon its cashier, Mr. Mack A. Mitchell,

who was to be in charge, and who was in charge,

and in entire charge, of the operation and

management of the bank at Ketchikan, Alaska.

The officers of the bank were Mr. James F.

Lane, Mr. L. H. Woolfolk, who sits here, and

Mr. Andrew Chilberg. Those gentlemen all

live in Seattle. They constituted its board of

trustees from the time of its organization until

the 29th day of November, 1913, when one

change was made in the board of trustees, Mr.

Ed Chilberg taking the place of Mr. Andrew

Chilberg. But Mr. Ed. Chilberg was not an

officer of the bank, nor a trustee, nor connected

in any way with its management, until Novem-

ber 29th, 1913. This bond was procured, as I

said, at the beginning, and guaranteed, as we

contend, the bank against any loss through any
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fraud or dishonesty on the part of Mr. Mitchell,

which the bank suffered or sustained.

This bond was renewed from year to year.

We allege, and expect the evidence to show to

you, that the arrangement and agreement was

made at the time the bond w^as written, that

the agents of the surety company should, from

year to year renew the bond. The company did

renew the bond from year to yenv, each time

renewing it before the expiration of the year,

and that the bond continued in force until after

the occurrences for which the action is brought.

Mr. Mitchell went to Ketchikan, Alaska,

which is a distance of some six hundred miles

from Seattle. In our complaint, I notice, we

have alleged four hundred miles, but as a mat-

ter of fact, it is something over six hundred

miles away from Seattle. It was at all times

known to the surety company that the business

of this bank was to be transacted in Ketchikan,

Alaska, and that Mr. Mitchell was to transact

that business at Ketchikan, Alaska; and Mr.

Mitchell went to Alaska, and made his home

there, and has lived there in Alaska from that

time until the present. He remained as cashier

of the bank until discoveries were made which

brought about this suit, when he was removed

from that position. Now, we expect that the

evidence will disclose that some time in the

latter part of 1910, or early in the year 1911,
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Mr. Mitchell entered into an arrangement with

one Wurzburg, whereby Mitchell and Wurzburg

formed a corporation. That corporation was to

be known as the Revilia Reduction Works. It

was to have a capital stock of $10,000.00, and in

the minutes of their meetings it is set forth that

Mr. Mitchell was to be a trustee and secretary

and to be paid, and to have and receive for his

service in financing this company, and in assist-

ing to promote it, sixty shares of the capital

stock of that corporation, to be issued to him

fully paid. That Wurzburg was to have for his

services in promoting this corporation, another

part of the capital stock, and then they recited

that the capital stock of the corporation to the

amount of $6,000.00 was fully paid. They were

going to engage, so they said, in making oil out

of shark livers. They were going to catch

sharks and take their livers and make oil out

of the shark livers. So they bought a boat and

paid $25.00 for the boat, to go out and catch

the sharks. Then Mr. Wurzburg borrowed

$3,500.00 from the bank. He had borrowed that

before, I should have stated. He borrowed that

before. That was checked out, how, we cannot

tell, because, while we have the books, they do

not show how that money was checked out. But

anyhow, they employed a carpenter to build a

shed. He built the shed. This corporation gave

him its note for $800.00, and Mitchell for the
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bank immediately took up that note. Then

they turned the shed in for about $4,000.00 to

help pay up the capital stock of the corporation.

Then this $3,500.00 that had been borrowed by

Mr. Wurzburg, was paid back by giving the

note of the fish company to the bank to take up

Wurzburg 's individual note. Then they said

that, "we have four hundred shares of stock

here that have not been paid for.
'

' They called

that preferred, and turned it over, they say, to

the bank. They took, themselves, the paid up

stock, and turned over to the bank that that

was not paid, to secure the bank for these notes.

But we expect the evidence will show you that,

as a matter of fact, not one dollar was ever paid

of that capital stock, and that nothing went into

this shark liver oil compan}^ except what was

taken from the bank, and all this appears in

minutes over Mr. Mitchell's signature. They

went on with this shark liver oil business for a

while, and the sharks refused to come in and

deliver up their livers, so they held a meeting

and recited that the business had proven a

failure, because they could not catch enough

sharks. They couldn't get sharks but they got

the bank all right, up to that time, to the extent

of sixteen or seventeen thousand dollars. At

the very time that they recited that the shark

business had proven a failure, they owed the

bank between sixteen and seventeen thousand
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dollars. So, then, they got together and said,

"This business is a failure, because we cannot

catch sharks. We will start a new one." And
they did start a new one, and they called that,

—they simply changed the name. They did not

organize a new company, but they changed the

name of the shark liver company, and called it

Revilla Fish Pi'oducts Company
j^ and they were

going to make fish pudding. Then they started

in to make fish pudding. Now, they had bor-

rowed up to that time, some six or seven thous-

and dollars more than their entire capital stock,

and more than half of the paid up capital stock

of the bank, so I think that it probably did not

look well to them; but the evidence will show

that anyhow they said, "We will increase our

capital stock now." So they recite that they

increased the capital stock. Of course, they

didn't get any more money into it, but they

just increased the capital stock. Now, at first

Mr. Mitchell took notes to the bank for the

money that he put into this corporation from

the bank. He took notes up to the value of

$6,000. Then he stopped taking notes, but he

drew through his fish corporation, overdrafts on

his bank. And from that time on, these over-

drafts, from day to day, accumulated until the

overdrafts alone amounted to more than $40,-

000. Now, these overdrafts, you will bear in

mind, were all in addition to the money which
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he had loaned, and for which he took the notes.

We will eliminate practically, the notes, so far

as the charges here are concerned, because the

notes were entered by Mr. Mitchell in the books

of the bank, as loans. But these overdrafts

were never entered in the books of the bank,

and were at all times concealed from the officers

of the bank. Mr. Mitchell, the evidence will

show, in order to cover up these overdrafts that

he was taking out for his shark and fish pud-

ding scheme, concealed it by falsifying the

books of the bank; that he not only falsified

the books of the bank, but he falsified the re-

ports required to be made annually to the gov-

ernment. He, being at this great distance, was

at Seattle, I think, only twice during the period

covered by these transactions. But under the

law of Alaska a sworn report must be filed by

the bank each year. Mr. Mitchell prepared

those annual reports. They are in Mr. Mitchell 's

handwriting. He would, however, send them

down here to Seattle, because they had to be

sworn to by the president of the bank, and by

the secretary of the bank under the law. Mr.

Mitchell would make out these reports and send

them to Seattle, with the exception of two oc-

casions when he came down personally. And
he had sent them all prepared ready for Mr.

Chilberg and Mr. Woolfolk to sign and swear

to, with a letter which said to them that this
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was a correct report. And when he was down
here, he in person told them that the reports

were correct. Mr. Chilberg,—Mr. Andrew Chil-

berg, and Mr. Woolfolk, relying upon Mr.

Mitchell,—and I might digress here to say to

you that Mr. Mitchell was well known to these

gentlemen before he went to Alaska. They took

him from the Scandinavian American Bank as

a trusted employe there, and, having every con-

fidence in Mr. Mitchell, sent him up there at

this great distance, and put him in complete

charge of this banking business. So, when Mr.

Mitchell told Chilberg and Mr. Woolfolk that

those reports were correct, they believed it.

They relied upon it, and they swore to them

and sent them to Alaska and filed them from

year to year. Those reports, as a matter of

fact, w^ere false. Never, in any of those reports,

were these overdrafts mentioned. Never, in

any of Mr. Mitchell's letters and reports from

time to time to the bank, were they mentioned.

Never did he tell them of his connection with

the fish companies. Never did the officers of the

bank know anything of the transactions. Mr.

Mitchell, when he was here in person, told them

that those reports were correct, and told them

that he never had had an overdraft in the bank.

Mr. Mitchell made a loan to one Rudd, and

to secure that loan he took a gold watch. He
made another loan to another gentleman, and
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took some jewelry as security. He kept that

watch and that jewelry for a certain length of

time, which will all be disclosed to you here.

Then he charged these two notes to expense

account, took the jewelry and traded it off for

a phonograph and some records, of the value

of $225.00, and took the phonograph to his own

home, and has it there at this time, so far as

we know. He never made any accounting of

any kind to the bank, never charged these notes

off to profit and loss, but charged them into the

expense account of the bank, and himself re-

ceived and kept the proceeds of the jewelry

which had been put up to secure those notes.

There are some other transactions, perhaps,

that will develop, but the overdrafts are the

chief ones. Now, the officers of the bank, early

in December, learned that perhaps all was not

right with the bank, and they discovered that

there was a run on the bank. As I said, the

bank up to this time, never had more than

$30,000.00 of paid up capital, while Mr. Mitchell

had turned over to his shark fish company more

than $50,000.00 from the bank with a capital

stock of only $30,000.00, which meant he was

giving his fish company, the stockholders and

depositors money. An expert accountant, Mr.

Larson, was sent up, and after some days there,

in talking with Mr. Mitchell, and examining

the books, of the bank, he discovered that he



74 Miners' & Merchants' Bank vs.

was unable to balance the books. Whereupon,

Mr. Mitchell said to him that he had something

back in the vault which would make them

balance. And w^hen Mitchell went back into

the vault and brought out some sheets of paper,

and on those sheets of paper he had a memo-

randum of these overdrafts, showing, so far as

we know, a correct list of the overdrafts. That

is to say, we only know what those sheets of

paper show,—those sheets we have, and they

will be in evidence before you. These over-

drafts were not in the books of the bank, had

never been entered into the books of the bank,

and were not in the books of the bank at that

time. Later, when Mr. Mitchell was asked why

he had concealed these transactions, he stated

that he did so because he knew he would not

have been permitted to do it, and that he knew

that it was wrong, and that it had been a source

of great worry to him, etc. Now, we then gave

notice, as the evidence will show, to the surety

company. The bond was first written in 1906,

and renewed each successive year, including the

year 1913, and until April 1, 1914, and the

premium paid to the company by the bank.

The bank paid that premium, not Mr. Mitchell.

The bank procured the bond itself, and paid

the premium. Upon taking the matter up with

the surety company it denied liability, and

denies it now, and this action has been brought
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to recover, not all the loss sustained, but $25,-

000.00, because $25,000.00 is the full penalty of

the bond. While the loss to the bank has been

more than $50,000.00 we can recover only $25,-

000.00, because that is the amount of the bond.

So, we are asking now, to recover here at your

hands, $25,000.00 with interest, which is the

penalty of the bond.

Whereupon, at the conclusion of the opening

statement to the jury, by Mr. Roberts, the following

opening statement to the jury, in behalf of the de-

fendant herein, was made by Mr. Dovell:

MR. DOVELL: If the Court please, and ladies

and gentlemen of the jury : I desire particular-

ly to make a statement which will disclose the

facts which the defendant expects to be de-

veloped in this case, and I desire particularly

to make it this evening, in order that you may
not regard the statement which counsel has

made, if your impression is as erroneous as the

one which I fear has been left upon your mind

by his remarks.

The proposition to which I desire to call

your attention particularly, is the one which has

been so gracefully passed over by counsel. I

expect the evidence to show you that the plain-

tiff, the Miner's & Merchant's Bank, had no

bond of our company. In order that that may
be demonstrated to you, it will be necessary that

these facts be developed: In 1906 the Miner's
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& Merchant's Bank was organized at Ketchi-

kan, Alaska. It was organized by the Scan-

dinavian-American Bank here. Now, the Scan-

dinavian-American Bank is a state bank, and

therefore cannot hold the stock of any other

bank. So the stock was taken, I believe in the

name of Mr. Chilberg, Mr. Woolfolk, and Mr.

Lane; but the Miner's & Merchant's Bank of

Ketchikan belonged to the Scandinavian-Amer-

ican Bank here, and that was a matter of com-

mon knowledge. The Scandinavian-American

Bank sent to Ketchikan, to manage that bank

there, a Mr. Mack Mitchell, who for a long time,

had been in their employ, and for whose busi-

ness acumen and integrity they were willing

to vouch. They sent him up there, and armed

him with full authority to conduct the business

of that bank at Ketchikan, and during all the

time he was there, from 1906 until 1913, made,

I believe, but one examination of his accounts,

and that was in the early part of his regime

there. Such was the trust and confidence they

had in him. In 1906 the defendant surety com-

pany was represented in Seattle by Calhoun,

Denny & Ewing. Calhoun, Denny & Ewing, at

that time, I believe, did the bonding business

for the Scandinavian-American Bank. One of

the officers of that bank, Mr. Woolfolk, I think

it was, went to our representative, Calhoun,

Denny & Ewing, and secured a bond, which was
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the usual bond, paying a premium, I think, of

a hundred dollars. Now that bond provided

that we should be liable for any loss or injury

the Miner's & Merchant's Bank would suffer

because of the fraud or dishonesty of Mr. Mack

Mitchell, amounting to larceny or embezzlement.

Now, you understand, it must be such fraud or

dishonesty as by the terms of that bond would

constitute larceny or embezzlement. The bonds

terminated on the 1st of April of each respec-

tive year. The bonds secured in 1906 ter-

minated, I believe, April 1st, 1907; the bond

of 1907 termmated April 1st, 1908; and the

bonds terminated thereafter respectively on

April 1st, 1909; April 1st, 1910; April 1st, 1911;

April 1st, 1912. And notice would be sent by

our representative, then Calhoun, Denny &

Ewing, stating that the bond was about to

expire, and a blank form of application would

be enclosed ; they w^ould fill out the application,

and by that application, notify us they desired

the bond renewed,—at all times, up to and, I

think, including the year 1910. They attached

to this application for a renewal, a certificate

that they had been examining the accounts of

Mr. Mitchell, and that in all respects they were

correct, which statements, as I said, of course,

were not true. Acting upon that application

we issued what is called a renewal slip of the

bond each year during these years, the last one
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being issued April 1st, 1912. Now, the latter

part of 1912, or the early part of the year 1913,

—and you will notice, of course, that the last

renewal slip would thus carry that bond I speak

of down to April 1st, 1913,—some short time

before 1913 we changed our agent here, and the

new agent, a Mr. McCollister, left the Alaska

Building and took up his quarters in the Hoge

Building. Now, the interest in the Scandi-

navian-American Bank in the Alaska Building,

of course, is a matter of common knowledge,

and upon the removal of our agent from the

Alaska Building to the Hoge Building,—and it

was entirely legitimate^—the Scandinavian-

American Bank took their business from us

and gave it to another bonding company which

has its offices in the Alaska Building. All the

bonds which we had with the Scandinavian-

American Bank, or any of the concerns in which

it was interested, were terminated,—that is,

they permitted us to write no new^ bonds at all.

Now this was some time before April 1st, 1913.

April 1st, 1913, or shortly before, however—we

followed the usual custom as we do with all

bonds—our agents sent them the usual notice

that their bond was about to expire, and it was

addressed to the Miner's & Merchant's Bank,

Ketchikan, Alaska, that being the bank which

was bonded. The notice was received, of course,

by Mr. Mack Mitchell himself, who was the only
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one in the bank at Ketchikan. He, thereupon,

notified us that they did not desire a renewal of

the bond. We supposed, of course, that they

were simply following the course with that bond

that they had followed with all the rest of the

bonds,—that is, transferred the business to

someone else. So this bond, which contained a

provision that we would be liable for any loss^

only provided that it was discovered during the

continuance of the bond, or within six months

thereafter. Now that bond contained that pro-

vision,—and the reason for that provision, of

course, is evident to you,—requiring the banks

to make the proper examination in order to

determine whether or not their servants are

being honest. Bearing that out, we were not

liable under that bond which expired April 1st,

1913, unless they discovered the loss within six

months. Bear in mind these facts. Along the

latter part of May, this Mr. Wurzburg, of whom
Mr. Roberts has spoken, came to Seattle. He
came with a letter of introduction from Mr.

Mack Mitchell. Mr. Mack Mitchell had been

down himself and had seen the officers of the

bank during the early part of the year. He
knew that Mr. Wurzburg was to come down a

little later, and so gave him a letter of intro-

duction, and he gave him a letter of introduc-

tion to the directing officer,—the head of the

bank, Mr. Ed Chilberg. When Mr. Wurzburg
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came down he was delayed somewhat by reason

of the fact that he had to take a trip to San

Francisco before he could take the matter up

with Mr. Chilberg, and some time in May he

took the matter up with Mr. Chilberg, and told

Mr. Chilberg that he owed the Miner's &
Merchant's Bank a certain sum of money, and,

presumably told him all the circumstances of

the transaction. In any event, we find Mr.

Chilberg writing to Mr. Mack Mitchell imme-

diately,—I think his letter is dated the earh''

part of June,—desiring that Mr. Mack Mitchell

tell him the details, and tell him how much was

owing from this company which Mr. Wurzburg

represented to his bank. And at once Mr. Mack

Mitchell disclosed all the circumstances to him;

told him that the company Mr. Wurzburg rep-

resented owed the bank some $50,000. Then

they either knew, or they could have known all

about the transaction, but they let it go until

it came some time in November,!—until the time

came when the bond which we had given them

had expired, when the six months had passed,

and the bond was absolutely dead. Then in

November some time they come to us and say,

"How is it that that l)ond was not issued in

April ? We wanted that bond. '

' Of course they

had not paid any premium for any bond, but

they said, "We want that bond, and will you

kindly write it and date it back to April Ist?"
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They told us nothing whatever of the fact that

Mr. Wurzburg's Company owed them $50,000.

They told us nothing whatever of these circum-

stances, which, as Mr. Chilberg said in his let-

ter, did not look good to him,—told us nothing

of that kind, but concealing that from us, se-

cured a bond dated back to April 1st, and with-

in a few days thereafter claimed payment from

us for this loss, which, manifestly, is sought to

be recovered upon two bonds,—upon the bond

of April 1st, 1911, and upon the bond of April

1st, 1912, which were absolutely dead before

they secured that new policy of insurance. And
when they came to us the last time they did not

ask for a renewal of the old bond. They se-

cured from us an entirely different character

of a bond, a new form of bond, a bond, if you

please, which would make us liable for any act

of fraud or dishonesty of Mr. Mack Mitchell,

whether it amounted to larceny or embezzle-

ment or not. In that way, you will observe how

we were tricked into writing the last bond.

Now, the proposition concerning those bonds,

and our liability under those bonds,—our pos-

sible liability on those bonds under that state

of facts, will be matters of law which I want

to present to the court. I need not tell you

any more about the facts relative to these

bonds.

Very briefly, these are the facts, as nearly
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as we know, concerning the relations of Wurz-

burg and his company and Mr. Mack Mitchell.

Mr. Mack Mitchell will be here and will go upon

the witness stand, and Mr. Wurzburg, I pre-

sume, if the case reaches that point, will dis-

close the whole transaction. One of the prin-

cipal industries of Ketchikan, of course, is the

fishing industry. Mr. Wurzburg came to

Ketchikan. He was a man who had been en-

gaged in the fishing industry in one form or

another all his life. He understands it thor-

oughly, and has been very successful in other

places. He has handled large amounts of

money in the fishing industry in other points

along this coast. He came to Kitchikan with

a plan which had been agitated for quite a

length of time,—a plan for catching fish, which,

as I understand it, came to devour the filth

from the canneries, and take the fish and the

sharks,—catching them and utilizing a part of

them,—the liver,—for the oil, the rest of the

fish, as I understand it, to be converted into fer-

tilizer. That was his plan, and he started build-

ing in a small way the institution there where

he could manufacture this fertilizer, and this

oil. He found that was unsuccessful because

the run which had been there for years had, for

some reason, disappeared entirely. When he

began this small plan he convinced Mr. Mitchell

that it would be developed into an industry
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which would be profitable to that community.

And I am convinced that when you hear his

testimony you will believe there was excellent

reason for that conclusion. But when it was

found that the fish could not be secured for this

fertilizer, and for making the oil, it was de-

termined to enter upon the manufacture of

some food product, to be made out of fish.

They then, of course, had to increase their

plant. They did develop a food product, called

a fish loaf, put up in cans. They had to change

their plans. Wurzburg found, as is usually the

case, that he had spent a great deal more money

than he anticipated, the great difficulty being

that he could not get this fish product upon

the market until he had spent a certain amount

of money for advertising, to introduce it to the

trade. Mr. Mitchell, believing that it was a

venture which would be successful, had honored

his overdraft, and had permitted him to draw

for a certain amount. He owed the bank that

money. Mitchell became convinced that the

only way for the bank to get its money was to

keep on putting more money in. And he fol-

lowed that experience, which is not unusual or

uncommon,—putting in good money after bad,

until the overdraft had reached, as Mr. Roberts

has told you, a sum in excess, I believe, of some

$40,000. The evidence will disclose to you that

Mr. Mitchell did not, at any time, make any
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effort to conceal these overdrafts. The way he

kept his books, which is a way which is not

uncommon,—the overdrafts are carried as a

separate item, and there was no place for

them in any of the reports which he made here.

The evidence will show you there were various

other overdrafts. There were overdrafts which

the Scandinavian-American Bank here knew of,

and they were not included upon this report.

And an item of earnings of the bank, the in-

terest which was being charged upon these

overdrafts, was sent down to the Scandinavian-

American Bank, and they saw that item of

interest, and they saw what they were earn-

ing, and they must have known they were

earning a large part of it on these over-

drafts. As far as the statement that he con-

cealed the sheet showing these overdrafts in

the vault is concerned, he had a system,—

a

loose leaf ledger system, and so when he re-

moved the sheets from time to time as they

had been used, they were, as I understand it,

placed in another part of the bank, and that

is what Mr. Roberts means when he declares

that the attention of this expert was called,

finally, to the papers upon which the record

of the overdraft were concealed in another

part of the bank. So, upon that statement,

—

and there are many other facts, of course, which

I cannot go into in detail now, we expect to
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establish first: that the Miner's & Merchant's

Bank were not insured, and knew they were

not insured with our company at the time

this loss was discovered, or within six months

thereafter, so that there is no liability for that

reason upon the bond. And I expect further

the evidence to justify this conclusion, that the

venture made by Mr. Mack Mitchell for the

Miner's & Merchant's Bank, was made in good

faith. By the way, it is a fact that Mr. Wurz-

burg, when he organized his company there,

induced, not only Mr. Mack Mitchell, but sev-

eral other local parties to go into the corpora-

tion, and, as is the custom, gave them a small

amount of stock so that they could act as di-

rectors. But the evidence will disclose that

Mack Mitchell never did, nor did he ever ex-

pect to get a dollar of profit out of any money

which he permitted the Miner's & Merchant's

Bank to advance to this enterprise. And the

evidence will, therefore, disclose that this trans-

action, while it may have been a poor business

venture, was nothing more,—did not amount

to fraud or dishonesty,—to that fraud or dis-

honesty which is larceny or embezzlement. Mr.

Mitchell has never been proceeded against. He
is not only a free man, but today is city

treasurer of Ketchikan.

MR. ROBERTS: I would like to make a short

reply statement, which I am willing to do now

or in the morning, as Your Honor sees fit.
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MR. DOVELL: I don't think it is customary to

make a reply statement.

THE COURT : I think not, if you set forth your

own contention, and counsel rebuts that, it

is all.

You, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, will

bear in mind the admonitions which I have

heretofore given you, and we will take a recess

until 10:00 o'clock tomorrow morning.

Whereupon, at 5:00 o'clock p. m. further hear-

ing was continued until Thursday, June 10th, 1915,

at 10:00 o'clock a. m.

THURSDAY, JUNE 10th, 1915.

10 o'clock a. m.

TRIAL RESUMED.

(Calling roll of jury waived, by agreement of

counsel.)

(Thereupon, by direction of the court, the jury

retired from the court room.)

MR. DOVELL: If the court please, I think we

can very materially abbreviate this hearing,

if the court will hear two motions, which I

have to present at this time. Having in mind

the pleading and the opening statement of

counsel, I move to exclude the testimony touch-

ing any alleged loss occasioned by any wrong-

ful acts or conduct of Mack A. Mitchell, occur-

ring prior to April 1st, 1912, for the reason that

it appears from the complaint that no discovery
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of said alleged loss, or wrongful acts or conduct,

was made within six months from April 1st,

1912, the same being the date of the expira-

tion of the bond and renewal, dated April

1st, 1911. And I also move to exclude any

testimony touching any alleged loss occasioned

by any wrongful acts, or conduct of Mack A.

Mitchell occurring prior to April 1st, 1913, for

the reason that it appears from the complaint

that no discovery of said alleged loss or wrong-

ful acts or conduct was made within six months

from April 1st, 1913, the same being the date of

expiration of the bond and renewal dated April

1st, 1912. I also move to exclude any testi-

mony as to the so-called oral contract which

is set forth in the complaint, for the following

reasons: —Your Honor will note, although I

don't think reference was made to it by counsel

in his opening statement, that in the complaint

there is pleaded an oral contract to the effect

that we should furnish to the plaintiff the most

favorable form of insurance policy. Your

Honor will note that in the pleading. Now,

I move to exclude any testimony with regard

to such contract for the following reasons

—

MR. ROBERTS : I might say, Your Honor, that I

do not expect to offer any evidence upon that

allegation.

MR. DOVELL: All right, then, I will not have

to make the motion. That being out of the
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case, it will be considerably simplified. Now,

Your Honor will note, if Your Honor will turn

to the first exhibit attached to the complaint,

that in 1906, there was issued to the plaintiff

a bond, which provided that we should be liable

for "such pecuniary loss as may be sustained

by the employer by reason of the fraud or

dishonesty of the said employee in connection

with the duties of his office or position, amount-

ing to embezzlement or larceny, and which shall

have been committed during the continuance

of said term, or of any renewal thereof, and

discovered during said continuance, or of any

renewal thereof, or within six months there-

after, or within six months from the death or

dismissal or retirement of said employee from

the service of the employer." Then follows

further on in the bond this provision: "That

the company, upon the execution of this bond,

shall not thereafter be responsible to the em-

ployer, under any bond previously issued to

the employer, on behalf of said employee, and

upon the issuance of any bond subsequent

hereto upon said employee in favor of said

employer, all responsibility hereunder shall

cease and determine, it being mutually under-

stood that it is the intention of this provision

that but one (the last) bond shall be in force

at one time, unless otherwise stipulated between

the employer and the company."
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Now, Your Honor will note that each year

following April 1st, 1906, there was issued a

renewal, which provided—and, by the way, if

Your Honor has before you Exhibit "B," it

has been agreed by counsel and myself that

there is a mistake in that.

THE COURT: In what respect?

MR. ROBERTS: A mistake was made in copying

it Your Honor. Just a clerical error.

MR. DOVELL: "For the period beginning the 1st

of April, 1911," and ending*

—

MR. ROBERTS: "Subject to the covenants and

conditions"

—

MR. DOVELL: Right before "subject to the cove-

nants,"

—

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. DOVELL: What is the word there?

THE COURT: "Beginning the 1st day of April,

1911, subject to the covenants."

MR. DOVELL: What is there omitted, Mr. Rob-

erts?

MR. ROBERTS: I think the omission is above

there: "Beginning the 1st day of April, 1910"

—

THE COURT: 1911?

MR. ROBERTS : 1911.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. ROBERTS: "1911, and ending"—

THE COURT: And ending?

MR. ROBERTS :

'
' On the 1st day of April, 1912. '

'
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That should go in there. The next word is

"subject."

THE COURT: ''Subject to the covenants."

MR. ROBERTS : Yes.

MR. McCLURE: That begins on the 1st day of

April, 1911, and ends on the 1st day of April,

1912?

MR. ROBERTS : That particular one
;
yes.

MR. McCLURE: I thought you read it that it

began on the 1st day of April, 1910, and ended

on the 1st day of April, 1911.

MR. ROBERTS : I started to read that, but I had

the other one,—and the one before the court

—

MR. McCLURE: Each renewal or continuation

certificate is for one year.

MR. DOVELL: Your Honor will note that the

renewal certificate contains the provision that

it is to be subject to all the covenants and con-

ditions of the original bond. Now, that was

continued, according to the allegation of the

complaint until the last renewal certificate was

issued, April 1, 1912, thus carrying the bond

to April 1st, 1913. Now, if Your Honor will

note, the next Exhibit, you will find that there

is a bond dated April 1st, 1913.

THE COURT: That is Exhibit "C"?

MR. DOVELL: Exhibit ''C." You will note that

it is a bond of an entirely different character

issued by the same company, but containing

entirely different covenants. Now, we have
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the plaintiff in the peculiar position of suing

upon the bond of 1911 and the bond of 1912.

According to the statement of counsel, this so-

called defalcation began in 1911, and continuing

through 1911, through 1912, ran into 1913,—

a

small amount of the so-called defalcation was

during the time of the last bond. But, accord-

ing to the pleading, it appears the discovery

was not made until December, 1913, and it is

my position,s—and I can see no escape from

it,—that all liability upon the bond dated, or

evidenced by the renewal dated April 1st, 1911,

—that all possible liability on that bond termi-

nated six months after A^^ril 1st, 1912; and all

possible liability upon the bond dated April

1st, 1912, terminated six months after April

1st, 1913, provided no discovery was made.

Now, Your Honor will note the date that it is

alleged the discovery was made. That is, about

the 9th day of December, 1913, the plaintiff.

Miners & Merchants Bank, discovered certain

facts in relation to the said Mack A. Mitchell.

Note, if you please, again the provisions of the

bond, which say the company shall be liable for

any loss which may be sustained and discovered

during said continuance,—that is, during the

continuance of the term of this bond or any

renewal thereof, or within six months there-

after, or within six months from the death, or

dismissal or retirement of said employee. Now,
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it seems to be the theory of counsel, that this

bond having been renewed from time to time,

operates as a continuous obligation. That, un-

doubtedly, is his theory, and, of course. Your

Honor will have difficulty in shutting your eyes

to the character of the transaction, and Your

Honor will not fail to understand why they

sought to get this last bond: they thought it

would operate as a renewal of the old bond.

In other words, there had come a time in

October, 1913, when the bond had terminated,

—

when the six months period during which they

had to discover a loss had terminated,—when

all relations between the parties had terminated,

—and the bond, so far as any responsibility or

liability was concerned, was absolutely dead.

Now, someone conceived the idea that by going

to the company, and getting a new bond, they

could revivify that old obligation. The idea

might have ingenuity, but it had no logic.

That bond,—the last bond,—the last renewal

was absolutely dead. There was no responsi-

bility or liability upon it. No discovery of

any loss had been made within six months

from the time that bond terminated. Now, how

anyone could conceive the idea that he could

give life to that old obligation by getting a

new bond,—not a renewal at all, if Your Honor

please, but by getting a new bond,/—I cannot

conceive; and, fortunately, we are not without

authority upon the question.
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Xhe matter has been squarely decided by

the Circuit Court of Appeals, in the Second

Circuit. I gave a note of this authority to

Your Honor.

THE COURT: I read the case.

MR. DOVELL: Your Honor had occasion to ex-

amine it? Now, Your Honor will note that

there was a bond, and it was renewed from time

to time, and Judge Shipman, in writing the

opinion, takes up the items of loss, as they

occurred each year. Now, Your Honor will

note that there was a bond which contained

almost identically the same provision that our

bond contained: that there should be but one

bond in force at a time. The provision in that

bond was this: "And it is agreed further that

the company, upon the execution of a stipulated

amount of risk or insurance under the terms

of this bond in behalf of any employee, shall

not thereafter be responsible to the employer

under any previous insurance of said employee,

it being mutually understood that it is the

intention of this provision that but one (the

last) insurance of the employe shall be in force

at one time, unless otherwise provided."

That is practically the same provision as is

in our bond..

Judge Shipman says in the beginning of

his opinion,—and this is what he bottoms his

opinion upon,

—

(Reads from opinion.)
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Now, if Your Honor will give the matter

a moment's thought, you will understand why
the contract must be that way. I venture to say

that no liability company could do business and

write contracts otherwise. If the contract is as

counsel seems to think it is,—a continuous lia-

bility, kept alive all the time by these renewals

from year to year,—then, there might be a

loss,—there might be a defalcation today and

and twenty years from now, a liability might be

imposed upon the company. No insurance

company could do business in that way. No
insurance company would know where it was

at,—would know what liability it might have

to meet. And, for the same reason, if a con-

tract of that kind was kept alive year by

year, by renewal, a bank would not exercise

those precautions which are necessary to be

exercised, not only for our protection, but for

the protection of the stockholders and the de-

positors, and the public generally who do busi-

ness with the bank.

Just the same thing, if Your Honor please,

w^ould occur generally as occurred in this bank,

—a man would be sent there to do business,

and left there year after year, and no attention

would be paid to him, the precaution never

being taken to examine his books. Now, it is

just for that reason, if Your Honor please, to

require that one who secures an indemnity bond

upon an employe, shall investigate his conduct
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and his books, if he keeps books, at certain

periods, and discover whether or not there is

any flaw in his integrity. They have all the

time wiiile that bond is in force, and they

have six months thereafter to make an examina-

tion and a discovery, and if they do not, then

the liability of the company is at an end. Your

Honor can readily see that no liability company

could write a policy unless it had some such

provision. It would never know that its lia-

bility had terminated.

Now, Your Honor will note if you have

given attention to this Florida Central case

{Florida Central and P. R. Co. vs. American

Surety Co. of New York, 99 Fed. 674) that

the only way that the bonds differ is that this

was a stricter bond in this case,—it required

that the discovery be made during the continu-

ance of the bond,—while the term of the bond

still existed, or six months after the death, or

dismissal of the employe. Now, our bond is a

slightly more liberal bond, inasmuch as it allows

six months after the termination of the bond

for the discovery. It strikes me that Your

Honor would not care to depart from the ruling

of the Circuit Court of Appeals of the Second

Circuit. While, of course, I do not pretend

that Your Honor is bound by that ruling, still

it is always desired, I believe, to escape con-

flict in the different circuits.
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In the case of United States Fidelity &
Guaranty Co. vs. Williams, 49 Southern, 742,

a Mississippi case, the court had before it, a

bond, I believe, identical with ours. It was a

case against the same company. As I under-

stand the case, it was not alleged in the com-

plaint at what time the shortage occurred, and

a demurrer was interposed on that ground.

Inasmuch as the opinion contains an analysis

of the policy, I will take the liberty of reading

a portion of it

:

(Reads from opinion.)

Now, this is all to the point that each

renewal constitutes a new and separate con-

tract, and not, as counsel seems to think, one

continuous contract running from the date of

the first policy.

In Brady vs. Insurance Company, the court

said:

(Reads from opinion.)

That is the point exactly. It did not in-

crease or change the time within which they

were required to examine their books, and dis-

cover this loss during the continuance of the

term, or six months thereafter.

(Resumes reading.)

Now, that was their contention. This is

what the court said:

(Reads from opinion.)

The court says: "See, also," a case in the
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110 Tenn., and a case in the 124 Federal, which

I have here.

(Resumes reading.)

The case is directly in point.

I have also a decision by Judge Newman,

sitting in the Northern District of Georgia, in

a case entitled Proctor Coal Company vs.

United States Fidelity <& Guaranty Company,

124 Federal, 424. Did Your Honor examine

this case?

THE COURT : I examined both of them.

MR. DOVELL: Then, there is no reason why I

should take up your time, further, except to

call your attention to the fact that upon a

bond, the language of which appears to be

identical with ours, the same contention was

made. They say

:

"It is contended by the plaintiff in this

case that the effect of this original bond and
the two renewals, taken together, was to create

a continuous obligation. Counsel for plaintiff

insist that certain language in the bond shows,
and the character of the transaction indicates,

that it was intended that the Proctor Coal Com-
pany should be insured against any dishonesty
on the part of Stanton, occurring at any time
from December 1, 1898, up to December 1,

1901, discovered during such period of con-

tinuous insurance, or within six months from
the expiration of such period."

Then the Court seems to hold that that con-

tention cannot be sustained. The language of

the bond is identical and the case is directly

in point.
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Now, it is without doubt, the theory of

counsel that this bond, being first taken out in

1906, and renewed each year, constituted one

continuous contract, making us liable for any

loss which occurred any time during that per-

iod, and discovered within six months from

the date of the expiration of the last bond.

For the reasons I have stated, Your Honor

will understand that such a contention could

not be sustained with any justice to an insur-

ance company.

Of course, while I am willing to concede as

far as possible the ingenuity of the parties,

who, upon discovering the predicament they

were in, secured this new bond, and had it

dated back, still it might almost be remarked

that they were "hoisted by their own petard."

Had they discovered the loss when they prob-

ably did discover it—and they admitted their

discovery along in June sometime—and pro-

ceeded upon the old bond, they might have

had a cause of action, provided there was

fraud or dishonesty, amounting to embezzle-

ment or larceny in the acts of Mr. Mitchell.

But they delayed their discovery until more

than six months after the termination of the

last bond. Then conceiving the idea that the

bond, and its various renewals, constitute one

continuous contract, they conclude that if they

can get a new bond that will operate as a
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I renewal of the old bond, although that bond,

and all liability upon it, has passed at the

time. And they do that, notwithstanding the

provision in the bond which terminated on

April 1st, 1913, that all liability and respon-

sibility shall end when they secure a new bond.

So, putting to one side for the present, the

question of the conditions or the circumstances

under which they secured this bond dated April

1st, 1913—putting to one side for the present

those facts—I contend that that is the only

bond upon which there could be any liability,

and, therefore, I have moved to exclude testi-

mony as to any loss or defalcation, which oc-

curred, during the life of the other bond.

MR. EGBERTS : If the Court please, in the first

place, counsel is assuming for the purpose of

his argument, certain facts, which must, of

necessity be submitted to the jury. In the

next place, I think counsel misapprehends the

purport of the provisions of this bond, together

with the renewals.

THE COURT: When you refer to the renewal,

do you mean the last bond?

MR. ROBERTS: Well, upon that, Your Honor,

of course, while counsel has not fully stated

it, he has probably understood our contention,

in that we contend this is one continuous in-

surance. To illustrate briefly. Your Honor,

counsel stated to the jury on Yesterday that

upon the expiration of this bond, or that par-
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ticular renewal, that this company wrote a

letter to Mack A. Mitchell, offering to renew

that bond, showing that it meant to continue

it in force at that time, but that that letter

having fallen into the possession of Mr. Mitchell,

he returned it, saying: he didn't want the bond

renewed. Now, that is one of the evidences

of their intention to renew. We expect to show

that it was the arrangement between these

parties that this should be renewed—that the

company would keep it renewed, and that it

did keep it renewed, and that counsel is mis-

taken when he says that we would apply each

year for that renewal. Your Honor has had

some experience with insurance, and I think

you know that the insurance company usually

beats you to it. They don't wait for you.

They usually renew it in advance, for fear some

other agency will get it away. They renew

it, and they tried to renew this, as Mr. Dovell

said, but here are the facts: the bank here at

Seattle had procured that bond, in the first

instance. It had paid the premium, and the

business had all been transacted here, and but

for the change of the agency, to which counsel

referred, that renewal certificate would have

been issued by the old agency. Then, we will

offer evidence to show, that it was not ourselves

who made the discovery that this was not re-

newed, but that it was made by the old agent

of the company, who then went to this com-
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pany, and asked them—called their attention to

it, and they then agreed with him that it should

be renewed, and he went to the bank, and

asked them if they knew this bond had not

been renewed. That is the way we got the

information. The bank had depended solely

upon the surety company to keep it renewed.

No application had been given. It is the ab-

solute requirement of this company and of all

the companies, that upon the execution of a

new bond, a written application must be given.

None was taken in this case. The company

treated it as a renewal and dated it as a re-

newal—dated it as of the date they should have

renewed it originally. Now, so much for those

questions, all of which are questions of fact

for the jury.

I will say this to Your Honor : that I didn 't

anticipate this argument at this time, because

the law questions were before Your Honor

on the pleadings, and while I have a brief, I

didn't bring up the authorities, but I believe

there is enough here to satisfy Your Honor.

First, as to the first case cited by counsel:

that, I think, is not at all controlling. It is

an entirely different character of bond. That

is what is known as a schedule bond. That is

a bond—a blanket bond—written to cover all

the employes of any particular institution.

Those employes change from year to year, or

from time to time, rather, and a company is
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required to submit annually a new schedule,

giving the names of the employes, and as the

court says here, they might be willing to bond

certain employes, and not other employes, and

that that is one of the reasons, which appears

from the contract itself why that was to be

merely an annual bond. That is set forth here

on page 677:

"To make the contract intelligible, it must
be read in connection with the schedule regis-

ter."

We have nothing of the sort here.

(Reads from opinion.)

Then, in addition to that, Your Honor,

that bond carried a rider, which ours does not

have, and the court says that they think it is

made clear that that was the intention by the

rider which is attached. And you will find,

by reading that rider, that it says that the bond

has been written with the express understand-

ing that the aggregate liability of the American

Surety Company "for the acts of any employe

under both the bonds herein mentioned shall

not during said period exceed the amount of

the last guaranty or bond upon the employe

for whose acts a claim may be made." No

such provision is in this bond.

Now, taking the other case, reported in

the 124 Federal, in which the same company

was sued as is sued here, at the time this action
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was instituted, I considered this question of

whether or not I should sue for this entire

Forty-three Thousand Dollars, upon the theory

that these continuations rendered this cumu-

lative, and there are three cases which have held

that that could be done. The Supreme Court

of New York, in a late case, held under this

very provision, that they were liable for what

was lost under one bond for one year, and

they were liable under the other one for the

other year, and so on. But I reached the con-

clusion—and that is what this case says that I

am going to read to Your Honor, which Mr.

Dovell cited, but did not read—that that was

the purpose of those provisions, to-wit, to limit

at all times the liability of the surety com-

pany to $25,000.00 But for those provisions,

in this bond, we might recover the whole amount

that was lost, since they covered him during

the whole period, but with those provisions,

notwithstanding the loss during the period ex-

ceeded $50,000.00, we are limited in our re-

covery to $25,000.00. That has been plainly

stated here in this opinion. "In my opinion,

the whole purpose and intention of this clause

is that there shall not be double responsibility

on the part of the company. It is not at all

inconsistent with the right to discover within

six months after the expiration of the original

bond, or any renewal, the dishonest acts of
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the employe, and to claim indemnity for the

same. The original bond and each renewal

stands for the malfeasance of the employe dur-

ing the continuance of each and discovery with-

in six months after the termination of each.

The purpose of the above clause evidently is

to avoid double liability on the part of the

company; that it shall not be liable beyond

the amount of the bond as originally given

and renewed. '

' Taking this contract altogether,

this, in my opinion, is the proper construction

to place upon this clause. That is my conten-

tion, if the Court please. Now, I assume that

the language of that bond is the same as this

one, because it is the same company.

The first clause of the bond says: ''Which

shall have been committed, during the continu-

ance of said term, or of any renewal thereof,

and discovered during said continuance, or of

any renewal thereof, or within six months there-

after, or within six months from the death or

dismissal or retirement of said employe from

the service of the employer within the period

of the bond."

Now the language of this bond seems to me

to be entirely clear.

THE COURT: I don't care to hear from 3^ou

upon these various renewals upon this bond,

but I would like to hear from you as to the

operation of the new bond that was given—the
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last bond—^whether that was a renewal, or

whether that was a separate and distinct obli-

gation.

MR. ROBERTS : Of course, we contend that that

was a renewal. Your Honor, to all legal effect

the same as if one of these certificates had is-

sued. Of course, if we should fail in that con-

tention, then there would be something in the

argument of counsel; but that is a question of

fact—as to whether or not it was a renewal.

THE COURT : Wherein do you think it is a ques-

tion of fact?

MR. ROBERTS : Because of the fact that it was

in pursuance of the original arrangement and

agreement, which existed between us, and be-

cause of the fact that that is what we asked

them to do, and because as and for a renewal,

that is the bond which they gave us.

MR. DOVELL: I thought you said you didn't

intend to prove any oral contract.

MR. ROBERTS: No: I didn't say that. I said

I didn't intend to offer any evidence on the

allegation to which you referred originally

—

that they had agreed to give us the best bond

available. That was the only thing on which

I said I would offer no evidence. The question

of whether or not that bond, Your Honor, was

a renewal, I think, is clearly one of fact. For

instance, it was stated here—and that is the

fact—that that bond was given on the 24th of
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November, or about that date—the 22nd to the

24th of November.

THE COURT: And dated back.

MR. ROBERTS : Yes, Your Honor. Now, if that

were not a renewal, what explanation can be

offered for the dating of it back"? If that

were a new contract—a new bond—it would

have to have been dated on the date it was

executed, it seems to me, would be, in itself,

conclusive evidence that that was a renewal of

the original contract, because it takes up the

original contract, where it had been dropped,

and carries it on. There is no other explana-

tion for the dating back of that bond, and I

have authorities cited here in my brief. Your

Honor, that a bond of this character, dated

back, is effective from the date that it bears.

THE COURT: There could be no doubt of that.

MR. ROBERTS : Therefore, this bond was written

not for a year from November 24th, but for

one year from April 1st—dated April 1st. And
the company accepted a premium for that bond.

Now, it is true, T will state—the jury being

absent—that they tendered that premium back

to us later, and we refused to accept it; but

that is all a question of fact, I think, to be

determined—In other words—if Your Honor

has not read the pleadings recently—it is a

question of fact to be determined by the Jury

whether or not we defrauded them into the

execution of that bond.
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THE COUET: The last bond?

MR. ROBERTS: Yes; that last bond. The ques-

tion of fraud, of course, is always a question

of fact, so, I say, everything in connection with

that last bond is a question of fact. Now, fur-

thermore, as I have already called to Your

Honor's attention, they took no application

for this bond. They have none, and can't pro-

duce any; showing again that it was not a new

bond, and not a new contract; but that it was

executed in pursuance of the standing arrange-

ment and agreement between them, that they

should from time to time, keep this bond re-

newed. Your Honor it would be inconceivable

that this or any other surety company would

date a bond back for six, seven or eight months

—I think it is—^under any other circumstances

than that it was a continuation of that insur-

ance contract.

THE COURT: But here you have a different

contract; and the terms are idfferent; the re*

quirements are different. The guaranty is dif-

ferent from the old bond. A company can in-

sure past conduct of a party, as well as future,

if that is a part of the contract.

MR. ROBERTS: But we are entitled, as I said,

to introduce the evidence here, and it is for

the Jury to say whether or not that was a new

contract, or whether or not it was a continua-

tion of the old one.
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THE COURT: But it speaks for itself. It is in

writing.

MR. ROBERTS : That is very true, Your Honor,

as to the bond, itself. But here are certain

facts and circumstances, which it seems to me,

are decisive and conclusive; this bond having

been, as I said, dated back to the very day that

the other one expired, and it having been exe-

cuted without any written application, or with-

out any guaranty o]' promise, and without any

statement as to the acts of this man Mitchell

—

with none of those things. And we have here

the letter, as I said, of the company, writing

up there, and offering this bond as a renewal.

THE COURT: And your bank didn't take it.

MR. ROBERTS : The bank never knew it, if the

Court please. The bank never knew it. Bear

in mind that Mr. Mitchell didn't have this bond

written on himself, and never did. He had

nothing to do with it. He was what is called

in insurance the risk. Here is a contract of in-

surance between the bank and the surety com-

pany. Now, then, the company—the excuse

is, but it is no excuse—having changed its

agents, the agent, instead of renewing that bond

to the bank, writes a letter to the risk, and

asks him if he wants it continued. Now, then,

the risk gets the letters, conceals it from his

bank, conceals it from the party that demanded

the protection, and should have had the protec-
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tion, and sends it back, and says that he does

not want it renewed, and the bank knows noth-

ing about it—absolutely nothing abont it. It

seems to me that that fact alone—and we have

pleaded that in the reply—is an act of negli-

gence on the part of this surety company—in

sending it directly to the man against whom we

desired to carry this insurance and this pro-

tection.

THE COURT: It was sent to the bank. I take

that from the statements of both of you.

MR. ROBERTS: No, it was sent to Mitchell.

MR. DOVELL: It was sent to Mitchell, yes.

MR. ROBERTS: Now, here originally was the

situation—and the facts will develop all of this

:

that the bank was absolutely owned here; the

officers and trustees of the bank were all here

;

and the surety company at all times knew that.

The fact that this new agent may not have

known it—and I am not saying now whether

he did or didn't—but the fact that the new

agent didn't know that is no excuse to the com-

pany. They had done all the business here;

they had been paid all the premiums here; for

eight years, they had collected these premiums.

They had collected these premiums for eight

years. They had done all the business here.

They, themselves, renewed the bond from year

to year without any action on the part of the

bank. The bank had relied upon them from year

to year. And, as I said, had not the agency been



Miners' & Merchants' Bank vs.

changed, this difficulty would never have arisen.

It was overlooked by the bank for that reason.

And then, when the bank discovered it, which,

as I said, was discovered through the old agency,

and not on its own account, they asked for a

renewal of that bond, and they are given this

other bond. Now, what is the difference, if the

Court please. The fact is merely that the

bankers' association, whatever the name of that

may be, had demanded a change in the form

of these bonds, and that change had gone into

effect, and they gave that bond, then, as a re-

newal or a continuation of this contract of in-

surance.

Now, as I said, we certainly have a right

to have submitted to the Jury the question

of whether or not there was an agreement to

renew this insurance from year to year, and

the further question of whether or not there

was an agreement that this policy should be a

renewal. The only reason why it was in a

different form, and contained different pro-

visions, was simply, as I said, that the bankers

generally had demanded that the provisions of

these bonds should be different, and that was

not a special bond in this case. The bond

they gave to us as a renewal was the bond they

were giving then to all persons—the bond

they were giving to any one who made appli-

cation for like insurance. I can see no differ-

ence, if the Court please, whether they had
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given us one of these certificates, or whether

they gave us, in lieu thereof, the other paper,

which is now referred to as the new bond.

We want the privilege of showing that they

agreed to give it to us as a renewal, and that

they did give it to us, as a matter of fact, as

a renewal, and we want to submit that question

of fact to the Jury; first, that they agreed to

give it to us as a renew^al; second, that they

did give it to us as a renewal of this insur-

ance, and as a continuation of the insurance

which we had had, and carried, and paid them

for, for eight consecutive years.

Now, if the Court please, counsel has said

—

and I am not sure whether that is included in

what Your Honor said you didn't care to hear

from me about—But there is a very late case

in the 44th Pacific, entitled United States Fi-

delity dc Guaranty Company vs. Boley Bank
<£' Trust Company—the same surety company

and the same bond as in suit here. The bailiff

informs me that the 44 Pacific is not here. I

do not contend that the question in that case

was the same question as this new bond matter

;

but it was a case where the bond had been

renewed from year to year; and the court held

that the company, having renewed this bond

and taken these premiums from year to year,

was estopped to raise this question about not

having made a proper examination of the

bank, and they said that if they desired a more
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frequent examination, the company had the

power to require the same, "but having con-

tinued its bond from time to time upon said

representations and for a consideration paid

by the bank, it is now estopped to deny lia-

bility on the ground that the examinations were

made at periods more extended than these orig-

inally contemplated. '

'

Now, furthei-more—and I will not digress

far upon this question, but counsel laid much

emphasis upon it—the authority—and I have

it here—is that upon the question of examina-

tion, the insured is required to do nothing which

he did not specifically contract to do along that

line.

Now, we did not contract to make an ex-

amination in this case. Furthermore, I have

pleaded here the circumstances, to-wit: that this

business was to be transacted in the District

of Alaska—a long distance away—and that the

surety company knew and understood that. That

will appear from the documents themselves

—

the original application. And in this case, if

the Court please, from which I just read, and

which came from Oklahoma, the bond was writ-

ten upon a negro bank in a negro town.

THE COURT: T am familiar with it.

MR. ROBERTS: And the Court said the surety

company knew and understood the character of

that town, and the character of the people in

charge of that bank, and they knew and under-
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stood, aDcl it was their duty, as much as that

of the insured, to know the facts and cir-

cumstances.

Now, one thing more. Your Honor:—and

I would like to have Your Honor take sufficient

time to investigate further the authorities—the

authorities on the rules of construction, for in-

stance—generally—briefly, of course, as you

can't read them all; they are too many; but

if, in this matter, there should be any doubt,

that doubt must be resolved in favor of the

assured.

THE COURT : There is no question about that.

MR. ROBERTS : Now, then, I submit that under

the liberal rules of construction, if there is any

doubt at all—if there is a question of fact

whether or not that bond was given as a renew-

al, then, it must be submitted by the Court, as

a question of fact, to the Jury. Now, if I

understand Your Honor's frame of mind—and

I think I do, the citation of further authority

on my part would not help much.

THE COURT: No. What I want to say is: From
the argument, here, it is not necessary to de-

termine whether the renewals from 1906 down

to 1913 were separate and distinct contracts

or not. That is not in this case, because all

those renewals must stand together—that is,

as far as this case is concerned at this time,

because more than six months had elapsed after
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the expiration of the renewal policy, if the last

policy is not a renewal; so there is nothing to

differentiate with relation to the matter that

was before Judge Newman in the Georgia case,

and I don't care to hear from you upon that

phase, because that is not before the Court

here.

MR. ROBERTS: I understand counsel in his ar-

gument—and I noted it particularly—to con-

cede that this contract continued in force until

April 1, 1913.

THE COURT : Oh, yes. But I rather understood

from counsel that each renewal was a separate

contract.

MR. DOVELL: Yes.

THE COURT: While it was a renewal, yet the

policy stood as a separate and distinct contract,

the same as though a new policy had been is-

sued; but it remained in force. That was my
understanding, and I say that is not a matter

that is before us now. Just what this Court

would hold on that if that was before the Court,

is not clear.

MR. ROBERTS : That is the way practically that

I understood Your Honor. That is to say, the

matter narrows itself down with Your Honor

to the question whether or not we could prove

this last policy to be a renewal of the old

contract.

THE COURT: Yes: that is the idea.



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 1 1

5

MR. ROBERTS: Now, then, I don't know that I

can add to that much, if the Court please, in

addition to what I have already said; but cer-

tainly, certainly, if we can prove that they

agreed to renew this old contract, and that they

did renew this old contract, the form of the

renewal is immaterial. The form is immaterial,

and, so far as I am concerned, it would be im-

material to us as to whether we were bound

by the terms of the old contract or the terms

of the new. That would be immaterial, so far

as we are concerned.

In other words, it would be immaterial to

us whether or not we were entitled to take

advantage of the broader provisions of the new

contract; but the case would still have to go to

the Jury, because there v/ere losses under the

new contract. So, as I said, I think it would

certainly not be advisable for the Court to

undertake at this time to say in advance of

the offering of any testimony that we would

not be permitted to offer any testimony in rela-

tion to the renewal of this contract.

MR. DOVELL: Maybe we would pay the losses

under the new policy.

MR. ROBERTS : The very best answer to that is

that you haven't. You have not offered to do

so, or intended to do so, but have denied all

liability. I think, if the Court please, that we

must be allowed to put all the facts before

the Jury, and that if Your Honor should later
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determine that we were not entitled to this, it

could then be taken away, but the e^ddence

would then have been taken, and we would have

a record. So I think the Court ought to allow

the matter to be submitted, as a question of

fact. And, as I said, I would like Your Honor,

before finally determining this question, to

look into the authorities which I have cited

there, and which, while perhaps, not directly

in point on this question, yet will certainly

throw some light upon it.

THE COURT: I will state, Mr. Roberts, that I

read over your memorandum of authorities

since yesterday—since Court adjourned yester-

day, and likewise yours, Mr. Dovell, and I

am thoroughly convinced in my mind that the

last bond,—, considering the opening statement

to the Jury, and the matters which seem to be

agreed upon in the argument this morning

—

cannot in law be considered to be a renewal

and a continuation of the conditions of the old

obligation, or such an instrument as continues

the obligations under the old bond; and the

taking of testimony with I'elation to that, and

whether or not that would be a renewal, and

submitting it to the Jury, and then taking it

from the Jury, would be a waste of time. I

take it from the statement of counsel that it

would require some time to do that, and feeling

as I do with relation to it, I don't think it
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would be justified. How would the Court in-

struct the Jury*? He would say: "Here are

two bonds. One bond contains such rights and

such obligations. Now, here is another bond.

This contains broader obligations and rights."

Now, under which bond would it cornel It

would not come under both. If it is a continu-

ation and a renewal, where would you be. If

it is a renewal, you would have to recover under

the old bond, and disregard the new one. I

couldn't instruct the Jury under that, because

it is a renewal. It is changed considerably.

We proceed then on a new theory. So that I

think this motion must be granted with rela-

tion to that old bond, and any recovery under

the old bond, or for any sort of misconduct

that were sought to be insured against in the

old bond, I think will have to be disregarded,

and we will have to proceed here, and determine

what are the facts with relation to what was the

new bond, and whatever that would culminate

in, that can be recovered. But I think the

other is clearly not proper to be submitted. I

will frankly state to you now, while it is not

here, I have very serious doubts in my mind

whether or not those renewal bonds are separ-

ate and distinct obligations, and the rights of

the parties to recover must be regulated with

that in view, even though they are renewals,

because it contains the same terms and condi-

tions as the old contract, but it is a new con-
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tract. Now, as to the statement in rehition to

failui'e on the part of the insurance company
to renew this bond, and that there was an

agreement on thoir part to keep it in force,

that can't obtain liere. If there was anv nedi-

gence here, tlie cause of action arose because

of the act or failure of the company to do what

it had agreed to do, and that would be another

cause of action. That would not be this action

—

but an action upon a contract. That is upon

another ground or theory, and could not be in-

voked here.

MR. ROBERTS : That is in reply to their plead-

ing, which sets forth that we had wrongfully

obtained this last renewal from them after the

date of the expiration of the other bond.

THE COURT: Yes. Whether this last bond was

wrongfully obtained when the fraud was prac-

ticed on the part of the assured—Of course,

that is an issue here. That can be determined.

But anything of that kind would not date

back to the old bond. That is a new relation.

MR. ROBERTS : That is true under Your Honor's

theory of the contract, but, of course, I think

Your Honor has a wrong understanding

—

THE COURT : Yes. I understand that, from your

view, you think my conclusions are wrong, but

there is not any other way that I can approach

it from the various view points to which it

presents itself to my mind. Note an exception

to the conclusion of the Court.



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 1 1

9

MR. ROBERTS : This amounts, then, to a holding

by the Court at this time, that upon a demurrer,

or what is equivalent to a demurrer, the plead-

ing does not state facts sufficient to justify

any recovery upon any other than the last

bond.

THE COURT: It would be hardly that. While

this matter was before me, I think, on a mo-

tion heretofore, I denied the motion at the

time with some observation that the matters

could be, perhaps disposed of on the trial.

After listening to the opening statement to the

Jury as to what the facts in the case are, and

likewise the facts as developed in the argu-

ment, and conceded by counsel, and the matters

presented this morning, 1 am convinced beyond

any question of doubt in my mind that this is

the only real conclusion that can be placed

upon the facts, as conceded and stated.

MR. ROBERTS: What T was trying to arrive at

by my question to Your Honor was this: Some

way to have the matter determined now as a

question of law, so that we could determine

—

MR. DOVELL: I think it is determined, Mr.

Roberts.

MR. ROBERTS: Oh, no. Mr. Dovell says he

thought it was determined, but the difficulty is

that we have pleaded a loss which continues

over under this last renewal, and it would take

all the evidence, just the same, to prove the
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little loss, that it would take to prove the

whole case.

MR. DOVELL: No; it would not. Tell us how
much that is, and we will try to figure on it.

MR. ROBERTS : It is set forth in the pleading.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. ROBERTS: It is itemized. $780.87.

THE COURT: I noticed the stenographers tak-

ing all the statements and all the arguments,

so the whole record is before the Court.

(Whereupon, at 11:30 A. M., a recess was

taken).

MR. DOVELL: The defendant agrees that judg-

ment may run in favor of the plaintiff for

688.27, it being understood that said defend-

ant does not, in any pai'ticular, admit or con-

fess that the Mack A. Mitchell mentioned in

the complaint has been guilty of any act of

fraud or dishonesty, or forgery, theft, larceny,

embezzlement, wrongful abstraction or misap-

plication, or misappropriation, or any criminal

act, and I believe counsel for the defendant is

ready to

—

MR. ROBERTS: Now, I desire, if the Court

please, to offer at this time to prove that the

renewal, or so-called renewal, or what is called

by counsel the last bond, was given as a re-

newal of the old bond, and was, as a matter of

fact, a continuation of the contract of insur-

ance and the continuations by renewal from

year to year from 1906, and that it was agreed
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between the Miners & Merchants Bank and

the United States Fidelity & Guaranty Com-
pany that said contract of insurance should be

continued and renewed from year to year, and

that the bond or instalment dated April 1,

1913, was executed and delivered as a renewal

and continuation of the former contract of in-

surance; and to prove all the allegations of

plaintiff's complaint.

MR. McCLURE: That proof will be by parol?

Your proof will be oral and not written?

MR. ROBERTS: I have both written and oral

evidence to prove that fact.

MR. DOVELL: To that we will object upon the

ground that all negotiations between the par-

ties were merged in the various written con-

tracts set forth in the complaint, and any tes-

timony of the character suggested by counsel

would be an attempt to vary, enlarge or change

contracts complete and unambiguous in their

terms.

THE COURT: I take it that this offer is now in

harmony and in support of the statements made

to the Jury in the opening statement as to the

manner in which these matters would be estab-

lished?

MR. ROBERTS: And the statements made to

Your Honor this morning in open Court, and in

the pleadings.

THE COURT: Yes. All right. The objection to

the offer will be sustained. The offer is denied.
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MR. ROBERTS: And an exception allowed.

THE COURT: Yes. Judgment will be entered

in favor of the plaintiff for the amount stated.

Exception allowed.

Be It Further Remeintrered, that in due time

plaintiff submits the foregoing as its proposed bill

of exceptions herein, and prays that the same may
be settled and allowed.

Dated this 28th day of June A. D. 1915.

JOHN W. ROBERTS and

GEORGE L. SPIRK,
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

The foregoing Bill of Exceptions is presented in

due time and is true and correct, and the same may
be settled and filed.

McCLURE & McCLURE,
HXrGHES, McMICKEN,
DOVELL & RAMSEY,

Attorneys for Defendants.

Now, on this 12th day of July, 1915, this cause

coming regularly on to be heard on the application

of the plaintiff to have its proposed Bill of Ex-

ceptions settled, signed, filed and made of record

in said cause, the parties hereto appearing by their

respective counsel, and it appearing to the Court

that the foregoing Bill of Exceptions contains all

the facts upon which the said cause was tried be-

fore the undersigned Presiding Judge upon the
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trial of said cause, and all the evidence and testi-

mony offered upon the trial of said cause, and all

objections made by counsel for the respective parties

to the receiving or rejection of said evidence offered,

and all the motions and the rulings of the Court

thereon, and all exceptions taken at the time thereto,

the said Bill of Exceptions has been examined and

found correct, and contains all the material facts,

matters and proceedings, not already a part of the

record in said cause, and is hereby settled, signed

and ordered filed and made a record herein, all of

which is accordingly done b}^ the undersigned, the

Judge before whom the said cause was tried.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern

Division.

Service of the foregoing proposed Bill of Ex-

ceptions by delivery of a copy thereof to the under-

signed is hereby acknowledged this 2nd day of

June, A. D. 1915.

W. G. DOVELL,
Attorneys for Defendant.

Checked. Plaintiff's Proposed Bill of Excep-

tions was lodged with the Clerk of this Court June

29th, 1915. Filed in the U. S. District Court, West-

ern Dist. of Washington, Northern Division, July 12,

1915. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By Ed. M. Lakin,

Deputy.
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PETITION FOR WRIT OF ERROR

Now comes Miner's & Merchant's Bank, a cor-

poration, plaintiff herein, and says:

That on the 22nd day of Jnne, A. D. 1915, this

Court entered a decree herein, in which decree and

the proceedings had prior thereunto in this cause,

certain errors were committed to the prejudice of

this plaintiff, and of which more in detail appears

from the assignment of errors which is filed with

this petition.

Wherefore, the plaintiff prays that a Writ of

Error may issue in this behalf out of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, for

the correction of errors so complained of, and

that a transcript of the record, proceedings and

papers in this cause duly authenticated may be sent

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
GEOROE L. SPIRK,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Indorsed: Petition for Writ of Error. Piled in

the U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Wash-

ington, Northern Division, June 29, 1915. Frank L.

Crosby, Clerk, By Ed. M. Lakin, Deputy.
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ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS

Comes now Miners & Merchants Bank, a corpora-

tion, the plaintiff herein, and assigns errors in the

trial, decisions, rulings, decree and orders of said

District Conrt in said cause, as follows:

I

The District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Division,

erred in granting the motions made by the defend-

ant to exclude testimony on behalf of the plaintiff,

and in sustaining the motions made by the defend-

ant to exclude all testimony except such as related

to the bond of April 1, 1913.

II

Said Court erred in sustaining the motion of the

defendant to exclude the testimony touching any

alleged loss occasioned by any wrongful act or con-

duct of Mack A. Mitchel, occurring prior to April

1, 1912.

Ill

Said Court erred in sustaining the motion of

defendant to exclude all testimony touching any

alleged loss occasioned by any wrongful act or

conduct of Mack A. Mitchell, occurring prior to

April 1, 1913.

lY

Said Court erred in refusing to allow the plain-

tiff to offer proof to sustain the allegations of its

complaint, and in refusing to allow plaintiff to
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introduce evidence to establish the facts which it

offered to prove.

V
Said Court erved in exchiding the offer of testi-

mony on behalf of the plaintiff to prove the allega-

tions of its complaint, and to prove that the bond

was at all times during the periods named in the

complaint renewed and continued in force, and in

refusing to allow plaintiff to prove that the instru-

ment of April 1, 1913, was a continuation and re-

newal bond, and, by agi'eement between the parties,

was to be and was at all times so treated and stated.

VI

Said Court erred, first, in ]'efusing to allow the

]3laintiif to prove as a matter of fact, that it at

all times had an agreement with the defendant

surety company that the bond and contract of

suretyship was to be at all times continued in force

until further notice; second, in refusing to allow

the plaintiff to prove as a question and matter of

fact that said instrument, called the last bond,

was given in pursuance of said contract, as such

renewal, and that the said instrument was, as a

question and matter of fact, a renewal bond, and

given as a renewal bond, and was a continuation of

the contract of insurance.

VIT

Said Court eri'ed in denying the offer of proof

made by the plaintiff, and in failing to submit to
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the jury for determination, the issues between the

parties hereto, as set forth in the complaint.

VIIT

Said Court erred in overruling the motion of

the plaintiff for a new trial, and erred in refusing

to the plaintiff a rehearing and a retrial in the

cause.

IX

Said Court erred in entering the final judgment,

and erred in entering judgment for the plaintiff

only in the sum which the defendant surety com-

pany was willing to admit to be due; and erred

in entering final judgment in favor of the defend-

ant, against the plaintiff, and erred in not hearing

the evidence, and entering the final judgment for

the plaintiff for the full amount prayed for by the

plaintiff in the cause.

Wherefore, the plaintiff prays that the said judg-

ment of the said District Court of the United States

for the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, be reversed.

Dated this 28th day of June, A. D. 1915.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
GEORGE L. SPIRK,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Indorsed: Assignment of Errors. Filed in the

District Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Nor-

thern Division, June 29, 1915. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By Ed. M. Lakin, Deputy.
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ORDER ALLOWING WRIT OF ERROR

On this 29th day of June, 1915, comes the plain-

tiff, by its attorneys, and files herein and presents

to the Court its petition praying for the allowance

of a writ of error, an assignment of errors intended

to be urged by them, praying also that a transcript

of the record, jjroceedings and papers upon which

the judgment herein was rendered, duly authenti-

cated, may be sent to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial Circuit,

and that such other and further proceedings may
be had as may be proper in the premises.

On consideration whereof, the Court does allow

the writ of error upon plaintiff giving a bond accord-

ing to law in the sum of Two hundred fifty dollars

($250.00), which will operate as a bond for costs.

JEREMIAH NETERER, Judge.

Indorsed: Order allowing Writ of Error. Filed

in the U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Wash-

ington, Northern Division, June 29, 1915, Frank L.

Crosby, Clerk. By Ed. M. Lakin, Deputy.
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BOND ON WRIT OF ERROR

Know All Men By These Presents That Miner's

& Merchants Bank, a corporation, plaintiff herein, as

principal, and the National Surety Company, a cor-

poration, as surety, for and on behalf of said Miner's

& Merchants Bank, are held and firmly bound unto

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, the de-

fendant herein, in the full sum of Two hundred and

fifty ($250.00) dollars, to be paid to the said United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, its attorneys, successors or assigns, to which

payment well and truly to be made, we bind our-

selves, our assigns, and successors, jointly and sever-

ally by these presents.

Sealed with our seal, and dated this 28th day of

June in the year of our Lord, One thousand nine

hundred and fifteen (1915).

Whereas in the District Court of the United States

for the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, in a suit pending in said Court between

Miner's & Merchants Bank, a corporation, plain-

tiff and United States Fidelity & Guaranty Com-

pany, a corporation, defendant, a judgment was

rendered in favor of the plaintiff, Miner's & Mer-

chants Bank, and against the defendant. United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, as to one of

its causes of action, and in favor of the defendant

and against the plaintiff as to certain other of the

plaintiff's causes of action, and said plaintiff having

obtained from said court a Writ of Error to modify
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and reverse so much of tlie judgment in the afore-

said suit as is in favor of the defendant and against

the plaintiff, and a citation directed to said United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, citing and admonishing it to be and appear

in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, to be held in the City of San

Francisco, in the State of California.

Now, the condition of the above obligation is

such that if said plaintiff. Miner's & Merchants

Bank, a corporation, shall prosecute said Writ of

Error to effect, and answer all damages and costs,

if they shall fail to make good their plea then the

above obligation to be void; otherwise, to remain in

full force and effect.

MINER'S & MERCHANTS BANK,
By J. E. Chilberg, Pres.

NATIONAL SURETY COMPANY,
By Geo. W. Allen, Attorney in Fact

(SEAL)

Approved this 29th day of June, A. D. 1915.

By JEREMIAH NETERER,
District Judge.

Indorsed: Cost Bond on Appeal. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washing-

ton, Northern Division, June 29, 1915. Frank L.

Crosby, Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy.
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ACCEPTANCE OF SERVICE

We the undersigned attorneys for the defendant,

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, a cor-

poration, do hereby admit service and receipt of

copies of the Petition for Writ of Error, Assign-

ment of Errors, Order Allowing Petition for Writ

of Error, Bond on Writ of Error, Writ of Error,

and Citation on Writ of Error, and do hereby

waive any other or further service of said matters.

Dated at Seattle, Washington, this 29th day of

June, A. D. 1915.

McCLURE & McCLURE,
HUGHES, McMICKEN,
DOVELL & RAMSEY,

Attorneys for Defendants.

Indorsed: Acceptance of Service. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

Northern Division, July 12, 1915. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy.
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PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT

To The Clerk of The Above Entitled Court:

You will please prepare and certify, to constitute

the transcript of record on appeal in the above en-

titled cause, typewritten copies of the following

enumerated papers, omitting all captions, verifica-

tions, acceptances of service, and other indorse-

ments, except file marks:

1. Complaint.

2. Answer.

3. Reply.

4. Decree.

5. Motion for New Trial.

6. Order Denying Motion for New Trial.

7. Bill of Exceptions and Order Settling Bill

of Exceptions.

8. Petition for Writ of Error.

9. Assignment of Errors.

10. Order Allowing Writ of Error.

11. Bond on Writ of Error and Approval thereof

12. Acceptance of Service.

13. Writ of Error.

14. Citation.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
GEO. L. SPIRK,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Indorsed : Praecipe for Transcript. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washing-

ton, Northern Division, June 29, 1915. Frank L.

Crosby, Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy.
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CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

United States of Ameeica, Western District of

Washington.—ss.

I, Frank L. Crosby, Clerk of the United States

District Court, for the Western District of Wash-

ington, do hereby certify the foregoing 1^ printed

pages nnmbered from 1 to 13jo, inclusive, to be a

full, true, correct and complete copy of so much

of the record, papers, and other proceedings in the

above and foregoing entitled cause, as are necessary

to the hearing of said cause on Writ of Error there-

in in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, and as is stipulated for by

counsel of record herein, as the same remain of

record and on file in the office of the Clerk of said

District Court, and that the same constitutes the

record on return to said Writ of Error herein from

the judgment of said United States District Court

for the Western District of Washington to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

I further certify the following to be a full, true

and correct statement of all expenses, costs, fees

and charges incurred and paid in my office by or

on behalf of the Plaintiff in Error for making

record, certificate or return to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in

the above entitled cause, to-wit:
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Clerk's fee (Sec. 828 R. S. U. S.), for mak-

ing record, certificate or return; 305 folios

at 15c $45.75

Certificate of Clerk to transcript of record;

4 folios at 15c 60

Seal to said Certificate 20

Statement of cost of printing said transcript

of record, collected and paid 142.00

Total $188.55

I hereby certify that the above cost of prepar-

ing and certifying record amounting to $188.55, has

been paid to me by Messrs. John W. Roberts and

George L. Spirk, Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

I further certify that I hereto attach and here-

with transmit the original Writ of Error and Cita-

tion issued in this cause.

In witness whereof I have hereto set my hand and

affixed the seal of said District Court at Seattle,

in said District, this 24th day of July, 1915.

(SEAL)
FRANK L. CROSBY,

Clerk U. S. District Court.
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WRIT OF ERROR
United States of America, Ninth Judicial Cir-

cuit.—^ss.

The President of the United States of America

to the Honorable Judges of the District Court of

United States for the Western District of Wash-

ington, Northern Division, Greeting:

Because in the record and proceedings, as also in

the rendition of the judgment of a plea which in

said Circuit Court of Appeals before you, or some

of you, between Minei-'s & Merchants Bank, a cor-

poration. Plaintiff in Error, and United States Fi-

delity & Guaranty Company, a corporation, Defend-

ant in Error, a manifest error hath happened to

the great damage of said Miner's & Merchants

Bank, a corporation. Plaintiff in Error, as by its

complaint appears, we, being willing that error,

if any hath been, should be duly corrected and

full and speedy justice done to the parties afore-

said in this behalf, do command you, if judgment

be therein given, that then imder your seal distinctly

and openly, you send the record and proceedings

aforesaid, with all things concerning the same to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, together with this writ, so that you

have the same at the City of San Francisco, State

of California, in said Circuit, within thirty (30)

days from the date hereof, in said Circuit Court

of Appeals, to be then and there held, that the

record and proceedings aforesaid being inspected,
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the said Circuit Court of Appeals may cause fur-

ther to be done therein to correct that error, what

of right, and according to the laws and customs

of the United States should be done.

Witness the Honorable E. D. White, Chief Justice

of the Supreme Court of the United States of

America, this 29th day of June, A. D. 1915.

Attest: FRANK L. CROSBY,

Clerk of the Circuit Court of

Appeals of the United States of

America for the Ninth Circuit.

By Deputy.

(SEAL)

The foregoing Writ is hereby allowed.

JEREMIAH NETERER, Judge.

Indorsed: Original. No. 2750. In the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, ^[iner's & Merchants Bank, a corporation,

Plaintiff in Error, vs. United States Fidelity &

Guaranty Company, a corporation, Defendant in

Error. WRIT OF ERROR. Filed in the U. S.

District Court, Western Dist. of Washington, North-

ern Division, June 29, 1915. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy.



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 137

CITATION

United States of America.—ss.

The President of the United States, to the United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, Greeting:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear at the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit to be holden at the

City of San Francisco, in the State of California,

within thirty (30) days from the date hereof, pur-

suant to a Writ of Error duly issued and now on

file in the office of the Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Western District of Wash-

ington, Northern Division, wherein Miner's & Mer-

chants Bank, a corporation, is Plaintiff in Error,

and you are Defendant in Error, to show cause,

if any there be, why so much of the judgment

rendered against the said Plaintiff in Error as in

said Writ of Error mentioned, should not be cor-

rected and why speedy justice should not be done

to the parties in that behalf.

Witness the Honorable E. D. White, Chief Jus-

tice of the Supreme Court of the United States,

this 29th day of June, A. D. 1915.

(SEAL)

JEREMIAH NETERER,
United States District Judge.

Indorsed: Original. No. 2750. In the District
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Court of the United States for the Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Miner's & Mer-

chants Bank, a corporation. Plaintiff, vs. United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion. Defendant. CITATION. Filed in the U. S.

District Court, Western Dist. of Washington, Nor-

thern Division, June 29, 1915. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy.
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IN THE UNITED STATES
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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

MINERS & MERCHANTS BANK, a corporation,
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STATEMENT.

Miners & Merchants Bank, a Washington cor-

poration of Seattle, was at all times herein named,
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operating a bank at Ketchikan, Alaska. The officers

and owners were citizens and residents of Seattle.

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company

for compensation was engaged in writing fidelity

bonds.

The bank was opened about May 1st, 1906, with

Mack A. Mitchell as cashier. The Fidelity Company

solicited the business of the bank, and as a result

wrote fidelity bond guaranteeing the bank against

loss on account of Mitchell, and so continued to

write the bond until the time of the discovery of

defalcations on the part of Mitchell.

The bank contends that the insurance was one

continuing suretyship; that it was all one contract

of insurance continued in force from the time of the

opening of the bank until the discovery of the loss.

The Surety admits writing the bond for eight

consecutive years, and the receipt of premiums for

that period. It denies that the insurance was in

force at the time of the discovery of the losses for

two reasons:

First: It contends that each renewal or con-

tinuation of the guarantee was a new and independ-

ent contract, and discovery was not made within

six months.

Second: That the last extension was obtained
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through fraud of the bank.

The bank asserts:

First: That it gave this insurance to the com-

pany at its solicitation and under express agree-

ment made by Surety as an inducement to procure

the business, that it would from time to time, and

before the expiration of the year, renew and con-

tinue in force this insurance. The bank to be at

no pains, cost or expense from time to time, except

to pay the premiums.

Second: That in pursuance of that agreement,

the company did continue in force the insurance

until after the discovery of loss.

Third: It denies that the last continuation was

procured through misrepresentation.

The Surety before suit denied liability upon

the sole ground that the acts of Mitchell did not

constitute a breach of the conditions of the bond.

The cause came on for trial before a jury. The

jury was duly empanelled, and counsel for each side

made opening statements. Tr. pp. 65 to 75, and 75

to 86.

Thereupon counsel for Surety made the follow-

ing motion:

"MR DOVELL : If the court please, I think we
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can very materially abbreviate this hearing, if the
court will hear two motions, which I have to pre-
sent at this time. Having in mind the pleading
and the opening statement of counsel, I move to

exclude the testimony touching any alleged loss oc-

casioned by any wrongful acts or conduct of Mack
A. Mitchell, occuring prior to April 1st, 1912, for

the reason that it appears from the complaint that

no discovery of said alleged loss, or wrongful acts

or conduct v/as made within six months from April
1st, 1912, the same being the date of the expiration

of the bond and renewal, dated April 1st, 1911. And
I also move to exclude any testimony touching any
alleged loss occasioned by any wrongful acts, or con-

duct of Mack A. Mitchell occurring prior to April
1st, 1913, for the reason that it appears from the

complaint that no discovery of said alleged loss or

wi'ongful acts or conduct was made within six

months from April 1st, 1913, the same being the date

of expiration of the bond and renewal dated April

1st, 1912." (Tr. pp. 86, 87).

This motion was made at a time when the case

was ready for the introduction of testimony but be-

fore any was offered. The Honorable Trial Court

sustained the motion of counsel for the Surety, and

in doing so used the following language:

"So that I think this motion must be granted

with relation to that old bond, and any recovery

under the old bond, or for any sort of misconduct

that was sought to be insured against in the old

bond, I think will have to be disregarded, and we
will have to proceed here, and determine what are

the facts with relation to what was the new bond,

and whatever that would culminate in, that can be

recovered. But I think the other is clearly not

proper to be submitted. I will frankly state to
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you now, while it is not here, I have very serious

doubts in my mind whether or not those renewal
bonds are separate and distinct obligations, and that

the rights of the parties to recover must be regu-

lated with that in view, even though they are re-

newals, because it contains the same terms and con-

ditions as the old contract, but it is a new contract."

(Tr. p. 117).

Counsel for Surety then offered to allow judg-

ment to go against it in favor of the bank for $688.27

on account of so-called "last bond." Whereupon,

the bank, made offer to prove all the allegations of

its complaint.

"MR ROBERTS: Now, I desire, if the Court
please, to offer at this time to prove that the re-

newal, or so-called renewal, or what is called by
counsel the last bond, was given as a renewal, and
was, as a matter of fact, a continuation of the con-

tract of insurance and one of the continuations by re-

newal from year to year from 1906, and that it was
agreed between the Miners & Merchants Bank and the

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company that

said contract of insurance should be continued and
renewed from year to year, and that the bond or

instrument dated April 1st, 1913, was executed and
delivered as a renewal and continuation of the for-

mer contract of insurance ; and to prove all the alle-

gations of plaintiff's complaint."

"MR. McCLURE : That proof will be by parol?

Your proof will be oral and not written?

"MR. ROBERTS: I have both written and
oral evidence to prove that fact.

"MR. DOVELL: To that we will object upon
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tlie ground that all negotiations between the parties
were merged in the various written contracts

set forth in the complaint, and any testimony of

the character suggested by counsel would be an
attempt to vary, enlarge or change contracts com-
plete and unambiguous in their terms.

"THE COURT: I take it that this offer is now
in harmony and in support of the statements made
to the jury in the opening statement as to the man-
ner in which these matters would be established?

"MR. ROBERTS: And the statements made to

Your Honor this morning in open Court, and in

the pleadings.

"THE COURT: Yes. All right. The objec-

tion to the offer will be sustained. The offer is

denied.

"MR. ROBERTS: And an exception allowed.

"THE COURT: Yes. Judgment will be en--

tered in favor of the plaintiff for the amount stated.

Exception allowed." (Tr. pp. 120 to 122).

Rejected offers must be considered as proven.

Miller v. Maryland Cas. Co., 193 Fed. 347.

The Court then entered judgment against the

Surety Company for $688.27 on acount of loss

under the last renewal.

The bond as originally written contains the

following in regard to loss: "And which shall have

been committed during tlie continuance of said

term, or of any renewal thereof and discovered

during said continuance or any renewal thereof,

or within six months thereafter."
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It is stated in the pleading, and admitted in

opening statement, that the first discovery of loss

made by the bank was on December 9th, 1913.

From year to year a continuation contract was

issued by the Surety. It did not write a new hond

each year. It took no new application; no new

statements or representations, but issued only the

continuation as follows:

"IN CONSIDERATION OF THE SUM OF
ONE HUNDRED ($100.00) DOLLARS, THE
UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY hereby continues in force Bond
T-450 in the sum of Twenty-five Thousand ($25,000)
Dollars, on behalf of MACK A. MITCHELL in

favor of MINERS AND MERCHANTS BANK
of Ketchikan, Alaska, for the period beginning the

1st day of April, 1910, and ending on the 1st day
of April, 1912, subject to all the covenants and
conditions of said original bond heretofore issued,

dating from the 1st day of April, 1906." (Tr. p. 28)

Only one was put into the record, it being ad-

mitted in the pleading that all were of the same

tenor and effect, differing only in date, to April

1st, 1913. The contract was further continued in

force by the instrument (Tr. pp. 29 to 31). This

document bears the date to which the prior con-

tinuation carried the insurance, and continued with-

out any date of terynination, being a continuous

contract of insurance unless terminated by notice.

The discovery by the bank was not within six
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months from April 1st, 1913, and the Surety asserts

that its liability fully terminated on October 31st,

1913, because:

(a) The last instrument was not given as a

continuation or renewal.

(b) If given as a continuation, it was pro-

cured through misrepresentation by the officers of

the bank.

December 9, 1913, the bank served upon the

Surety written notice. (Tr. pp. 31 to 33). This was

in the nature of a preliminary notice, stating that

matters had come to its attention which led it to

believe that a loss had been sustained. That it was

sending immediate!}^ to Ketchikan, an expert ac-

countant, and would upon his return, place before

the Surety all the facts which he obtained.

December 17th, the bank served upon the surety

further written notice and demand, setting forth

the nature and extent of the losses. In due course

the Surety contended that the facts disclosed, did

not show a loss covered by the bond in that they

did not make out a case of larceny or embezzlement.

The execution and delivery of all the docu-

ments referred to stand admitted in the plead-

ings. The receipt of the premiums for eight con-

secutive vears is admitted.
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On the question of continuous insurance the

complaint alleges:

"That the said defendant held out to the plain-

tiff, its officers and agents, as an inducement to

be allowed, for a consideration and an annual pre-
mium to be paid by the plaintiff to the defendant, to

write said fidelity bond, * * * ^j^^t it would
from time to time and from year to year cause said
bond to be renewed, continued and extended with-
out any additional cost, expense, trouble or annoy-
ance to the plaintiff or its officers, except the pay-
ment of the annual premium, and would keep said
bond in force and renewed, continued and extend-
ed." (Par. IV. Tr. pp. 3, 4).

"That the said defendant. United States Fidel-

ity & Guaranty Company, as a further inducement
to this plaintiff to place the insurance of its cashier

with defendant, and as a part consideration for the

premium to be paid by the plaintiff to the defendant,

stated and represented to this plaintiff and agreed
to and with the plaintiff that the defendant was in

a position to give and would give to the plaintiff

at all times while said insurance or any renewal or

extension thereof were in force, the very best of

service and the very highest grade of insurance to

be had in that line of surety and fidelity insurance,

and that if there should be any changes, altera-

tions, amendments or improvements in the form
of the bonds to be written and executed to banks
or bankers indemnifying or insuring such bank or

bankers agaist loss by or through their employes,
that the said defendant would at all times furnish
to plaintiff such improved or changed form of

bond." (Par. V, Tr. pp. 4, 5).

"That the plaintiff, relying upon said repre-

sentation, statements and agreements and at the
earnest solicitation and request of defendant, United
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States Fidelit}" & Guaranty Company, did on or
about the 1st day of May, 1906, pay to the defendant,
United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company, the
sum of $100, as the annual premium." (Par. VI,
Tr. p. 5).

"And during the period named in said bond
and continuing in tlie sum of $25,000, until said
insurance slwuld he terminated, and did expressly
agree to indemnify the plaintiff against any and
all pecuniar}^ loss that might be sustained by the
bank b}^ reason of the fraud or dishonesty of the
said Mack A. Mitchell in connection with the duties

of his office or position amounting to embezzlement
or larceny, and which should have been committed
during the continuance of said insurance or anv re-

ncAval thereof." (Par. VII, Tr. pp. 6, 7).

"That prior to the expiration of said bond the

same was renewed and continued in force, and ex-

tended by the defendant, United States Fidelity &
Guaranty Company * * * its representatives

and agents, and by reason of the original agreement
and understanding under which said insurance was
written and through and under which said defend-
ant corporation, by its duly authorized representa-

tives, agreed at all times to keep this plaintiff fully

indemnified," etc. (Par. VIII, Tr. p. 7).

"That the defendant corporation continued to

renew said surety and fidelity agreement from year
to year and until the 1st day of April, 1914, and
that plaintiff did, for each year, pay the defendant
eorpoi'ation in advance its annual premium, and
the defendant corporation did during each year
receive and accept said annual premium * * *

and the said defendant surety company did at all

times continue to renew its agreement of insurance

and indemnity to this plaintiff as against the said

Mack A. Mitchell, and any and all loss on account



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 1

7

of wrongful acts of said Mack A. Mitchell, and
said insurance was at all times kept in full force
and effect." (Par. IX, Tr. pp. 7, 8).

"That on the 1st day of April, 1913, the de-

fendant, United States Fidelity & Guaranty Com-
pany, made, executed and delivered to the plain-

tiff a certain bond in writing, a copy of which is

hereto attached marked Exhibit "C" and made a

part of this complaint. That said bond was given
hy the defendant corporation to the plaintiff bank
by, through, under and in pursuance of the original

agreement and contract indemnifying and insuring

said bank as hereinabove stated and as a part of

the same transaction. That said bond was and is

in the sum of $25,000, and was made for a period
of one year from the 1st day of April, 1913, and
is still in full force and effect. That the plaintiff

paid to the defendant and the defendant received

and accepted from the plaintiff as consideration

for said execution, renewal and extension of said

bond the sum of $62.50, and then and thereby said

insurance agreement and contract was extended and
continued in full force and effect until the 1st day
of April, 1914." (Par. X, Tr. pp. 8, 9).

"That as a consequence of said contract of in-

surance and in consideration of the payment of the

said annual premiums by plaintiff to defendant,

the plaintiff' was, and has been and is insured and
indemnified by the defendant and indemnified and
insured by defendant against any and all loss or

damage which the said plaintiff should, on account

of said Mack A. Mitchell, sustain * * * and
during the period named in said contract of in-

surance cmd continuing in the full sum of $25,000,

and until the termination of said insurance, which
is still in force and has since April 1st, 1906, been
insured against all wrongful acts," etc. (Par. XI,
Tr. pp. 9, 10).
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"But the plaintiff at all times relied solely

and wholly upon the promise and representations
of the defendant and its duh^ authorized agents, and
at all times depended solely upon the assurance of
defendant and its representatives that plaintiff

was fully insured against any loss, harm or damage
on account of any of said wrongful acts of the
said Mack A. Mitchell and left the matter of the
continuation and renewal of said insurance and
of giving the plaintiff at all times the best insur-

ance to be had entirely to the defendant and its

representatives and agents." (Par. XVII, Tr. pp.
14, 15).

"That during all of the period hereinabove
named the defendant charged the plaintiff for said

contract of insurance on account of the said Mack
A. Mitchell, the highest premium charged or col-

lected by any other surety or fidelity company doing
business within the State of Washington or the Ter-
ritory of Alaska, and did during all of the eight

consecutive years charge and collect from this plain-

tiff the full premiimi charged by any and all of
the most substantial and responsible insurance com-
panies doing business within the territory or state

named, and did at all times charge this plaintiff and
collect and receive from this plaintiff during said

entire period the premium charged for the best,

most modern and up-to-date insurance of that char-

acter to be had from any surety company, which
premium was at all times paid b,y plaintiff upon
and under the agreement and understanding that

it was receiving at the hands of defendant at all

times the most modern and up-to-date policy and
insurance of that kind or character to be procured."

(Par. XVIII, Tr. p. 15).

"That the plaintiff bank lias at all times since

it entered into the contract of insurance with the

defendant fully com]3lied with all the terms, condi-
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tioiis and provisions of said contract of insurance,
and has fully kept and performed all the terms
conditions and provisions of said contract of in-
surance by it to be kept and performed. That it has
fully and promptly paid all premiums, and since
the discovery of said wrongful acts and conduct on
the part of said Mack A. Mitchell, has fully com-
plied with all the terms and conditions of said con-
tract of insurance on its part to be kept and per-
formed." (Par. XXI, Tr. p. 17).

The continuations were by allegations, made a

part of the complaint, and are admitted by the

answer. A copy of one of them has been copied into

this brief and is found on page 28 of Transcript.

The bond is likewise, made a part of the com-

plaint, and contains the following:

"It is hereby understood and agreed that those

representations and such promises, and any subse-

quent representation or promise of the Employer,"
etc. (Tr. p. 21).

"NOW, THEREFORE, THIS BOND WIT-
NESSETH, That for the consideration of the prem-
ises, the Company shall, during the term above
mentioned, or any subsequent renewal of such term/'
(Tr. p. 22). '

''And whicli shall have been committed during

the continuance of said term, or of any renewal

thereof, and discovered during said continuance

or of any renewal thereof, or within six months
thereafter, or within six months from the death

or dismissal or retirement of said Employe from
the service of the Employer within the period of

this Bond, whichever of these events shall first

happen; the Company's total liability on account
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of said Employe under this Bond or any renewal

thereof, not to exceed the sum of TWENTY-FIVE
THOUSAND ($25,000) DOLLARS." (Tr. p.22)

"It being mutually understood that it is the

intention of this provision that but one (the last)

Bond shall be in force at one time, unless other-

wise stipulated between the Employer and the Com-
pany/' (Tr. p. 26).

We claim it was "otherwise stipulated" be-

tween bank and surety.

The notices served on the bank were made

exhibits to the complaint and a part thereof.

In Exhibit "D" the following allegation was

made

:

"Your bond was in the amount of Twenty-five

Thousand Dollars ($25,000), and has been renewed

each succeeding year, including the year 1913, the

bond for the year 1913 bearing date of April 1st,

1913, your bond liaving been continuously in forc&

in the same amount since the said 1st day of May,

1906." (Tr. p. 31).

The Surety, by answer, put in issue the facts

alleged as to the loss, and the nature and character

thereof and the allegations as to the contract for

continuation and extension, and denied generally

liability.

It pleaded affirmatively:

First: That no breach of the bond was dis-
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covered until December 9th, which was more than

six mouths after April 1st, 1913.

Second: That the continuation of April 1st,

1913, had been procured from the company by

misrepresentations on the part of the plaintiff bank

in that the officers of the bank had knowledge of

the wrong doing of Mitchell at the time said con-

tract was executed; that they having discovered

Mitchell's defaults, had, in November, gone to the

Surety and by concealing the knowledge which they

had, induced the Surety to execute the continuation

as of April 1st, 1913, so as to avoid the six months

forfeiture clause.

Third: That the bank had agreed at the time

of the issuance of the bond, and at the time of the

various extensions thereof, and as a condition of

the issuance of said bond and the various continu-

ations thereof, that the bank would from time to

time make new and proper examination of the

books and accounts of Mitchell, and that the bank

had wrongfully failed and neglected to make these

examinations from time to time. That the bank

was therefore estopped to recover because of said

breaches of warranty.

Bank in its reply denied generally the affirma-

tive matters, and denied that it had procured the

last renewal and continuation to be executed as of
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date of April 1st, 1913, tliroiigh fraud or misrep-

resentation, and made in reply the following allega-

tion:

"That said bond marked Exhibit ''C" and at-

tached to the complaint of plaintiff was written and
delivered by said defendant to the plaintiff as and of
the 1st day of April, 1913, in pursuance of the

agreement and arrangement between the parties

hereto for the continuance in force of said fidelity

insurance to plaintiff, as, for and on account of the

said Mack A. Mitchell, as cashier of plaintiff bank,
and was and is a continuation of said fidelity in-

surance and contract. That same was written and
delivered by the defendant to plaintiff as a part
of and in pursuance with the agreement and ar-

rangement existing between the parties hereto, as

fully set forth in the complaint herein, and for the

consideration of the premiums paid and without any
further or additional application having been made
therefor." (Tr. pp. 53, 54).

Bank in its ]'eply admitted that there was a

delay on the part of the Surety in renewing the

bond, but alleged that the delay was caused by the

Surety itself, and was through its own neglect. That

upon the delay being called to the attention of the

Surety it admitted that the delay was its own fault

and neglect, and immediately recognized and admit-

ted that it had agreed to continue said insurance,

and did thereupon immediately continue same by

the renewal as of date of April 1st, 1913. Bank

further alleged that the Surety did at the proper



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 23

time for the renewal, forward same to Mitchell at

Ketchikan, and that Mitchell returned it to the

Surety saying that he did not care for further con-

tinuance. That Mitchell at all times concealed this

fact from the bank. That the bank, without any

knowledge that the Surety had taken the matter

up with Mitchell instead of with the bank, at all

times believed the bond had been renewed and relied

wholly upon the fact that the Surety had agreed to

keep the insurance renewed, and had no knowledge

that it had not been renewed. The bank denied that

it had breached any warranty, and denied that it

had ever executed any application or had made any

statement subsequent to May, 1906. (Tr. pp. 54 to

58).

Counsel for bank, in opening statement to jury,

stated

:

"This bond was renewed from year to year.

We allege, and expect the evidence to show to you,

that the arrangement and agreement was made at

the time the bond was written, that the agents of

the surety company should, from year to year re-

new the bond. The company did renew the bond
from year to year, each time renewing it before
the expiration of the year, and that the bond con-

tmued in force until after the occurrences for
u'hich the action is brought." (Tr. p. 67).

"The bond was first written in 1906, and re-

newed each successive year, including the year 1913,

and until April 1st, 1914, and the premium paid
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to the company by the bank. The bank paid that
premium, not Mr. MitchelL The bank procured
the bond itself, and paid the premium." (Tr. p.
74).

Counsel for Surety, in his opening to the jury

stated

:

"They sent him up there, and armed him with
full authority to conduct the business of that bank
at Ketchikan, and during all the time he was there,

from 1906 until 1913, made, I believe, but one ex-
amination of his accounts, and that was in the
early part of his regime there. Such was the trust

and confidence they had in him. In 1906 the de-
fendant surety company was represented in Seattle
by Calhoun, Denny & Ewing." (Tr. p. 76).

(The authority, therefore, of Calhoim, Denny

& Ewing stands admitted in the record).

"Some short time before 1913 we changed our
agent here, and the new agent, a Mr. McCollister,
left the Alaska Building and took up his quarters
in the Hoge Building." (Tr. p. 78).

"We followed the usual custom as we do with
all bonds—our agents sent them the usual notice

that their bond was about to expire." (Tr. p. 78).

"The notice was received, of course, by Mr.
Mack Mitchell himself, who was the only one in

the bank at Ketchikan. He, thereupon, notified

us that thev did not desire a renewal of the bond."
(Tr. pp. 78, 79).

"Then in November some time they come to us

and say, 'How is it that that bond was not issued

in April? We wanted that bond.' Of course they
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had not paid any premium for any bond, but they
said, 'We want that bond, and will you kindly
write it, and date it back to April 1st?' " (Tr.

p. 80).

Counsel for Surety in his argument, stated:

"Your Honor will not fail to understand why
they sought to get this last bond; they tJwuglit it

would operate as a renewal of the old bond/' (Tr.

p. 92).

Counsel for bank in his argument to the court,

stated

:

''While counsel has not fully stated it, he has
probably understood our contention, in that we
contend this is one continuous insurance," (Tr. p.

99).

"We expect to show that it was the arrange-
ment between these parties that this should be re-

newed—that the company would keep it renewed,
and that it did keep it renewed, and that counsel

is mistaken when he says that we would apply each
year for that renewal." (Tr. p. 100).

"Then, we will offer evidence to show, that it

was not ourselves who made the discovery that this

was not renewed, but that it was made by the old

agent of the company, who then went to this com-
pany, and asked them—called their attention to it,

and they then agreed with him that it should be
renewed, and he went to the bank, and asked them
if they knew this bond had not been renewed. That
is the way we got the information. The bank had
depended solely upon the surety company to keep
it renewed. No application had been given. It is

the absolute requirement of this company and of
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all the companies, that upon the execution of a

new bond, a written application must be given.

None was taken in this case. The company treated

it as a renewal and dated it as a renewal—dated

it as of the date they should have renewed it orig-

inally. Now, so much for those questions, all of

which are questions of fact for the jury." (Tr. pp.

100, 101).

"Because of the fact that it was in pursuance

of the original arrangement and agreement, which

existed between us, and because of the fact that

that is what we asked them to do, and because as

and for a renewal, that is the bond which they gave

us." (Tr. p. 105).

"Now, if that were not a renewal, what explan-

ation can be offered for the dating of it back'? If

that were a new contract—a new bond—it would
have to have been dated on the date it was exe-

cuted." (Tr. p. 106).

"They had done all the business here; they had

been paid all the premiums here; for eight years,

they collected these premiums. They had collected

these premiums for eight years. They had done all

the business here. They,* themselves, renewed the

bond from year to year without any action on the

part of the "bank. The bank had relied upon them

from year to year. And, as I said, had not the

agencv been changed, this difficultv would never

have arisen." (Tr. pp. 109, 110).

"And then, when the bank discovered it, which,

as I said, was discovered through the old agency,

and not on its own account, they asked for a re-

newal of that bond, and they are given this other
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bond. * * * j^Yi^ they gave that bond, then, as
a renewal or a continuation of this contract of in-

surance." (Tr. p. 110).

"The bond they gave to us as a renewal was
the bond they were giving then to all persons—the

bond they were giving to any one who made appli-

cation for like insurance. I can see no difference,

if the Court please, whether they had given us one
of these certificates, or whether they gave us, in

lieu thereof, the other paper, which is now referred

to as the new bond. We want the privilege of show-
ing that they agreed to give it to us as a renewal
and that they did give it to us, as a matter of fact,

as a renewal, and we want to submit that question
of fact to the jury ; first, that they agreed to give it

to us as a renewal; second, that they did give it

to us as a renewal of this insurance, and as a con-

tinuation of the insurance which we had had, and
carried; and paid them for, for eight consecutive
years." (Tr. pp. 110, 111).

"But certainly, certainly, if we can prove that

they agreed to renew this old contract, and that

they did renew this old contract, the form of the

renewal is immaterial." (Tr. p. 115).

"So, as I said, I think it would certainly not

be advisable for the Court to undertake at this

time to say in advance of the offering of any testi-

mony that we would not be permitted to offer any
testimony in relation to the renewal of this con-

tract." (Tr. p. 115).

Counsel for bank then made offer to prove all

its allegations, and to prove as a fact that the Surety

had agreed to continue the bond, and that it was

so continued. (Tr. pp. 120, 121).
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The decree entered by the Honorable Trial

Covirt contained the following:

"THEREUPON, Counsel for the plaintiff

asked permission to be allowed to prove and made
offei' to prove the fact, that the bond of April 1st,

1913, was a renewal bond and given in pursuance
of previous arrangement and agreement for the

continuation of the insurance and as a renewal and
continuation of the former bond, and to prove the

allegations of its complaint." (Tr. p. 61).

Motion for new trial was filed, duly heard, and

overruled, and exception allowed. (Tr. pp. 62 and

64).

No evidence of any kind was received by the

Honorable Trial Court. No admissions of counsel

were made, except as have been hereinabove copied.

The Trial Court refused to hear any testimony and

decided the whole cause as a matter of law.

All statements made by counsel either to the

jury or to the Court, except arguments upon law,

have been made a part of the record.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS.

The Honorable Trial Court erred:

1st. In granting the motion made by Surety

to exclude all testimony on behalf of bank, except

as it related to loss under the instrument of April

1st, 1913.
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2nd. In excluding all testimony touching any

alleged loss occasioned by any wrongful act or con-

duct of Mitchell occurring prior to April 1st, 1913,

or April 1st, 1912.

3rd. In refusing to allow bank to offer proof

to sustain the allegations of its pleadings, and in

refusing to allow bank to introduce evidence to

establish the facts which it offered to prove.

4th. In refusing the offer of testimony on be-

half of bank to prove the allegations of its com-

plaint, and that the bond was at all times during

the periods named, as a fact, renewed and continued

in force, and in refusing to allow bank to prove

that it was agreed that the instrument of April 1st,

1913, was a continuation and renewal of the bond,

and that it was, by agreement between the parties,

to be and was at all times a continuation of the

surety contract, and was so understood and treated.

5th. In refusing to allow bank to prove as a

matter of fact that it had an agreement with the

defendant Surety that the bond and contract of

suretyship was to be by the Surety continued in

force, and that it was to be from time to time within

the year renewed, and in refusing to allow bank to

prove as a question and matter of fact that said

instrument, called by the Surety, the last bond, was

given in pursuance of said contract.
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Gtli, In overruling motion of bank for new

trial, and in refusing the bank a rehearing and

retrial in the cause.

7th. In refusing and denying to bank a trial

of the issues of fact raised by the pleadings.

8th. In entering final judgment in the cause,

and in entering judgment for the bank only in the

sum which the Surety was willing to admit on ac-

count of the so-called last bond, and erred in enter-

ing final judgment in favor of the defendant against

the plaintiff, and erred in not hearing the evidence

and entering the final judgment for the bank for

the full amount prayed.

ARGUMENT.

"The object of an indemnity bond is to indem-
nify, and if it fails to do this, either directly or

indirectly, it fails to accomplish its primary pur-

pose, and becomes worse than useless. It is worth-

less as actual security and misleading as a pre-

tended one."

Bcmk of Tarhoro v. Fidelity etc. Co., 83 Am.
St. Rep. 682.

"Courts have alwa3^s set their faces against an

insurance company which having received its pre-

miums, has sought by technical defense to avoid

payment. '

'

Mutual Life Ins. Co. v. IliU, 193 U. S. 551.

In the statement we have quoted copiously

from the pleadings and statements of counsel, be-
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cause the decision was based wholly thereon.

We assume that no statement of counsel may
properly be considered, except in so far as same is

an admission.

Counsel for Surety stated that Mr. Ed Chil-

berg was the head of the bank and that certain

things took place with him. (Tr. pp. 79, 80).

Counsel for the bank stated that Mr. Ed Chil-

berg was not an officer of the bank, nor a Trustee,

nor connected in any way with it or its management

until November 29th, 1913. (Tr. p. 66).

Such statements present only issues of fact.

CONTINUATION OF SURETYSHIP.

The bond expressly provides for renewals. It

says: "such promises and any subsequent repre-

sentation." That the company "shall, during the

term above mentioned, or any subsequent renewal

of such term." "Which shall have been committed

during the continuance of said term, or of any

renewal thereof and discovered during said con-

tinuance or of any renewal thereof, or within six

months thereafter." That the liability on account

of the bond "or any renewal thereof," was not

to exceed $25,000. (Tr. pp. 21, 22).

Then, from year to year, in consideration of
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the premium, it executed an instrument which,

'Hierehy continues in force" the bond.

We desire to call the attention of the court

upon the threshold of this argument, to the fact

that in none of the cases cited by counsel below,

and upon which the Trial Court must have relied,

does the renewal certificate contain the words:

"hereby continues in force." The continuation cer-

tificate which Your Honors must here consider,

is different from any found in the earlier cases,

and as stated by one of the courts of last resort,

was undoubtedly put out to meet the objections of

the earlier cases, and to be a certificate which does

constitute a continuance of the insurance contract.

IJ. S. Fid. d' Guar. Co. v. Citizens Nat'l.

Bank of Monticello, 143 S. W. 997.

U. S. Fid. d' Guar. Co. v. SliepJierds Home
Lodge, 174 S. W. 487.

First National Bank v. U. S. Fid. d Guar.

Co., 110 Ten. 10, 100 Am. St. Rep. 765.

U. S. Fid. d Guar. Co. ik First Natl Bank
of Dundee, 233 111. 475, 84 N. E. Rep. 670.

Alex Camphell Milk Co. v. U. S. Fid. d-

Guar. Co., 146 N. Y. Sup. 92.

North St. Louis Bldq d Loan Asso. r. Ohert,

et al, 169 Mo. 507, 69 S. W. 1044.

Am.. Credit Indemnity Co. v. Athens Woolen
Mills, C. C. A., 92 Fed. 581.

Am,. Credit Indemnity Co. v. Champion. C. C.

A. 6th Circuit, 103' Fed. 609.

Fid. Cas. Co. v. Fechheimer, 220 Fed. 401.
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The cases cited by counsel, except one, appear

to be based upon and to follow the case of De

Jernette v. Fidelity Castmlty Co., 33 S. W. 828.

That case has been twice overruled, and disap-

proved in two subsequent decisions in the same

court. Furthermore, the court in 143 S. W. says,

that the provisions of the bond of the U. S. Fid.

& Guar. Co. are different from the provisions of

the bond of the Fid. & Casualty Co. which was

construed in the Be Jernette case.

We quote from ZL S. Fid. & Guar. Co. v. Bank
of Monticello, 143 S. W. 997:

"Appellant contends that the bond executed
March 15, 1904, and each continuation certificate

executed annually thereafter, to March 15, 1908,

constituted separate and independent contracts, and
that therefore the bank must allege and prove
the loss occurring under each of them, and that

the rights of the parties should be determined as

to rules of notice and time of action in accordance
with this tlieor}^ If this contention is correct,

then appellee could not recover for any embezzle-
ment or larceny committed by the cashier, except
those committed during the life of the last contract,

as the time given, to-wit, six months, for the dis-

cover}^ of the fraud, had expired on all the con-

tracts but the last. Appellee, on the other hand,
contends that the original bond and the four certi-

ficates constitute one continuous contract, and the

lower court so held and rendered a judgment against

appellant for $15,000 only, as that was the full

amount of the indemnity under the contract. Ap-
pellant refers to the case of Be Jernette v. Fid.
tf' Casualty Co., 98 Ky. 558, 33 S. W. 828, 17 Ky.



34 Miners' & Merchants' Bank vs.

Law Rep. 1088. Tltts court did hold that the bond
and renewals in that case were separate contracts;

hut upon a close examination of the facts of that

case and those in the case at bar, a difference will

be found. It is reasonable to presume that, because
of the construction placed upon the contract in the

De Jernette Case, that portion of the public want-
ing indemnity insurance required a different con-

tract, as it seldom occurs that embezzlement or lar-

ceny is detected within three, si.r or twelve montJis

after committed, especially if the employe has been
in the service of his employer for some time and
is trusted by him and is shrewd. Therefore, in order
to obtain business, the indemnity and guaranty com-
panies gave them a contract which would protect

them.
"As stated, the bond in question was issued

March 15th, 1904, and the bank paid the premium,
$45., at that time. Appellant agreed in the bond
to indemnify the bank in the sum of $15,000 against

any loss it might sustain at the hands of its cashier

b}^ any acts of his which amounted to embezzlement
or larceny, for the term of twelve months, pro-

vided his wrongdoing was discovered within six

months from the time the contract expired. If

the bond and four renewal certificates contained

only these stipulations, then appellant's contention

is correct, and the case would be governed by the

De Jernette Case; but we are of the opinion that

tlie facts of this case show that the parties intended

that the bond and, four continuation certificates

should constitute one contiynwus contract. In the

original bond this language is used: 'The company
shall, during the term above mentioned or any sub-

sequent i-enewal of such term, * * * make good

and reimburse to the said employer, such pecuniary

loss as may be sustained by the employer by reason

of the fraud or dishonesty of the said employe

in connection with the duties of his office or posi-

tion, amounting to embezzlement or larceny, and



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 35

which shall have been committed during the con-

tinuance of said term or any renewal thereof, and
discovered during said continuance or any renewal
thereof or within six months thereafter.' Similar

language is used throughout the bond, and we are

unable to understand why. If the bond was in-

tended by the parties to have no connection with

any other, why was this language used? For what
was it inserted? It appears from this language
that appellant was obligating itself in the sum of

$15,000 to pay the bank for any embezzlement or

larceny committed by its cashier, not only from
March 15, 1904, to March 15, 1905, but to any period

that might be fixed by any renewal of the con-

tract." 143 S. W. 998.

Statement in the syllabus is as follows:

"HELD, that the original bond and certificates

of renewal constituted but one contract, and the

bank could recover for any loss sustained during
the period of the bond and renewal certificates,

and discovered within six months after the expira-

tion of the last certificate." Syllabus, 143 S. W.
997.

This case also holds that the question of whether

or not the bank had acted with due diligence and

promptness in making examinations, etc., was one

for the jury. It likewise contains a discussion of

what constitutes larceny and embezzlement as used

in such bonds, and it is held that to conceal over-

drafts is such fraud or dishonesty as amounts to

larceny or embezzlement.

This case likewise contains the following state-

ment:



36 Miners' & Merchants' Bank vs.

"At the time appellant issued this insurance,
it knew that the bank was what is called 'a country
bank,' and that the officers of it were men who,
probably, could not give the accounts an expert
examination, and it is presumed that it understood
the answer to the question to mean that they would
give the accounts the best examination they could."
143 S. W. 999.

United States Fidelity d- Guaranty Company v.

Shepherd's Home Lodge No. 2, 174 S. W. 487, also

same company and same bond, except as to time.

"During the continuance of said term or of

any renewal thereof, or discovery during the said

continuance or within t]vree months thereafter."

The statement of the law in the syllabus is as

follows

:

"The contract was a continuing one, and the

recovery of the lodge upon the bond was not limited

to the loss occurring after the last renewal, but
included the total loss from the inception of the

contract up to the limit of the guaranty."

The provisions of the bond seem to be identical

with the one at bar except that three months was

inserted for six.

"We are unable to distinguish this case from
the Monticello Bank Case, for we cannot understand
the meaning of the language used, or why it was
used, if it was not intended to make each bond a

continuation of the one preceding, and altogether

constitute one contract affording indemnity in the

sum named." 174 S. W. 489.

It is significant to note that in this case there
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were no renewal certificates issued, but a new bond

was executed from year to year. And yet, it was

held that the contract was continuing.

"While it is true, in the present case, at the

end of each year, a new bond was issued instead

of a renewal receipt, but each bond was in identical

terms, and the last two bore the same serial num-
ber, and by them the guaranty company obligated

itself to reimburse for any loss occurring 'during

the term above mentioned (the annual period) or

any subsequent renewed of sueJi term.' The obli-

gation is repeated in the bond as follows: 'Dur-
ing the continuance of said term, or of any renewal
thereof, and discovery during the said continuance,

or within three months thereafter.' " 174 S. W.
489.

This case likewise holds that the question of

the conduct of the officers of the Lodge—whether

or not the statements they had made were correct

statements—^whether or not they had used due care

in making an examination, etc.,—were all questions

for the jury.

"Whether the lodge made truthful statements

in the certificates for renewal, and whether ordinary

care was used to know whether the statements were
true, were questions for the jury." 174 S. W. 489.

First National Bank v. U. S. Fidelity d Guar-

anty Co., 110 Tenn. 10, 100 Am. St. Rep. 765. Again

same company and same bond. The question at

issue was whether or not the amount was cumulative

under the renewal, or whether it was limited to the
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one penalty of $7,000. The Court, among other

things, said

:

''Now it is true that the renewal certificate

is a new^ contract, but it is only a new contract as

respects time; that is to say, it extends the indem-
nity provided hy the old contract to a netv period

of time. * * * The parties themselves utider-

stood there was only one bond and one penalty.

(Here reference is made to a letter written by the

cashier of the bank). This letter, the record shows,

was dictated by the counsel for the bank and shows
how the contract was understood and interpreted

by the bank, before this litigation arose. The of-

ficers of defendant company and the officers of other

similar companies so understood it." 100 Am. St.

Rep. 774.

We pleaded an express agreement, and alleged

that both the Surety and the bank so understood it.

In Alex Campbell Milk Co. v. U. S. Fid. c&

Cas. Co., 416 N. Y. Sup. 92, the Court held under a

bond of this company, it was liable to cumulative

amount; that is to say, there was a bond and three

renewal certificates, and the court held that the

company was liable for $7,500 if that much had

been lost during the three year period, although

the bond penalty was but $2,500.

But in our case, although the bank lost more

than $50,000, we claim the right to collect but the

one bond penalty of $25,000.

"In determining whether a guarantee is con-

tinuing or not, it should of course be read in the
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light of the contract it is intended to secure, and
with regard to the situation of the parties at the
time it tvas entered into, which may he shown by
parol/'

Spencer on Suretyship, Sec. 97.

See Frost on the Law of Guaranty Ins. 2nd Ed.

pp. 99 to 104.

We quote from North St. Loiiis Building <f?

Loan Ass'n. v. Obert, et ah, 169 Mo. 507, 69 S. W.

1046:

"But if it appears from all the circumstances
that the intention of the parties to the contract

was that the bond, being unrestricted by its own
terms, should cover the acts of the principal during
his continuance in the office, whether by re-elections

or holding over, we cannot give it the restricted con-

struction.
'

'

The case of United States Fidelity d- Guaranty

Co. V. First National Bank of Dundee, 233 111. 475,

84 N. E. Rep. 670, suit against the same Surety.

The contentions made in the case were that certain

renewal certificates had been procured through

fraud, same as here.

"Appellant contends that the two certificates

made by the bank to obtain a renewal contain false

representations which render the certificates void,

and that therefore the bond was not in force except

for the first year. The charge of false representa-

tions raises an issue of fact. The burden of proof
upon that issue is upon appellant, (the Suretv com-
pany)." 84 N. E. 672.



40 Miners' & Merchants' Bank vs.

''Appellant's contention is that the statement
that the books and accounts of Wright had been
examined was not true; that if an examination had
been made the embezzlements of the cashier would
have been discovered, and that the fact that the3f

were not discovered is proof that no examinations
were made," Ibid 672.

"Appellant insists that the failure of the bank
to discover this discrepancy is conclusive proof
that no examination was, in fact, made. This con-

clusion is not warranted by the facts and circum-
stances in this record. If it be assumed that an
examination of the bank's books means only such
a thorough and exhaustive examination as would
necessarily discover the slightest irregularity that

might exist, however cunningly covered up, then,

of course, appellant's contention would be sound;
but this is manifestly not the meaning of the word
'examination' in the certificates in controversy.

If bank officers are to be held to such a rigid method
of examination and supervision over the accounts

of their employes there would he hut little necessity

if any for purchasing fidelity insurance. When a

trusted employe conceives a scheme of criminal

misappropriation of his employer's money, he at

the same time matures his plans for covering up
his wrongdoings. He has many advantages over

his employer, since he knows what the real facts

are, and is therefoi'e always on his guard to allay

suspicion, while the employer is ignorant of the

real facts and therefore unsuspecting." Ibid 673.

"It is no doubt probably true that an expert

accountant, in making a thorough and detailed ex-

amination into the affairs of this bank, might have

discovered the irregularity of June 6th, 1901 ; but

the officers of this bank were not required by any
clause in the contract to make any such examination

as above supposed." Il)id 674.
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So in the case at bar, there is no requirement

in the contract of insurance which requires an exam-

ination of any kind.

It was likewise contended in tlie above case that

each renewal certificate constituted a separate and

independent contract of insurance, just as is being-

contended here. We quote from the decision, at

page 674:

"If the renewal certificate of 1902 is binding

upon appellant and had the effect of continuing the

bond in force for that year, then appellant is liable

for the full amount of the decree below, since it

is admitted that Wright's embezzlements during

the year 1902 were largely in excess of the face of

the bond. If appellant's contention as to the con-

struction of the certificates be sustained, the result

would be that the making of such a certificate would
be an acquittance and release of the insurance com-

pany of all liability that existed on account of

the "infidelity of the employe prior to the date of

the certificate." Ibid 674.
"

Still another question was discussed because

the assured claimed the right to treat the renewals

as cumulative and to recover $20,000, whereas the

bond was for $10,000, and the court discusses this

question and holds that there was one contract of

insurance and that the renewal merely continued

that contract in force for the time covered by

the renewal certificates, and that therefore the re-

covery should be for the full amount of the bond

penalty, but not cumulative.
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Counsel for Surety, in the court below, cited

the following:

Florida Cent. etc. v. American Surety, -99

Fed. 674.

Proctor Coal Co. v. U. S. Fid. & Guar. Co.,

124 Fed. 424.

V. S. Fid. d' Guar. Co. v. Williams, 49
Southern 742.

We submit that Florida decision by District

Judge Shipman, has no application. The Surety

was different. The bond was different. The con-

ditions were different. It was what is known as

a "schedule bond." An entirely different form of

contract. At the opening of the opinion it says:

"a bond of indemnity against loss through the

defalcation of its employes who were to he named."

Later, what was called a "schedule register" was

furnished, and this register was changed from year

to year as the employes changed. It was a sort

of blanket policy covering all employes, but names

were to be furnished. There was in the case no

question of renewal certificates continuing the orig-

inal l)0f)d in force. On the contrary, the court says,

at page 675

:

"The surety company had annually, while it

was insuring the plaintiff, issued to it a new bond
of indemnity."

On the next page it says that the assured each
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year made out a new schedule register of em-

ployes. Thus the risk was different each year.

Page 677, the court says:

''It is also plain that the contract was blindly

and clumsily drawn, but, so far as it relates to

the circumstances of this case, we think it is cap-
able of being understood. The bond states no time

of its duration, and gives the name of no person
for whose conduct there is to he an indemnity. To
make the contract intelligible it must be read in

connection with the schedule register and the notices

of acceptance, and from them it appears that an-
nually a new list of employes was entered on the

schedule/^

Then the court goes on to say that some of

the names of the preceding list had disappeared,

new names taking their places, and that the annual

premium had been paid for those only whose names

appeared upon the schedule.

Again the court says:

^'TJie course of business between the parties, as

well as the bond itself, shows that there is to be
an annual designation of employes upon the sched-

ule, and an annual selection and acceptance of the

names by the surety company." Ibid p. 677.

Page 678, the court says:

"For the period specified in the contract of

insurance reference must be had to the two other

papers tvhich, with the bond, form the contract,

and which indicate very plainly that the liability

is confined to losses in the current year. This
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construction is furtliermore shown in tlie rider at-

tacliecl to the bond in suit."

Then the court says that the "rider" proves

that insurance was limited to one year. So that in

reality there were four papers to be examined in

that case in oi'der to determine what the contract

really was.

Here the insurance was a direct guarantee upon

the one man, Mitchell, in the one position, and

continuation certificates were issued from year to

year, which recited that the bond was cof}tinued in

force. The certificate expressly "continues in force"

the original bond. No such certificate issued in

the Florida case, and the company was undertak-

ing to insure a certain set of employes for one

year, and a new and different set for the subse-

quent year. In other words, the risk was changing

every year because of the change in the schedule

of employes, and there were reasons why the in-

surance was expressly limited to the year.

Neither does the bond contain the provision for

renewal as does the bond here. It was a straight

guarantee for one year with no mention of re-

newal.

Proctor Coal Company v. U. S. Fid. & Guar.

Co., is a case decided in 1903. There is a very

material difference in the renewal certificates. In
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the Proctor case the certificate is set forth on page

428, and provides:

"In consideration of the sum of $25, United
States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. hereby guarantees

the fidelity of C. H. Stanton in the sum of $5,000,"

etc.

The renewal certificate in this case (Tr. p.

28) reads as follows:

"In consideration of the sum of $100 the United

States Fidelity & Guaranty Company hereby con-

tinues in force Bond No. T-450 in the sum of

$25,000."

In the former there is no word about continua-

tion; not even the word "renewal" is used, nor does

it refer to any former bond. It appears to be a

distinct and independent guarantee. While here

the so-called renewal certificate is a certificate of

continuation, continuing in force the bond as orig-

inally wi'itten.

The case was decided upon the question of

whether or not an amendment should be permitted,

and while the court does discuss the question of

the continuation, that was not the real question be-

fore the court for decision. Near the close is this

language

:

"In my opinion the whole purpose and inten-

tion of this clause is that there shall not be double

responsibility on the part of the company. It is

not at all iiaconsistent with the right to discover
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within six months after the expiration of the orig-

inal bond or any renewal the dishonest acts of the
employe, and to claim indemnity for the same."

The decision is by District Judge, upon an en-

tirely different state of facts and renewal agree-

ment.

Furthermore, the bond in the Proctor case

did not contain the provision for renewals and con-

tinuation which are in the later bonds.

The Williams case in 49 Southern 742 appears

more nearly in point, but it is based upon De

Jernetfe v. Fid. & Casualty Co., 33 S. W. 828,

which it follows. That case was decided on an

entirely different state of facts and different bond,

and the same court (as we have shown supra)

which rendered that decision has in two late cases

refused to follow it, and pointed out the difference

in the later bonds.

U. S. Fid. & Guar. Co. v. Bank of Monticello,

143 S. W. 997, is a late case upon the bond of

this same company and the same form of bond at

issue here. The Court says:

"Appellant refers to the case of De Jernette

V. Fidelity & Casualty Co., 98 Ky. 558, 33 S. W.
828, 17 Ky. Law Rep. 1088. This court did hold

that the bond and renewals in that case were sep-

arate contracts; but upon a close examination of

the facts of that case and those in the case at

bar, a difference will be found."
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Then, after examining and pointing out the

difference in the two contracts, the Court says:

*' Therefore, in order to obtain business, the in-

demnity and guaranty companies gave them a con-
tract which would protect them."

The De Jernette case is cited in all three au-

thorities relied on by counsel, and in all three, the

early forms of bond \yere construed, and the later

form of bond was unquestionably demanded by em-

ployers because of the earlier cases, and to meet

those decisions. The later form, which is in ques-

tion in this case, was put forth by the company, and

the later decisions which we cite, all hold that it

is one continuous contract of insurance.

In discussing these differences, the Kentucky

Court of Appeals says further

:

"But we are of the opinion that the facts

of this case show that the parties intended that

the bond and four continuation certificates should

constitute one continuous contract. In the original

bond this language is used: 'The company shall,

during the term above mentioned or any subsequent

renewal of such term,'
"

That language is the exact language found in

the bond here, but was not in the bonds in the

earlier cases.

The case of American Credit Indemnity Co. v.

Champion, lO.S Fed. 609, is a decision of the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals of the 6th Circuit. The
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opinion is by Mr. Justice Liirton. The case is

not parallel but by analogy in point.

The question was whether or not a certain re-

newal bond continued the original bond in force,

and it was held that it did so. We quote from

the opinion, the following:

"Both claims were, therefore, barred, unless

they are saved by the eighth condition of the bond.

That condition is in these words:
'In case this bond is renewed, and the pre-

mium on such renewal is paid at or before the

expiration of this bond, loss on sales covered ac-

cording to the terms, conditions and limitations

hereof, resulting after said date of expiration upon
shipments made during the term of this bond,

may be proven under and subject also to the terms
and conditions of such renewal. In case this bond
is a renewal, and the premium has been paid at

or before the expiration of the preceding bond,

covered losses occurring during the term of this

bond on shipments made during the term of the

said preceding bond may be proven hereunder, sub-

ject also to the terms, conditions, and limitations

of said preceding bond.'

"Both the first and second bonds contain this

precise condition, and the terms, conditions and
limitations of each are identical, save in respect

to the initial loss and single debtor limitation. The
clear purpose and intent of this provision was
to carry forward and indemnify the insured against

losses which might result from sales and shipments

during the period of the first bond, but whicli would
not be provable, under the prescribed terms of the

bond, within the period of its life. This extension

of the time during which losses might be prob-

able is made dependent upon the issuance of a
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renewal policy. The purpose of the renewed policy

was twofold: First, it was a guaranty against

loss upon sales and shipments made during its

period; and second, it secured or extended the

guaranty of the preceding bond to losses upon
sales during its period which did not technically

became provable during its term." 103 Fed. 611.

This is in line with our contention that the

renewals which expressly recite that they continue

in force the bond extended the guarantee of the

preceding bond to losses during its period and

throughout the period of the succeeding continua-

tions.

'^This is the most reasonable interpretation,

and accords most nearly with the justice of the

matter. In the case of American Credit Indemnity
Co, V. Athens Woolen Mills, a cause decided by
this court, and reported in 34 C. C. A. 161, and
92 Fed. 581, we found a difficulty of the same
general character arising out of a doubt as to

whether the definition of insolvency found in a

renewal policy applied to a loss which was prov-

able under the renewal bond, though it arose from
sales made during the currency of the preceding
bond. The condition by which the renewal bond
was made to apph^ to losses originating under the

preceding bond was not in all respects identical

with that involved here, though substantially the

same. Referring to the promissory clause of the

preceding bond, we said:

'A¥e are to consider that by that clause it was
clearly intended to extend the benefit of the old

bond to cover sales of goods made under that bond,

though losses thereon did not accrue during its

life; and we ought not to defeat that intention and
just expectation of the assured, unless the words
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of the renewal bond necessarily require it. Do
they require it? AYe think not. In the light of
the circumstances and the necessity for reconcil-

ing the clauses of the two bonds, tlie words of the
clause 8 of bond No. 2443 may be reasonably con-
strued to mean merely that the formal proof of
loss is to be made under the renewal bond and dur-
ing its life ; while clauses No. 8 and 11 of bond No.
1540 shall be given effect by holding that the fact

of the loss is to be settled b}^ the terms of the old

bond.'

''In the same case we held bonds of this char-
acter to be essentially insurance contracts, and
that doubtful and ambiguous expressions were to

be construed most favorably to the insured." 103
Fed. 613, 614.

American Credit Indemnity Co. v. Athens

Woolen Mills, 92 Fed. 851. Decision by Judge

Taft. It was held that the "renewal bond" car-

ried forward the liability in the original bond,

and that in determining the right of recovery the

two must be construed together.

Fidelity Casualty Co. v. Fechheimer. 220 Fed.

at page 401, is a recent decision by the Circuit

Court of Appeals of Sixth Circuit. It is a case

of much the same character as the two preceding.

The second bond contained different terms and con-

ditions from the first. One of the very points being

made by counsel in the case at bar. At page 411

the Court says

:

"The kind of losses on shipments made during

the period of the second bond recoverable there-



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 51

under, differed materially from the kind of losses

recoverable under the conditions of the first bond."

At page 413 is quoted from the decision of

Judge Taft, the following:

"These contracts of indemnity are merely con-

tracts of insurance, carefully framed, to limit as

narrowly as possible the liability of the insurer,

and doubtful expressions in them are to be con-

strued favorable to the insured. * * * Y^q

ought not to defeat the intention and just expec-

tation of the assured, unless the words of the re-

newal bond necessarily require it."

It was held that notwithstanding the pro\dsions

and conditions of the second bond were different, it

was nevertheless a continuation of the first.

In North Street Bldg. & Loan v. Ohert, 169 Mo.

507, 69 S. W. 1044, the court in discussing the

question of continuation of a liability by renewal,

said:

"When it becomes a matter of construction, it

is the duty of the court to put itself in an atti-

tude to view the contract from the same standpoint

that it was seen by the parties when they entered

into it."

We now wish to emphasize another clause of

the bond under consideration which seems decisive.

"The Company's total liability on account of

said Employe under this Bond or anv renewal
thereof, not "to exceed the sum of TWENTY-FIVE
THOUSAND ($25,000) DOLLARS." (Tr. p. 22).
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Why was this clause inserted if the bond was

not meant to be a continuing obligation? If these

contracts are as now contended, separate, distinct

and independent contracts, then the liability could

not exceed Twenty-five Thousand Dollars. That

a bond may not be held for any sum beyond its

penalty is axiomatic. The fact that it says, "under

this bond or any renewal thereof" the liability

shall not exceed $25,000, establishes the fact that

the company wrote this as a continuing bond,

and with the intention that it should continue in

force from year to year but limited to $25,000 loss.

Otherwise, that language is not only superfluous but

utterly meaningless, because in no event could any

one bond limited to one year be held for a sum

to exceed $25,000. The clear meaning is that

the bond is to continue but the penalty not cumu-

late.

This is the fourth time and the fourth place

in which the bond uses the term "renewal." What

is the meaning and force of the word "renewal"

so often used in this bond? Under the interpre-

tation sought by counsel, it would mean nothing.

If the contracts were to be independent annual

contracts, they would be made as they came along

and without inter-dependence. There would be no

occasion whatever to stipidate for renewals as has

been done in this bond, nor to limit recovery to
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one hond penalty.

In pursuance of these stipulations and the

agreement made with the Surety, it did without

any further contract, without further application,

without further written statements or representa-

tions, continue this bond—continue the suretyship,

and the fact that one instrument in the chain is

somewhat different in terms is wholly immaterial.

It continued the insurance consecutively as to date.

It was made under the same circumstances and

conditions, for the same amount, for the same bank,

on the same risk, and for premiums paid.

In Home Lodge case, 174 S. W. 487, the pro-

visions of the bond are set forth at page 488. In

passing, we wish to state that in that case it was

pleaded, just as it is pleaded here, that the last

extension had been obtained through misrepresen-

tation and fraud; that the certificate given by the

Lodge upon which the renewal was claimed was

false and known to be so. It seems this company

has a habit of setting up fraud when charged

with liability.

The language of the bond in the De Jernette

case, 98 Ky. 558, is as follows:

"Provided,—that on the discovery of any such

fraud or dishonesty as aforesaid, the employer
shall immediately give notice thereof to the com-

pany and that full particulars of any claim made
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under this bond sliall be given in writing, addressed
to the company's secretary at its office in the city

of New York, within three months after the expir-
ation of this bond."

The words "or renewal thereof" are omitted.
Neither does it contain the words "or any subsequent

renewal of such term." Neither does it contain

the language "committed during the continuance of

said term or any renewal thereof." The renewals

in the Be Jei^nette case read as follows:

"The contract under bond No is hereby
renewed in accordance with the tenor of the bond,
the guaranty to cover the period above named only/'

An express statement that it is limited to the period

named "only."

The court held that it was not an enlargement

of the previous contract, and that the making of

the new contract did not in any wise affect the

rights of the parties under the previous contract

either to enlarge or diminish them.

As was stated by the Court in the case of U.

S. Fid. d* Guaranty Co. v. Bank of Monticello,

147 Ky., and for reasons given in that opinion,

the result of the decision in the Be Jernette case

was to leave the giving of surety bonds in a con-

dition unsatisfactory to persons desiring such in-

demnity. The consequence was that in response

to what must have been a public demand, the surety
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companies issued policies binding them throughout

continuations of a bond for acts committed during

continuance of the suretyship. This new form of

bond contains agreements that renewals or ex-

tensions of the same should renew and extend the

original obligation throughout the period of such

extension, which constitutes said bonds one con-

. tinning contract.

"It is reasonable to presume that, because of

the construction placed upon the contract in the

De Jernette case, that portion of the public wanting
indemnity insurance, required a different contract,

as it seldom occurs that embezzlement or larceny

is detected within three, six, or tw^elve months after

committed, especially if the employe has been in

the service of his employer for some time and is

trusted by him and is shrewd. Therefore, in order
to obtain business, the indemnity and guaranty com-
panies gave them a contract which would protect

them. '

'

U. S. F. d- G. Co. V. Bank, 147 Ky. 285, 143

S. W. 997.

Clearly the contract for the last period was

meant to be a mere continuation of the bond orig-

inally given. Besides this, the language of the orig-

inal shows that a continuation is contemplated, and

that an increase of the period for which the com-

pany shall be liable to the insured is intended, in

case there should be such continuance of the surety-

ship.

The defendant company, in the light of the
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De Jernette decision, has employed language which

the courts held, obligated it to the assured as upon

one continuing contract. It sold the Miners &

Merchants Bank a bond containing such language,

and then for consideration continued the same for

eight consecutive years.

Had this companj^ felt at the time it gave this

bond that it was likely to be held to an obligation

which it had not intended to assume, or which it

was unwilling to continue to assume, it should,

in good faith to the insuring public and acting in

good faith with the hank, have so altered the form

of its bond before it executed the original contain-

ing the renewal provisions, as to make it clear by

apt language that it did not intend to so obligate

itself. The English language afforded ample means

to the surety company to make it clear that it did

not mean to be bound continuously by continuing

a contract from year to year, if it did not mean

to be so bound.

Is it reasonable to suppose that if the bank

had had the slightest intimation that the Surety

would contend for any such construction, it would

have accepted this bond in the first instance, or

would have continued from year to year to pay

the premiums for its continuation?
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TESTIMONY IMPROPERLY REJECTED.

When the bank offered to prove all the allega-

tions of its pleadings, the following objection was

made:

"MR. DOVELL: To that we will object upon
the ground that all negotiations between the parties

were merged in the various written contracts set

forth in the complaint, and any testimony of the

character suggested by counsel would be an at-

tempt to vary, enlarge or change contracts com-
plete and unambiguous in their terms." (Tr. p.

121).

It is worthy of note, that counsel spoke of the

contracts, using the plural, thus conceding that all

the contracts must be construed together. Yet,

the Honorable Trial Court treated the last one

as standing alone and as being entirely isolated

from all the others.

In the original motion to exclude testimony,

counsel stated: "having in mind the pleadings and

the opening statement of counsel, I move to ex-

clude the testimony touching," etc. (Tr. p. 86).

Nothing was said about parol testimony.

The Honorable Trial Court, having proceeded

upon the theory that the continuation was a sep-

arate and independent contract, held, that we could

not show the relations which had existed between

the parties prior to the date of that instrument.
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He held, that we could not go back and show that

we had the former bond and intervening continu-

ations. He seemed of the opinion that we were

seeking by parol to vary the terms of the last con-

tract.

We submit:

First: There is no justification for the as-

sumption that we were going to rely upon parol

testimony.

Second: That if necessary, parol testimony

was admissible under the pleadings.

1st. (a) There is no allegation in the bank's

pleadings in relation to parol testimony, and noth-

ing from which it may be gleaned that the testi-

mony was to be by parol, or what class of testi-

mony would be offered.

(b) There is no word in the opening state-

ment of counsel for the bank to the eifect that the

testimony would be by parol. The statements of

counsel being that the bank would prove the facts.

(c) The offer of proof made, contains no

statement or reference to parol testimony. It says,

''offer at this time to prove," etc. (Tr. p. 120).

(d) When this offer was made, one counsel

for Surety interrupted as follows

:
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"MR. McCLURE : That proof will be by parol?

Your proof will be oral and not written?

"MR. ROBERTS: I have both written and

oral evidence to prove that fact." (Tr. p. 121).

(e) Reference is made in the bond to the ap-

plication signed at the time the contract was initi-

ated. We want the right to introduce this written

application, and the written application may prove

all that we claim.

(f) Surety in its answer pleads that, at the

time of the issuance of the bond, and at the time

of the various continuations thereof, and as a con-

dition of the bond and continuations, the bank made

certain agreements with the Surety in relation to

examination of the books and accounts of Mitchell

to the end that any loss might be avoided, etc.

(Tr. p. 50). It has not pleaded whether these al-

leged agreements were in writing, or parol. If

they exist they are presumably in writing, and

form a part of the contract, and the bank would

be entitled to introduce them in evidence. The bond

however shows that they were actually in writing.

(g) The bond provides: "It is understood

that it is the intention of this provision that but

one (the last) bond shall be in force at one time,

unless otherwise stipulated between the Employer
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and the Company." This does not state the man-

ner nor form of the stipulation, whether oral or

written. It does not say that unless otherwise stip-

ulated "in writing."

The bank alleges fully in its pleading that it

w^as otherwise stipulated and agreed, and that is

one of the things it offered to prove and wants to

prove in the case.

Since no evidence was received by the court,

and there is nothing in the record to the contrary,

this Honorable Court may not now presume that the

alleged stipulation was not in writing, because every

doubt in the construction of the language of the

bond, is to be resolved against the Surety.

This exception establishes that the bond was

subject to modification by stipulation. That a con-

tinuation was anticipated. That the company was

willing to so modify it as to allow a stipulation for

continuous insurance. The bank alleged in the

pleadings and asserted at all times that it had

been otherwise agreed, and why we were deprived

of our right to prove that it had been "otherwise

stipulated," we cannot understand.

(h) Counsel for Surety, in opening stated:

"The notice was received, of course, by Mr.

Mack Mitchell himself, who was the only one in

the bank at Ketchikan. He thereupon notified us
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that they did not desire a reneival of the bond."
(Tr. pp. 78, 79).

Bank in its reply alleged that, although the

Surety had at all times dealt with officers of the

bank at Seattle, Washington, and at all times col-

lected its premiums there, and with knowledge that

they were such officers and were in Seattle, did

take up the matter of continuing said bond with

Mitchell; that this written communication in re-

lation to the continuation went to Mitchell without

the knowledge of the officers of the bank, and that

Mitchell concealed it from the bank, and that the

bank never had any knowledge of the offer of the

Surety to continue the bond, and never knew that

Mitchell had notified the Surety that he, Mitchell,

did not want it continued. That when the matter

was called to the attention of the bank, it immedi-

ately called it to the attention of the Surety, and

the Surety admitted its mistake and immediately

executed the continuation. (Tr. pp. 54, 56).

The Honorable Trial Court seemed to labor

under the impression that this letter had gone to

the bank.

''MR. ROBERTS: And we have here the let-

ter, as I said, of the company, writing up there,

and offering this bond as a renewal.

"THE COURT: And your bank didn't take

it.
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"MR. ROBERTS: The bank never knew it,

if the Court please. The bank never knew it. Bear
in mind that Mr. Mitchell didn't have this bond
written on himself, and never did. He had nothing
to do with it. * * * Now then, the risk gets

the letter, conceals it from his bank, conceals it

from the party that demanded the protection and
should have had the protection, and sends it back,

and says that he does not want it renewed, and the

bank knows nothing about it. * * *

''THE COURT: It was sent to the bank, I

take that from the statements of both of you.

"MR. ROBERTS: No, it was sent to Mitchell.

"MR. DOVELL: It was sent to Mitchell, ves."

(Tr. pp. 108, 109).

So that, according to the record, which is the

exact fact, the letter was addressed to Mitchell at

Ketchikan, and went to Mitchell, not the bank. And

the statement of counsel for the bank to the court

was, "we have here the letter, as I said, of the

company, writing up there, and offering tJiis bond

as a renewal/' That statement was before the

court, and upon the motion must be taken as true.

Miller v. Md. Cas., 193 Fed. 347.

We contend that this letter proves that the

bank tendered and offered this bond as a continu-

ation of the insurance. It is at least evidence of

that fact. The writing of the letter stands admitted

in the record. The date of it, to-wit, at the very

time the bond was to be continued, is admitted. And
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it establishes that the company then considered it-

self obligated under its contract to continue this

insurance, and that is not parol evidence.

(i) The Surety admits the bank paid a pre-

mium for the last contract but says when the storm

burst and the bank needed protection it tendered

it back. For what was that premium paid? They

say the date was November 25th, 1913. The in-

strument on its face says it is insurance from April

1, 1913. The presumption must be that the premium

paid for insurance from April 1st to some future

date. Why from April 1st, if it was not by agree-

ment and as a mutual understanding that it was

to cover the period then elapsed and avoid any

question about the six months. The contract says:

"during the period commencing upon the date

hereof." (Tr. p. 29). As it dates from April 1st,

the burden is upon defendant to prove that it

did not become effective on that date. If it did

become effective April 1st, then there was no six

months lapse, and as a matter of law, no forfeiture.

(j) Counsel for Surety stated that Mitchell

was a trusted employe, (Tr. p. 76) and that so

great was the confidence of the bank in him that

it made but one examination. The Surety like-

wise had great confidence in Mitchell and with

equal opportunity with the bank to detect any
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"flaw," it continued to write him as a risk, and

when tlie bank went to the company for this re-

newal, it said: "Oh, well, we did neglect to re-

new your bond on time but it will make no differ-

ence that the six months has passed. We will fully

protect you. Mitchell is just as safe now as he

has been for the last seven years, and so we will

just date it back and preserve the continuity of

the insurance. We are willing to take that chance

for the premium." T]>e hank paid the Surety to

take jtist til at ehance.

(k) The Surety admits that it w^ould have

continued Mitchell's insurance on April 1st, and

admits and states that it did actually try to con-

tinue it at that time. What possible difference

can it make whether it extended it April 1st, or

November 25tli, since it was continued for a period

"commencing upon the date hereof," viz: on April

1st, thus continuing the insurance in an uninter-

rupted sequence.

(1) To establish that the bank had a contract

for continuation of a bond which expressly pro-

vided for continuation, is not to var}^ the terms of

the contract. The last contract is dated April 1st,

1913, and is to continue until terminated by notice.

Tt is not as the Court and counsel both treated

it, a bond for one year, nor an annual contract.
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Therefore, we do not seek to vary or to modify its

terms so far as its date is concerned, or its ter-

mination, or as to the signature, or amount, or the

man insured against, or as to a single provision con-

tained in it.

(m) Finally, we urgently insist that this in-

strument carries upon its face the mute evidence

that it is a mere continuance of the contract of

insurance. If not so, then it is so ambiguous that

parol evidence is entirely competent.

The Honorable Trial Court fell into the griev-

ous error of treating this as a bond from April

1st, 1913, to April 1st, 1914, whereas, it is in itself

a continuing contract of insurance. IT HAS NO
DATE OF TERMINATION. We quote: "and

during the period commencing upon the date hereof

and continuing in the sum of TWENTY FIVE

THOUSAND ($25,000) DOLLARS until the ter-

mination of this insurance." (Tr. pp. 29, 30).

"3. This insurance shall only terminate by:

(1) The Employer giving notice in writing

to the Insurer specifying the date of termination.

(2) The Insurer giving thirty (30) days' no-

tice in writing to the Employer. (The Insurer

to refund unearned premium in the above cases).

(3) The nonpayment of premium for a period

of three (3) months beyond date due; all premiums
being due in advance.

(4) The discoverv of any loss through the Em-
ployee." (Tr. p. 30).'
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Therefore, instead of requiring a renewal certificate

from year to year, it automatically continues in

force until such time as either the insured or the

insurer shall by written notice, cancel it.

The word "annual" is not in this instrument.

It says all premiiuns are due in advance, showing

that the company expected to collect additional and

"continuing premiums."

The original bond insured from April 1st, 1906,

to April 1st, 1907. (Tr. p. 21). Nothing of the

sort is contained in the last continuation. (Tr. p.

29). Showing that this instrument is a mere con-

tinuation certificate. Showing that it was issued not

as an original contract of insurance but a con-

tinuation of a former insurance, and so worded

that it would not thereafter have to be re-executed

from year to year, "continuing in the sum of

TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND ($25,000) DOL-

LARS until the termination of this insurance."

How in the light of this language in this instru-

ment, may this company be allowed to say that it

never did write and never intended to write a con-

tinuing insurance? Counsel in argument to the

Trial Court stated:

"Your Honor can readily see that no liability

companv could write a policy unless it had some

such provision. It would never know that its lia-

bilitv had terminated." (Tr. p. 95).
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While the very instrument then before the court

was a perpetual insurance, unless terminated by

notice, or loss.

The bond of April, 1906, is called ''FIDELITY

BOND." (Tr. p. 20). It contains twenty-one par-

agraphs and the word "BOND" is used in it thirty-

five times. It is even in the attesting clause. It

is the only insti'ument th]-oughout the contract,

which is called a "bond." The last one, Exhibit

"C", (Tr. p. 29), nowhere contains the word

"bond." It is not designated as a bond, and the

word "bond" occurs nowhere upon nor within it.

It contains but one paragraph with three short

provisos. It provides:

"This insurance shall only terminate by:

(3) The nonpayment of premium for a period

of three months beyond date due; all premiums
being due in advance," (Tr. p. 30).

On what date is this premium due? You cannot

find out from the instrument. Is it a quarterly

premium, a semi-annual premium, or annual? At

the beginning it says :

'

' The insurer for a premium

of $62.50," but it does not say an "annual" pre-

mium. The word "annual" cannot be found in

the instrument. The word "year" is not in it.

It may be that the company has increased its pre-

mium to $125 per year, and that the $62.50 is but

a semi-annual premium. The instrument is silent,
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and the matter must be determined by some evi-

dence dehors the record if this instrument is to

stand alone. The bond in the case uses the term

"annual premium," (Tr. p. 20), and in the body

of it, it says the premium is for a period of one

year. Therefore, to determine that this $62.50 is

an annua] premium, and that it is payable from

year to year, you must turn back to the bond. The

two must be read together, and when the two are con-

strued together, it means that there must be paid

an annual premium of $62.50, and that it must be

paid from year to year in advance.

Again, "during the period commencing upon

the date hereof and continuing in the sum of

TWENTY-FIA^E THOUSAND ($25,000) DOL-

LARS until the termination of this insurance."

Until the termination of this "insurance," not

until the termination of this "bond." Not until the

termination of tJiis contract, but until the termina-

tion of tJie insurance. What insurance? The in-

surance originally written and continued. And

you must turn back to the bond to determine what

insurance is being continued. In other words, this

last instrument simply continued the insurance

modifying it to some extent as to conditions.

To avoid writing a continuation each year the

company continued this one by giving a certificate
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which, like the brook, goes on forever. It was

probably done to avoid further oversight about

continuation on time, and to assure the bank there

would be no future trouble about continuation.

SiUiman v. International Life Insurance Com-

pany, 174 tS, W. 1131, is a case from the Supreme

Court of Tennessee, decided March, 1915. There

was involved the question of whether or not a life

policy continued the terms of a former policy. The

defense was made by the company, among other

things, that the premium rate was different in the

two bonds, and that the latter contained different

terms, and therefore, the two were independent iso-

lated contracts. We are making the point here

that this surety took but the one application, and

that in May, 1906. The fact that the second bond

was written in the above case without application

is a point which is given much consideration by

the Tennessee Court, in holding that the second

bond was a continuation. We quote:

'"It seems to us quite clear that under the

facts stated the new policy was but a continuation

of the same insurance contract. It was based on
the old application and the old medical examina-
tion." p. 1132.

"The differences between the policy sued on
in Gans Case and that before us are now apparent.

Not only is there nothing to show that the policy

of 1914 is 'an independent, complete and isolated

contract,' expressing no dependence on or connec-
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tion with the term policy, but, on the contrary, it is

expressly shown that they are connected and that
the second was issued because of and in compliance
with the agreement therefor in the first policy."

'^ Furthermore, the suicide clause in the policy
sued on does not refer to the date of this polic^^,

but 'within one year from the date on which this

insurance begins.' It is true that if the policy
stood alone, 'this insurance' would have to be con-

strued as referring to the date of the policy; but
it appearing from what we have already said that

the dominant purpose was to carry out the contract
embraced in the policy of 1910, this clause must
be held to apply to the date of that policy, since it

was then that 'the insurance' began. Any other
construction would result in giving an effect to the

clause in question which would nullify the whole
tenor of the contract between the parties."

SiUiman v. International Life Ins. Co., 174

S. W. 1131.

Counsel for Surety in opening statement said:

"Then in November sometime they come to us

and say, 'How is it that that bond was not issued

in April? We wanted tliat bond. We want that

bond and will vou kindlv write it and date it back
to April Istr " (Tr. p. 80).

The Surety admits that it did kindly write

it and date it back to April 1st. It accepted

the proposition and took the money. But counsel

says:

"We wei'e tricked into writing the last bond."
(Tr. p. 81).

These admissions of counsel prove our entire

contention. The bank did not go to tlie Surety

and sav it wanted to take out some new insurance
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upon one Mack Mitchell, but inquired why the

Surety had not kept its agreement and extended

the insurance it had and said it still wanted it at

that time. That is, it wanted the extension. Then

comes the entirely conclusive statement :

'

'We want

that bond." Not some new independent contract;

not something different, but ''that bond." That is

to say, the original bond according to the agree-

ment, but not some new isolated contract. "And
will you kindly write it (that is, the bond originally

agreed upon; not a new one) and date it back to

April Ist?" (That is to say, the date you should

have written it). To all of which the Surety now

admits it assented, but says it was tricked into

the assent. On that point we will meet them at

Armageddon—before the jury.

There is here no question of the statute of lim-

itation. We made the discovery and notified the

Surety within about two years from the time of the

first breach of the bond, the defalcations continuing,

however, right up until the time of the discovery.

The sole contention on this point is, that we failed

to make the discovery within a period of six months

from the time at which our insurance expired. Bank

made the discovery in little more than two months

after the six. Counsel contends that at the time

bank made discovery, his company had no bond in

force.

"I expect the evidence to show you that the

plaintiff, the Miners & Merchants Bank, had no
bond of our company." (Tr. p. 75).
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Page 79, Counsel states that the Suret^y is not

liable unless the bank discovered the loss witliin six

months from April 1st, 1913, that is the date of

the last instrument, and that contract cleai'ly was

in force at the time we made the discovery, unless

as they pleaded, we had procured it through fraud,

and that must be a question of fact for the jury.

The Trial Court found that instrument to be in

force and gave judgment for $688.27 on account

of it.

In Eilers Music House v. Hopkins, 73 Wash.

281, the bond contained the provision that an ac-

tion must be instituted within six months after tlie

completion of the work. The court said:

"In this case, while the action was not brought
within six months after the work was completed,

there was evidence to the effect that the suit was
delayed at the request of counsel for the Surety
Company. The Court heard this evidence and no
doubt believed that state of facts. It follows, of

course, that where there was a delay at the re-

quest of the surety company or its representatives,

it cannot be heard to say that the action was not

brought within time. In other words, the court

properly found upon sufficient evidence that there

was a waiver of both these provisions of the con-

tract by the Surety Company." p. 284.

In The v. Aetna Indemnity Co., 69 Wash. 484,

the same Court said:

"To determine whether the limitation upon the

commencement of the action is reasonable, the bond,

the contract, and the facts of the particular case

must be considered together."
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The bond recites : The employer ''has filed with

THE UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY, hereinafter called 'The

Company,' an application," etc., showing that the

application was in writing. The employer has "de-

livered to the Company certain representations and

promises," likewise in writing. Then there are all

the subsequent contracts and transactions continu-

ing through a period of eight years, and the entire

transaction must be treated as a whole. We will

be able to show complete waiver.

The bond guaranteed all loss "which shall have

been committed during the continuance of said

term, or of any renewal thereof, and discovered

during said continuance or of any renewal thereof,

or within six months thereafter." The continuance

of what term? The term of the insurance. The

insurance has been continuous and that is not dis-

puted. That is to say, there was at all times an

instrument of some character in force. Not a day

elapsed but that this company had a bond on Mit-

chell in the same amount. The insurance never

lapsed, and counsel has wholly and utterly failed

to differentiate between the insurance and the in-

struments themselves.

Counsel reads this language to mean that the

discovery must be made within six months after

the expiration of each instrument. But it would

seem that language could scarce have been made

plainer to express the intention that it is six months
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after the expiration of tJie insurance, not au}^ one

instrument.

The term had continued for eight j^ears, and

we are going bacl^ only two years.

''Suretyship is a fact collateral or extraneous
to the contract itself rather than a part of it,

whether the instrument be under seal or not."

Spencer on the Law of Suretyship, Sec. 2.

The unconditional acceptance of a past due

premium on a life insurance policy is a waiver
of the condition that nonpayment of premiums will

cause the policy to lapse.

Clifton V. Mutual Life Ins. Co., 84 S. E. 817.

PAROL TESTIMONY ADMISSIBLE.

"The statute of frauds has no application to

insurance generally. '

'

Frost on the Law of Guaranty Insurance,

p. 34.

"Since a contract of insurance can rest in

parol, it follows as a necessary corollary that gen-

erally a policy may be renctved by parol; and this

seems to be true, even though the policy requires

the renewal to be acknowledged by a writing."

Cooley's Briefs on the Law of Ins., Vol. 1,

p. 398.

Carey v. Nagle, 5 Fed. Cas. 60.

"That an insurance company can, by a pre-

liminary parol contract bind itself to issue or to

renew a policy in the future seems too well settled

to admit doubt."

McCabe Bros. v. Aetna Ins. Co., 9 N. D. 19,

47 L. R. A. 644.
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"Contract of insurance may be in writing, or
may be verbal, or partly in writing and partly
verbal."

Fankin v. Northern Assurance Co., 152 N.
W. 325.

"In Commercial Mutual Marine Ins. Co. v.

Union Mut. Ins. Co., 19 How. 321, 15 L. ed. 636,

it was held by the Supreme Court of the United
States, that, under the common law, a promise for

a valuable consideration, to make a policy of in-

surance, is no more required to be in writing than
a promise to execute and deliver a bond, a bill

of exchange, or a negotiable note." 47 L. R. A.
644.

'

' The issuing of a policy furnishes a convenient

mode of proving the contract, but it is not essential

to its validity."

Walker r. Metropolitan Ins. Co., 56 Me. 371.

"In answer to this question we are confronted

at the outset with the proposition that the statute

of frauds has no application to insurance generally.

Is guaranty insurance to be the exception to the

rule? A careful consideration of this question

leads inevitably to a negative answer. This con-

clusion is based partly upon an analysis of the con-

tract of guaranty insurance itself, and partly upon
an examination of the authorities bearing upon the

proiDosition now before us. The analysis here re-

ferred to brings us certain salient features, all

of which have a direct bearing upon the question

of the applicability of the statute of frauds to

guaranty insurance. These are the unquestioned

intention on the part of the guarantor (the insurer)

to be^iefit itself by securing a premium; the cre-

ation of a new contract between the guarantor and
the party guaranteed; the recognition of a future

rather than of a present liahility, and this invariably
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a cont'uKjcnt one; the presence of a new consider-

ation, the premium, whether running from the party
guaranteed or from the principal himself."

Frost, p. 34.

''Whenever the contract of guaranty is fomided
upon a new and valuable consideration with the

immediate object of subserving some pecuniary or

business purpose of the guarantor, then such a

guaranty is not within the statute of frauds, even

though it has the legal effect of discharging the

debts of another."

Frost, p. 35.

"Whenever the main purpose and object of

the promisor is not to answer for another but to

subserve some business or pecuniary purpose of his

own, involving either benefit to himself or damage
to the other contracting party, his promise is not

within the statute, although it may be in form the

promise to pay the debt of another and altliough

the performance of it may incidentally have the

effect of extinguishing that liability." Ibid.

Slater v. Ewerson, 60 U. S. 244.

National Bank of Ashville v. Fidelity d- Cas-

ualty Co., 89 Fed. 819, Circuit Court of Appeals,

Fourth Circuit:

"This issue was whether or not in November,
1893, the defendant company through its agents, had
agreed to renew the bond." p. 821.

"Barnard testified that a few days after the

interview with Stikeleather in November, he met
Eawls on the street and said to him that he had
decided to continue the insurance in the defendant

company, and that the bank would pay for the re-

newals, and he would either send the money over or

that Rawls could send and get it, and he testified that
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Rawls said 'all right.' It was conceded in the
trial of the case that if this conversation to which
Barnard testified, but which Rawls denied, took
place, it constituted a contract for renewal, which
bound both the bank and the defendant company;
and that, as it was before any suspicion of Pulliam's
dishonesty arose, his bond was in force whether the
premium had actually been paid or not, as the
alleged conversation amounted to an agreement to

heep the bond in force, and give further credit for
the renewal premium/' p. 822.

"It does, however, appear that this issue was
fairly put to the jury, and it appears to us that
the court's instructions on that point were at least

as favorable to the plaintiff as it was entitled to."

p. 822.

"The judge in another part of his charge re-

peated this instruction and commented upon the

contradiction in the testimony of the two parties as

to whether such a contract was made, and directed

the attention of the jury to the requirement that the

parties to it must have agreed together, and the

two minds coming to an agreement; and in the

end he left the issue to be determined by the jury
upon the testimony." p. 823.

It was held in Pennsylvania that even the law

requiring all applications and statements made,

upon which insurance was based, to be attached to

the policy, does not, by implication, change the

established rule in regard to oral contracts.

Lenox v. Greenivich Ins. Co., 165 Pa. 575, 30

Atl. 940.

Cooley in Vol. 1, at page 400, states that where

there are special statutes or charters requiring in-

surance policies to be signed by the proper officers.
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they do not preclude the companies from maMng
oral contracts.

In Brotvn v. FravMiyi Mutual Fire Ins. Co., 165

Mass. 565, 52 Am. St. Rep. 534, the Supreme Court

of Massachusetts said, that it could see no reason

why the general rule should not apply to mutual

companies, unless there was something in the statute

or in the by-laws of the company which prevented

such companies from contracting by parol.

"It appears to be the general rule that an oral

contract of insurance is not within the statute of

frauds. '

'

Cooley's Briefs on Law of Ins., Vol. 1, p.

402.

The author cites list of authorities.

"In Trustees of tlie First Baptist Clnirch v.

Brooklyn Fire Ins. Co., 19 N. Y. 305, an oral con-

tract of renewal from year to year subject to ter-

mination at any time, was held not to be within the

statute of frauds. * * *

"An agent who is authorized to take risks can
make oral contracts binding on his company."

Cooley, Vol. 1, p. 403, and list of cases cited.

"If the company agreed that the policy should

be a permanent one, that is to say, renewed from
year to year, without further application, until

notice to the contrar}^ it will cover a loss occurring

after the expiration of the original term, and be-

fore the renewal certificate is actually issued."

Trustees of Baptist Cliurcli r. Brooklyn, 18

Barb. 69. ,

Although the original contract may provide that

it shall not be altered or modified unless the agree-
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ment therefor be evidenced in writing, yet a sub-

sequent agreement by parol to alter or modify, will

be as valid as if no such stipulation had been made.

Home Ins. Co. v. Gaddis, 3 Ky. Law Rep. 159.

It was provided by an open policy that before

insurance could be affected or modified by an agent

of the insurer, the same should be made on the

policy, or by the issuance of a certificate. Held,

that the policy could be modified by parol.

Dmj V. Mechanics & Traders Ins. Co., 88 Mo.
325.

A policy may be modified or rescinded by sub-

sequent verbal agreement which is supported by the

mutual assent of the parties.

Mobile Life Ins. Co. v. Pruett, 74 Ala. 487.

If a binding slip is informal, its legal effect

as an agreement may be made known by parol

evidence of custom.

Underwood v. Greenwich Ins. Co., 161 N.

Y. 413.

Parol evidence is admissable to show the acts

and declarations of an insurance agent in writing

the answers to questions in an application for life

insurace, although it may contradict answers writ-

ten by him.

Marston v. Kennehec Mut. Life Ins. Co.,

89 Me. 266.

Jennings v. Metropolitan Life Ins. Co., 148

Mass. 61.

Although a policy provides that nothing less

than a written agreement endorsed on it will
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suffice to establish a waiver, it may, nevertheless,

be shown by parol that insurer has waived.

Mix V. Royal Ins. Co., 169 Pa. St. 639, 32
Atl. 460.

Parol evidence is admissable to show that in-

sured informed insurer's agent that building stood

on leased land, although the policy provided that

no waiver should be effectual unless endorsed on

it.

Insurance Co. v. Natl. Bank, 88 Tenn. 369,

12 S. W. 915.

Parol evidence is admissable to show that when

insurer issued the policy it had knowledge of the

existence of other insurance, and is therefore estop-

ped from claiming that it is not liable because its

policy prohibited other insurance.

Fireman/'s Fund v. Norwood, 69 Fed. 71.

Glover v. National Fire Ins. Co., 85 Fed.

125.

Insured may show by parol that his policy was

issued by an agent with knowledge that he intended

to procure other insurance, and that the property

covered by it was encumbered, notwithstanding it

is provided in the policy that it shall be void in

either such case unless insurer's consent thereto

is endorsed thereon in writing.

McElroy v. British American Ins. Co., 94

Fed. 990.

Although a policy provides that its conditions

may be waived only by the written consent of in-

surer's secretary, a waiver may be shown by parol.
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Alabama Mut. Ins. Co. v. Long, 26 S. Rep.
655.

Insured may testify in an action to recover

damages for the breach of a parol agreement to

renew a fire policy, that he relied upon such con-

tract and would have procured other insurance had

he not believed that the policy was renewed.

McCahe v. Aetna Ins. Co., 81 N. W. 426.

Insured's agent may testify concerning state-

ments made by him to insurer's agent when the

policy was procured.

Insurance Co. v. O'Connell, 34 111. App. 357.

Where an agent is a medium of communication

between insurer and insured, evidence of a conver-

sation between the agent and insured is admis-

sable, regardless of the scope of the agent's general

authority.

Medearis v. Anchor Mut. Fire Ins. Co., 104
la. 88.

"It is established in England, after some fluctu-

ation that a promise to indemnify or save harm-
less one who is himself answerable or to become
answerable for the debt or default of another is not
within the statute of frauds and hence need not be
in writing. This view of the law has been adopted
by most of the courts of this country."

Spencer on the Laiv of Suretyship, Sec. 75.

"The objection that such evidence tends to

vary or contradict a written contract, being met by
the answer that suretyship is a fact collateral or

extraneous to the contract itself rather than a part

of it, whether the instrument be vmder seal or not."

Ibid, Sec .2.
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The bond in this case prtndcles for the signa-

tu]^ of the "risk" Mitchell, and this same com-

pany has on several occasions refused payment of

its bonds because the "risk" had not signed, but

every such case has been decided against it.

Prosser Power Co. v. U. S. Fid. c£* Guar. Co.,

73 Wash. 304.

Proctor Coal Co. v. U. S. Fid. d' Guar. Co.,

124 Fed. 424.

U. S. Fid. d' Guar. Co. v. Haggart, 163 Fed.
801.

Proctor case is the one upon which the Surety

relies here. It is held that the delivery of the bond

and the acceptance of the premium is a waiver of

this condition, and the company is estopped.

The bond in question is not signed by Mitchell

;

the Surety is not raising that question, although it

is otherwise relying upon the provisions of the bond

which says none of its conditions may be waived,

except in writing.

In Parsons v. Pacific Surety Co., 69 Wash. 595,

it is held that although a surety bond contained a

provision that there should be no liability unless

written notice of default was served upon the com-

pany at its home office, this provision might be

waived and that notice on the local agent was suf-

ficient notwithstanding the policy contained clause

against waiver, and expressly by its terms, required

the notice, and that it must be given at home office.
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The following Washington decisions are to the

same effect:

ZL S. Fid. d' Guar. Co. v. Coivles, 32 Wash.
120.

Pac. Bridge Co. v. V. S. Fid. & Guar. Co.,

33 Wash. 47.

Trinity Parish v. Aetna Indemnity Co., 37
Wash. 515.

Gritman v. U. S. Fid. d- Guar. Co., 41 Wash.
77.

SJieard v. U. S. Fid. d Guar. Co., 58 Wash.
29.

Parsons v. Pac. Surety Co., 69 Wash. 595.

Filer's Music House v. Hopkins, 73 Wash.
281.

"That an insurance company can by a prelim-

inary parol contract bind itself to issue or to re-

new a policy in the future seems too well settled to

admit doubt."

McCahe Bros. v. Aetna Ins. Co., 9 N. D. 19

47 L. R. A. 644.

"The defendant concedes that the policy which
was to be renewed under the terms of the parol

agreement was the policy of the defendant, and that

the same was issued by McBride as agent, with
full authority to do so, and it seems unreasonable

to suppose that the parties in making this parol

agreement believed that they were dealing with Mc-
Bride personally, instead of in his capacity as

such agent. If the parol contract to renew had
been fulfilled by McBride, it would have been done
as agent." Ibid 642.

Here the renewal certificates from year to year

show that the renewals were made by the same

agency which had originally written the bond.
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See Commercial Union Assur. Co. v. State ex

rel Smith, 113 Indiana 331, 15 N. E. 518; Post v.

Aetna Insurance Co., 43 Barb. 361. Oral contract

to renew insurance contract held valid.

"The possession and use of the defendant's cer-

tificates of renewal, together with the exercise of

that authority in other instances, indicate that the

power of renewing and continuing insurances had
been conferred upon this agent."

43 Barber 351.

It was held that the oral agreement to renew

the insurance was a valid agreement.

"In Commercial Mutual Marine Ins. Co. v.

Union Mut. Ins. Co., 19 How. 321, 15 L. ed. 636,

it was held by the Supreme Court of the United
States, that, under the common law, a promise for

a valuable consideration, to make a policy of in-

surance, is no more required to be in writing than
a promise to execute and deliver a bond, a bill of

exchange, or a neg;otiable note."

47 L. R. A. 644.

In First Baptist Church v. Brooklyn F. Ins.

Co., 19 N. Y. 305, the Supreme Court of New
York sustained the validity of the unwritten agree-

ment to continue a policy of insurance from year

to year until notice to the contrary should be given,

and that, notwithstanding the policy provided it

might be continued, provided the premium therefor

was paid, and endorsed on the policy, or receipt

given for it, and that no insurance whatever, origi-

nal or continued, should be considered binding

until the actual payment of the premium.
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"Certain errors are assigned on the admission
of evidence. We have examined the rulings com-
plained of, and we do not find any prejudicial error.

That evidence of custom on the part of McBride,
the agent, to extend credit for premiums, was ad-

missible, see Buggies v. American Cent. Ins. Co., 114
N. Y. 415, 418, 21 N. E. 1000; Church v. LaFayette
F. Ins. Co., m N. Y. 222, 225; Potter v. Phoenix
Ins. Co., 63 Fed. Rep. 384; Commercial F. Ins.

Co. V. Morris, 105 Ala. 498, 18 So. 34; Newark
Mach. Co. V. Kenton Ins. Co., 50 Ohio St. 549, 558,

22 L. R. A. 768, 35 N. E. 1060, 1064; Cohen v. Con-
tinental F. Ins. Co., 61 Tex. 325, 60 Am. Rep. 24,

3 S. W. 296. The testimony of James McCabe, to

the effect that he relied upon the contract to renew,
and that they would have procured other insurance
had they not believed that the policy was renewed,
was not, we think, prejudicial under the circum-
stances, and could not have misled the jury."

47 L. R. A. 645.

Wilson V. German American Ins. Co., 146 N.

W. 945, Supreme Court of Nebraska. The parties

to a contract of fire insurance may agree orally

to renew such contract, and the evidence in the case

was held sufficient to show that the agent did agree

to renew.

"If the local agent of a fire insurance com-
pany has, by agreement, renewed a policy of insur-

ance from year to year and such agreement has

been acted upon by the company, the fact that the

insured knew that the agent had no authority to

waive the written conditions of the policy, will not

estop him to assert that the agent was authorized

to so renew the policy." Ibid.

In Firemans Fund Ins. Co. v. Searcy, et al, 80

S. E. Ct. of Appeals of Kentucky, it was held, in-
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siirance agent having authority to solicit insurance,

settle the terms of insurance and to issue and re-

new policies, has authority to make a parol con-

tract to issue or renew a policy. Evidence in that

case held to sustain the finding that the defendant's

agent did renew the policy.

Sun Ins. of London v. Mitchell, 65 Southern

143, Supreme Court of Alabama:

"An agent duly authorized to bind his com-
pany by contracts for insurance may make valid

contract by parol, or by binding slip or memoran-
dum. And a general authority to solicit insurance,

receive premiums and deliver policies is sufficient

to cover an executory contract to insure." Sylla-

bus.

"Whether the minds of the insurer's agent and
insured met upon the terms of an oral contract of

insurance, held, under the evidence, for the jury."
Syllabus.

The actual representations made by insurer's

agent may be proved by parol, although they were

incorrectly reduced to writing by the agent.

German Amer. Ins. Co. v. Hart, 43 Neb.

441, 61 N. W. 582.

Where the policy does not declare the inten-

tion of the parties, parol evidence is admissible

for the purpose of showing what the contract was,

and making its meaning clear.

Milwaukee Mechanics Ins. Co. v. Brown, 3

Kan. App. 225.

A verbal promise made by one of the parties

at the time a written contract was executed, if it
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was made to obtain the execution of it, may be

proven.

Royal Ins. Co. v. Walratli, 17 Ohio Ct. Court
509.

The issue being whether a life policy was a

speculative and wagering one, it is competent for

insurer's agent to testify as to the negotiations

which preceded the application.

Eqtiitable Life Ins. Co. v. Hazelwood, 75 Tex..

338, 12 S. W. Rep. 621.

That a standard form is prescribed by statute

does not invalidate a parol contract of insurance

evidenced by a binder, intended to cover the prop-

erty up to the issuance of the policy.

Lea V. Atlantic Fire Ins. Co., 84 S. E. 813.

Parol testimony is admissible to show that

both parties understood when the contract was af-

fected that the policy on barn, sheds and additions

attached, covered sheep and hog-pens.

Cummings v. German American Ins. Co.,

46 Atl. 902.

The consideration and purpose of an assign-

ment of a life policy, although the assignment is

absolute in form, may be shown by parol.

Kendall v. Equitahle Life. Ins. Soc, 171

Mass. 568.

Parol evidence is competent to show that in-

surer's agent agreed that an endorsement should

be made on the application giving plaintiff the right

to place an encumbrance on the insured property.

Copeland v. Dwelling House Ins. Co., 11

Mich. 554, 43 N. W. 991.
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Parol evidence is competent to show that agent

knew of other insurance and was instructed to make

the proper endorsement.

Home Fire Ins. Co. v. Hammang, 44 Neb.
566, 62 N. W. 883.

The mistake of insurer's agent may be proved

by parol, although a policy provides that the des-

cription of the property shall be a contract and a

warranty.

Dowlhig V. Mcrchnufs Ins. Co., 168 Pa. St.

234.

Virginia etc. Ins. Co. v. Goode, 95 Virginia
762.

Parol testimony is admissible to show that in-

surer's agent knew the property was encumbered,

although the policy stated otherwise.

Dick V. Equitable F. d; M. Ins. Co., 92 Wis.
46.

Chenier v. Insurance Co. of N. Amer., 72 Wash.

27, an oral contract to issue fire insurance policy

was under discussion. While in that case an action

for damages was instituted for failure to renew a

policy, the court held, first, that an oral contract

to renew an insurance policy is valid; second, that

an oral agreement for insurance is valid.

"On September 1st, 1908, respondents entered

into an oral contract with appellant through its

agent, by which it agreed that, upon the expira-

tion of the policy on January 1st, 1909, a new
policy should be executed, in other words, that

the insurance should then be renewed."
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The court in that case refers to Hardwick v.

State Ins. Company, 24 Ore. 547, where a part of

the oral agreement was that the new policy should

commence July 20th, 1889, as though the policy

had been actually delivered on that date. Oral

evidence was received of a contract that the policy

should become effective as from a certain date.

The last continuation in the case at bar is dated

April 1st. Counsel allege in their pleadings and

asserted at the hearing that, as a matter of fact

the extension was not executed upon that date,

but in November following. Can there be any

question but that the actual date of this instrument

and the circumstances surrounding its execution are

proper subjects of inquiry by parol evidenced There

are many authorities holding that the true date

of such contracts may be shown. The very fact

that an issue is raised as to the date of its execu-

tion makes it subject to parol evidence.

The question of whether or not this instrument

was executed in continuation of the former bond

is a part of the subject matter, and is no more

sacred than the question of the date of the execution,

and the time it was to take effect. To say that it is a

renewal or continuation is not to change its terms,

the Surety having conceded in both its pleadings

and its statements that for eight years it had been

writing this risk, and accepting the premiums.

We say that it was to take effect April 1st. That

is the date of the document, but it is otherwise
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silent as to when it takes effect, therefore we do

not change the terms. We say that is the date

to which the insurance had been continued. We
say the transaction of April 1st, 1913 (or when-

ever it did occur), continued the contract of in-

surance until terminated. The Surety denies this

because it says we fraudulently procured the con-

tinuation. That is all a question of fact for a

jury, and the crux of the defense.

We pleaded:

(a) That originally, and as an inducement

to procure this business, the Surety agreed to keep

it in force. That it I'atified this from year to year

by extensions and accepting premiums.

(b) That at the time the last instrument was

given, it was agreed that it should be and was in

continuation of the insurance.

"An oral promise made by one party in con-

sideration of the execution of a written instrument
bv the other may be shown by parol evidence."

17 Cyc. 477.

"It has been held that where the execution of

a written instrument has been induced by an oral

stipulation or agreement made at the time, on the

faith of which the party executed the writing, and
without which he would not have executed it, but
such agreement or stipulation is omitted from the

writing, even if its omission is not due to fraud or

mistake, evidence of the oral agreement or stipula-

tion ma,y be given, although it may have the effect

of varying the contract or obligation evidenced by
the writing, where there has been an attempt to

make a fraudulent u.se of tlie instrument in viola-
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tion of such promise or agreement, or where the
circumstances would make the use of the writing
for any purpose inconsistent with such agreement
dishonest or fraudulent. This rule is put upon the
ground that the attempt by one party afterward to

take advantage of the omission of such terms from
the contract is a fraud upon the other party who
was induced to execute it upon the faith of such
promise, and hence lie ivill he permitted to slioiv hy
parol evidence the truth of the matter."

17 Cyc. 693.

"The rule excluding parol evidence to vary
or contradict a writing does not extend so far as

to preclude the admission of extrinsic evidence
to show prior or contemporaneous collateral parol
agreements between the parties. Nor is it neces-

sary in order to render evidence of an independent
collateral parol agreement admissible that the writ-

ten agreement should contain any reference thereto.

Existence of the alleged collateral agreement is a
question for the jury."

17 Cyc. 713, 714.

"It was error for the court to refuse to permit
the purchaser to testify what it was that took him
to defendant to buy goods, since such examination
was admissible to show the circumstances that caused
the purchaser to go to defendant to buy goods, in

order to show the improbability of the sale's hav-

ing been made through plaintiff's solicitation."

Wheeler v. Buck, 23 Wash. 679.

"While the terms of a written contract may not

be varied by parol, it is competent to show that,

at the time of the making of a written contract of

sale of land to a railroad company for a specified

consideration, there was a collateral oral agreement
to the effect that certain fences and guards were
to be built and maintained by the company as part

of the consideration for the sale, since oral testi-
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mony is competent to show a consideration in ad-
dition to that expressed in the contract."

Windsor v. St. Paul etc. Ry. Co., 37 Wash.
156.

"But it is equalh^ well established that matters
which are independent of the contract may be proven
by oral testimony. The trouble in each particular
case is to determine whether the case falls within
the general rule or within the exceptions of it."

37 Wash. 160.

"A verbal promise by one of the parties at the

making of a written contract, if it was used to ob-

tain the execution of the writing, may be given in

evidence."

Po welton Coal Co. v. McShain, 75 Pa. St. R.
238.

"When a promise is made by one in consider-

ation of the execution of a writing by another,

the promise may be shown by parol evidence."

SJmgJiart v. Moore, 78 Pa. St. 469.

"A verbal promise at the making of a written

contract, if made, to obtain its execution, may be

given in evidence."

Graver v. Scott, 80 Pa. St. 88.

"The mere receipt of a bill of parcels or bill

of lading, on payment of money or delivery of

goods is not necessarily an assent to the proposi-

tion that such bill of parcels or bill of lading states

the contract and the whole contract between the

parties. Such hills may or may not he the con-

tract.''

Bank of British N. America v. Cooper, 137

U. S. 477.

So here, anything that appears to be the last
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document may not be the whole contract. It no-

ivhere says that it is.

The records show that it was given without

any written application, and without any new state-

ments, and we assert that it is not only improb-

able but impossible that it was treated as a new

bond when it was executed without any new ap-

plication or any application whatever, but simply

in pursuance of original applications, statements,

etc. But none having been given or taken, certainly

the omission is subject to explanation by parol.

"There may be instances in which a contract

is partly in writing and partly oral and the two
together constitute the contract, so there may be a

question of fact as to whether the written agree-

ment is or is not the entire agreement."

Dennis v. Slyfield, 117 Fed. 474.

"Before this rule as to parol can be applied, the

contract in writing must be shown to be the con-

tract of the parties. One of the vital questions in

the case was what was the contract between the

parties."

Mobile & Mont. F. R. Co. v. Jurey, 111 U.

S. 591.

"There is perhaps no rule of law which is more
flexible or subject to a greater number of excep-

tions than the rule which in actions of law ex-

cludes parol evidence offered to vary or explain

written documents. It has been said that in the

multitude of exceptions much confusion has arisen,

so that the exact limit to be placed upon the ex-

ceptions depends not only upon the peculiar facts

of each case, but also to some extent upon the

peculiar cast of thought of the individuals com-

posing the court. It may he stated generally,
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however, that the courts have endeavored to adapt
their rulings, either way, to the obvious demands
of abstract justice in each particular case."

17 Cyc. 688.

Lea V. Atlantic Fire Ins. Co., 84 S. E. 813.

"The general rule is tliat parol evidence is

admissible to establish a fact collateral to a written

instrument, which would control its effect and
operation as a binding engagement."

Bartholomew v. Fell, 139 Pac. 1016.

To prove that the last continuing instrument

was delivered to be effective April 1st, does not

vary its terms because it became so by its terms.

To prove that it was given in pursuance of the

contract of insurance which had been in force for

seven years does not in any sense change or vary

the terms of the instrument. This would no more

vary nor change its terms than to show that a

promissory note was conditionally delivered and was

to take effect only upon certain conditions.

That such evidence is proper and competent was

expressly decided by the Supreme Court of the

United States in Burke v. Dulaney, 153 U. S. 228.

"It has been held that parol evidence is ad-

missible to apply the terms of the contract to the

subject matter."

Stoops v. Smith, 97 Am. Dec. 76.

McFarland v. Sikes, 1 Am. St. Rep. 111.

We desire to prove what the real contract was.

We pray the opportunity to place before the

jury the entire transaction with all the contracts
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and all the facts and circumstances surrounding

the parties.

We demand the right to put to the jury all the

facts, and all the instruments and documents exe-

cuted in connection with this transaction.

We urge that we are entitled to show the true

intention of these parties as to this insurance.

We assert that we are entitled to establish that

we had additional agreement with them in rela-

tion to the continuation.

We insist upon the right to prove the contem-

poraneous oral agreements made as an inducement,

and that these constituted part of the consideration.

Miller v. Cas. Co., 193 Fed. 347.

"An oral contract of insurance, or an oral con-

tract to issue a policy in future, is valid unless

prohibited by statute."

Richcu'ds on Insurance Law, p. 102.

"The statute of frauds is not applicable to a

contract of insurance, re-insurance or renewal."
Ibid.

"It is often said that the doctrine of waiver
and estoppel does not subvert the terms of the

policy, and is not repugnant to the ordinary rules

of evidence." Ibid, p. 162.

"In most instances waiver or estoppel must
be established by parol testimony." Ibid p. 161.

"A company may make a valid renewal by
parol even though the policy should stipulate that

a renewal must be in writing." Ibid p. 318.

"Though the contract is said to be avoided by
the violation on the part of the insured of any of
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the conditions or warranties inserted for the benefit
of the insurer, this means that the contract is void-
able at the option of the insurer. The insurer,
therefore, may waive the forfeiture and revive the
contract or he may estop himself from taking ad-
vantage of the breach." Ibid p. 154.

"Courts liave always set their faces against
an insurance company which, having received its

premiums, has souglit by technical defense to avoid
payment. '

'

Mutual Life Ins. Co. v. Bill, 193 U. S. 551.

LIMITATION.

"Limitations of the time of bringing suit in

contracts of insurance are not to be applied with
the same degree of rigidity as statutes of limita-

tion.
'

'

75 Fed. 365.

"The bank having suspended business on No-
vember 12th, 1891, but the cashier having continued
in the service of tlie receiver until March follow-

ing, when he i-esigned, HELI), that the services

so rendered by him after November 12th were
rendered to the bank none the less because its

affairs were controlled by a receiver and the surety

company was not absolved from liability for acts

discovered more than six months from November
12th, but within six months from his resignation."

American Surety Co. v. Pauly, 72 Fed. 470.

Syllabus.

"A provision in a fidelity bond indemnifying a

bank against dislionesty of its cashier that it should

be void if the bank failed to promptly notify the

insurer in case any act of dishonesty came to its

knowledge, did not become operative because the

officers or directors of the bank learned of acts
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of the cashier which were in fact dishonest if the}'

were not known to be so at the time."

Syll. Aetna Indemnity Co. v. Farmers' Nat'l.

Bank of Boyerton, Pa., 169 Fed. 738.

Roark v. City Trust etc. Co., 110 S. W.
Rep. 1.

"Where the performance of conditions pre-

cedent are, without fault or laches on the part of

the insured, rendered impossible by the acts of the

insurer, or even by act of God or of the govern-

ment or of the courts, such limitations are not to

be applied. Thompson v. Insurance Co., 136 U.
S. 287; Semmes r. Insurance Co., 13 Wall. 158."

75 Fed. 365.

"Although this form of insurance is of recent

origin, it is now settled that the general rules of

construction applicable to ordinary insurance poli-

cies are to be applied. Mechanics' Sav. Bank v.

Guarantee Co., 68 Fed. 459; Supreme Council Cath-

olic Knights of America v. Fidelity d- Casualty

Co. of New York, 11 C. C. A. 96, 63 Fed. 48. The
condition of an insurance policy of this kind pro-

viding for forfeitures is to be construed strictly

against the company, and lihercdly in favor of the

'insured. Cotten v. Casualty Co., 41 Fed. 506. Lim-
itations of the time of bringing suit in contracts of

insurance are not to be applied with the same de-

gree of rigiditv as statutes of limitation. Steel v.

Insurance Co.,^2 C. C. A. 463, 51 Fed. 715; Thomp-
son V. Insurance Co., 136 U. S. 299, 10 Sup. Ct.

1019. See also, Mav Ins. (2nd Ed.) Sec. 487; 2

Wood Ins. p. 1020."

Jackson v. Fid. d Cas. Co., 75 Fed. 365.

In the Jackson case, supra, a fidelity policy to

a bank on its employe was involved, and the policy

contained both the six months clause, and the one

requiring a suit to be brought within a year. Neither
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was complied with, and the Circuit Court of Appeals

5tli Circuit, held, that under the circumstances the

bond was not released.

"The authorities generally agree that it is

competent for the parties to an indemnity bond
to fix a period of limitation diiferent from that
provided by statute, and we think the better rule
is that tlie limitation, if reasonable—and there is

no reasonable excuse for delay in the commencement
of the action—is binding upon the parties * * *

To determine whether limitation upon the com-
mencement of the action is reasonable, the bond,
the contract, and the facts of the particular case
must be considered together."

Il^e V. Aetna Indenmify Co., 69 Wash. 484.

"In this case, while the action was not brought
within six months after the work was completed,
there was evidence to the effect that the suit was
delayed at the request of counsel for the surety
company. The court heard this evidence and no
doubt believed that state of facts. It follows, of
course, that whei'e there was a delay at the re-

quest of the surety company or its representatives,

it cannot be heard to say that tlie action was not
brought within time. In other words, the court

properly found upon sufficient evidence that there

was a waiver of both these provisions of the con-

tract by the surety company."

Eilers MnMc Bouse v. Hopkins, 73 Wash.
281

The bank in the case at bar has not only

pleaded that it was without laches or neglect, but

that if this bond was not continued within the

period required, it was wholly the fault and neglect

of the Surety, and we are entitled to prove these

facts just as they were proven in the Jackson case.
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We believe the Honorable Trial Court wholly

failed to grasp the j)iirport of our pleading in this

respect. He stated that the acts of the Surety

which w^e pleaded, would constitute a different

cause of action from the one we were pursuing, and

that we should sue for a breach of the contract to

renew the insurance.

"If there was any negligence here, the cause of

action arose because of the act or failure of the

companj' to do what it had agreed to do, and that

would be another cause of action." (Tr. p. 118).

Bear in mind the Surety in its pleadings ad-

mits the execution and delivery of all the docu-

ments and the receipt of all the premiums. It then

pleaded that no notice was given to it within six

months after April 1st, 1913. (Tr. p. 47). It then

pleaded that the execution of Exhibit "C" had

been procured through misrepresentation (setting

forth the misrepresentation) and that while it had

been executed as of date April 1st, that it was

actually executed on the 25th day of November.

(Tr. pp. 48, 49).

It then pleaded that at the time of the execu-

tion of the bond and the various continuations, the

bank agreed that it would from time to time make

new and proper examination of the books to the

end that any misconduct might be timely discovered.

And then alleges that the bank failed to make

the examinations as it had agreed to do. (Tr. p.

50).

In this connection we want to call attention

to the fact that counsel for the surety in his argu-
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ment to the court, laid much stress upon the jDoint

that it was essential that this six months forfeiture

clause be enforced in order to compel these exam-

inations to be made, and argued that if the exam-

inations had been made according to agreement, the

losses would have been discovered. The Honorable

Trial Court seemed to assume that this matter of

failure to examine was a fact established in the

case. But there is not a word in the bond or any

of the documents in the record about any exam-

inations, and we denied that there was ever at any

time any agreement that any examinations of this

bank should be made, and there is nothing what-

ever in the record to show that examinations were

not made.

The bank, replying to the above pleading,

alleged that Exhibit ^^C" "was written and delivered

by said defendant to the plaintiff as and of the

1st day of April, 1913, in pursuance of the agree-

ment and arrangement between the parties hereto

for the continuance in force of said fidelity insur-

ance." (Tr. p. 53). "That same was written and

delivered by the defendant to plaintiff as a part

of and in pursuance with the agreement and ar-

rangement existing betw^een the parties hereto,

* * * and for the consideration of the premiums

paid and without any further or additional appli-

cation ha\dng been made therefor." (Tr. p. 54).

"That there was a slight delay in the execution

and delivery of said bond, but that said delay was
caused by the neglect of defendant, and without
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notice or knowledge on the part of plaintiff. That
same was caused through no fault or neglect of
plaintiff, but was caused wholly through the fault,

carelessness and neglect of the defendant." (Tr.

p. 54).

Negligence, which the Trial Court seemed to

think we could urge only as a different cause of

action, was pleaded as against the Surety's plea of

delay in the execution of the renewal to show

why it was executed in November but dated back

to April 1st.

Certainly, if this matter of delay in the actual

date of the execution of the continuation is ma-

terial, we have the right to show that the delay

was caused by the Surety, and not by the bank.

Does not the very fact that Surety alleges that April

first is not the true date, throw the whole transac-

tion open to explanation?

The bank then further pleaded that while the

Surety had full knowledge that all the officers

of the bank were in Seattle, Washington, where

its office was likewise located, did wrongfully, care-

lessly, negligently and knowingly take up the mat-

ter of continuing the bond with the "risk" Mit-

chell at Ketchikan, and did write to Mitchell and

tender and offer to continue the insurance at the

proper time and date. (Tr. pp. 54, 55).

Then further pleaded that as soon as the mat-

ter came to the attention of the bank, it took it

up with the Surety and the Surety immediately

recognized and admitted its oversight and neglect

in tlie matter, and did voluntarily and forthwith
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execute the instrument marked Exhibit "C" and

made it operative from April first. (Tr. pp. 55,

56).

The bank therefore could not sue the Surety

for failure to execute the extension, because it did

execute it. It would be inconsistent for the bank

to sue the Surety upon a breach of contract to

continue when it has at all times alleged and now

claims that the Surety did continue, and is there-

fore, in no position to take advantage of the six

months forfeiture; that if there was a delay it

was the delay of the surety, and therefore, it is

estopped to claim the forfeiture. We are claiming

that it was continued and that within a time and

in a manner to fully avoid the forfeiture. For-

feitures are not favored.

Is not the pleading of the Surety in this case

in the nature of confession and avoidance? It ad-

mits the execution and delivery of all the contracts

but says it was defrauded. It admits the execu-

tion of the last continuance and that it provides

for insurance from April 1st but says it was not

actually executed until November. In other words,

does it not all resolve itself into the question of

whether or not the bank did, through misrepre-

sentation, procure this last continuation?

When we stated in argument that we had au-

thority to the point that the bond, although dated

back, would take effect from its date, the Trial

Court interrupted, saying, there could be no doubt

about that, and of course, there is no doubt about
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it. The Surety asserts that on the date of the

actual execution of the continuation more than six

months had already elapsed. If true, it knew

that fact at the time as tvell as the hank. It not

only must be held to have known it, because it

was its own transaction, but the fact that it dated

the renewal back to April 1st, proves conclusively

that it not only knew it, but that it took it into

consideration at the time and was willing to waive

it. When the Surety, with the facts before it, made

this contract effective from April 1st, it absolutely

waived the six months forfeiture. It became, and

is estopped to assert that the six months had al-

ready expired and that it is therefore entitled to

the forfeiture.

Could there be a doubt of the right of the Surety

and the bank on the 25th day of November, to have

agreed to waive forfeiture if any existed and to

continue the insurance uninterrupted? What evi-

dence is there that such was not done. You will

search in vain for such evidence in the instrument.

The Surety is here in this case pleading and

asserting the right to show by parol evidence what

the contract was at the time it executed the last

instrument, and it having executed and delivered

the instrument, and accepted the premium, the bur-

den of proof is upon it to show that it is not what

it seems.

May not the bank then have an equal right to

show what the contract at that time actually was?

The Surety was the first to plead that this instru-
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ment was not what it purported to be, and was not

the real contract. Is .it not thereby estopped from

saying that the bank may not show what was the

real contract?

"A policy insuring against loss through dis-

honesty of an employe provided that as soon as any
act of omission or commission of the employe should
come to the knowledge of the employer, the latter

should notify insurer. On October 12th, the em-
ployer wrote to the agent of the insurer and to the

insurer, notifying them that the employe had ab-

sconded on September 26th, preceding, leaving a

shortage of a specified amount. On the following

day the agent of the insurer acknowledged receipt

of the notice and requested the employer to send
other information he might obtain. The corres-

pondence between the parties, extending until April
following, showed that the insurer only desired to

know the amount of the liability. HELD, to show
a waiver of any insufficiency in time of the notice

of loss."

Syll. Roark v. City Trust, etc., Co., 110 S.

W. Rep. 1.

''Waiver may be inferred from acts as well

as words."

Pac. Mutual Life Jjis. Co. v. McDowell, 141

Pac. 273.

This whole question on this branch of the case

is one of the right of Surety to enforce a forfeiture.

"It being apparent that the bond sued on was
prepared by the defendant, as to any ambiguity
therein the provisions, conditions and exceptions of

the bond which tend to work a forfeiture should

be construed most strongly against the party pre-

paring the contract. French v. Fidelity d- Casualty
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Co., 135 Wis. 259; American Surety Co. v. Pauly,
170 U. S. 133."

United Am. Fire Ins. Co. v. Am. Bonding
Co., 131 N. W. 994.

"We think the two provisos referred to should
be held to be conditions subsequent, which the de-

fendant must plead and prove as part of its de-

fense, if it relies on them to defeat the plaintiff's

cause of action. Bedman v. Ins. Co., 49 Wis. 431,

4 N. W. 591; Johnson v. Ins. Co., 94 Wis. 117, 68
N. W. 868." Ibid.

"In no other branch of fidelity insurance law
has the 'doctrine of waiver' a wider or more im-
portant bearing than with reference to the subject

of conditions and alleged breaches thereof. For no
matter how great may have been the violation of

the conditions on the part of the insured the right

to avoid the policy by reason thereof may be waived
by the insurer either directly or indirectly. * * *

The question whether or not a breach of the con-

dition of a policy has been waived or not, is ordi-

narily a question for the jury. There is no neces-

sity that the waiver should he in ivriting."

Law of Guaranty Ins., Frosts' 2nd Ed., p.

261.

Bice V. Fidelity d Dep. Co., 103 Fed. 427.

American Surety Co. v. Pauly, 72 Fed. 470.

Aetna Indemnity Co. r. Farmers' Natl.
Bank, 169 Fed. 738.

"Where an application for fire insurance is

made and the terms thereof are agreed on between
the insurer's authorized agent and the insured, and
it is agreed that a policy embodying such terms
shall be issued, the agreement is complete though
credit be extended for the premium, and, where a

policy is subsequently issued, it relates back to the

time specified for the insurance to begin."

Boark v. City Trust etc. Co., 110 S. W. Eep. 1.
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"In an action on a bond to make good loss by
embezzlement of an employe, a plea seeking to avoid
the bond as procured by misrepresentations as to

the previous state of his accoimts by the employer,
averred that the employe was then a defaulter and
that the employer knew it, or could have known
it by the exercise of diligence. Held, that this was
bad, as a double plea."

Supreme Council Catli. Knights of Am. v.

Fid. & Cas. Co., 63 Fed. 49.

"While liability under a suret}^ bond for hon-
esty of an employe would be defeated if the loss

was due to neglect of the employer to take the pre-

cautions required by the bond, the condition is

subsequent and not precedent, and there is no
occasion for an averment in respect thereto; it is

a matter of defense that must come from the other

side, upon whom the onus rests. * * *

"The mere fact that the examination, if made
by a reasonably competent person, failed to dis-

cover discrepancies covered by false entries and
bookkeeping devices, would not defeat renewals of

the policy."

Title Guaranty S Surety Co. v. Nichols,

224 U. S, 346.

"It is urged by counsel for plaintiff in error

that the promises and agreements on the pai't of

the insured to exercise and maintain over the em-
ploye such a supervision as contemplated in his

bond of indemnity was not observed; hence, there

has been a breach of the bond on the part of the

insured. Unless there was a substantial compli-

ance with these undertakings, the conclusion urged
by counsel w^ould probably be true. However, in

such breach the burden of proof would rest on the

insurer. United States Fidelity Co. v. First Nat.

Bank, 233 111. 475, 84 N. E. 670; Perpetual B. d-

L. Soc. V. U. S. Fid. & Guar. Co., 118 Iowa 729, 92

N. W. 687; Bank of Tarhoro v. Fidelity d' Dep. Co.,
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128 N. C. 366, 38 S. E. 908, 83 Am. St. Rep. 682

;

T. M. Sinclair & Co. v. National Surety Co., 132
Iowa 549, 107 N. W. 184; Jones v. Accident Asso.,

92 Iowa 658, 61 N. W. 485."

Southern Surety v. Tyler S Simpson, 120
Pac. 938.

In the light of this authority we again chal-

lenge the attention of the Court to the fact that

there is nothing in any of the contracts here requir-

ing examinations. Since so much has been made

of that point as a reason for enforcing the for-

feiture, we cite these authorities upon the point

that it is in no event a condition precedent, if they

should prove the facts which they have alleged

at the trial, and would not therefore justify the

forfeiture.

"The insured under a fidelity bond is not re-

quired to aid the insurer in determining the de-

sirability of the contract of indemnity, nor to warn
him against risk where all the facts are as acces-

sible to the one as to the other, whether the insurer

be present or absent, unless the circumstances of

the case are such that silence on the part of the

insured would amount to an intentional deception

or fraud. Sherman v. Harbin, 100 S. W. 629."

Law of Guaranty, Frost, p. 307.

''If it had desired a more frequent examina-

tion, it had the power to require the same; but,

having continued its bond from time to time upon
said representations and for the consideration paid

by the bank, it is now estopped to deny liability

on the ground that the examinations were made,

at "periods more extended than originally contem-

plated."

U. S. Fid. d Guar. Co. v. Boley Bank, 144

Pac. 615.
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"Where a surety company has continued in

force, from year to je?.i% its bond indemnifying a
bank against pecuniary loss by reason of the dis-

honesty of its cashier, upon representation by the
Bank that the books and accounts of such casliier

were examined from time to time in the regular
course of business and found correct, such surety
company is estopped to deny liability by reason
of the fact that such examinations were made at

periods more extended than those provided for in

the original application for the bond." Tbid.

''Mere negligence on the part of the obligee in

failing to discover the defaults of the employed
will not release the surety. It does not in any
case apply to mere breaches of duty or of contract

obligations on the part of the employed, not in-

volving dishonesty on his part or fraudulent con-

cealment on the part of the insured."

Frost's 2nd Edition, p. 183.

"It appears that the cashier. Strong, success-

fully secreted his defalcations from these men, not-

withstanding the fact that they made a reasonably

diligent investigation from month to month. The
fact that he did succeed in thus hiding his tvrong-

doing for a time does not demonstrate that the

members of the committee failed to perform their

duty. If that process of reasoning should he fol-

lowed out, it would necessarily defeat the objects

of the bond. It was from just such a condition

of affairs that the bank sought indemnity. As has

been well said Um, employer tvould need no insur-

ance against that close and relentless vigilence which

makes stealing impossible.' Hammond, J., in Guar-

antee Co. V. Mechanics' Bank, 80 Fed. 766, 26 C. C.

A. 146."

American Bovd Co. r. Morrow, 117 Am. St.

Rep. 76, 77.

"The business honesty or fidelity insured by

such contracts as these is not that kind of enforced
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honesty which comes of a want of opportunity to

be dishonest, but that which is to be sturdy enough
to operate for safety, spite of opportunity and
temptation. That is the only kind of insurance
worth the premium paid by the assured, or which
is a fair consideration for the risk of loss which
he opens under the protection of the guaranty, and
in the absence of evidence to the contrary, pre-
sumably that which is bargained for in each in-

stance; a kind of honesty which will not take ad-
vantage of lapses of watchfulness to construct de-

ceitful appearances adjusted to familiar traits or
habits of carelessness on the part of the employer,
perhaps indulged because of reliance upon the in-

surance which he has accepted as a protection."

Guarantee Co. v. Mechanics' Sav. Bank, 80
Fed. 766.

''It is that which the obligee would naturally

seek for his protection, always desiring presum-
ably, to provide by some such guaranty even against

his own negligence and careless business habits.

The nature of the risk forbids the idea of any im-
plicit or general limitations upon the guarantee
against loss by dishonesty, and, in our judgment,
these contracts are not to be construed as imposing
any mere inference of an understanding between
the parties that the business will be conducted with
either ordinary or any degree of diligence or pru-
dence as to watchfulness." Ibid.

"Up to that time in this, as in other cases of

a like nature, the employe had concealed his em-
bezzlements, and the fact that the bank officials

did not immediately discover that the institution

was being robbed is not a fact, in itself, sufficient

upon which to predicate the contention that they

failed in the performance of their duty in examin-
ing his books and accounts, amounting to a breach
of their alleged warranty in this regard."

U. S. Fid. d' Guar. Co. v. Boley Bank, 144

Pac. 617.
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"It is pertinent to remark that if the bank
was left under an active duty of vigilance as to

supervision of habits or inspection of accounts with
a view to prevent fraud, there would be little or

no motive to secure and pay for insurance like

this."

Mechanics' Sav. cC- Tnist Co. v. Guarantee
Co., 68 Fed. 465.

"It is true that the bank could have discovered

Phillips' shortage if it had checked up the books
of the bank with that object in view; but the sus-

picions of the officers of the bank had never been
aroused."

Fid. d' Dep. Co. v. Guthrie Natl. Bank, 17

Okla. 397.

"Comparatively few human transactions would
stand an after-event test."

Mechamcs' Sav. d- Trnst Co. v. Guarantee
Co., 68 Fed. 466.

"It is not probable that any examination the

bank would have caused to be made would prove
satisfactory as looked at after the facts are all

known, unless the same had detected Schardt."
Ibid.

"It is not difficult after a disaster has occurred

to look back and criticize freely." Ibid.

"The object of an indemnity bond is to in-

demnify, and if it fails to do this, either directly

or indirectly, it fails to accomplish its primary
purpose and becomes worse than useless. It is

worthless as actual security and misleading as a

pretended one. Bank of Tarhoro v. Fidelity &
Dep. Co. of Md., 128 N. C. 366, 83 Am. St. JRep.

682."

Southern Surety Co. v. Tyler d- Simpson,
120 Pac. 939.'
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In Phoenix Insurance Co. of Brooklyn v. Guar-

antee Co. of N. America, 115 Fed. 964, the Circuit

Court of Appeals, in considering one of these bonds

where a forfeiture was claimed, said that the bank

was not required to employ somebody to watch its

cashier all the time, and said, "if it had undertaken

to do this, it would not have needed a bond of in-

demnity. '

'

"Certificate made upon renewal of a bond that

books were examined and found correct is not a

warranty. '

'

Hunter v. U. S. Fid. d Guar. Co., 167 S, W.
693.

That was an action against this same com-

pany, upon this same bond, in which the same de-

fense was set up in an effort to defeat the bond.

See also, 224 U. S. 353.

"It is now well settled that the bond of the

surety company, like any other insurance policy,

is to be most strongly construed against the in-

surer. The language of the bond is that selected

and employed by the insurer, and when doubtful or

ambiguous, must be given the strongest interpre-

tation against the insurer, which it will reasonably

bear."

Amer. Bonding Co. v. Morrow, 80 Ark. 49,

117 Am. St. Rep. 72.

"In an action against the maker of a bond
given to indemnify or insure a bank against loss

arising from acts of fraud or dishonesty on the

part of its cashier, if the bond was fairly and rea-

sonably susceptible of two constructions, one favor-

able to the bank and the other to the insurer, the
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former, if consistent with the objects for which the
bond was given, must be adopted."

Syllabus. Amer. Surety Co. v. Pauly, 170
U. S. 133.

See also:

Champion lee Mfg. Co. r. A))k Bond, d-

Tr. Co., 115 Kv. 863, 75 S. W. 197, 103 Am.
St. Rep. 356.

Title Guarayity & Sur. Co. v. Bank of Fulton,
89 Ark. 471, 117 S. W. 537.

Bank of Tarhoro v. Fid. & D. Co., 128 ¥.
C. 366, 38 S. E. 908, 83 Am. St. Rep. 682.

French v Fid. d Cas. Co., 135 Wis. 259, 265,
115 N. W. 869.

Redman v. Ins. Co., 49 Wis. 431, 435, 439; 4
N. W. 591.

Johnson v. Ins. Co., 94 Wis. 117, 119; 68 N.
W. 868.

Boark i\ City Tr. Safe Dep. d- Sur. Co.,

110 S. W. Rep. 1.

ti 'There is no sound reason why this rule

should not be applied in the present case. The
object of the bond in suit was to indemnify or in-

sure the bank against loss arising from any act

of fraud or dishonesty on the part of O'Brien in

connection with his duties as cashier, or with tlie

duties to which in the employer's service he might
be subsequently appointed. That object should not
])e defeated by any narrow interjn'etation of its

provisions, nor by adopting a constiaiction favor-

able to the company if there be another construc-

tion equally admissible under tlie terms of the instru-

ment executed for the protection of the bank:'

Travelers' Insurance Company v. McConkey, 127

U. S. 66^, 8 Sup. Ct. 1360, 32 L. ed. ?m{ First

National Bank v. Hartford Fire Ins. Co., 95 U. S.
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673, 24 L. ed. 563; Reynolds v. Commerce Fire
Insurance Co., 47 N. Y. 600; Banh of Tarhoro v.

Fidelity d- Dep. Co, of Md., 128 N. C. 366, 38 S. E.

908, 83 Am. St. Rep. 682; Champion Ice Mfg. S
C. S. Co. V. Amer. B. & Tr. Co., 115 Ky. 863, 75
S. W. 197, 103 Am. St. Rep. 356; Remington v.

Fidelity d Dep. Co. of Md., 27 Wash. 429, 67 Pac.
989; V. S. Fidelity & G. Co. v. First Nat. Bank,
233 111. 475, 84 N. E. 670; American Bonding Co.
V. Spokane Bldg. d L. Soc, 130 Fed. 737, 65 C. C.

A. 121 ; Aetna Indemnity Co. v. Crotve Coal S
Mining Co., 154 Fed. 545, 83 C. C. A. 121; Living-
ston et al. V. Fidelity d- Dep. Co. of Md., 76 Ohio St.

253; 81 N. E. 330; Gntlirie Nat. Bank v. Fidelity

& Dep. Co. of Md., 14 Okla. 636, 79 Pac. 102. Id.

17 Okla. 397, 87 Pac. 300."

Southern Surety Co. v. Tyler d- Simpson
Co., 120 Pac. 938.

See also:

Mechanics' Sav. Bank d- Tr. Co. v. Guaranty
Co., 68 Fed. 462.

Aetna Indemnity Co. v. Crowe Coal d' Min.
Co., 154 Fed. 555.

Cowles V. U. S. Fid. rf- Guaranty Co., 32

Wash. 120.

"It seldom occurs that embezzlement or larceny

is detected within three, six or twelve months after

committed, especially if the employe has been in

the service of his employer for some time and is

trusted by him, and is shrewd."

U. S. F. d G. Co. V. Bank of Monticello,

143 S. W. p. 998.

We pleaded and stated to the jury that the

business of this bank was to be transacted at Ketchi-

kan, Alaska, six hundred miles away from Seattle,

the home office of the bank, and that the Surety
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at all times had knowledge of this fact; that it

wrote the bond knowing these facts, and knew jnst

how the business was to be conducted, and the

Surety at all times knew that to make such exam-

inations as it now contends should have been made,

was impracticable and impossible, and that it would

be unreasonable to expect that any such examina-

tions as it now alleges, could or would have been

made. That the Surety, well knowing and under-

standing all of the above and foregoing facts and

conditions, and the manner in which the business

was to be conducted, did write and deliver such

bond and continuations, and accept the premiums

therefor, etc. (Tr. pp. 56, 57).

"But however this may be, the object of the

contract being to afford an indemnity against loss,

it should be so considered as to effectuate this pur-

pose, rather than in a wav which will defeat it

* * * Bray v. hisuranee Co., 139 N. C. 390, 51

S. E. 922; Bmlroad Co. v. CcfsnaUy Co., 145 N. C.

116, 58 S. E. 906; 19 Cyc. 655; W. F. Ins. Co. v.

Si 1)1 Oil s, 96 Pa. 520; Rogers v. Aetna Ins. Co., 95

Eed. 103, 35 C. C. A. 396; Insurance Co. ?'. Kearney,
180 U. S. 132, 21 Sup. Ct. 326, 45 L. ed. 460; F. C.

Ins. Co. V Hardesty, 182 111. 39, 55 N. E. 139, 74

Am. St. Rep. 161 \S. F. d M. Insurance Co. v. Wade,
95 Tex. 598, 68 S. W. 977, 58 L. R. A. 714, 93 Am.
St. Rep. 870; Vance on Insurance, p. 429."

Crowell V. Maryland Motor Car Ins. Co.,

85 S. E. 37.

"The defendant's expert evidence tended to

show that if the returned vouchers or the reconcili-

ation reports of such banks had been compared with

the ledger accounts, the discrepancy would have
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appeared. But the cashier was cunning, and he
testified to the dil'iculties which he threw in the
way of any effort to xrify the books in these par-
ticulars."

Surety Co. v. Nichols, 224 U. S. 352.

"It is said that this statement was untrue,

inasmuch as at the date of such renewals the books
and accounts were not correct and the cashier was
short in his cash. But the certificate is not to be
taken as a warranty of the correctness of the ac-

counts. The statement is that his books and ac-

counts had been examined and found correct. The
mere fact that the examination, if made by a

reasonably competent person, failed to discover dis-

crepancies covered up by false entries, or other

bookkeeping defaces, would not defeat the renewal/'
Ibid. 353.

"The question of the weight or credibility of

the evidence is not one for our consideration. There
was some evidence which the trial judge thought
sufficient to carry the case to the jury." Ibid.

The bank's duty under these several contracts

in this case was confined to the observance of good

faith and fair dealing, and tJie burden of proving

to the contrary was upon the Surety.

"At the time appellant issued this insurance

it knew that the bank was what is called *a country

bank,' and that the officers of it were men who
probably could not give the accounts an expert

examination."

U. S. Fid. d Guar. Co. v. Citizens National

Bank, 143 S. W. 999.

"Who are referred to in the brief as 'ignorant

and incompetent negroes,' it may be said that they

were the persons with whom defendant contracted

in the first instance, and it must be charged with
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a knowledge of their race, their intelligence and
business capacit}^ The fact is notorious that Boley
is a negro town in which no white man has ever
lived, or desired to live."

U. S. Fid. & Guar. Co. v. Boley Bank, 144
Pac. 615.

So in this case, the same company is charged

with knowledge that the bank was located at a

great distance, in a sparsely settled commnnity,

where experts are not available and no officer of

bank was there to watch or check Mitchell; that

Mitchell would be in absolute and sole charge and

control, and with the further fact that no special

examinations were at any time promised or guar-

anteed, and without having requested any special

examinations, it continued to extend the insurance

and accept the premiums, and at the time of re-

newals, did not even take an application, nor ask

for information.

"It was upon these certificates that the bond
teas renewed and continued in force. * * * jf

it had desired a more frequent examination, it had
the power to require the same."

IJ. S. Fid. d Guar. Co. v. Boley Bank, 144

Pac. 617.

"The person insured in a policy of fidelity in-

surance is not, perhaps, held strictly to the duty

of disclosing all conditions material to the risk, as

in the case of ordinary insurance, because the in-

sured and the insurer stand upon a plane of equal

opportunity for information."

Am. St. Rep. Vol. 100, p. 780.

"Insurer and insured in a fidelity insurance

bond, being upon a plane of equal opportunity
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for information, the insured is not held strictly

to the duty of disclosing all the conditions ma-
terial to the risk, as in the case of ordinary insur-

ance."

Guarantee Co. of N. A. v. Mechanics' etc.,

80 Fed. 767.

"It has been claimed frequently, and sustained

by courts of acknowledged eminence, that in respect

to such matters as are here being considered the

insurer and the insured stand upon a plane of equal
opportunity for information."

Law of Guaranty Insurance, Frost's 2nd
Ed., p. 280.

"In short, if we give the alleged warranties

the scope which the defendant claims should be
given to them, no bond of indemnity would ever

be taken out by an employer."

Southern Surety Co. v. Tyler & Simpson
Co., 120 Pac. 939.

"An insurance contract will be construed to

avoid a suspension of liability or a forfeiture and
to sustain rather than defeat its purpose, when
that can be done without violence to the language
employed."

Mathetvs Farmers' Mutual v. Moore, 108 N.

E. 155.

We assert with confidence that, under the

above decisions the bank would have the right to

show that it was not guilty of any negligence or

laches in not making discovery within the six

months, and that therefore the company may not

claim this forfeiture, even though the last continu-

ation has never been issued.

In the case of United States Fid. & Guar. Co.
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V. Citizens National Bank of Monticello, 143 S.

W. 997, the continuation certificates were the same

which the company used in this case.

The language in the bond as to renewals and

continuations is exactly the same, it being the same

company.

In that case the original written application

contained the following:

"And I hereby agree for myself, my heirs and
administrators, in consideration of the United States

Fidclit}^ & Guaranty Company becoming Surety for

me, and issuing the bond of security hereby ap-
plied for, or any renewal thereof, or any fnrtlier

or other bond of seeurity hereby issued by the said

eompany on my behalf/' etc.

In that case in tlie employer's statement fol-

lowing the application, is the following language:

"It is agreed that the above answers are to

])e taken as a basis for the said bond applied for,

or any renewal or eontinuation of the same that

may be issued by the United States Fidelity &
Guaranty Company to the undersigned, upon the

person above named."

Since this is the same company, the same bond,

and the same continuation certificate, it is only

natural to assume that the same statements are

contained in the w^ritten application and the em-

ployer's statement. As we have pointed out, the

bond recites that a written application has been

given, and that an employer's statement has been

taken, and before the court can, as a matter of

law, say that the provisions of this written appli-

cation and of the employer's statement do not jus-
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tify and prove our contention tliat it is a con-

tinuous contract, it must have before it all of the

contract, and these can only be brought into the

record by introducing them in evidence at a trial,

which we humbly pray this court to give us.

We have quoted above the renewal certificate

in the Be Jernette Case. In that case they were

called *' renewal certificates." In the case at bar

the contracts issued from year to year are not called

*' renewal certificates," but are in the contracts

themselves denominated "continuation certificates."

(Tr. p. 28). The designation being "Continuation

Certificate No. T-450." "Continuation" is much

stronger than "renewal." The word "renewal"

may be construed to signify to make new again.

That is, to free from the requirements and limita-

tions attached to that whose place it takes. On the

other hand, the word "continuation" implies con-

tinuity of existence. When the Surety, by means of

"continuation certificate," continued in force the

bond, it continued in existence and prolonged the

life of that bond.

It was a part of the scheme to advertise on

the part of this company, that it was offering to

the bank in soliciting its business, a CONTINUING
POLICY. This form of continuous insurance has

become popular, and its superiority is emphasized

by experience. Employes of banks are usually

expert bookkeepers and accountants, and if they

set their heads to steal, they can do so in spite

of the most vigilant watching, and in a majority
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of cases, detection occurs only after the stealing

has been going on for a period of time. Frequently,

for a term of years, and it is usually discovered

because the thief eventually grows somewhat con-

fident and careless, or because he goes on a vaca-

tion, or some unexpected event throws light into

a hidden nook or cranny.

Because of this fact, and of the difficulty and

delay in detection of such employes, employers do

not want short-lived policies, and so the system of

continuation of the insurance contract developed,

and consequently, the insurance companies in their

keen competition for business with an educated and

discriminating insuring public, advertised and em-

phasized this feature of continuing insurance. And,

undoubtedly catering to this wish and demand on

the part of the banking world, the last continuation

in this case is made without limitation, and is to

continue in force until terminated by notice.

Look again at the "continuation certificate."

(Tr. p. 28). At the close it reads: "Subject to

all the covenants and conditions of said original

bond heretofore issued, dating from the 1st day of

April, 1906." The particular certificate copied was

dated April 1st, 1910, but note the insurance dates

from April 1st, 1906, and it so states in this con-

tinuation certificate. This language is in each of

the continuation certificates. It is, therefore, very

clearly shown from the certificates that it was in-

tended that the continuing guaranty should run

from the date of- the original bond, April 1st, 1906,
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and cover the entire period of time from that date

until the end of the period for which such con-

tinuation certificate is issued, and it seems equally

clear, taking all the papers together, that it was

the intention and expectation of both parties that

the continuation certificates issued from year to year

would continue the bond in force so as to cover

any loss that might accrue during the entire period,

as though the bond itself had so specifically pro-

vided.

This is the only reasonable construction, as the

continued liability remains the same in dollars and

cents, while if each year is to be taken as a new and

independent contract, then the full penalty of the

bond, if necessary, would stand to indemnify any

loss for each year, and if $25,000 were stolen dur-

ing each year, it would thus become cumulative,

and the company might become liable for five times

the bond penalty, if there had been a $25,000 steal-

ing in each of the five years. Certainly the com-

pany does not want that construction placed upon

its continuing contracts of insurance.

The fact that while such contracts were under-

going judicial construction, the company adopted

the plan of continuing without restriction its con-

tracts, and the further fact that it issued continu-

ations instead of the old "renewal contracts," shows

an evident intention of making change in the char-

acter of its contracts, and the change intended to

be made could be no other than that from the system

of restricted renewals which the courts had con-
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stvued into a separate and independent contract for

each year, into a CONTINUING GUARANTY,
to run so long as the insured was willing to pay

the premium, and as it should determine to accept

the same.

The renewal receipt in the De Jernette case,

and the continuations in this case are so radically

different that there can be no kinship in the prin-

ciple governing their construction.

"When a bond guaranteeing the fidelity of an
employe is renewed, there is still only one contract

and one penalty, the renewal certificate being a new
bond only in extending the indemnity provided by
the original bond to a new period of time."

First National v. U. S. Fid. & Guar. Co.,

110 Tenn. 10.

We respectfully submit the cause should be

reversed and remanded.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
GEORGE L. SPIRK,
WILLIAM H. METSON,
Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

METSON DREW and MACKENZIE,
of Counsel. ^ .
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No. 2626

IN THE

llmti^i^tatefi OltrrmtOlnurt ofApp^ala

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

MINERS' & MERCHANTS' BANK, a corporation,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY & GUARANTY COMPANY,
a corporation,

Defendant in Error.

Upon Writ of Error to the United States District Court

for the Western District of Washington,

Northern Division.

BRIEF OF DEFENDANT IN ERROR.

Inasmuch as the presentation made by the plain-

tiff in error is somewhat discursive, we shall state

the facts as follows

:

The plaintiff in error had been insured under a

policy which reads as follows

:



(Cover)

THE
UNITED STATES FIDELITY
AND GUARANTY COMPANY.

FIDELITY BOND
No

In Behalf of

MACK A. MITCHELL
to

MINERS' & MERCHANTS' BANK,
Ketchikan, Ala.

Date, April 1st, 1906.

Expired, April 1st, 1907.

CALHOUN, DENNY & EWING,
DISTRICT AGENTS

Seattle, Wash.

Form O.S. 1 M-9-7-03.

CAPITAL PAID IN CASH, $1,700,000.

Amount, $25,000.00. Annual Premium, $100.00.

Bond No. 450. No. 5764.

The United States Ftdeijty axd
Guaranty Company

Home Office,

Baltimore, Md.

Whereas, Miners' & Merchants' Bank, Ket-
chikan, Alaska, hereinafter called "The Em-
ployer", is employiut^' or intends to employ Mack
A. Mitchell in the capacity of Cashier, herein-

after called "The Employee," and has filed with
The United States Fidelity and Guaranty
Company, hereinafter called "The Company,"
an application specifying the amoimt of secur-

ity required flom said Employe, and has applied

to the Company for the grant of this bond ; and



Whereas, the Company in consideration of

the sum of one hundred and 00/100 dollars, now
paid as a premium from April 1st, 1906, to April

1st, 1907, at 12 o'clock noon, has agreed upon
the terms, provisions and conditions herein con-

tained to issue this bond to the Employer; and
Whereas, the Employer has heretofore deliv-

ered to the Company certain representations and
promises relative to the duties and accounts of

the Employe and other matters, it is hereby un-

derstood and agreed that those representations

and such promises, and any subsequent repre-

sentation or promise of the Employer, hereafter

required by or lodged with the Company, are

hereby expressly warranted to be true.

Now, Therefore, This Bond, Witnesseth,
that for the consideration of the premises, the

Company shall, during the term above men-
tioned, or any subsequent renewal of such term
and subject to the conditions and provisions

herein contained, at the expiration of three

months next, after proof, satisfactory to the

Compam% as hereinafter mentioned, make good
and reimburse to the said Employer, such pe-

cuniar}^ loss as may be sustained by the Employer
by reason of the fraud or dishonesty of the said

Employe in connection with the duties of his

office or position, amounting to embezzlement or

larceny, and which shall have been committed
during the continuance of said term, or of any
renewal thereof, and discovered during said con-

tinuance or of any renewal thereof, or within

six months thereafter, or within six months from
the death or dismissal or retirement of said Em-
ploye from the service of the Employer within

the period of this Bond, whichever of these

events shall first happen; the Company's total

liability on account of said Employe under this

Bond or any renewal thereof, not to exceed the

sum of TwENTY-Fiw. Thousand ($25,000)
Dollars.



Provided^ That on the discovery of Sinj act

capable of giving rise to a claim hereunder, the

Employer shall, at the earliest practical moment,
give notice thereof to the Company, and any
claim made under this Bond shall be in writing
addressed to the Company at its head office in

the City of Baltimore; and shall within three

months after the discovery thereof, at the Em-
ployer's expense, furnish to the Company rea-

sonable particulars and proofs of the correct-

ness of said claim, and such particulars, if re-

quired, shall be verified by affidavit.

Provided Further, Tliat the Company shall

not be liable, by virtue of this Bond, for any act

or thing done or left undone by the Employe in

obedience to, or in pursuance of an instruction

or authorization received by him from the Em-
ployer or any superior officer, or for any mere
error of judgment or bona fide mistake, or any
injudicious exercise of discretion on the part of

the Employe, in and about all or any matters
wherein he shall have been vested with discre-

tion either by instruction or by the rules and reg-

-ulations of the Employer.

Provided Further, That the Company shall

not be liable under this Bond for the amount of

any balance that may be found due the Employer
from the Employe, and which may have accrued
prior to the date hereof, it being the true intent

and meaning of this Bond that the Company
shall be responsible as aforesaid for moneys, se-

curities, or property diverted from the Employer
within the period specified in this Bond.
And Provided, Also, That this Bond is grant-

ed upon the express understanding or agree-

ment that as against every corporation or person

now being or hereafter becoming security or

surety and upon every security held by the Em-
ployer for the Employe in his employment as

aforesaid, the Companv shall have and possess

the light of ratable contribution and all other



rights and remedies, both legal and equitable, of

co-sureties.

And Also, That, should the Employe become
guilt}^ of an offence covered by this Bond, the

Employer will immediately, on being requested

by the surety to do so, lay information before a

proper officer covering the facts and verify the

same as required by law and furnish the Com-
pany every aid and assistance, not pecuniary,

capable of being rendered by the Employer, his

or its agents and servants, which will aid in

bringing the Emploj^e promptly to justice, and
such action when required of the Employer shall

be a condition precedent to recover under this

Bond.

Provided, That the Company shall have the

right, upon giving thirty days' notice in writing

to the Employer, to cancel this Bond at the ex-

piration of said thirty da,ys; and if the bond
shall be so cancelled, the Company shall refimd
the proportion of the premium for the imexpired
term of risk.

Provided, That the Employe may perform oth-

er duties than those properly belonging to the

position mentioned in this Bond without notice

of such change being given to the Company.

PRO^^DED, That the premium due the Company
for becoming surety for the Employe named in

this Bond shall be paid within thirty days after

the delivery hereof, and if not so paid, this Bond
shall be void from the beginning, and the Com-
pany shall not be liable for any loss hereunder.

And Provided, Lastly, That this Bond is also

subject to the following conditions:

That, any misstatement or suppression of

fact in any claim made hereunder renders this

Bond void from the beginning.

This Bond will become void as to any claim for

which the Company would otherwise be liable, if



6

the employer shall fail to notify the Company of

the occurrence of the act or commission out of

which said claim shall arise immediately after it

shall come to the knowledge of the Employer;
and the knowledge of a President, Vice-Presi-

dent, Director, Secretary, Treasurer, Manager,
Cashier or other like executive officer shall be
deemed under this contract the knowledge of the

Employer. And upon the making of any claim

hereunder, this Bond shall wholly cease and de-

termine as regards any act or omission of the

Employe, committed subsequent to the making
of such claim, and it shall be surrendered to the

Company on the payment of such claim.

That, aftei' the expiration of the Company's
liability hereunder, and no claim having been
presented the then unexpired portion, if any, of

the term for which this bond was granted, shall

apply to any new Employe whose risk, to the

same amount, the said Company may at that

time assume or the Comjjan^v shall at the election

of the Employer return to the Employer the un-

earned premium on return of this Bond for can-

cellation.

It Is Ftjrth?]r Made ax Express Condition
of this Bond that no suit or action of any kind
against the Company for the recover}^ of any
claim upon, under or by virtue of this Bond,
shall be sustainable in any court of law or equity,

unless such suit or action shall be commenced,
and the process served on the C()m])any within

the tei'm of twelve months next after the date of

filing notice of a claim therefor as hereinbefore

provided; in case any suit or action shall be
commenced against the Company after the ex-

piration of said period of twelve months the

lapse of time shall be taken and deemed as con-

clusive evidence against the validity of the claim

thereby so attempted to be enforced.

That no one of the above conditions, or of the

provisions contained in this Bond, shall be



deemed to have been waived by or on behalf of

the Company, unless the waiver be clearly ex-

pressed in writing over the signature of its Presi-

dent and Secretary, and its seal thereto affixed.

That the Company, upon the execution of this

Bond, shall not thereafter be responsible to the

Employer, under any bond previousl,y issued to

the Employer on behalf of said Employe, and
upon the issuance of any Bond subsequent here-

to upon said Employe in favor of said Employer,
all responsibility hereunder shall cease and de-

termine, it being mutually understood that it is

the intention of this provision that but one (the

last) Bond shall be in force at one time, unless

otherwise stipulated between the Employer and
the Company.
And the Employe doth hereby for himself, his

heirs, executors, and administrators, covenant

and agree to and mth the Company that he will

save, defend and keep harmless the Company
from and against all loss and damage of what-
ever nature or kind, and from all legal and other

costs and expense, direct or incidental, which the

Company shall or may at any time sustain or be
put to (whether before or after any legal pro-

ceedings by or against it to recover imder this

Bond, and without notice to him thereof) or for,

or by reason or in consequence of, the Company
having entered into the present Bond.

In Witness Whereof, the said Mack A. Mit-
chell (the Employe) has hereunto set his hand
and seal, and the Company has caused this Bond
to be sealed with its corporate seal, duly at-

tested by the signatures of its Attorneys in Fact,

this 1st day of May, one thousand nine hundred
and six.

Signed, sealed and delivered by the Employe

at

L. S.
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In the presence of

The United States Fidelity and
Guaranty Company,

A. Kennaed, Douglas R. Tate,
Attorney-in-Fact. Attorney-in-Fact.

This policy was continued in force by virtue of

renewal certificates issued each year, the last renewal

certificate being issued April 1, 1912, so that the

policy was in force until April 1, 1913.

On April 1, 1913, the insurance terminated, save

that undei' the terms thereof the insurer would be

liable for any loss discovered mthin six months after

the termination of said polic}^ From that time until

November 25, 1913, the plaintiff in error had no

policy.

On the last named date the plaintiff in error se-

cured from the defendant in error another policy of

insurance, which reads as follows:

United States Fidelity & Guaranty
Company.

Capital Paid in Cash, $2,000,000.

Total Resources Over $7,400,000.

Home Office:

Baltimore, Md.
No. 27999. $25,000.00
The United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, as Insurer, for a premium of Sixty-
Two and 50/100 ($62.50) Dollars, hereby guar-
antees to pay to the Miners & ^Ierchants Bank
of Ketchikan, Alaska, the Employer, such pe-
cuniary loss as the Employer shall sustain (lim-

ited only by the provisos hereof) of money,



bonds, debentures, scrips, certificates, warrants,
transfers, coupons, bills of exchange, promis-
sory notes, checks, bank notes, currency, mer-
chandise or other property, including that for
which Employer is responsible, occasioned by
any act or acts of fraud, dishonesty, forgery,

theft, larceny, embezzlement, wrongful abstrac-

tion or misapplication or misappropriation or
any criminal act by Mack A. JMitchell, directly

or through connivance in any position and at any
location in the Employer's employ, and during
the period commencing upon the date hereof and
continuing in the sum of Ttventy-Five Thou-
SAXD ($25,000.00) Dollars until the termination
of this insurance.

Provisos :

1

.

In the event of the recovery of any loss, or

portion thereof, from other than insurance, the
Employer shall be entitled thereto until fully re-

imbursed, the excess, if any, to be paid to the

Insurer.

2. The Employer shall deliver notice of any
default hereof to the Insurer at its Home Office

within ten (10) days after the discovery of such
default. All claims shall be submitted, showing
the items and dates of the losses, and delivered in

writing to the Insurer at its Home Office within
three (8) months after their discovei'v. The In-
surer shall have two (2) months after claim has
been presented in which to verify and pay the
same, during which time no legal proceeding
shall be brought against the Insurer as to that
claim, nor at all as to that claim after the expir-
ation of twelve (12) months from its date.

3. This insurance shall only terminate by:

(1) The Employer giving notice in wiiting to

the Insurer specifying the date of termination.

(2) Tlie Insurer giAing thirty (30) days' no-

tice in Avriting to th(^ I^]m])lover. (The Insurer
to I'efund unearned premium in the above cases.)
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(3) The nonpayment of premium for a period
of three (3) months beyond date due; all prem-
iums being due in advance.

4. The discovery of any loss through the Em-
ployee.

. In Testimony Whereof, The United States
Fidelity and Guaranty Company has hereunto
set its seal. Witness the hand of its Attorney-in-
Fact, on this 1st day of April, 1913.

United States Fidelity and
GuARiiNTY Company
By C. H. Campbell,

(Seal.) Attorney-in-Fact.

This last policy was, at the request of the plaintiff

in error, dated back to the first day of April, 1913.

Promptly upon the securing of this last policy the

plaintiff in error discovered its loss.

As nearly as we can understand the contention of

plaintiff in error, it is that this last policy dated back

to April 1, 1913, operates as a rencAval or a continu-

ance of the old policy, so that we are to be held liable

for losses under the old and lapsed policies.

The design of the plaintiff in error in securing this

last T)olicy from us is palpable, and it would seem a

strange j^erversion of legal principles if it is per-

mitted to accomplish this design. Surely it will not

escape the attention of the (^oui't that the sole pur-

pose of tlie })laintift" in error in securing this last

polic}" was to endeavor to tie it to the old policy, and

thus fix a liability for losses which had occurred

during the term of the policies which had lapsed.

You will notice the difference between the old

lapsed policies and the new one. In tlu^ old ])()licies
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the insurer was liable for "such pecuniary loss as

may be sustained by the Employer by reason of the

fraud or dishonesty of the said Employe in connec-

tion with the duties of his office or position, amount-

ing to embezzlement or larceny/^ By the policy is-

sued in November, 1913, the insurer is made liable for

"such pecuniary loss * * * occasioned by any act

or acts of fraud, dishonesty, forgery, theft, larceny,

embezzlement, wrongful abstraction or misapplica-

tion or misappropriation."

We contend that the contract of insurance is clear.

It provides that we shall be liable for any loss sus-

tained by the employer during the term of the pol-

icy and which shall have been discovered during the

term thereof or within six months thereafter. The

policy was continued from year to year after 1906

until April 1, 1913, when the policy lapsed. No dis-

covery of any loss was made until more than six

months after the lapse of the policy.

It is our contention that on April 1, 1913, the old

policy had lapsed and on October 1, 1913 (being six

months after the termination of the old policy), no

loss having meanwhile been discovered, all liability

ceased, and that the policy issued November 25, 1913,

and dated back to April 1, 1913, was a new policy and

not a renewal.

It would seem that argument is unnecessary to es-

tablish that the policy issued in November, 1913, is

a new policy and not a renewal of the old. Every

term and provision of the new policy is different from

the old. The old policy hold us liable only for such
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pecuniary loss as the employer might sustain by rea-

son of the acts of the employe, amounting to embez-

zlement or larceny. The new policy issued Novem-

ber 25, 1913, held us responsible for any acts of fraud,

dishonesty, etc.

Judge Neterer, in the court below, had this clearly

in mind when he said (Tr., p. 117)

:

" 'Here are two bonds. One bond contains
such rights and such obligations. Now, here is

another bond. This contains broader obligations

and rights.' Now, under which bond would it

come '? It would not come under both. If it is a
continuation and a renewal, where would you be.

If it is a renewal, you would have to recover un-
der the old bond, and disregard the new one. I

couldn't instruct the jury under that, because it

is a renewal."

The Court can not close its eyes to the palpable

intention of the plaintiff in error in securing the new

form of bond. When in November, 1913, it claimed

to have learned that the bond which expired April,

1913, had not been renewed, it did not apply to the

surety company for a continuation certificate such as

had been issued from year to year, in the form which

is set forth on page 28 of the transcript, which would

have continued or renewed the old form of y)olicy,

but instead applied for a new foi'm of bond.

From a reading t)f the description of the acts of

Mr. Mitchell set forth in the statement of counsel,

printed in full in the transcript, it is quite clear that

such acts would not constitute embezzlement or lar-

ceny under the common law or the Alaska statute.
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Larceny is defined as follows (see Compiled Laws

of Alaska (1913), § 1921):

"That if any person shall steal any goods or

chattels, or anj^ Government note, or bank note,

promissory note, or bill of exchange, bond, or

other thing in action, or any book of accounts,

order, or certificate, concerning money or goods,

due or to become due or to be delivered, or any
deed or writing containing a conveyance of land
or any interest therein, or any bill of sale, or

writing containing a conveyance of goods or

chattels or any interest therein, or any other val-

uable contract in force, or any receipt, release,

or defeasance, or any writ, process, or public

record, the property of another, such person shall

be deemed guilty of larceny, and upon convic-

tion thereof, if the property stolen shall exceed
in value thirty-five dollars, shall be punished by
imprisonment in the penitentiary not less than
one nor more than ten years ; but if the property
stolen shall not exceed the value of thirty-five

dollars, such person, upon conviction thereof,

shall be punished by imprisonment in the county
jail not less than one month nor more than one
year, or by fine not less than twenty-five nor
more than one hundred dollars."

An accepted common law definition of larceny is:

"* " * the taking and removing, by tres-

pass, of personal property which the trespasser
knows to belong either generally or specially to

another, with the intent to deprive such owner of

his ownership therein."

See 2 Bishop on Criminal Latv, 7th Ed., § 758.

Embezzlement is defined by the Alaska Code as

follows

:

''That if any officer, agent, clerk, employee, or
servant of any private person or persons, co-



14

partnership, or incorporation shall embezzle or
fraudulently convert to his own use, or shall take
or secrete with intent to embezzle or fraudulent-
ly convert to his own use, any money, property,
or thing of another which may be the subject of

larceny^ and which shall have come into his pos-
session or be under his care by virtue of such
employment, such officer, agent, clerk, employee,
or servant shall be deemed guilty of embezzle-
ment."

'

' That if any bailee, with or without hire, shall

embezzle, or wrongfully convert to his own use,

or shall secrete, with intent to convert to his

own use, or shall fail, neglect, or refuse to de-

liver, keep, or account for, according to the na-
ture of his trust, any money or property of an-

other delivered or intrusted to his care or con-

trol, and which may be the subject of larceny,

such bailee, upon conviction thereof, shall be
deemed guilty of embezzlement."

See Compiled Laws of Alaska (1913), §§ 1926,

1927.

As embezzlement is purely a statutory offense we

do not look to the common law for a further defini-

tion. (See 2 Bishop on Ci^iminal Latv, 7th Ed., §

325.)

And as to the point that the acts of Mitchell would

not constitute "larceny or embezzlement," see

Guarantee Go. of No. America v. Mechanics'

Sav. B. & T. Co., 100 Fed., 559;

Reed v. Fidelity d Casualty Co. of N. Y., 42

Atl., 294;

United States F. d G. Co. v. Egg Shippers'

S. d F. Co., 148 Fed., 353;
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Farmers' State Bank v. Title Guaranty &
Trust Co., 113 S. W., 1147.

If the opening statement of counsel is to be taken

as true, the acts of Mitchell with regard to the oper-

ations of the Revilla Fish Products Co. might well

be said to constitute fraud, dishonesty, or wrongful

misapplication, so as to bring them within the terms

of the new bond. Undoubtedly this was the purpose

of the plaintiff in error in securing from the com-

pany not a continuation of the old bond, such as it

had secured each year, but an entirely new and dif-

ferent obligation. To assert, then, that the new bond

written after the relations and obligations between

the parties were at an end is no more than a renewal

or continuation of the old bond would seem to be fal-

lacious upon its face.

No Action Could Be Maintained on the Policy of 1911

Unless the Loss Was Discovered within Six Months
After the Date of the Termination of That Policy,

and Likewise as to the Policy of 1912.

That each one of the policies and renewals consti-

tuted a separate and distinct contract, and the liabil-

ity upon the policy or renewal for any one year re-

lated only to losses occurring during that year and

discovered within six months thereafter, is a con-

struction based not only upon authority but upon

reason. We assert that a better demonstration of

the propriety of the construction we seek to place up-

on these contracts can not be had than is offered in

the present case. Surely it is the plain duty of a
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principal who has entrusted his funds to an agent,

and especially when that property is made up of the

funds of depositors, to maintain such a supervision

and timely to conduct such investigation as will dis-

cover any peculations or fraud on the part of the

agent. It is not designed that the principal may per-

mit his agent's conduct to continue year after year

without investigation. Therefore, the i^olicies were

written so as to give a reasonable length of time

after the term thereof in which an investigation and

discovery might be made. In this case that period is

fixed at six months, and it is surely a reasonable

period. At the end of that time the insurer is ab-

solved from liability if no loss has been discovered.

We are not without authority directly in point.

In the case of Proctor Coal Co. v. U. S. Fidelity

d- Guaranty Co. (Ga.), 124 Fed., 424, the bond was

issued by the same company and in all essentials, as

far as we can gather from the published opinion,

identical with the orisrinal bond in this case.

Slliott on Insurance, Sec. 293,
Uchards on Insurance, Sec.284. ^ discussion of this

.^ ^. ... ^..v,., c*. i^age 45 of its brief,

contains unintentional misstatements as to the facts.

The Court said in discussing the very contention we

are now making (pp. 427-430)

:

"I think the contention of counsel for defend-
ant that these renewals are separate and dis-

tinct contracts is sound. It is urged that certain

language in the bond shows that it was intended
to be a continuous contract covering the period
of the bond or of any subsequent renewals. The
language referred to is this: 'Make good and
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reimburse to the employer all and any pecuniary

loss sustained by the employer', etc., 'occurring

during the continuance of this bond or any re-

newal thereof, and discovered during said con-

tinuance, or within six months thereafter.' I

am unable to agree with the argument of plain-

tiff as to the proper construction to be put upon
this language. T think it should be construed so

as to read in this way: 'Occurring during the

continuance of this bond or any renewal thereof,

and discovered during the continuance of this

bond, or during the continuance of any renewal'

;

that is, that the discovery must be mthin six

months of the expiration of the original bond,

or within six months of the expiration of any
renewal thereof. I do not think the language is

sufficient to justify the conclusion that this was
a continuous contract of suretyship running
through the whole period covered by the original

bond and the two renewals. The correct view
seems to be that each renewal is a separate and
distinct contract, and such I think is the effect

of the authorities on the subject.
* * * *

"In the second renewal the language is:

" 'In consideration of the sum of twenty-five

dollars, the United States Fidelity & (Guaranty

Company hereby continues in force bond No.
27178 in the sum of five thousand dollars,' etc.

"It is claimed that the language, 'hereby con-

tinues in force,' gives strength to the argument
that the contract was a continuous one from the

beginning of the original bond to the end of the

last renewal.

"Wliile there is some force in this contention,

I do not think the use of this language is suf-

ficient to change the conclusion reached that

these renewals are new and distinct contracts.
* * * *

"It is claimed that, if the court should hold

that the renewals are new contracts, the effect
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of so holding would be to destroy the provision

of the contract which gives the insui-ed the right

to discover a defalcation within six months after

the teraiination of the bond. I do not think so.

In my opinion, the whole purpose and intention

of this clause is that there shall not be double

responsibility on the ])ai't of the companv. It is

not at all inconsistent with tlie right to discover

mthin six months after the expiration of the

original bond or any renewal the dishonest acts

of the employe, and to claim indemnity for the

same. The original bond and each renewal

stands for the malfeasance of the eni]3loye dur-

ing the continuance of each and discovery within

six months after the tennination of each."

The decision of the Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Third Circuit in Fidelity & Casualty Co. v. Con-

solidated Nai. Bank, 71 F^d., 116, is directly in point.

In that case a bond had been issued in 1889 and reg-

ularly renewed and extended to 1894. A claim was

made for an embezzlement which occurred during the

last year and was timely discovered. This liability

was admitted. A further claim was made for prev-

ious embezzlement not discovered within the period

prescribed by the bond, it being alleged that this dis-

covery was prevented by fraudulent concealment.

The wording of the bond in that case differs slightly

from that in our case. We parallel them.
u* * * ^Viich has ''* * * and which

been committed during shall liave been com-
the continuance of the nutted duriiig the contin-

said term, or any renewal uance of said term, oi' of

thereof, and discovered any renewal thereof, and
during said continuance, discovered durinu' said

or within six months continuance or of anv re-

thereafter." newal thereof, or within

six months thereafter."
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We submit that the addition of the second phrase

"any renewal thereof" in our bond, which was not

written in the bond of the other company, really

effects no change, because if there is a renewal then

there is a continuance of the term, as the two words

seem to be synonymous. Upon these facts the

Court said (p. 120)

:

"The manifest intent was to create a bar, and
to the provision inserted for that jiurpose there

cannot be annexed an exception or qualification

not warranted by its terms, and the implication

of which the circumstances of the case forbid.

The object was to preclude liability for a num-
ber of defaults, extending over a longer period

than one year, and ,yet the present claim is that,

in addition to $5,000, the amount of the embezzle-

ments within such period, the indemnifying
company is chargeable with the amount of other

embezzlements which had been committed dur-

ing a prior term. We cannot sustain this de-

mand, because to do so w^ould, as we think, in-

volve a misconstruction of the condition, and the

defeat of its purpose. The bank's position rests

upon the assum])tion that it would have recov-

ered its earlier losses, by action upon this bond,

but for the fraudulent postponement of theii*

discovery. Let this be conceded, still it is ob-

vious that seasonable discovery of the preceding

dishonest acts would have rendered the perpetra-

tion of the succeeding ones impossible, and hence
that the entire liability now asserted is one which
could not possibly have accrued if discovery of

the earlier em.bezzlements had been made within

the prescribed time; and it is not i^ossible to

hold, in the face of a condition limiting liability

by a requirement of discovery, that, by reason

of non-discovery, the liability so limited was ex-

tended or enlarged."
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The case of Florida Cent. & P. R. Co. v. American

Surety Co., 99 Fed., 674, decided by the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, can not be

distinguished upon principle. In that case the surety

company up to 1891 annually issued a new bond of

indemnity. Subsequent to that year it continued

the bond in force by issuing a notice guaranteeing

the employes of the railroad company. Under the

terms of the original bond the company was liable

only for such loss as should be discovered during the

term of the bond. This was modified, however, by a

rider giving six months after the term of the bond

in which to discover the loss. In that case the guar-

anty notice issued each year did not expressly limit

the term of the insurance to one year, but the Court

concluded that inasmuch as it was issued annually

it indicated that the meaning was that the guaranty

should terminate each year unless renewed. There

was in the rider a provision that the aggregate lia-

bility of the company should not exceed the amount

of the last guaranty or bond. In our case there is

likewise an express provision that the liability shall

not exceed the amount of the one bond. Although

the bond in the case we are now discussing differs

in some respects from the bond in the present case,

a close analysis will demonstrate they are not to be

differentiated upon principle. In that case a claim

was made for losses for previous years, based upon

the contention that there was a continuing liability.

The Court declined to sustain this contention, saying

(pp. 677, 678) :
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"Such being the case, the meaning of the part

of the contract which declares that upon the ex-

ecution of a stipulated amount of risk or insur-

ance in behalf of an employe the company shall

not be responsible under any previous insurance

of said employe becomes clear, and is that, when
a new schedule of the amount of insurance in be-

half of any employe formerl}^ on the schedule has

been executed or completed, and actually or con-

structively accepted, the old or previous insur-

ance against losses previously committed by
him is at an end, and that for these losses the

company is no longer liable. The contract

further declares that only the last insurance of

the employe shall be in force at one time. These
provisions are inconsistent with the theory that

it was the intention or the idea of the parties

that a continuing liability for old and undis-

covered losses in continuous previous years was
being piled up in each renewed contract."

It would seem, therefore, fair to say that our con-

tention is directly sustained by the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Second and Third Circuits.

Nor are we lacking in direct authority from other

courts.

The case of U. S. Fidelity db Guarant/j Co. v.

Williams (Miss.), 49 So., 742, presents our case al-

most exactly. It was a bond issued by the same com-

pany in the identical terms. We quote from the de-

cision (pp. 743, 744) :

" 'In Insurance Company v. Walsh, 54 111.

164, 5 Am. Rep. 115, the court said: 'A renewal
of a policy is, in effect, a new contract of assur-

ance, and, unless otherwise expressed, on the

same terms and conditions as were contained in

the original policy.' To the same effect is the
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The court said :
' We have no doubt that each re-

newal of the policy was a new contract. Each
was upon a new consideration, and was optional

with both ]^arties. At tlie expiration of the year

o^'er which the original policy extended, the obli-

gation of the insured was ended, and it was only

by the concurrence of the will of both ])arties that

the obligation could be continued.' Such con-

tracts standing as distinct and se])arate con-

tracts, the rights of the parties nnist be deter-

mined under them as such. A renewal of the

bond did not alter, change, limit, or increase the

rights of the x>ai'ties under the bond; nor did

such renewal increase oi- limit the time for the

performance of any act which is required to be

done by the parties to maintain their rights un-

der the bond. When the bond speaks of acts

'committed during the continuance of said re-

newal thereof,' it has reference to the bond as

one contract and the renewals tliereof as anothei-

and distinct contract. For the fraud or dishon-

esty of the employe during the tune covered by
the bond no recovery could be had under tlu^

renewal conti'act, nor will the contract of renewal

enable the assured to maintain an action on the

bond which had been barred by the lapse of time.
* * * The company desired by these ]:)r() vis-

ions to require vigilance on the part of the em-
ployer to discover and give notice of the fraud

or dishonesty of the employe. It was of the ut-

most importance that this be done. The com-
pany could protect itself to some extent by hav-

ing such infonnation. It required, and had the

right to expect, vigilance on the part of the em-
ployer. * * * It is not contended by counsel

for appellant that the provisions of the bond lim-

iting the liability of the company are not bind-

ing on. him; but it is insisted, in effect, that a

renewal of the bond in 1893 would have the effect

of continuing the liability of the company for
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al thereof, if the discovery should be made, and
notice given thereof, within the time stated. To
illustrate : Suppose tlie fraud and dishonesty of

Ramsey on account of which this action was
brought had occurred between January 19, 1891,

and January 19, 1892, the period covered by the

bond, and discovej*y could be made between flan-

uary 19, 1893, and January, 1894, the period of

the alleged renewal, and notice given of it w^ould

be a compliance witli the terms of tlie contract,

and the liabilit}" of the company would thus be

continued. If this be a proper interpretation of

the contract, then, had there been 10 renewals,

the company's liability would continue under
them fc/r acts committed during the lirst year of

the guaranty. As heretofore stated, we believe the

bond is a distinct coiitract, and the renewals are

separate and distinct contracts, but out of the

same terms of the bo]id. Therefore the liability

of the c()m|)any for an act committed during a

given ])eriod must be determined by the terms
of the contract in force at the time of its com-
mission, and a subsequent renewal does not ex-

tend the time for the disclosing of the wrong
and the enforcement of a liability of the com-
pany therefor.' See, also, the cases of First Nat.

Bank of NashnlJe r. United States Fidelity d-

Guarfinttf Co., 110 Teim. 10, 75 S. W. 1076, 100

Am. St. Rep. 76"), Proctor Coal Couipanij r.

United States FideUtu & Gtiarantfj Co. (C. C),
124 Fed. 424, Fidelity rt Casualty Co. v. Consol-

idated Nat. Bank, 71 Fed. 116, 17 C. C. A. 641,

and many otlier authorities cited in Frost on

Guaranty Tns}(ra}iee (2d Ed.), p. 99, § 40 et sec[.

"These bonds are sepai-ate and distinct con-

tracts, and do not constitute a continuing bond,

as contended l)y eounsel for a])])ellee. Each
bond is liable for such losses, and only

such losses, as occur during its se])arat(^

life, which is fixed hv the contract for
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one year each, and discovered during the con-

tinuance or renewal, or within six months after

the expiration of the year, but always limiting

the right of recovery to losses which actually

happen within the life of the particular bond."

In Long Bros, Grocery Co. v. United States F. cfc

G. Co. (Mo.), 110 S. W., 29, a bond had been issued

which was continued in force by a renewal certificate.

The claim was made that inasmuch as the original

bond was void because of misrepresentations the

same vice was carried into the second bond evidenced

by the renewal ; but the Coui-t held that this conten-

tion could not be sustained inasmuch as the renewal

evidenced a separate and distinct contract, saying

(p. 31)

:

^'The rule is generally recognized that: 'A
renewal of a policy constitutes a separate and
distinct contract for the period of time covered

by such renewal. It is, however, a contract with
the same terms and conditions as is evidenced by
the bond which is renewed, because the renewal
receipt recites that it is renewed in accordance
with the terms of the bond."

In the case of Brady v. The Northtvestern Ins. Co.,

11 Mich., 425, 443, it is said:

"We have no doubt that each renewal of the

policy was a new contract. Each was upon a new
consideration, and was optional with both par-

ties. At the expiration of the year over which
the original policy extended, the obligation of

the insurer was ended, and it was only by the

concurrence of the will of both parties that the

obligation could be continued. This concurrence
is manifested by the pa3anent of a consideration

by the one party, and a renewed promise by the
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other; and an obligation revived or continued

under such circumstances, is an original obliga-

tion. It must be asked for by the one, and may
be assmned or refused by the other: and
the nolicy, which is its e^ddence, is therefore only

continued hy the positive act of both parties.

This is according to the terms of the policy, and
of the certificate of renewal ; and the fact that

the insurance company, by the very terms of

the certificate of renewal, required pajanent

therefor, and that such certificate should be

countersig-ned by the resident agent before it

should become operative, shows that the com-
pany regard the I'enewal as a new contract, made
at their option, and dependent in some degree

upon the judgment and knowledge of such

agent.'*

The plaintiff in error cites against these cases

United States F. d G. Co. v. Citizens' Nat. Bank of

Monticello, 143 S. W., 997, and United States F. dc

G. Co. V. Shepherds' Home Lodge No. 2, 174 S. W.,

487. If these two Kentucky cases adopt a rule con-

trary to our contention, we can only say that they put

themselves in opposition to the decisions we have

cited and in opposition to the generally accepted rule.

While they appear at first blush to be in point ^nd

to sustain the contention of counsel that the original

bond and renewal certificates constitute one con-

tinuous contract, they may nevertheless upon close

consideration be differentiated. In the first place

the Court of Appeals of Kentucky in the Be Jernette

case (De Jernette v. Fidelity & Casualty Co. (Ky.),

33 S. W., 828) had construed a contract and renewals

similar to those in the present case as constituting
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separate and distinct contracts ; and the Court bases

this conclusion upon the fact that renewal certificates

were issued for a definite period, just as they were

issued here. (See Tr., p. 28.) The Court said (p.

829):

"When the bond speaks of acts 'committed
during the continuance of said renewal thereof/

it has reference to the bond as one contract and
the renewals thereof as another and distinct con-

tract. For the fraud or dishonesty of the em-
ployed during the time covered by the bond no
recovery could be had under the renewed con-

tract, nor will the contract of renewal enable the

assured to maintain an action on the bond which
had been barred by the lapse of time.

'

'

Applying the above rule to the facts of the De

Jernette case, the Court there held that notwith-

standing the renewal there could be no recovery upon

the old bond when the loss had not been discovered

within three months after its expiration. Thus the

rule stood in Kentucky when the two later cases were

considered. In each of these cases the conclusion

that the bond and renewals constituted one contin-

uous contract was predicated upon letters written by

the surety company which treated them as one con-

tinuous contract. In other words, the conclusion

was based upon what appeared to be a practical con-

struction given by the parties to the contract. That

the Court did not intend in the later decisions to

overrule the De Jernette case is clearly evident from

the following language in the Shepherds^ Home
Lodge case (174 S. W., 487, 489) where it is said:
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"The letter written b}^ the company on Feb-
ruary 1st, quoted above, treats the present eon-

tract as a 'renewal,' and requests pa^Tnent of

premium, so that a 'continuation certificate or a
new bond' ma}" be issued. The words, 'renewal',

'continuation certificate' and 'new bond' must
have been used synonymously, and the compan}^
clearly intended them as renewals, with the effect

which the court gave them. The officers of the

lodge so considered them, for the certificate of

fidelity, which we have already copied and re-

ferred to, concludes with the statement: 'We
know of no reason why the guaranty bond may
not be continued.'

"We do not believe the facts of this case bj'ing

it within the rule of Be Jernette v. Fidelity d-

Casualty Co., 98 Ky. 558, 33 S. W. 828, 17 Ky.
Law Rep. 1088. In that case indemnity was af-

forded from year to year by renewal receipts,

and it was specifically stated in each that only
the annual period was covered/' (Italics ours.)

Furthermore, it does not appear that the bond in

either of the last two Kentucky cases contained the

provision which is in our bond, as follows (Tr., p.

26):

"That the Company, upon the execution of

this Bond, shall not thereafter be responsible to

the Employer, under any bond previously issued
to the Employer on behalf of said Employe, and
upon the issuance of any Bond subsequent here-
to upon said Employe in favor of said Employer,
all responsibility hereunder shall cease and de-

termine, it being mutually understood that it is

the intention of this provision that but one (the

last) Bond shall be in force at one time, unless
otherwise stipulated between the Employer and
the Company."

Or, if those bonds did contain such a provision no
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consideration was given it. This clause last quoted

means something, and there is no reason why we

should not giv^e it the meaning which its plain lan-

guage implies. It would seem palpably fallacious to

contend that the old bond is in force or that there

could be responsibility under it when it expressly

provides that responsibility under it shall cease and

determine when the new bond is issued.

Reading the clause last quoted, together with the

clause which requires discovery to be made within

six months after the end of the tenn, the meaning

is clear to this effect: At the end of one year, or

upon the issuance of a new bond, there is no liability

for any loss except such as was occasioned during

that year, and at the end of six months after the end

of that year all liabilit}^ ceases for any loss not suf-

fered within the twelve months and discovered with-

in eighteen months. To hold otherwise is to fail to

give effect to the clause quoted.

The plaintiff in error relies with confidence upon

the Tennessee case, First National Bank v. Fidelity

d Guaranty Co., 110 Tenn., 10, 100 Am. St. Rep., 763.

The writer of the brief could not have given careful

consideration to that case or to the language of the

bond construed. The language there is (p. 773) :

** 'Make good and reimburse to the employer
to the extent of seven thousand dollars, and no
further, all and any pecuniary loss sustained by
the emplo3^er, occasioned by the fraud or dishon-

esty on the part of the employe in the employer's
service, and occurring during the continuance of

this bond or any renewal thereof, and discovered
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duriiiaj such coiitiniiance or renewal, or any time

thereafter/ " (Italics ours.)

It will be readily observed that the last phrase dif-

ferentiates the case entirely from the present case,

for there the right to recover for a loss under any

one of the bonds or renewals would only be limited

by the general statute of limitations.

The case of Philadelphia Casualty Co. v. Fech-

heimer, 220 Fed., 401, from the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, referred to by plain-

tiff in error, is by no means in point. There was an

indemnity bond insuring against loss on commercial

accounts. There was a pi'ovision that losses occur-

ring on goods shipped under the old bond would be

covered under the renewal bond: "If this bond is

renewed on or before the date of tennination there-

of by the issuance of a new bond, '

' etc. A new bond

was issued, and the contention was offered that it

was not a renewal of the old bond because it did not

so state expressh^ The attenuation of such a con-

tention is manifest, and the Judge in ^\Titing the

opinion merely says that it is manifest from the

clause above quoted that the renewal contemplated

by the parties was to be by the issuance of a new

bond.

We believe it will serve no useful purpose to en-

cumber the brief further by an analysis of the other

cases to which counsel refers in his brief.

The opinion written by Mr. Justice Lurton and the

opinion written by Judge Taft, referred to in the
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brief, are in cases which bear no analogy whatever

to the case at bar, and an examination will convince

the Court that the same may be said of all the other

cases quoted in support of this particular contention

of counsel. We conclude, therefore, that each re-

newal constituted a new and independent contract

running for one year, and that all liability upon each

one of these contracts for an undiscovered loss occur-

ring during the year terminated at the end of six

months after the end of the year.

The Action of the Court in Rejecting Offer of Evidence.

We believe the fallacy of counsel's contention in

this regard will appear from a statement of what

actually occurred.

We moved to exchide testimony touching any al-

leged loss occurring prior to April 1, 1913, for the

reasons that it appeared from the complaint and the

statement of counsel that no loss was discovered un-

til more than six months subsequent to April 1, 1913.

Counsel for plaintiff in error then made the fol-

lowing offer (Plaintiff's Brief, p. 11) :

"Mr. Roberts: Now, I desire, if the Court
please, to offer at this tune to prove that the re-

newal, or so-called renewal, or what is called by
coimsel the last bond, was given as a renewal, and
was, as a matter of fact, a continuation of the con-

tract of insurance and one of the continuations

by renewal from year to year from 1906, and that

it was agreed between the Miners & Merchants
Bank and the United States Fidelity & Guar-
anty Company that said contract of insurance

should be continued and renewed from vear to
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year, and that the bond or instrument dated

April 1st, 1913, was executed and delivered as a

renewal and continuation of the former con-

tract of insurance; and to prove all the allega-

tions of plaintiff's complaint."

We understand counsel's contention to be that he

was entitled to prove that the bond issued in Novem-

ber, 1913, dated back to April 1, 1913, was given as

a renewal and a continuation of the original contract

of insurance evidenced by the bond dated in 1906.

We are willing to concede the rule that rejected

offers must be considered as proven for the purposes

of such a motion as was made in this case, but we

will not concede that a Court is bound to sit by and

entertain an offer to prove something which is con-

trary to an admitted fact.

The bond dated April 1, 1913, is not a renewal or

continuation of the old contract. It is a new bond,

complete in itself, containing conditions totally un-

like the conditions of the other bond. No construc-

tion or extraneous evidence could make it otherwise

unless it made it a contract entirely different from

what it is.

The plaintiff in error pleaded and relied upon this

new bond, and set it forth in terms in its complaint.

It says in its complaint (see Tr., p. 8) :

"That on the 1st day of April, 1913, the de-

fendant, United States Fidelity & Guaranty
Company, made, executed and delivered to the

plaintiff a certain bond in writing, a copy of

which is hereto attaclied marked Exhibit 'C and
made a part of this com])laint. That said bond
was given by the defendant corporation to the
plaintiff* bank by, through, under and in pursu-
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ance of the original agreement and contract in-

demnifjdng and insnidng said bank as herein-

above stated and as a part of tlie same trans-

action."

The ''transaction" referred to is set forth in para-

graphs IV and V of the complaint (see Tr., pp. 3

and 4), being to the effect that the company agreed

to issne a bond and to keep the same renewed from

year to 3^ear, and further agreed to issue the best

bond and the highest grade of insurance to be had

in that line of suret}^ and fidelity insurance. But,

counsel upon the trial expressly stated that he

would not offer any testimony to the effect that the

company agreed to furnish the most favorable form

of insurance policy. (See Tr., pp. 87 and 105.) There-

fore, all there can be to the agreement is that the

surety company was to keep the insurance renewed

from year to 3^ear. In other words, having issued a

policy in 1906, it would keep this policy renewed from

year to j^ear.

But, in November, 1913, the plaintiff* in error made

an entirely different arrangement with the surety

company, and, for reasons manifest, took an entirel}^

different contract of insurance. Therefore, if there

ever was such an agreement on the part of the surety

company to keep the old policy renewed from year to

year, the plaintiff in ei'ror, of its own volition and in

order to secure a fancied advantage, abandoned that

agreement and took a new and entirely different con-

tract.

It is manifest that the off'er made by counsel was

an off'er to prove that the contract which he had
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pleaded and upon which he relied was something

other and entirely different. In other words, he

pleaded and relied upon one contract and offered to

prove another. We submit that the Court below was

right in declining to entertain such an absurdity.

Plaintiff in error, having accepted the contract

dated April 1, 1913, as it was written, is now estopped

from proving that it is another contract than it pur-

ports to be. For these reasons it is deemed entirely

unnecessary to discuss the various authorities cited

by counsel to the point that oral testimony will be

heard to enlarge or modify the terms of the written

contract.

Of course, it goes without saying that if the con-

tention we have previously made is correct it would

make no difference what counsel proved as to the

agreement to renew or continue the bond of 1906, be-

cause, in any event, all liability under the bond dated

in 1911 and the bond dated in 1912 terminated when

six months had elapsed without the discovery of any

loss.

But is it not a fact that counsel attaches a signifi-

cance to the term "renewal" which it does not de-

serve ? Broadly speaking, perhaps, whenever one who
has had insurance secures another policy, whether

the old policy has lapsed or not, it amounts to a

'^renewal" of the insurance, and in that sense the

term may be applied to any new insurance. Here,

however, we have a case where not only had the policy

lapsed but all liability was at an end. It seems hardly

possible that, whether the new policy be called a re-
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newal or designated by any other term, it could oper-

ate to revivify a liability or responsibility for past

acts which was dead. Yet that, in its last analysis,

must be the plain contention of counsel.

Parole proof would, of course, not be admissible

to vary or enlarge the tei'ms of the contract. Coun-

sel, however, stated that he had written evidence, and

we must take him at his word.

Now, if there was any writing contemporaneous

with the new bond, or even collateral thereto, which

would translate the bond into something other than

what it is upon its face, such writing was as much a

part of the contract as was the bond itself, and in-

stead of pleading and rel,ying upon the bond Exhibit

**C" the plaintiff should have pleaded its entire con-

tract. Failing to do so, it is bound by the contract

it pleaded and limited to such evidence as will sus-

tain that contract and not an entirely different one.

The Plaintiff in Error Has Mistaken Its Remedy.

A reading of the complaint in this action will con-

vince that the plaintiff in error has mistaken its

remedy. It seeks to recover upon a bond which was

not issued, relying upon the contract alleged in

paragraphs IV and V of its complaint. If it be true

that the surety company agreed to issue a bond and

to renew it year by year and did not do so, it should

sue first to have its bond established, and, having

secured the reinstatement of such a bond as it thinks

should have been issued, to sue upon that bond.
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Indeed, it is not easy from a cursory reading of

the complaint to determine just the way the plain-

tiff in error is endeavoring to shape its action. Ac-

cording to paragraph IV of its complaint, there

was an agreement that the surety company would

from year to year keep the insurance in force with-

out "trouble or annoyance to the plaintiff or its

officers, except the payment of the annual premium."

The bond was renewed from time to time and the

premium paid from time to time so that the last

bond terminated April 1, 1913. Then over six

months was permitted to elapse, no renewal or new

bond being issued and no premium paid.

Thereupon and after all rights and obligations

had terminated the parties meet again, and the bond

of November 25, 1913, is issued as evidencing the

contract of the parties. Now it seems to be the

theory that this contract made in November is not

only what it purports to be, to-wit, a contract insur-

ing against the dishonest acts of Mitchell from April

1, 1913, until it should be terminated, but that it is

something more—that it is a contract resurrecting

and re-establishing a liability which had lapsed for

acts occurring in 1911 and 1912. In other words,

that this instrument is not the real contract of the

parties. Plaintiff in error, having brought the ac-

tion as it did and so shaped its pleadings, now as-

serts that it is entitled to prove another and a dif-

ferent contract. We respectfully submit this is not

a question of evidence but involves a question of

procedure.
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The plaintiff in error brought its action upon the

law side of the Court, and now seeks either to re-

cover upon a contract which is not in existence or

to reform the terms of one which is. It is elemen-

tary that this may not be done in the Federal

Courts, but that plaintiff in error should have gone

into equity first to establish or reform its contract

before it sued upon it at law.

But, perhaps there is another possible theory in

the mind of plaintiff in error. It alleges that we

agreed to keep the bank insured against the acts

of Mitchell; this we failed to do. Now, if the bank

had a valid and enforceable contract obligating us

to issue insurance each year and we failed to com-

ply with that contract, by reason whereof plaintiff

in error suffered damages perhaps (and Ave say

"perhaps"), there would be an action against us

to recover such damage. But that would be another

action; and that is exactly what the Court below

had in mind when it said (Tr., p. 118) :

"Now, as to the statement in relation to fail-

ure on the part of the insurance company to re-

new this bond, and that there was an agreement
on their part to keep it in force, that can't ob-

tain here. If there was any negligence here,

the cause of action arose because of the act or
failure of the company to do what it had agreed
to do, and that would be another cause of action.

That would not be this action—but an action

upon a contract. That is upon another ground
or theory, and could not be invoked here.

'

'

Groping as we are to discover the real theory un-

der which plaintiff in error is seeking to recover,
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this may be suggested: That perhaps it is the

theory of plaintiff in error that the last bond was

given as a continuation of the old bond and that it

can recover upon both. This theory would seem to

leave the plaintiif in error in no better predicament,

for surely it can not maintain an action upon both

bonds for the same act. The Judge below under-

stood this when he said (Tr., p. 117) :

"If it is a continuation and a renewal, where
would you be. If it is a renewal, you would have
to recover under the old bond, and disregard the

new one."

To notice further the authorities which the plain-

tiff in error has cited and quoted from would be to

extend this brief beyond the limit which we think

the case demands.

The plan conceived by the plaintiff in error is al-

together too apparent, and we can not believe that

the law will lend countenance to it.

To summarize the questions presented by the rec-

ord in this case, we submit that the judgment of the

Court below must be affirmed for the follomng rea-

sons:

1st: No contention is made by plaintiff in error

in its assignments of error or in its brief that the

loss suffered by the plaintiff through the alleged acts

of "fraud, dishonesty, forgery, theft, larceny, em-

bezzlement, wrongful abstraction or misapplication

or misappropriation or any criminal act" by Mr.

Mitchell subsequent to April 1, 1913, under the last

bond, was in excess of the sum of $688.27, for which

judgment was stipulated in the Court below.
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2nd : That it appears from the statement of coun-

sel that none of the acts charged against Mr. Mitchell

would constitute "larceny or embezzlement" under

the common law of Alaska.

3rd : That it is shown by the record that each re-

newal of the original bond was a new contract, liabil-

ity under w^hich expired six months after the date of

expiration of the renewed bond.

4th : That if we should concede plaintiff in error's

contention that the renewal certificates were not new

contracts but the eifect thereof was to continue in

force the old bond for an additional and not a new

contract period, then the bond expired on April 1,

1913, and no discovery of any loss thereunder was

made within six months after the date of its expira-

tion.

5th: That it is not claimed by plaintiff in error

that there was any agi'eement at the date of the is-

suance of the last bond on November 25, 1913, or at

any time, waiving the provision of the old bond exon-

erating the surety in case of failure to discover

"fraud or dishonesty" amounting to "embezzlement

or larceny" within six months after the date of ex-

piration of the old bond.

6th : Tliat the alleged agreement of April 1, 1906,

by whicli it is alleged the surety compan}^ agreed to

keep the bond renewed from year to year without any

"trouble or annoyance to the plaintiff or its officers,"

if enforceable at all, referred to the original bond and

was waived or abandoned bv the new bond issued
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November 25, 1913, reducing the annual premium

and adopting an entirely new agreement by which

the mutual rights and obligations of the parties were

to be determined.

Respectfully submitted,

HENRY F. McCLURE,
W. T. DOVELL,

Attorneys for Defendant in Error.

McCLURE & McCLURE,
HUGHES, McMICKEN, DOVELL & RAMSEY,

Of Counsel.
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PETITION FOR REHEARING.

Plaintiff in error presents this petition and prays

that a rehearing of this case may be moved and

ordered.

In the decision filed herein July 3, 1916, it was held

that the so-called new or last bond was an independent

contract of insurance, in no way related to the orig-

inal bond, and that under the pleadings and the ad-

missions of counsel there was no continuing insurance,

and that there could be no recovery under the so-

called new bond on account of a loss occurring within

the term of the original bond. It was so held upon

the sole ground that in some respects the terms of the



so-called new or last bond varied from those of the

original bond.

This conclusion was reached without discussion and

presumably without consideration of some of the most

important factors of the case, indicating that the so-

called new or last bond was no more than the last

link in a chain of continuing insurance.

It will be admitted that the last bond is not per se

the contract between the parties. At most it is a

mere piece of evidence indicating with more or less

conclusiveness what the contract was. The degree of

its evidential conclusiveness depends upon the circum-

stances of the case.

The so-called new bond is not the only written in-

strument in the case calculated to evidence the nature

and scope of the contract existing between the parties.

There is the written application delivered to the

surety company in 1906, on which the original bond

was issued. There is the original bond (No. 450)

issued April i, 1906, insuring the bank for the "term

mentioned (one year) or any subsequent renewal of

such term." There are the six annual "continuation

certificates" for the years 1907, 1908, 1909, 1910,

191 1 and 1912, each ^'continuing in force bond T.

4S0" for the term of one year. There is the bank's

letter to the surety company written in November,

1913, concerning the failure of the surety company to

issue the customary "continuation certificate" on April

I, 1913, for the year 1913-1914 and insisting that the
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"continuation" should be as of that date. Then there

is the so-called new bond issued in November, 1913,

but dated back to April i, 1913, pursuant to the

bank's demand.

Clearly all of these writings have an evidential bear-

ing upon the contractual relation of the parties and

upon the question as to whether the nature and scope

of that relation subsequent to April i, 1913, was

distinct and different from that existing theretofore.

They must all be considered together before the true

evidential significance and real legal effect of any one

can be determined. We have here either one indi-

visible contract for continuing insurance evidenced

by all of these instruments, as contended by plaintiff

in error, or two distinct contracts, the second or latter

evidenced alone by the so-called new bond, as con-

tended by defendant in error. How can the court

determine that question without giving due considera-

tion to all of these written instruments?

The intention of the parties must be sought. That

alone is the contract. All of these writings tend to

reveal that intention. They must be all considered,

and not alone as distinct evidential matters, but in re-

spect to their relation one to the other as well. The
so-called new bond came last in point of time, and,

of course, as a mere writing, stands alone. But con-

sidered with the others and in the light of the con-

tinuing insurance previously in force, should this last

writing be given the efifect of merely continuing or
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the parties?

Here is no question of the parol rule, but rather due

consideration of all the written evidence bearing upon

the intention of the parties which is the contract; no

question of varying the terms of this last written in-

strument, but determining what its terms signify when

read with these other written instruments and in the

light of the situation in which it was executed.

There are, besides these previous writings, two facts

connected with the execution of the so-called new

bond which should also be considered in determining

whether it should be said to evidence a new contract

or a mere continuance of the original bond. The last

bond was issued without any suggestion or require-

ment that the bank make a new application for in-

surance with the customary representations and prom-

ises and warranties. Furthermore, the circumstances

under which the last bond was issued were of the

surety company's own making. Prior to 1913 all of

the business between the parties had been transacted in

Seattle. The officers of the bank were there, the orig-

inal bond was written there and all of the six annual

"continuation certificates" were issued there. Shortly

before April i, 191 3, the surety company changed its

Seattle agent and instead of collecting the premium

for the ensuing year of 1913-1914 from the officers

of the bank in Seattle, as had always theretofore been

done, the new agent mailed the premium-due notice
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guilty employee returned the notice with the state-

ment that no further insurance was desired. In No-

vember, 1 91 3, it having come to the knowledge of the

officers of the bank that the premium for the year

1913-1914 had not been paid, they wrote as above

stated demanding an explanation and a continuance

of the insurance. The surety company acknowledged

its responsibility for the situation by immediately issu-

ing the last bond without the customary application

therefor and dating it back to April i, 1913. There

is another fact that has a bearing upon the interpre-

tation the last bond should receive. Its issuance was

the result of the adoption of a new form of bond by

the surety company. Its simpler form and more lib-

eral terms were doubtless intended to appeal to the

fidelity insuring public. The variance between its

terms and those of the original bond will be con-

sidered later.

This appeal is from the judgment of the lower

court following its ruling sustaining an objection to

the introduction of any and all evidence on behalf of

plaintiff and holding as a matter of law that there

could be no recovery on account of any loss occurring

prior to April i, 1913, the date of the new bond.

This court has affirmed that judgment upon the

ground that the bond of April i, 1913, was '^a new

and independent contract of insurance" for the reason

that its terms were in some respects different from
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that the so-called new bond was by this court con-

strued and interpreted in connection with the original

bond and the six "continuation certificates" which con-

tinued it in force up to April i, 1913. There seems

to have been a mere comparison of the two bonds.

Nor was any consideration given to the circumstances

of the issuance of the new bond. It was held to be

"a new and independent contract of insurance" because

its terms were broader than those of the original

bond.

But its broader terms necessarily included the less

broad terms of the original bond. Furthermore, re-

covery is not sought under any enlargement of the

terms of the original bond but rather strictly within

tht narrower obligations of the old bond which were

necessarily embraced and included within the broader

obligations of the new bond.

The enlargement of the obligation of the surety

company under the new bond as compared with the

old bond can not bar recovery if it should be said from

a consideration of the entire transaction that the new

bond was given for the purpose and with the inten-

tion of further continuing the continuing insurance

theretofore for seven successive years in force.

It is the contention of the plaintiff in error that there

was but one transacion, one insurance and one con-

tract. That major issue is clearly made by the plead-

ings and the admissions of counsel in their statements
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ruling upon the motion to exclude and plaintiff's offer

of proof. And that major issue as to whether the new

bond was no more than the last link in an unbroken

chain of continuing insurance, is in no wise dependent

upon the allegations of the complaint as to a primary

agreement for continuing insurance apart from the

written instruments executed for its effectuation. The

law makes the issue for us out of the interwoven writ-

ten context of the entire transaction beginning in the

spring of 1906 and ending in the fall of 1913.

Beyond all possible peradventure the original bond

(No. 450) insuring against loss "during the term

above mentioned (one year) or any subsequent re-

newal of said term," provided for continuing insur-

ance. Beyond all possible peradventure the six "Con-

tinuation Certificates" "continuing in force Bond T.

450" did as a matter of fact and law continue that in-

surance to April I, 1 91 3. From April i, 1906, to

April I, 1913, there was but one bond, viz: "Bond T.

450," but one insurance and but one contract. That

insurance was continuing insurance and that contract

was for continuing insurance.

The transaction was none the less single because

of the recurring annual payment of premiums and

issuance of "continuation certificates." The minds of

the parties had clearly met upon the contractual core

of continuing insurance and everything done orig-



8

inally and thereafter from year to year was by way of

effectuating that mutual core purpose."

That was the situation and contractual relation

down to April i, 191 3. The bank has done absolutely

nothing since that date by way of changing that sit-

uation and that contractual relation. Whatever has

been done to effect a change has been done by the

surety company who now pleads its own act as an

excuse for refusing to fulfil its obligations after taking

the bank's premium money.

It was clearly the fault of the surety company that

the premium was not collected on April i, 1913, and

a "continuation certificate" issued as had been done

every year for seven years. It was the rankest kind

of negligence for the surety company to send the

premium-due notice to Mitchell. It was not even

addressed to the bank at Ketchikan but to the insured

employee. This is admitted by counsel for the surety

(Tr., p. 109). This negligence the surety company

acknowledged and undertook to cure when in re-

sponse to the complaint and demand of the bank in

November, 1913, it issued the so-called new bond

without application and dated it back to dovetail with

the last "continuation certificate."

What was it that the bank demanded in November,

1913? A new bond? No. A new contract of in-

surance? No. A more liberal contract? No. Coun-
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said (Tr., p. 80) :

"Then in November some time they come to

us and say, 'How is it that that bond was not

issued in April? We wanted that bond.' Of
course they had not paid any premium for any

bond, but they said, 'We want that bond, and will

you kindly write it and date it back to April ist/
''

The statement of counsel for the bank as to this

matter is as follows:

"The bank here at Seattle had procured that

bond, in the first instance. It had paid the pre-

mium, and the business had all been transacted

here, and but for the change of the agency, to

which counsel referred, that renewal certificate

would have been issued by the old agency. Then
we will offer evidence to show, that it was not

ourselves who made the discovery that this was
not renewed, but that it was made by the old

agent of the company, who then went to this com-
pany, and asked them—called their attention to it,

and they agreed with him that it should be re-

newed, and he went to the bank, and asked them
if they knew this bond had not been renewed.
That is the way they got the information. The
bank had depended solely upon the surety com-
pany to keep it renewed. No application had
been given. It is the absolute requirement of this

company and of all companies, that upon the

execution of a new bond, a written application

must be given. None was taken in this case. The
company treated it as a renewal and dated it as a

renewal—dated it as of the date they should have
renewed it originally."
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The contractual relation between the parties calling

for continuing insurance having been established and

without break maintained down to April i, 1913,

that relation and that contract and that continuing

insurance could be changed to a new contractual rela-

tion on the basis of broken term insurance only by

the assenting action of both parties. The original

bond, No. 450, unquestionably bound the surety com-

pany to give the bank continuing insurance. The six

"continuation certificates" so far from evidencing in-

dependent contracts for broken annual term insur-

ance, by their terms expressly recognized the obliga-

tion under "Bond No. T. 450" for continuing insur-

ance. They each expressly ''continue in force Bond

T. 430." And therein by their express terms sharply

distinguished themselves upon the premium receipts

or certificates held to evidence independent annual

term contracts in the cases cited and relied upon by

the surety company of the class represented by

De Jeanette v. Fid. & Cas. Co., 98 Ky., 558,

33S. W, 828;

Fia. Cent. etc. Co. v. Am. Surety Co., 99 Fed.,

674;

Proctor Coal Co. v. U. S. F. & G. Co., 124

Fed., 424.

The contract for continuing insurance being thus

firmly established, and being in writing, was unques-

tionably maintained down to April i, 191 3. Was it



II

then or thereafter changed or modified? and if so

how? Certainly not by any act or assent of the bank.

In November, 1913, we find the bank standing firmly

upon its contract rights and insisting that it was enti-

tled to "that bond." They write, "How is it that that

bond was not issued in April?" To their non-techni-

cal minds the "continuation certificate" was "that

bond." "We want that bond, will you kindly write

it and date it back to April ist?" The old agent of

the company had discovered that the April premium

had not been paid and the customary "continuation

certificate" issued, and after taking it up with the

surety company and the company having admitted

that the bond should be renewed, called the matter

to the attention of the officers of the bank.

Clearly the bank was standing and insisting upon

its right under the written contract to a continuation

of the insurance for the year 1913-1914. It is equally

clear that the surety company then intended that the

bank should believe that it was getting what it de-

manded under the existing contract, viz.: continuing

insurance for the year 1913-1914. It promptly ac-

ceded to the demand for "that bond" by issuing the

so-called new bond, without a new application and

further post dated it to match the requirements of

continuing insurance. Clearly the bank thought and

believed that it was getting what it demanded, viz.:

its right under the existing contract to continuing

insurance. And as clearly the surety company wished
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and intended that the bank should so think and be-

lieve. They took the bank's premium money for the

year 1913-1914 and gave it what? A policy of contin-

uing insurance! A policy of indefinite term, termina-

ble only upon three contingencies, viz.: (i) Upon

written notice by the bank, (2) Upon written notice

by the surety company, (3) Upon non-payment of

annual premiums, (4) Upon discovery of loss through

the employee insured.

The surety company contends now that the new

bond while it was for continuing insurance did not

continue the continuing insurance unquestionably

called for by the earlier contract; that by its juggling

substitution of the so-called new bond for the cus-

tomary "continuation certificate" it was enabled to

step out from under its contractual obligation for con-

tinuing insurance and assume its smug stand upon a

new and independent contract of insurance. That

while the original bond called for continuing insur-

ance and the new bond calls for continuing insur-

ance the chain of continuity was broken by the giving

of the new bond.

It will be admitted that the bank requested and

demanded and thought it got continuing insurance in

which there was no break. The surety company must

admit that it knew the bank so thought and believed.

But they say the foolish bank lost its right to continu-

ing insurance by accepting the new bond instead of

the customary "continuation certificate"; that the more



13

liberal terms of this so-called new bond must in law

prevent its being considered as a continuance of the

original bond.

This new form of bond adopted by the surety com-

pany was calculated and doubtless intended to be

attractive to the fidelity insuring public. It was a

well calculated lure for renewal as well as new busi-

ness. Its purpose was to get more business and more

money. It is claimed by the surety company that

its variant terms make it, in this case, a new and inde-

pendent contract of insurance. That notwithstanding

the request and demand of the bank for "that bond"

of continuing insurance under the existing contract

represented by the original bond, and notwithstanding

the bank thought it was getting "that bond" of con-

tinuing insurance when it paid the renewal premium

for the year 1913-1914, and notwithstanding the surety

company pretended to accede to the demand of the

bank and without requiring or suggesting a new ap-

plication for insurance issued the new bond and

dated it back to correspond to and connect with the

last "continuation certificate," the so-called new bond

by reason of its broader terms became and was a

new and independent contract of insurance, in no way

connected with or a continuance of the continuing

insurance called for by the original bond. And with

a truly brazen effrontery the surety company asks this

court to place the seal of its approval upon this flim-

flam game and say that in spite of the bank's un-
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doubted contract right to continuing insurance, and

the payment of its premium money in the belief that

it was getting continuing insurance, the surety com-

pany by the substitution of this so-called new bond

for the customary and stipulated "continuation cer-

tificate," successfully "put one over" on the bank and

eluded its obligation and liability under the original

bond and its six formal "continuations." In the lan-

guage of Kipling that is "a damned tough bullet to

chew" and it is here suggested that this court is not

required to masticate it.

Let us examine the variant terms of this so-called

new bond which according to the surety company's

present contention so deftly and completely emascu-

lates the right of the bank to indemnity notwith-

standing its payment for eight years of the price of

such indemnity. It is identical with the original bond

in that it is issued to the bank and insures the fidelity

of a certain employee. It is identical with the orig-

inal bond in that it provides for continuing insurance,

conditioned only upon the payment of the annual

premiums. It is identical with the original bond in

the amount of the insurance. The only difference be-

tween the two bonds is that to be discovered in the

liability clause. The original bond insured the bank

against loss by reason of the fraud or dishonesty of

the employee amounting to embezzlement or larceny.

The guaranty of the so-called new bond is against loss

occasioned by any act of fraud, dishonesty, forgery.
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theft, larceny, embezzlement, wrongful abstraction, or

misapplication or misappropriation or any criminal

act of the employee.

It is sufficiently evident that the narrower liability

of the original bond is embraced and included in the

broader liability of the new bond. If the so-called

new bond should be held to continue the continuing

insurance provided by the original bond it would

amount to a continuance of the liability fixed by the

original bond as to losses occurring prior to April i,

1913, coupled with the broader liability provided by

the new bond for any loss occurring subsequent to

April I, 1913. Such a construction of the new bond

would satisfy the right of the bank to a continuance

of the continuing insurance provided for by the orig-

inal bond and at the same time give the bank the

benefit of the more liberal terms of the new policy as

to any loss that might occur subsequent to April i,

191 3. That would be "the more reasonable interpre-

tation, and accord more nearly with the justice of

the matter" {Am. Credit Ind. Co. v. Champion, 103

Fed., 609), for not only should the surety company

be held to have intended to keep faith under the

original bond, but it should be presumed to have in-

tended to extend to this old customer the benefit of

its new and more liberal policy of insurance as to

future losses.

Was not that the intention? May we not infer

as a matter of law that the surety company wanted
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and intended to play fair, and that its present notion

as to the so-called new bond being a second and inde-

pendent contract for continuing insurance was later

born of the exigency of a threatened $25,000 loss?

It is an accepted rule that a contract of this char-

acter will be construed strictly against the surety com-

pany and in favor of the party insured. The reason

for the rule is apparent in high degree of technical

knowledge concerning the general subject-matter pre-

sumably possessed by the insurer and the presumably

relative meager equipment possessed by the insured for

a technical estimate of the legal effect of policy forms

tendered him. The insured has no choice but to

accept or reject the forms of policy tendered by the

insurance company. He can take them or leave them.

If he wants insurance he must accept what is ofifered.

There is no chance for him to insist upon a form

of policy to his liking. On the other hand the insur-

ance company incubates its policy forms much as a

spider spins its web. The controlling idea being to

put out a form that combines the greatest seeming

liberality with the least real liability. That being

naturally true the courts have reasonably held that

such contracts will be strictly construed against the

party that prepares them and forces their acceptance

by the insuring public.

Viewed in the light of this reasonable rule, and of

the existing written contract for continuing insurance

represented by the original bond, and its six ''continua-
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tion certificates," and the fact that the bank demanded

a further continuance of such continuing insurance,

and the further fact that, in writing the new bond in

response to that demand and without new application

therefor and by post dating it to match the last "con-

tinuation certificate," the surety company led the bank

to believe that it was getting the continuing insurance

demanded, a just construction of the new bond, in-

cluding as it does within its more liberal terms the

narrower liability of the original bond, should NOT

hold the new bond to be an independent contract of

insurance totally disconnected with the preceeding

seven-year contract for continuing insurance.

Every contract has its object and its subject. The

object of the contract naturally constitutes its dominant

note. If there be uncertainty or ambiguity as to its

terms, or, if, where several writings evidence the con-

tract, as here, their true relation each to the other is

a matter of uncertainty or doubt, the object of the con-

tract or purpose to be served should be consulted as

evidencing the intended significance of the terms em-

ployed.

There can be no manner of doubt in this case that

from first to last the object of the bank was continuing

insurance. The first bond provided for it. The six

"continuation certificates" provided for it. The new

bond provided for it. The sole question presented by

this record is as to whether the object and purpose of

the new bond for continuing insurance was to con-
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tinue the continuing insurance provided by the orig-

inal bond, or to initiate a new and independent con-

tract for continuing insurance altogether detached

from and disconnected with the pre-existing contract

for continuing insurance. The bank says that it was

all one transaction having the single object of con-

tinuing insurance. The surety company contends that

the object of continuing insurance under the original

bond had been completely consummated and that the

new bond constituted a new contract notwithstanding

its object was also continuing insurance; that there was

no connection between the object of the original bond

contract for continuing insurance and the object of the

new bond for continuing insurance. The falsity of this

later born conception of the surety company is mani-

fest upon the face of its welching contention.

There can be no doubt or question about the bank's

understanding of the so-called new bond, or that it

thought and believed it was paying for and getting

continuing insurance. Similarly there can be no doubt

or question about the surety company's understanding

that the bank paid its 1913-1914 premium with that

thought and belief. And the sole question raised by

this appeal is as to whether the surety company

should be permitted to "shift the cut" on the bank and

side-step its liability when a loss is discovered.

Fidelity insurance is necessarily and essentially a

gamble. The surety company wagers the amount of
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the penalty of its bond against the premiums provided

for on the average honesty of men. Rarely it loses;

generally it wins. The gamble is legitimate on both

sides. The employer can afford to add the premium

to the overhead charge for the sake of the assurance.

Experience has demonstrated that the surety com-

pany on a broad average can afford to make the bet.

There are square roulette wheels where the fixed

percentage makes the game profitable for the banker.

There is a crooked wheel known as a "mule's ear"

where a covertly manipulated needle out-thrust in the

runway of the little ball forestalls the heavier losses.

It is here submitted that this so-called new bond with

its more liberal terms was, in this situation, a covertly

manipulated needle in the runway of the surety com-

pany's liability. If this "mule's ear" be within the

law then nothing is required but a certain amount of

dexterous manipulation to make fidelity insurance a

"sure thing" game.

The brief of plaintiff in error heretofore filed

herein affords ample grounds for reversal. It is con-

ceived that the principal function of a petition for

rehearing is to make the court really want to review

its former ruling. This is most likely to be accom-

plished by indicating that the former decision amounts

to a miscarriage of justice. That appearing it is as-

sumed that the court will gladly embrace the oppor-

tunity of reconsidering the law of the case with a view



20

of determining if indeed the law really requires the

seeming miscarriage of justice.

There is really but one legal proposition here in-

volved that was not fully and exhaustively considered

in the brief of plaintiff in error. That is, that in con-

struing a contract the intention is to be collected, not

from detached parts of the instrument, but from the

whole of it; and where several instruments are made

as a part of one transaction, they will be read to-

gether, and each will be considered with reference to

the other.

9 Cyc, 580, and many cases cited in Note 4, in-

cluding

Pittsburg, etc. Co. v. Keokuk, etc. Bridge Co.,

155 U. S., 156;

Baily V. Hannibal, etc. R. C, 17 Wall., 96;

Telfer v. Russ, 60 Fed., 224;

Thompson v. Beal, 48 Fed., 614;

Woodwards v. Jewell, 25 Fed., 689;

Lamb v. Davenport, i Sawy., 609;

Wildman v. Taylor, Fed. Cas. No. 17,654.

It is respectfully submitted that the decision of this

case amounts to a miscarriage of justice, and that if

the so-called new bond be read and considered in con-

nection with the other written evidences of the inten-
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tion of the parties, it should not be held to be an in-

dependent contract of insurance.

JOHN W. ROBERTS,
GEORGE L. SPRIK,

W. H. METSON,
Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

METSON, DREW & MACKENZIE,
Of Counsel.

This is to certify that in my judgment the fore-

going petition for rehearing is well founded and it

is not interposed for delay.

W. H. METSON,
Attorney for Plaintiff in Error.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

In the Matter of R. S. MILLER,
A Bankrupt.

Petition for Review and Revision of Order of

District Court.

PETITION FOR REVIEW AND REVISON OF
ORDER OF DISTRICT COURT REFUS-
ING TO OPEN THE ABOVE PROCEED-
ING AND TO COMPEL THE BANKRUPT
TO AMEND HIS SCHEDULE OF ASSETS.

To the Honorable Judges of the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

:

The petition of Olmsted-Stevenson Company, a

corporation, organized and existing under the laws

of the State of Montana, respectfully shows:

I.

That on or about the 5th day of February, 1914,

the above bankrupt, R. S. Miller, voluntarily filed

his petition in bankruptcy in the District Court of

the United States in and for the District of Mon-

tana, together vnith schedules of his debts, assets and

property.

n.

That thereafter, by order of the said Court, duly

made and given, the said R. S. Miller, was adjudged

a bankrupt, and subsequently surrendered to said

Court certain property, which he claimed to be all

the property not exempt under the laws of the State

of Montana, of which he was the owner at the time

said petition was filed.
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III.

That thereafter, and in the month of April, 1914,

the said R. S. Miller was discharged from bank-

ruptcy by the order of said District Court of the

United States in and for the District of Montana.

That your petitioner was recognized as a creditor

of said R. S. Miller, bankrupt, and its name inserted

in the schedule of creditors and said schedule fur-

ther shows that there was due to your petitioner

from said bankrupt, R. S. Miller, at the time of the

filing of said schedule, the sum of Nine Hundred and

Sixty-five and 30/100 ($965.30) dollars.

That the trustee in bankruptcy of the said bank-

rupt, R. S. Miller, has accepted proof of your peti-

tioner's claim against the estate of R. S. Miller,

bankrupt, in the sum of Nine Hundred and Sixty-

five and 30/100 ($965.30) dollars.

IV.

That thereafter and early in the month of Octo-

ber, 1914, your petitioner filed in the above-entitled

cause in said District Court of the United States,

in and for the District of Montana, its duly veri-

fied petition asking that the bankruptcy proceedings

herein be opened, and that the bankrupt, R. S. Mil-

ler, be ordered and compelled to file an amended

schedule of his assets and property, which petition,

(omitting the heading and formal parts thereof),

was as follows:
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Petition to Open Bankruptcy Proceedings and Com-

pel Bankrupt to Amend His Schedule of Assets

and Property.

PETITION TO OPEN BANKRUPTCY PRO-
CEEDINGS AND COMPEL THE BANK-
RUPT TO AMEND HIS SCHEDULE OF
ASSETS AND PROPERTY.

**To the Honorable Court Aforesaid:

Comes now the Olmsted-Stevenson Company, a

corporation, and respectfully shows to the Court:

I.

That said Olmsted-Stevenson Company, during all

the times hereinafter mentioned, has been and still

is a corporation, organized, created and existing un-

der and by virtue of the laws of the State of Mon-

tana and engaged in the mercantile business, with

its principal place of business at Dillon, Beaverhead

County, Montana.

11.

That on the 5th day of February, 1914, the above-

named bankrupt, R. S. Miller, voluntarily filed his

petition in bankruptcy in this Court, together with

the schedules of his debts, assets and property.

III.

That thereafter, by an order of said Court, duly

made and given, said R. S. Miller, was adjudged a

bankrupt and subsequently thereto surrendered to

said Court, certain property, which he claimed to

be all of the property not exempt under the laws of

the State of Montana, of which he was the owner

at the time said petition was filed.
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IV.

That in the schedule of debts owing by said bank-

rupt, as filed in this court, on the said 5th day of

February, 1914, was included as one of his creditors,

your petitioner, the Olmsted-Stevenson Company, a

corporation, and it was alleged in said schedule that

the amount of indebtedness due from said bankrupt,

to said Olmsted-Stevenson Company, was the sum
of Nine Hundred Sixty-five and 30/100 Dollars

($965.30).

V.

That thereafter and within the time allowed by

law, said Olmsted-Stevenson Company, duly proved

its claim and caused the same to be filed in said es-

tate and that said claim as proved and filed was of

the amount of Nine Hundred and Sixty-five and

30/100 Dollars ($965.30).

VI.

That thereafter and on the 18th day of September,

1914, a dividend was paid out of the assets of said

estate of said bankrupt and your petitioner, the

Olmsted-Stevenson Company, received the sum of

Nine and 65/100 dollars ($9.65) which was by it

duly credited upon its proved claim, and after such

credit was allowed there remained and still remains

due from said bankrupt to the said Olmsted-Steven-

son Company, the sum of Nine Hundred Fifty-five

and 65/100 Dollars ($955.65).

VII.

That accompanying said bankrupt's petition in

bankruptcy, was a schedule of said bankrupt's as-

sets, but said schedule omitted therefrom, a crop of
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wheat, which had theretofore been seeded upon and

was then growing upon the lands of said R. S. Mil-

ler, and which had been planted and seeded between

the month of August, 1913, and the date of the filing

of said petition, and which said crop of wheat then

growing upon said land of said R. S. Miller has,

since the filing of said petition, matured, been har-

vested and threshed and said crop yielded approxi-

mately one thousand bushels of wheat, of the value

of approximately Nine Hundred Dollars ($900.00).

VIII.

That the said bankrupt failed and neglected to

include said growing crop of wheat in said schedule

of the property owned by him and that said crop of

wheat should have been included therein and he

should have shown the same to be of the value of

Nine Hundred Dollars ($900.00).

IX.

That no part of said crop of wheat and no part of

the value thereof was ever administered in said es-

tate for the benefit of the creditors and that said

property should have been included in said schedule

and thereafter administered in said estate and div-

idends paid to the respective creditors, whose claims

were proved, out of the amount realized from the sale

of said crop.

X.

That your petitioner is informed and believes and

and therefore alleges that on or about the day of

April, 1914, by an order duly made and given, in the

above-entitled court, said R. S. Miller was dis-

charged in bankruptcy and your petitioner further
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avers that at the time of said discharge, said estate of

said bankrupt had not been fully administered and

there remained to be administered the said crop of

said wheat of the value of aforesaid and that since

said date and prior to the date of the filing of this

petition, said property has not been surrendered by

said R. S. Miller to the trustee in bankruptcy or the

referee in bankruptcy, for the benefit of the creditors

and said R. S. Miller has wrongfully retained said

property for his own use and benefit and failed and

neglected to surrender the same or any part thereof

to the said estate, for the benefit of the creditors of

said R. S. Miller, bankrupt.

XI.

That at the time of filing the schedule of property

owned by him, as aforesaid, and at all times there-

after, the said R. S. Miller, knowingly, and fraud-

ulently, concealed said property, and knowingly and

fraudulently failed and neglected to include the same

in the schedule of property filed by him, and failed to

surrender the same for the benefit of his creditors,

and that said property was not delivered up or sur-

rendered by said Miller, for the use or benefit of said

creditors.

XII.

That neither your petitioner, nor any of its officers

or employees had knowledge of the failure of said R.

S. Miller to include said crop in his schedule of prop-

erty until on or about the 18th day of September,

1914, upon which date your petitioner received the

aforesaid dividend and thereafter instituted investi-

gation to ascertain whether said Miller had sur-
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rendered all of his property to the trustee in bank-

ruptcy and all of the property which said creditors

were entitled to have administered in said estate,

and thereupon learned that said crop of wheat, har-

vested and threshed as aforesaid, had not been in-

cluded as assets of said Miller, in his schedule, or ad-

ministered in said bankrupt's estate and shortly

thereafter your petitioner prepared an application to

have said schedule amended so as to include said crop

of grain and subsequently ascertained by an order

duly made and given, said Miller was discharged in

bankruptcy on or about the day of April, 1914,

and that said application so to amend said schedule

could not be filed until said matter was by an order

of said Court opened and leave therefor obtained.

WHEREFORE, your petitioner prays that said

matter be reopened and that said Miller be required

to amend his schedule of property owned by him at

the time of filing his petition in bankruptcy, so as to

include said crop of wheat and that said Miller be re-

quired to deliver up said crop of wheat or any

thereof, which is in his possession, to a trustee in

bankruptcy to be appointed by said court for that

purpose, and in the event that any of said wheat has

been disposed of or appropriated to the use of said

Miller, that he be required to account for and pay to

the trustee in bankruptcy, the value thereof and that

said property be administered in said eestate as if it

had been included in said schedule when the same

was filed and for such other and further relief as to
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the Court may seem proper and just.

OLMSTED-STEVENSON COMPANY,
A Corporation,

By B. N. STEVENSON,
Its Secretary-Treasurer.

(Duly verified)."

V.

That thereafter and on or about the 29th day of

October, 1914, Frank W. Haskins, the duly ap-

pointed, qualified and acting Referee in bankruptcy,

in said District Court of Montana, regularly made

his order requiring the said bankrupt to appear be-

fore him, as such Referee, on the 7th day of Novem-

ber, 1914, at 2 o'clock in the afternoon of said day, to

show cause, if any he had, why said bankruptcy pro-

ceedings should not be opened and the said bankrupt

required to file an amended schedule of his said as-

sets and property, which said order of said Referee,

(omitting the heading and formal parts thereof),

was as follows:

Order of Referee, etc., in Bankruptcy Directing

Bankrupt to Show Cause Why He Should not be

Required to File an Amended Schedule.

"Whereas, the Olmsted-Stevenson Company,

a corporation, has filed herein a petition alleging

that the above-named bankrupt has concealed

certain assets and not included the same in his

schedule filed herein, and asks that the said case

be reopened and the bankrupt required to amend

the schedule to include a crop of wheat which is

alleged to be in his possession, and to be required
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to deliver the same over to the Trustee in bank-
ruptcy.

It is therefore ordered that the said bank-
rupt, R. S. Miller, be, and he is hereby required
to be and appear before the undersigned Ref-
eree, 16 West Broadway, Butte, Montana, on the
7th day of November, A. D., 1914, at two o'clock
in the afternoon, then and there to show cause,
if any he has, why he should not be required to
file an amended schedule to include said prop-
erty so alleged to have been withheld, and
further to deliver the same to the Trustee in
bankruptcy herein.

It is further ordered, that service of this or-
der be made by the mailing of a copy of this
order to the Attorney for said bankrupt Henry
G. Rodgers, Esq., and also a copy of said order to
the attorneys for said company, the Olmsted-
Stevenson Company, to wit, Norris, Hurd &
Smith; that such copies be enclosed within re-
turn and penalty envelopes, addressed to said
attorneys at Dillon, Montana.

Dated Oct. 29, 1914.

FRANK W. HASKINS,
Referee in Bankruptcy."
VI.

That on or about the 7th day of November, 1914,
the said bankrupt, R. S. Miller, appeared before
said Referee and filed in said bankruptcy proceed-
ings, in said District Court of the United States, in
and for the District of Montana, his answer to said
petition of your petitioners, which answer, (omitting
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the heading and formal parts thereof), was as fol-

lows:

[Answer.]

"Now comes the above-named bankrupt, R. S.

Miller, and for answer to the petition of

Olmsted-Stevenson Company, a corporation, ad-

mits, denies and alleges:

First.

Admits the allegations set out and contained in

the first paragraph of said petition.

Second.

Admits the allegations set out and contained in

paragraph second of said petition.

Third.

Replying to paragraph three of said petition, ad-

mits that thereafter, by order of said Court, duly

made and given, he was adjudged a bankrupt and

subsequently thereto surrendered to said Court, cer-

tain property which he claimed to be all of the prop-

erty not exempt under the laws of the State of Mon-

tana, and the United States, of which he was the

owner at the time said petition was filed, and at the

time he was adjudicated a bankrupt as aforesaid.

Fourth.

Admits the allegations set out and contained in

paragraph four of said petition.

Fifth.

Admits the allegations set out and contained in

paragraph five of said petition.

Sixth.

Admits the allegations set out and contained in

paragraph six of said petition.
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Seven.

Denies each and every allegation set out and con-

tained in paragraph seven of said petition, except

that this answering bankrupt admits that at the time

he tiled his petition in bankruptcy and at the time

he was adjudged a bankrupt, that there had there-

tofore been seeded during the summer and fall of

1913, a crop of winter Avheat, and said crop so planted

was at said times in the ground upon lands occupied

by this bankrupt as a homestead entry under the

homestead laws of the United States, but that upon

the date of the filing of said petition and upon the

date of the adjudication of bankruptcy, final proof

had not been made upon said land so held under a

homestead entry as aforesaid or any part thereof;

that said crop was harvested and threshed sometime

after the 1st day of July, 1914, and that said crop

yielded approximately Nine Hundred and Eighty-

seven bushels of w^heat, of the value of approximately

Eight Hundred and Thirty-eight and 95/100 Dollars.

Eighth.

Denies each and every allegation set out and con-

tained in paragraph eight of said petition.

Ninth.

Denies each and every allegation set out and con-

tained in paragraph nine of said petition, except

that it is admitted that no part of the crop of wheat

planted upon the lands occupied under a homestead

entry as aforesaid was ever administered in said es-

tate for the benefit of creditors.

Tenth.

Denies each and every allegation set out and con-
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tained in the tenth paragraph of said petition, except

that it is admitted that on the 20th day of April, 1914,

by an order duly made and given in the above-en-

titled court, this bankrupt was discharged in bank-

ruptcy; that the estate of this bankrupt at the time

of said discharge had not been fully administered,

and it is further admitted that said crop has not been

surrendered to the Trustee in bankruptcy or the

Referee in bankruptcy for the benefit of creditors.

Eleventh.

Denies each and every allegation set out and con-

tained in paragraph eleven of said petition, except

that it is admitted said crop has not been surrendered

for the benefit of creditors.

Twelfth.

Denies each and every allegation set out and con-

tained in paragraph twelve of said petition.

Further answering said petition on file herein, and

as an affirmative defense thereto, this bankrupt

avers

:

First.

That said Olmsted-Stevenson Company, during all

the times herein mentioned, has been and still is, a

corporation organized, created and existing under

and by virtue of the laws of the State of Montana,

and engaged in the mercantile business, with its

principal place of business at Dillon, Beaverhead

County, Montana, and that at all of said times, B. N.

Stevenson was the secretary-treasurer of said cor-

poration and Jos. C. Smith was one of the attorneys

for said corporation, representing its interest as a

creditor of this bankrupt.
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Second.

That on the 5th day of February, A. D. 1914, this

bankrupt voluntarily filed his petition in bankruptcy

in this court, together with the schedules of his debts,

assets and property, and upon said date was adjudi-

cated a bankrupt.

Third.

That thereafter, on the 4th day of March, A. D.

1914, one Charles W. Conger was appointed trustee

of the estate of this bankrupt, and that thereafter

the said Charles W. Conger duly qualified and en-

tered upon the discharge of his duties as such

Trustee, and upon the 31st day of March, A. D. 1914,

said Trustee duly made an order setting apart to this

bankrupt his exempt property under the laws of the

State of Montana and the laws of the United States,

including among other property, said real estate so

held under said homestead entry as aforesaid, and

that thereafter on the 20th day of April, A. D. 1914,

an order was duly made and given, discharging this

bankrupt.

Fourth.

That in schedule A, accompanying and being a part

of this bankrupt's petition in bankruptcy, said

schedule giving and containing a statement of all

creditors whose claims are and were unsecured, there

was entered and set forth the claim of the said

Olmsted-Stevenson Company, the petitioning cred-

itor herein, in the manner required by law.

Fifth.

That in schedule B (1), being a statement of all

real estate belonging to said bankrupt, which said
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schedule was a part of and accompanied the said

petition of this bankrupt, was set forth and con-

tained certain real estate situated in Beaverhead

County, State of Montana, held and occupied by this

bankrupt under a homestead entry made September

28th, 1910, under the laws of the United States, upon

which said homestead entry, at the time of the filing

of said petition and the adjudication of this bank-

rupt as a bankrupt, final proof had not been made;

and that in schedule B (5), being a particular state-

ment of the property claimed as exempted from the

operation of the acts of Congress relating to bank-

ruptcy, was entered, set forth and contained said

real estate so held and occupied under said home-

stead entry as aforesaid.

Sixth.

That at the time of the preparation of this bank-

rupt's petition and schedules, and that at the time

of the filing thereof, and at the time of the adjudica-

tion of bankruptcy therein, there was upon said real

estate, so held and occupied under said homestead

entry as aforesaid, winter wheat seeded the Fall be-

fore, which said wheat would not mature until dur-

ing the season of 1914, and that at all of the said

times said bankrupt honestly believed and ever

since has honestly believed up until after the filing

of said petition by said petitioning creditor, that

said crop sown upon said lands as aforesaid was a

part and parcel of said real estate and that at the

time of the preparation of said petition and

schedules, he stated to his attorneys that said crop

so upon said lands was in his possession as aforesaid.
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and was informed and advised by them that said

crop was a part of said real estate and that it was not

necessary or required that said crop be listed sepa-

rately in said schedules; that at the time of the filing

of this bankrupt's petition in bankruptcy and his

adjudication as such, the petitioning creditor herein,

Olmsted-Stevenson Company, knew and ever since

has known, that this bankrupt was at all times until

after the harvesting of said crop, in the open, no-

torious and well-known possession of, and at all

times claimed to be, the owner of said crop.

Seventh.

That at the time of the filing of this bankrupt's

petition and schedules, and at the time of his adjudi-

cation as a bankrupt therein, the said petitioner,

Olmsted-Stevenson Company, and its agents and

servants knew and ever since have known, that said

crop was upon said lands and that this bankrupt

owned and was in possession of said crop, and that

the said Charles W. Conger, after his appointment

and qualification as Trustee herein as aforesaid, and

prior to the making of an order by the said Trustee,

setting apart to this bankrupt his exemptions and

prior to the date upon which this bankrupt was dis-

charged as aforesaid, well knew that said crop was

upon said lands and premises as aforesaid, and that

this bankrupt claimed to be and was the owner

thereof, and that this bankrupt, after the appoint-

ment and qualification of said Trustee and before the

order setting apart to this bankrupt his exemptions,

told said Trustee that said crop was upon said lands

and that he, the said bankrupt, was the owner there-
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of, and that said Trustee before making said order as

aforesaid, considered said matter and consulted with

the said Olmsted-Stevenson Company, its agents,

attorneys and servants, and was advised by the at-

torney for the said Olmsted-Stevenson Company
that said crop was a part and portion of said real es-

tate, and as such, belonged to this bankrupt, and that

said trustee thereupon told the attorney for this

bankrupt that said crop was a part of and admitted

to be a part of said real estate, and as such exempt

to said bankrupt, and that he would make an order

setting apart to this bankrupt said real estate as

exempt.

Eighth.

That this bankrupt honestly and truly believing

that said crop was a part of said real estate, and as

such was not entitled to be administered by said

Trustee for the benefit of said bankrupt's creditors

herein, remained in possession of said crop, took care

of harvesting and threshing said crop and expended

large amounts in taking care of, harvesting and

threshing said crop in work, labor, materials and

moneys expended; that since the threshing of said

crop, honestly and in good faith believing that said

crop was not entitled to be administered for the

benefit of his creditors herein, has sold and disposed

of a large proportion of said crop and has laid out

and expended the proceeds thereof, and has not now

in his possession, nor could he, if required to do so,

now surrender a portion of said crop, sold as afore-

said, to said Trustee to be administered.
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Ninth.

That the said petitioning creditor herein, with full

knowledge of all the facts in this case as aforesaid,

consented, advised and know^mgly permitted the

said Trustee to proceed with the administration of

said estate and set aside to this bankrupt his ex-

emptions including the real estate upon which said

crop was growing, and to permit this bankrupt in

good faith to expend his labor, time, material and

money in taking care of harvesting and marketing

said crop, and that by reason thereof, said petition-

ing creditor now is estopped from claiming or re-

quiring this bankrupt to surrender said crop or to

surrender the proceeds of said crop in order that the

same may be administered and distributed to this

bankrupt's creditors herein.

Tenth.

That the reasonable value of the work, services,

materials furnished, money expended by said bank-

rupt, and the value of the use of the lands upon

which said crop was grown, since the 5th day of

February, 1914, the time his petition in bankruptcy

was filed, in raising, maturing, harvesting, thresh-

ing and caring for said crop, amounted in the aggre-

gate to the sum of $525.33 or thereabouts.

Eleventh.

That at the time of the filling of the petition of

this bankrupt herein on said 5th day of February,

1914, and at the time of the adjudication of his bank-

ruptcy, said crop was exempt from execution be-

cause being grown upon land which was exempt

and claimed as exempt by said bankrupt and could
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not be attached, or levied upon, or seized or appro-

priated for the payment of his debts or any of them,

and that said bankrupt always considered and

claimed the same as exempt as hereinbefore set out,

said bankrupt considering the same as exempt as a

part of said real estate up until after the filing of the

petition of the petitioning creditor herein ; that after

the filing of said petition of said petitioning cred-

itor herein, he was informed that said crop under

the bankruptcy laws of the United States was not

considered as a part of the real estate, but that

the same was exempt as growing and unmatured

crop at the time of the filing of his petition in

bankruptcy herein, and at the time he w^as adju-

dicated a bankrupt in said proceeding in bank-

ruptcy by the Court, and that he claims the same as

exempt and as a part of his exemptions and has

always made such claim as to said crop in good faith

and as an exemption allowed him by the laws of the

State of Montana and of the United States; that said

crop was growing at the time of the filing of said peti-

tion in bankruptcy and at the time he was adjudi-

cated a bankrupt upon a homestead entry for which

final proof had not been made as hereinbefore set

out, and that such land upon which said crop was

growing was exempt and that the growing crop

thereupon was also exempt.

WHEREFORE, this petitioner prays that it be

ordered and adjudged that the petitioning creditor

herein is estopped and has waived all its rights to

object to the failure of this bankrupt to include in

said schedules or any of said schedules said crop, and
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is estopped and has waived its right to have said crop

administered in said bankruptcy proceeding, and is

estopped to insist and has waived its right to claim

that said crop was and is an asset of said estate and

not a portion of said real estate, or to insist that said

crop is and was not exempt.

2. That if the Court should hold under the facts

and circumstances in this case, that said bankrupt

should be required to amend his schedule of assets,

that an order be made giving this bankrupt leave to

also amend his schedule, setting for his exemptions

by including therein his said crop, and that the said

crop be set apart to this bankrupt as exempt.

3. Said bankrupt without waiving any of his ob-

jections to said petition of said petitioning creditor

and without waiving his right to claim that said crop

is and was exempt, and reserving the same and all

of said objections and also reserving his right to

amend said schedules by claiming said exemption as

hereinbefore set out, prays that in the event that it

should be determined that under the facts in this

case, said crop should be administered for the benefit

of creditors herein, that an order be made that this

bankrupt be reimbursed for the amount expended in

labor, work, materials and supplies furnished by him

in raising, cultivating, harvesting, threshing, mar-

keting and caring for said crop, and for the rental

value of the ground upon which said crop was raised,

matured, threshed, harvested and cared for from the

5th day of February, A. D. 1914, the date upon which

Ms petition in bankruptcy was filed herein, amount

ing in the aggregate to the sum of $525.00 or there-
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abouts. Said bankrupt also prays for his costs

herein expended and for such other and further re-

lief as may be meet and proper.

E. S. MILLER,
Bankrupt.

H. W. RODGERS and H. G. RODGERS,
Attorneys for Bankrupt.

(Duly Verified)."

[Opinion of Referee in Bankruptcy.]

VII.

That a hearing was had upon said petition and

answer, and that after said hearing, and on or about

the 31st day of December, 1914, the said Frank W.
Haskins, Referee in bankruptcy for the District of

Montana, rendered and filed his opinion upon said

hearing which, (omitting the heading and formal

parts thereof), was as follows:

"This matter came on for hearing upon the

7th day of November, 1914, upon the petition of

the Olmsted-Stevenson Company, a corporation,

to require the bankrupt to amend his schedules

herein and" account for a certain crop of wheat,

and an order to show cause thereupon issued.

At the conclusion of the introduction of the

testimony counsel for the respective parties,

Messrs. Jos. O. Smith, and Rodgers and Rodgers

were given time to present briefs upon the mat-

ters involved.

The bankrupt herein, R. S. Miller, was so ad-

judicated upon the 7th day of February, 1914,

upon a voluntary petition filed by him February

5th, 1914.

At the time of the filing of his petition and
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schedules herein among other property the

bankrupt had a homestead, not then patented,

upon which he was residing, described as fol-

lows: Lots one and two, Section nineteen.

Township 7 South Range 7 West; the Northeast

quarter and the east half of the Northwest quar-

ter of Section twenty-four, Township 7 South

Range 8 West Montana Meridian.

There was a lot of personal property mostly

claimed as exempt and which in due time the

trustee, C. W. Conger, set aside as exempt, with

some few exceptions- To his report thus filed,

exception was taken by the bankrupt and the

referee finally determined same in favor of the

bankrupt. However, at the time of filing his

petition, the bankrupt had upon the homestead

above-described, which has been set apart as ex-

empt, about 50 to 52 acres of Turkey red fall

wheat, which had been planted in September,

1913. No mention was made in the schedule of

bankrupt anywhere concerning this growing

crop. The testimony is that the homestead be-

ing exempt, this was considered a part of the

real estate and hence no mention of it in the

schedule. The bankrupt advised his attorneys

of the situation at the time and was told by them

that it was a part of the real estate, and did not

need to be scheduled. The Trustee upon his

selection, qualification and administration of the

estate herein was likewise so advised by at-

torneys. Thereafter the petitioner Olmsted-

Stevenson Company filed their petition to have
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it included in the schedule. This is now the

matter for determination. I am of the opinion

that no fraud was intended by the bankrupt.

He was honest in the preparation of his

schedules.

When harvested this land returned 987

bushels of this wheat. Some of it has been dis-

posed of and the bankrupt thought upon his ex-

amination there was approximately 600 bushels

on hand yet. The bankrupt claims he is entitled

to $525.33 for the rental of the land and for his

expenses in connection with the raising and har-

vesting of the crop- Counsel for petitioner con-

tends that the sums asked are greatly exagger-

ated. It may be true, but no other evidence

upon the question was offered, save that of the

bankrupt, and the referee must have something

to base his estimates upon. His only measure

here is the testimony of the bankrupt. He says

he is entitled to expenses in the sum of $325.33.

The Referee is not prepared to say that these

figures are excessive and the further sum of two

hundred dollars so far as I am advised is not un-

reasonable, for the rental of the land, or for its

use, when considered in the light of the testi-

mony given here.

Under the circumstances herein I do not find

the petitioner is guilty of laches. The bank-

rupt should have either scheduled the crop, or

have asked leave to amend, if he thought there

might be a question concerning it. As he has

about six hundred bushels of this wheat on hand.
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or had at the time of the hearing, I can see no

reason for entering into a discussion as to his

ability to comply herein with any order made.

He should file an amended schedule showing this

crop and let him set forth the exact amount he

now has on hand. Out of that he has disposed

of he is entitled to reimbursement in the amount

above mentioned. If he has not received

enough from that disposed of to compensate him

as herein indicated, upon the disposition of the

balance he may be reimbursed for the difference.

I have reached this conclusion from the cases

following

:

In re Coffman, 93 Fed. 422.

In re Daubner, 96 Fed. 805.

In re Hoag, 97 Fed. 543.

In re Barrow, 98 Fed. 582.

I have given the matter much consideration

and from the evidence submitted and the au-

thorities I can reach no other conclusion.

An order may be granted granting the peti-

tion requiring bankrupt to amend and allowing

him the compensation and expenses herein set

out, out of such wheat as he may have disposed

of, or if he has not disposed of enough for that

purpose he may file his petition for the balance-

The wheat being in his possession he must ac-

curately describe the amount now on hand and

deliver the same over to the trustee. The peti-

tioner may be allowed his costs, and his services

having been beneficial to the estate he may be

also allowed a reasonable attorney's fee to be
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fixed and allowed upon the presentation of his

petition therefor.

Dated the 31st day of December, 1914.

FRANK W. HASKINS,
Referee in Bankruptcy."

VIII.

That thereafter and on or about the 13th day of

January, 1915, the said R. S. Miller, bankrupt, filed

in the District Court of the United States, for the

District of Montana his certain petition for the re-

view and revision of said order of said Frank W-
Haskins, Referee in bankruptcy, duly made and en-

tered on the 31st day of December, 1914, as above

stated, which said petition, (omitting the heading

and formal parts thereof), was as follows:

[Petition of Bankrupt for Review and Revision of

Order of Referee in Bankruptcy.]

"Your petitioner respectfully shows: That your

petitioner was adjudicated a bankrupt on the 7th day

of February, 1914, upon a voluntary petition filed

upon the 5th day of February, 1914; that upon the

7th day of November, 1914, a hearing was had upon

the petition of the Olmsted-Stevenson Co., a corpora-

tion, one of the creditors herein, said petition having

been heretofore filed on the 28th day of October, 1914,

to require this bankrupt to amend his schedules

herein, and account for a certain crop of wheat and to

surrender said crop to the Trustee, and an order to

show cause thereupon issued; that on the 31st day of

December, A. D. 1914, an order, a copy of which is

hereto annexed, was made and entered herein; that

said order was and is erroneous in that

:
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I.

That said order is contrary to law and is contrary

to the evidence herein, in that the evidence shows

without contradiction that said crop of wheat at the

time the bankrupt filed his petition in bankruptcy

and at the time he was adjudicated a bankrupt, was

growing upon said lands held by said bankrupt under

and by virtue of a homestead filing and that said

bankrupt had not at said times or either of said times

made final proof upon said homestead and that said

crop of wheat was not at said time or either of said

times, subject to execution or could said crop have

been levied upon of Writ of Attachment or Execu-

tion.

2.

That said crop was on the date ujxjn whicli this

bankrupt filed his petition herein and on the date

upon which he was adjudicated, exempt from execu-

tion under the laws of the State of Montana.

3.

That said crop was on the date upon which this

bankrupt filed his petition herein and on the date he

was adjudicated a bankiTipt, exempt from execution

under the laws of the United States-

4.

That the evidence is insufficient to justify said or-

der requiring said bankrupt to amend his schedule

and to account for and deliver said crop of wheat to

the Trustee in bankruptcy and this, to wit: There

is no evidence to show that said crop of wheat was a

part of the bankrupt's estate, which could or should

pass to the Trustee in bankruptcy.
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5.

The uncontradicted evidence showed that said

crop of wheat was exempt at the time said bankrupt

filed his petition in bankruptcy and was adjudicated

a bankrupt.

6.

That the evidence shows that the petitioning credi-

tor Ohnsted-Stevenson Company, was guilty of

laches which would prevent its prevailing herein.

7.

That the evidence shows conclusively and without

substantial contradiction that the petitioning credi-

tor herein had full knowledge that said crop of wheat

was not scheduled separately for many months prior

to the time that it filed this petition herein and that

it acquiesced in said crop of wheat bSing not sched-

uled separately and in the claim that the same was

exempt as a part of the land and therefore is estop-

ped to claim that the same should be accounted for or

delivered to the Trustee in bankruptcy.

8.

That the uncontradicted evidence establishes that

the Trustee in bankruptcy had full knowledge that

such crop of wheat was not scheduled separately and

and was claimed as exempt by the bankrupt prior to

the 1st day of April, 1914, the date upon which said

Trustee set apart to the bankrupt his exemptions

and acquiesced in said claim of exemption and that

the petitioning creditor is bound by such knowledge

and conduct of said Trustee in bankruptcy, and is

therefore estopped to ask that said crop of wheat be

accounted for and delivered to said Trustee in

bankruptcy



vs. R. S. Miller. 27

WHEREFORE, your petitioner, feeling aggrieved

because of said order, prays that the same may be

reviewed as provided in the Bankruptcy Law of 1898

and General Order XVII.

Dated this 13th day of January, A. D. 1915.

R. S. MILLER,
Petitioner.

H. W. RODGERS, and

H. G. RODGERS,
Attorneys for Petitioner.

(Duly verified.)"

(Copy of opinion and order of Referee attached to

said petition is in the same words and figures as said

order above set forth in Paragraph V of this peti-

tion.)

IX.

That thereafter and on or about the day of

January, 1915, your petitioner filed in the District

Court of the United States for the District of Mon-

tana, its objections to the granting of the petition of

bankrupt, R- S. Miller, for a review of the decision

of Frank W. Haskins, Referee in bankruptcy, made

and entered on the 31st day of December, 1914, which

objections (omitting the heading and formal parts

thereof) , were as follows

:

[Objections to G-ranting of Petition of Bankrupt for

Review of Decision of Referee in Bankruptcy.]

"Comes now the Olmsted-Stevenson Com-

pany, a corporation, petitioning creditor herein,

and objects to the granting of the petition of the

bankrupt for a review of the decision of Honor-

able Frank W. Haskins, Referee in bankruptcy,
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made and rendered herein, on the 31st day of

December, 1914, and admits that said bankrupt

was adjudicated a bankrupt on February 7th,

1914; that a hearing was had upon the petition

of this petitioner, upon November 7th, 1914;

that said petition had theretofore been filed on

October 28th, 1914, asking that said bankrupt

be required to amend his schedule herein; that

an order to show cause was issued in said mat-

ter, and that a decision in said matter was

rendered b}^ Honorable Frank W. Haskins,

Referee in bankruptcy, on December olst, 1914,

and denies each and every other allegation, fact,

matter and thing, set forth and contained in said

petition for review.

OLMSTED^STEVENSON COMPANY,
Petitioner.

JOS. C. SMITH,
Attorney for Petitioner.

(Duly verified.) "

1x1/2.

That said matter of said review came on for hear-

ing before said District Court of the United States,

in and for the District of Montana, upon the papers

and proceedings hereinabove set forth, and the said

District Court of the United States, in and for the

District of Montana, reversed the said order so made

by the said Frank W. Haskins, Referee in bank-

ruptcy for said District Court of Montana, and ren-

dered and filed a written opinion upon said reversal,

which opinion is in the words and figures following

:
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[Opinion of U. S, District Court.]
'

'BOURQUIN, District Judge. In February,

1914, Miller was adjudicated a voluntary bank-

rupt. He then was in occupancy of a homestead

upon public lands of the United States, and

thereon had 50 acres in winter wheat. The

former was scheduled, but the latter not, though

he disclosed it at the first meeting of cred-

itors. The trustee had knowledge of the wheat,

but on advice assumed it followed the land,

which latter was set off as exempt in April, 1914.

In due time Miller reaped the crop, 987 bushels.

A creditor then petitioned to compel the bank-

rupt to schedule the wheat, and, after hearing,

the referee so ordered, subject to certain allow-

ances to the bankrupt for rent of the land and

his other expenses in making the crop- The

bankrupt asks review.

The Referee's order conforms to In re Daub-

ner (D. C), 96 Fed. 805, but it is believed the

law is otherwise. Analogous cases are In re

Coffman (D- C), 93 Fed. 422; In re Hoag (D. C),

97 Fed. 543; In re Barrow (D. C), 98 Fed. 582;

In re Sullivan (D. C), 142 Fed. 620'; Id., 148

Fed. 815, 78 C. C. A. 505. This growing crop of

wheat, when the bankruptcy petition was filed,

was not property of the character that vests in

the trustee. The latter is only property not ex-

empt, and which the bankrupt 'could by any

means have transferred or which might have

been levied upon and sold under judicial

process.' Bankruptcy Act, Sec. 70. This im-
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ports property capable of change of owTiership

and enjoyment, without recourse to or drafts

upon property and labor of the bankrupt, which

are not part of the estate in bankruptcy, and

upon which creditors have no claim subsequent

to adjudication.

It will be noted the land upon which the wheat

was growing was held by the bankrupt subject

to performance by him of conditions precedent

of his contract to purchase from the United

States. It was a personal contract analogous to

a personal privilege, not assignable, and not sul>

ject to execution, and which he could at any time

abandon, and thereby extinguish. His proper^

in the land was exempt, not by state law, but

from its nature. Even when title is secured, by

federal law the land is not liable for debts iix

curred prior to patent- R. S., Sec. 2296 (Comp.

St. 1913, sec. 4551.) When the bankruptcy peti-

tion was filed, this crop of wheat had no separate

existence. It was in the nature of an incident

that followed the land. Its value was potential

only—that might be created by the land and

future labor. Of itself, it had no transfer value.

It could be transferred only in connection with

a transfer of occupancy, use, and literal con-

sumption of the land to bring to it maturity.

Such a qualified transferable quality is not that

of Section 70, supra.

Nor was this crop then subject to levy and

sale, if for no other reason, because otherwise

the owner thereby might be prevented from per-
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forming the conditions precedent, of which was

cultivation to crop, of his contract with the

United States, and he might abandon, relinquish

or forfeit the land, whereupon land and crop

would be property of the United States, to the

great injury of the owner, and without benefit

to the levying creditor, and to the loss of the

contract to the United States. Furthermore,

levy and sale could not confer right to oust the

owner from the exclusive possession and use

secured to homestead entrymen of public lands.

After such levy and sale the crop would neces-

sarily demand the bankrupt's land and labor to

mature and sever.

But the land was always exempt, and the

fruits of its labor likewise, after bankruptcy

petition filed. It will not do to concede payment

out of the crop for such of the bankrupt's land

and labor. The Bankruptcy Act does not

authorize either to be commandeered; and if the

crop failed or was destroyed at harvest, from

w^here w^ould come this payment? The bank-

rupt having right to exclusive use of his home-

stead land, no levy and sale could prevent him

from law^fully replow^ing and reseeding the land

after his bankruptcy petition was filed. To

property of this evanescent quality no levy could

attach. The case is distinguishable from those

wherein it has been held that growing crops are

so far personal property that though upon lands

exempt by state law, they are subject to levy

and sale; for in these latter the personal obliga-

tion of the owner of the land continues until
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after the crop is matured and severed, and the

creditor, until paid, has claims upon the fruits

of his debtor 's exempt land and labor. In bank-

ruptcy it is otherwise. The debtor's personal

obligation is distinguished at adjudication, and

thereupon his exempt and after-acquired prop-

erty are free from creditors' claims though

never paid- To the argument of possible in-

justice, in that a homestead entryman might de-

vote such labor and money to put much land to

crop, and then invoke bankruptcy between seed-

time and harvast, it may be responded. No

more than if he erected buildings and fenses,

cleared, ditched, and broke the land, none of

which would inure to the benefit of his estate in

bankruptcy.

Another sufficient reason for the conclusion

herein is that, by standing by and permitting

the bankrupt to devote his time, money, and

labor to maturing the crop as his own, the trus-

tee is now estopped to claim it. He made his

election. No fraud appearing, it is final, and

concludes creditors. The bankrupt assumed all

risk and hazard of failure, the Trustee none, and

in justice the former is entitled to whatever

success was achieved. It goes without saying

that, if the croj) had failed, this proceeding

would not have materialized, and no one would

propose compensating the bankrupt for his

loss."

The Referee's order is overruled, and thereupon

ordered that the decision of said Frank W. Haskins,

Heferee in bankrnuptcy, for the District of Mon-
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tana, made and entered on the 31st day of December,

1914, be reversed and set aside.

X.

That it was disclosed by the pleadings and pro-

ceedings filed and had upon the petition of your peti-

tioner, as hereinbefore set forth, that it was undis-

puted and conceded that said R. S. Miller, bankrupt,

had, at the date of the filing of his voluntary petition

in bankruptcy, and at the date of his discharge,

owned, and was in possession of a certain crop of

winter w^heat of about 50 acres, which had thereto-

fore been sown and planted by said R. S. Miller upon

certain premises theretofore entered by him as a

homestead under the acts of Congress, and upon

which final proof and entry had not been made; that

said crop was not encumbered and that said R. S.

Miller, bankrupt, had not included said crop, or any

part of it, in his schedule of property and assets filed

in the bankruptcy proceedings, and had never sur-

rendered the same, or any part thereof, to his trustee

in bankruptcy.

XI
That said order of said District Court so made was

erroneous as a matter of law in the following re-

spects :

1. In reversing the order made and entered by

Honorable Frank W. Ha skins. Referee in bank-

ruptcy, in and for the District of Montana, on or

about the 31st day of December, 1913, requiring the

said R. S. Miller, bankrupt, to amend the schedules

of his property and assets, and include therein cer-

tain growing crops.

2. In deciding and holding that the bankrupt's

crops growing on a homestead (entered and occupied
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by the bankrupt under the acts of Congress), at the

time of filing his voluntary petition in bankruptcy,

were exempt to said bankrupt, under the laws of

the State of Montana, or the laws of the United

States.

3. In deciding and holding that the bankrupt's

crops growing on a homestead (entered and occupied

by the bankrupt under the acts of Congress), at the

time of filing his voluntary petition in bankruptcy,

do not pass to his Trustee in bankruptcy for the

benefit of his creditors.

4. In holding and deciding that the Trustee in

bankruptcy of R. S. Miller, bankrupt, was guilty of

laches in not taking steps requiring said bankrupt

to insert in his schedules of assets and property the

said growing crop.

5. In holding that your petitioner could not ob-

tain the relief asked for in its original petition be-

cause of laches.

6. In holding and deciding that any laches existed

whereby relief could not be granted, as prayed for in

your petitioner's original petition.

That each and all of said points and reasons above

set forth were raised and argued before the District

Court of the United States, in and for the District of

Montana.

WHEREFORE, your petitioner prays that the

order of the District Court of the United States for

the District of Montana, reversing the said order and

decision of the said Frank W. Haskins, Referee in

bankruptcy, for said District of Montana, made and

entered on the 31st day of December, 1913, be re-

vised and reviewed in a matter of law by this Honor-
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able Court, as provided by Section 24B of the Bank-

ruptcy Act of 1898, and the rules and practice there-

under in such cases made and provided, and that

said order of said District Court so reversing the said

order of said Frank W. Haskins, Referee in bank-

ruptcy, in and for the District of Montana, be set

aside and held for naught, with such directions to

the District Court of the United States, for the Dis-

trict of Montana, as to this Court may seem proper.

JNO. B. CLAYBERG,
Attorney for Petitioner-

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco,—ss.

John B. Clayberg, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says; that he is the attorney for the petitioner

in the foregoing petition; that he has read the same

and knows the contents thereof; that the same is

true of his own knowledge, information and belief.

JOHN B. CLAYBERG.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21st day

of July, 1915.

[Seal] L H. ANDERSON,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California.

[Acknowledgment of Service of Petition for

Revision.]

Service of within petition acknowledged this

24th July, 1915.

H. W. RODGERS, and

HENRY G. RODGERS,
Attorneys for Bankrupt.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals, for

the Ninth Circuit.

Case No. 2628.

OLMSTED-STEVENSON COMPANY, a Corpor-

ation,

Petitioner,

versus

R. S. MILLER, Bankrupt,

Respondent.

Motion to Dismiss [Petition for Revision].

Now comes the above-named respondent and

moves this Honorable Court to dismiss the Petition

of petitioner on file herein upon the grounds, and

for the following reasons, to wit

:

First.

That said petition does not state facts sufficient to

entitle petitioner to the relief therein prayed, or to

any relief.

Second.

That said petition shows upon its face that the rul-

ing of the District Court that a crop growing upon

lands held by virtue of a homestead filing, and upon

which lands final proof had not been made, do not

pass to a Trustee in bankruptcy for the benefit of

creditors, is correct.

Third.

That said petition involves questions of fact that

cannot be reviewed on petition.

Fourth.

That the question as to whether or not petitioner
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could not obtain the relief asked for in its original

petition because of laches is a question of fact, and
not reviewable by petition.

Fifth.

That said petition does not contain nor is said

petition accompanied by a certified transcript of the

record and proceedings or record or proceedings in

the bankruptcy court of the matter sought to be re-

viewed herein.

Sixth.

That there has not been filed in the office of the

clerk of this court a certified transcript of the record

and proceedings or the record or proceedings in the

bankruptcy court of the matter sought to be re-

viewed herein.

Seventh.

That the petition on file herein does not show or

pretend to show the facts upon which the District

Court held that petitioner could not now be heard

to say that said crop should be surrendered for the

benefit of creditors.

Eespectfully submitted,

HENRY C. RODGERS,
Attorney for Respondent.

[Endorsed] : No. 2628. In the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Circuit. 01m-

sted-Stevenson Company, a Corporation, Petitioner,

versus R. S. Miller, Bankrupt, Respondent. Mo-

tion to Dismiss. Filed Aug. 23, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.



38 Olmsted-Stevenson Company

United States Court of Appeals, for the Ninth

Circuit.

OLMSTED-STEVENSON COMPANY,
Plaintiff,

vs.

R. S. MILLER,
Defendant.

In the Matter of R. S. MILLER, a Bankrupt.

Amendment to the Petition.

Now comes Olmsted-Stevenson Company peti-

tioner in the above matter and files this its amend-

ment to its said petition and alleges.

That on or about the day of , 1914, in

pursuance of the filing of a petition by the said

bankrupt to review the decision of the Referee in

bankruptcy as alleged in said petition, and in pur-

suance of the bankrupt act the said Referee in bank-

ruptcy made and filed his certificate returned in the

office of a clerk of the United States District Court,

District of Montana a certified copy of which certifi-

cate in return is hereto attached marked exhibit

''A" and hereby made a part hereof.

That and after the said district court of United

States District of Montana heard said bankrupt

petition for review, upon the testimony returned by

said Referee and upon the briefs of the counsel for

the respective parties and on the day of
,

1915, said District Court made an order reversing

the order of the said Referee, as alleged in the peti-

tioner's original petition filed in this court. A
certified copy of said order is hereto attached
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marked exhibit ''B" and hereby made a part hereof.

JNO. B. CLAYBERG,
Attorney for the Petitioner.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco,—ss.

John B. Clayberg, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says: That he is the attorney for the petitioner

in the foregoing petition ; that he has read the same
and knows the contents thereof; that the same is

true to the best of his knowledge, information and
belief.

JOHN B. CLAYBERG.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9 day of

October, 1915.

[Seal] MEREDITH SAWYER,
Deputy Clerk U. S. Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

[Exhibit *'A"—Certificate of Referee in

Bankruptcy.]

In the District Court of the United States, for the

District of Montana.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 762.

In the Matter of R. S. MILLER, Bankrupt.

To the Honorable GEO. M. BOURQUIN, District

Judge

:

I, the undersigned Referee in bankruptcy in

charge of this proceeding, do hereby certify

:

That, in the course of such proceeding, an order,

a copy of which is transmitted herewith, was made
and entered on the 2d day of January, 1915.

That, on the 14th day of January, 1915, the bank-
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rupt, R. S. Miller, feeling aggrieved thereat, filed a

petition for review, which is granted.

That the question presented on this review is, Did
the Referee err in ordering the bankrupt to amend
his schedule to include a growing crop upon the

homestead at the time of his filing his petition and

schedules to be adjudged a bankrupt?

The following is herewith transmitted to the Court

in connection herewith

:

The petition and schedules of the bankrupt.

The petition to require bankrupt to amend filed

by the creditor, Olmsted-Stevenson Company, a cor-

poration.

The transcript of the evidence taken at the hear-

ing of said petition.

The answer of the bankrupt to the petition to

amend,

The Referee's order to amend.

The Referee's findings and conclusions.

The brief submitted by counsel for bankrupt and

the brief submitted by counsel for petitioner.

The Trustee's report on exemptions.

The order thereafter made allowing bankrupt ad-

ditional exemptions.

The petition for review of the Referee's order.

And such other pertinent papers to the question

on review.

Dated at Butte, Montana, the 14th day of Janu-

ary, 1915.

FRANK W. HASKINS,
Referee in Bankruptcy.

Filed Jan. 14, 1915. Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk.

By Harry H. Walker, Deputy Clerk.
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I, Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk U. S. District Court for

the District of Montana, do hereby certify the above

to be a true copy of the Referee's Certificate on Re-

view, on file in my office as such clerk.

GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By Harry H. Walker,

Deputy.

Transcript of Testimony Taken Before Referee in

Bankruptcy.

In the District Court of the United States, for the

District of Montana.

No. 762.

Before F. W. HASKINS, Referee in Bankruptcy.

In the Matter of R. S. MILLER, Bankrupt.

HEARING UPON THE PETITION AND
ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY THE
SCHEDULE OF THE BANKRUPT
SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED TO IN-

CLUDE CERTAIN GROWING CROPS AT
THE TIME OF THE FILING OF THE
PETITION IN BANKRUPTCY, AND FOR
AN ORDER DIRECTING HIM TO TURN
OVER THE CROP OF WHEAT OR THE
FUNDS RECEIVED FROM THE SALE OP
SAME TO THE TRUSTEE.

Mr. JOSEPH C. SMITH,
Attorney for Petitioning Creditor Olmsted-Steven-

son Co.

Messers. HENRY G. and H. W. RODGERS,
Attorneys for Bankrupt.

CHARLOTTE McAULEY,
Stenographer.
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[Testimony of B. W. Stevenson, for Petitioner.]

Mr. B. W. SiTEVENSON, a witness on behalf of

the petitioner, being first duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination by Mr. SMITH.
Q. You may state your name.

A. B. W. Stevenson.

Q. What, if any, position do you hold with the

Olmsted-Stevenson Company ?

A. Secretary and treasurer.

Q. This is a corporation doing business at Dillon,

Montana? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you, as an officer of that corporation,

notified of the fact that R. S. Miller had in Febru-

ary last filed his petition in bankruptcy ?

A. I was.

Q. You—the company—Olmsted-Stevenson Com-

pany, was notified as a creditor of R. S. Miller of a

meeting of creditors? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you knew^ that R. S. Miller was going

through bankruptcy ? I use that expression, it may
not be just right. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Mr. Stevenson, did you examine the

schedules of property as filed by Mr. Miller ?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. And with respect to a certain crop of growing

wheat, growing grain I would say, did you have any

knowledge on that subject at the time you examined

this schedule, as to whether or not the schedule was

complete ? A. No, sir, I did not.

Q. In other w^ords, did you have any knowledge
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(Testimony of B. W. Stevenson.)

that Mr. Miller actually had a crop of growing

wheat ?

A. Not prior to his discharge in bankruptcy.

Q. You state in your petition that about the 18th

of September, on or about the 18th of September,

you became apprised of the fact that the bankrupt

had matured a crop of wheat which was growing at

the time he filed his petition. What have you to

say as to that—respecting the time ?

A. The date would be approximate more than

actual. It was some time before that that I knew

of it. It may have been in August some time that I

first knew of it.

Q. You would say then that possibly some date in

August would be more exact than the 18th of Sep-

tember, but certainly not before the first of August ?

A. No.

Q. You didn 't know about it prior to that ?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Now, Mr. Stevenson, as a credit man and secre-

tary and treasurer for the Olmsted-Stevenson Com-

pany, I will ask you if it isn't a fact that you have

general knowledge that farmers living in the vicin-

ity of Dillon generally have growing crops of win-

ter wheat ; that is dry land farmers \

A. It is presumed they have, but it isn't always

the case though that

—

Q. You had no special knowledge as to Mr. Mil-

ler's crop"?

A. I had no personal knowledge as to Mr. Miller's

crop, no.
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(Testimony of B. W. Stevenson.)

Q. And about what time did you learn of his hav-

ing matured and threshed a crop of wheat f

A. I heard of the threshing of it—was really the

first definite knowledge I had of it—was after the

crop was threshed. That was told me by two par-

ties who were there working on the machine, or was

there at the time the crop was threshed. I don't

know whether they were working or not.

Q. You didn't actually see the crop of wheat your-

self? A. Never seen the crop.

Q. You never saw the growing crop?

A. No, sir.

Q. I believe that is the only point I care to exam-

ine Mr. Stevenson on.

Cross-examination by Mr. HENRY RODGERS.
Q. Mr. Stevenson, you had a talk with Mr. Miller

several times prior to the time he went into bank-

ruptcy relative to the claim your company holds

against him? A. Certainly, yes, sir.

Q. Had you discussed with him what property he

had?

A. Not in the way of growing crops. I have rela-

tive to the chattels he had.

Q. Did he tell you at any time that he had a win-

ter crop of wheat? A. No, sir.

Q. Mr. Stevenson, you attended the first meeting

of creditors, I believe? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You and Mr. Wedum? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Mr. Miller was sworn and examined at

that time? A. I believe so.

Q. Do you remember who asked him the questions,
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(Testimony of B. W. Stevenson.)

whether you did or Mr. Wedum?
A. To what questions do you refer ?

Q. Any questions. Who examined Mr. Miller?

A. I asked him some questions, yes.

Q. At that time you looked over the schedules ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On that occasion did you or did you not ask

Mr. Miller what crops he had growing upon his

homestead ? A. I did not.

Q. And didii't he reply that he had some 50 or 51

or 52 acres of winter wheat?

A. Not to my knowledge. He didn't make any

reply of that kind. I didn't ask him the questions.

Q. Did Mr. Wedum? A. I couldn't say.

Q. You were present at the time?

A. I w^as present.

Q. Didn't you ask Mr. Miller at that time whether

that crop was listed separately from his other prop-

erty? A. I did not.

Q. And didn't he reply that it was not?

A. Not to me.

Q. Now, you at various times talked the matter of

this bankruptcy over with Mr. Conger, the Trustee

in bankruptcy? A. In a way, yes, sir.

iQ. And at any time, did you and Mr. Conger dis-

cuss the fact there was a crop at that time?

A. No, sir.

Q. Nothing ever said about that at all?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Mr. Smith is attorney for the company?

A. Yes, sir.
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(Testimony of B. W. Stevenson.)

Q. And represents the company in this matter for

sometime *? A. He has in this petition.

Q. He did before, did he not?

A. I do not know that he has had any connection

with it before.

Q. You discussed this case with him, didn't you,

and consulted him as to the preparation of your claim

against the bankrupt? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Then he had a part in this matter ?

A. Yes, within a recent date, yes, sir.

Q. How far from Dillon is this—is Miller's land?

A. I couldn't tell you the distance. I never was

by the place but once.

Q. And you—about how far?

A. I couldn't tell you.

Q. Is it about 10 miles? A. Might be.

Q. It is what is known as the dry land bench?

The methods used there in farming are dry land

methods? A. Largely, yes, sir.

Q. And are you acquainted with that bench?

A. To a certain extent.

Q. You know, as a general thing, that what those

people raise up there is winter wheat—that it is, at

least, their principal crop ?

A. That is the principal crop, yes, sir.

Q. And knowing that you didn't make any in-

quiries at any time as to whether he had any crop or

not? A. I did not.

Q. You was—you were active there, wasn't you,

for your company in trying to find out what goods

he had and what the prospects were of collecting

your claim ?
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(Testimony of B. W. Stevenson.)

A. Not after he was discharged in bankruptcy

—

until certain things came up, I heard about in a

roundabout way. Then I became active.

Q. Before that you didn't pay much attention to

it?

A. Well, not from the time he filed his bankrutcy

until he was put out—or discharged.

Q. You had been trying to collect your claim—had

started this suit and obtained judgment before that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And yet you hadn't inquired anything about

crops?

Redirect Examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. Mr. Stevenson, just another question to clear

this up. I will ask you just what you did question

Mr. Miller about at the meeting of creditors

.

A. In the list of exemptions Mr. Miller claimed

there was various items covering certain quantities

of grain held out for seeding purposes. I took thu

amounts of grain he was claiming as exempt and

figured out about how^ many acres of ,grain that

would. seed. I asked him the question how many
acres he had prepared for spring seeding. The point

I wanted to make was that he was holding out more

than he could possibly use for spring seeding. That

is the only questions I addressed to him relative to

the crop or prospective crop at his place.

Q. And your object in so questioning him was to

see if he hadn't allowed too much seed grain

—

claimed too much?

A. If he wasn't claiming too much grain for seed-
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(Testimony of B. W. Stevenson.)

ing purposes. I don't recall just now the number
of acres I figured out or how many he told me he had

prepared for spring seeding.

Q. Now, then, Mr. Stevenson, did you^at any time

discuss with the trustee, Mr. Conger, the question

of whether or not the amount of seed grain the bank-

rupt had claimed should be allowed him?

A. I did.

Q. And as a matter of fact, the trustee by his rul-

ing first held that the bankrupt should deliver over

a part of the seed grain he had set down as exempt ?

A. That is my understanding.

Witness excused.

[Testimony of R. S. Miller, for Petitioner.]

Mr. R. S. MILLER, a witness on behalf of the peti-

tioner, being duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. You are R. S. Miller, the bankrupt in this case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You made and filed your petition in bankruptcy

about the 5th day of last February? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You at that time were living upon a homestead

claim a few miles out of Dillon, were you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what growing crops did you have on that

place at that time ?

A. Approximately 50' acres of turkey red fall

wheat.

Q. You had no rye, flax or other grains?

A. No, sir.

Q. Now, then, Mr. Miller, when was this wheat
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planted? Approximately; I don't expect 3'ou to re-

member the week.

A. Just before freezing-up time—anyway, it

was—would be safe to say possibly the last of

September or the first of September, middle of Sep-

tember, somewhere about that.

Q. Possibly in September, 1913 ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. This crop of grain sprouted and grew up before

the 5th day of February, did if?

A. No, it didn't grow up; it just sprouted. Some

w^as a little out of the ground, other places wasn't out

of the ground. You might as well say it was all up.

Q. Of course, when you filed your petition in bank-

ruptcy, you knew this crop of growing grain was

there, didn't you*? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you didn't include it in your schedule?

A. No, sir.

Q. As a separate item. Now, then, you were dis-

charged from bankruptcy? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In April, of this year, I believe ?

A. Something like that, yes. I don't remember.

You understand

—

Q. Now, then, after your discharge from bank-

ruptcy, did you execute a mortgage covering this

crop of growing grain? A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't give any mortgage? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you submit your final proof on homestead

after your discharge from bankruptcy ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That proof has gone through the department

and I presume you have received final receipt?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, then, you harvested this crop of wheat

and made— How many bushels did you harvest*?

A. Well, there was 1,012 bushels total. There

was 25 bushels of the 1,012 that was barley. That

was spring grain, you understand. That leaves 983,

doesn't if?

Q. Then you harvested 987 bushels of wheat ?

A. Yes, sir; fall wheat.

Q. What was the value of that wheat ? As stated

here, $838.95 ? A. Something like that, yes, sir.

Q. Now, this crop of wheat was growing upon

what number of acres of land*?

A. 50, approximately, 50. It was registered 50,

but it might be an acre over or under. I never meas-

ured with a tape measure.

Q. Did you do any—^perform any labor upon this

crop of grain prior to cutting if? A. Yes, sir.

Q. After the 5th of February? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the nature of whaf?

A. I harrowed it once.

Cross-examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. Mr. Miller, at the time that you went in bank-

ruptcy—5^our schedule and petition was filed and

you were adjudged a bankrupt—had you made final

proof upon your homestead *? A. No, sir.

Q. You were then holding it simply under home-

stead entry with the United States Government?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is the land upon which this crop was

growing? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Had you had, prior to the time you filed your

petition in bankruptcy, any conversation with Mr.

Stevenson of the Olmsted-Stevenson Co. %

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Relative to what crop, or about what crop you

had? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was that conversation, and about when,

relative to the time you went into bankruptcy *?

A. About 2 days before I took bankruptcy.

Q. And who was present?

A. My wife was present.

Q. Was there anything said at that time about

whether or not you had any crops? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was said relative to the crop, if anything ?

A. Why, Mr. Stevenson was going to sue me and

get a judgment against me. I went there and

—

well, I almost begged of him not to sue me—that I

didn't want to be sued—that I was willing to square

it up any way I possibly could. I offered him a

mortgage on the growing crop and note for the bal-

ance, together with my notes, and he said, no. He
said, "Your note is no good. It isn't worth the

paper it's written on, and the crop won't pay the

bill."

Q. Did you tell him at that time how much you had

in in crop ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, at the time you had your petition and

schedules prepared in bankruptcy, did you say any-

thing—did you employ anyone to prepare your peti-

tion and schedules ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Whom did you employ?
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A. Mr. Gilbert and Mr. Rodgers.

Q. They are partners'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is my partner and I? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in the preparation of these schedules, did

you say anything to them or either of them about

whether or not you had crops out there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you tell them?

A. I told them I had 50, approximately 50

acres in fall wheat, and he Gilbert, set it down,

and after he set it down and when I seen

the schedules I noticed that the wheat wasn't on

there, and I said to Mr. Gilbert, I says, "What
seems to be the cause this wheat isn't down? What
is the matter!" "Why," he said, "that's growing

in the ground. That's real estate. You couldn't

take it out if you wanted to."

Q. Did you believe his advice? A. I did.

Q. And that that was the case ?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Now, did you attend the first meeting of cred-

itors in your bankrupt estate? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And who was present at that hearing?

A. Mr. Wedum, Mr. Stevenson, myself, Clarence

Langdorf, Mr. Haskins. I don't know whether I

should put his name in there or not.

Q. That is all right. You were sworn and exam-

ined at that time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember who asked you the ques-

tions ?

A. Why Mr. Stevenson and Mr. Wedhum, both.
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Q. Who is that, Mr. Stevenson of the Olmsted-

Stevenson Co.? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any quesetions asked you at that

time, or did you make any statement relative to hav-

ing a crop upon your homestead % A. Yes.

Q. Go ahead and tell what was said relative to the

growing

—

A. Mr. Stevenson had the schedules, looked them

over, and he says, "I see you haven't listed your fall

wheat," he says, "that you have planted," he says.

"Have you listed that in a schedule by itself?" I

said, "No, sir." Mr. Wedum asked me as to what

crops was I going to put in in the spring, and he also

asked me about the growing crop.

Q. Now, Mr. Miller, did you at any time have any

conversation with, or did the trustee in this case,

Mr. Conger, ever ask you anything about the crops ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell when and where, or where and what was

said, as near as you can remember.

A. He came across the street, and I met him in

front of the Olmsted-Stevenson store on the opposite

side of the street, and I says to him, "When are you

coming out to get that stuff, Mr. Conger?" And he

says, "Well, I don't know. I haven't got them all

fixed up, yet," he says, and "Have you heard any-

thing about the exemptions on that grain?" And I

says, "No, sir; I hadn't heard." He says, "I wrote

up to Butte to find out from Mr. Haskins"—I won't

say whether he said Mr. Haskins or not, but he wrote

to Butte to find out. If I remember right, that is
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what he said. Anyhow, he said, "What are you go-

ing to do about the fall wheat you have in the

ground?" I said that was real estate, as near as I

know.

Q. Now, Mr. Miller, you have continuously lived

upon your homestead? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That conversation took place sometime last

spring, did it ?

A. Yes, sir. It was before that Mr. Conger asked

for to come out and get the stuff. It was before I

had noticed about it at all. Yes, just about the time

they was writing about the seed. Whether that

ought to be exempt or called seed wheat or what.

Q. Now, who had remained in possession of and

occupied your homestead since then ?

A. I have.

Q. Who has been farming the homestead?

A. I have.

Q. Have you at any time or at all claimed anybody

else was farming that place or taking care of the

homestead? A. No, sir.

Q. Who employed or did the work done on the

crop . A. I did.

Q. Who made arrangements for the threshing of

the grain ? A. I did.

Q. In your own name, or somebody else's?

A. In my own name.

Q. Will you state whether or not it was generally

known in the neighborhood that you owned that

crop? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SMITH.—Mr. Referee, I do not know just
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what the procedure is, but at this stage I wish to

enter an objection as to this as irrelevant and imma-

terial as to what was generally known in the neigh-

borhood about his growing a crop.

Mr. RODGERS.—It would be a circumstance in

—

Mr. HASKINS.—In a question of fraud—but

there is a question of fraud, Mr. Smith, and it would

be a question of fraud as to whether he attempted

to sell it

—

Mr. SMITH.—I thought it was attempting to show

the question of laches.

Mr. HASKINS.—I thought they were attempting

to reach the question of whether they were guilty of

fraud or not.

Mr. RODGERS.—When, if at all, did you ascer-

tain that that crop could not be listed separately

from the real estate in your schedules?

A. Why, I never knew it should have been listed

separately at all—just the other day when they

showed their petition. Never thought a thing about

it. I always honestly and faithfully thought the

crop was real estate at the time of the bankruptcy.

Redirect Examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. Mr. Miller, you say about two days before you

filed your petition in bankruptcy you had this con-

versation with Mr. Stevenson and your wife was

present? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I believe you stated that he—I believed you

used the word they, meaning the corporation, were

threatening to sue you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you if it was a fact that they had
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sued you and obtained judgment as early as the

month of January, and that before you had this con-

versation with them which you say was two days

before the 5th of February ? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know when the judgment was obtained

against you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When'?

A. Well, not the exact date, no, sir; I don't know,

but the day I started bankruptcy proceedings was

about 2 days before the trial came off. The first

trial, that is, you understand, when you were suing

me—when the trial was to come off, that is the time

I started bankruptcy. That was when I put it.

Q. Well, you speak of a trial, Mr. Miller, did you

ever have any trial of that suit?

A. Why, I didn't come to the trial. You folks got

a judgment against me.

Q. Was the time for your answering expired when
you filed your petition in bankruptcy?

A. Was the time for answering—I didn't quite get

that.

Q. Had the time for answering expired before you

filed your petition?

A. Well, I don't know how long that would have

been when it would expire—would be just the same
day of the suit, wouldn't it? I don't know when it

would expire.

Q. You do not know then, when judgment was ob-

tained against you ?

A. Not the exact month or day, but I know just

about 2 days before that that I started suit, or else
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that it was—if I remember right it was just the day

before I got the—or they sued me—the day of the

trial that I started bankruptcy proceedings.

Recross-examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. What do you mean by starting bankruptcy pro-

ceedings ? Do you mean when your wife w^as there,

or when you first consulted your attorney about it?

A. When I first consulted my attorney.

Witness excused.

[Testimony of B. W. Stevenson, for Petitioner

—

Recalled.]

Witness STEVENSON recalled.

Direct Examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. Mr. Stevenson, do you recall a conversation be-

tween yourself and Mr. Miller and his wife respect-

ing their indebtedness to the Olmsted-Stevenson

XjO.% a. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell us when that conversation took

place*? Was—about when, with respect to the

time when he prepared and filed his petition'?

A. I think it was just a short time prior to the

time I heard he had made petition for bankruptcy.

I really do not know the month. It must have been

in February some time. I think it was just a short

time prior to his making petition in bankruptcy.

Q. Now, what was that conversation about—what

was the substance of it ^.

A. Well, it's pretty hard to recall just exactly

what a conversation is about that—because we have

quite a few of those conversations. But, as near as

my remembrance is, that he offered—that is he
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wanted to know how we could settle the affair and

I believe I suggested that if he would give me a mort-

gage on his chattel property, which was some horses,

that we could fix it up that way, and he stated there

was 2 of the horses, I think it was 2, that belonged

to his wife, that were already under mortgage to his

brother in law or some in law or some relative of his,

and that the other horses he wouldn't mortgage them

under any condition. Then he suggested that if he

could get his father in law to go on his note, if that

would be satisfactory. I told him it would be en-

tirely satisfactory to have his father in law, Mr. O. W.
Smith, would sign his note with him. Evidently his

father in law wouldn't do it, because they never did

it. The next thing I heard was they were in bank-

ruptcy.

Q. Now, Mr. Stevenson, do you know the condition

or the period that had been reached by the suit of

Olmsted-Stevenson Co. against Miller at the time

you had this conversation with him? Had he then

been sued?

A. I believe we had obtained judgment by default

prior to this conversation. Now, that matter isn't

clear in my mind, because I hadn't given it any

thought, but it runs in my mind that a judgment was

given in January. Of course, the court record will

show that. I wouldn't make a statement of that.

Mr. Rodgers was present at the time, but I am in-

clined to think it was in January, I wouldn't be

positive about it.

Witness excused.
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Mr. CLARENCE LANGDORF, a witness on be-

half of the bankrupt, being duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. State your name. A. Clarence Langdorf.

Q. Where do you reside?

A. At the present time about 3 miles east of

Dillon.

Q. I will ask you whether or not you were present

at the first meeting of creditors in the R. S. Miller

bankruptcy case? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was present?

A. Mr. Stevenson, Mr. Wedum, Mr. Haskins, Mr.

Rodgers, Mr. Miller and myself.

Q. Do you remember whether or not Mr. Miller

was sworn and examined at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember whether or not in his exam-

ination anything was said about him having a crop

already planted upon his homestead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. State as near as you can remember what was

said.

A. I am not sure who asked him the questions but

some one asked him the question if he had any fall

crop in and how much and if I am not mistaken he

said 51 or 52 acres. They asked him if he had any

spring grain in and what he considered the total of

spring grain in the ground would be. He turned

and asked me—I had cut some grain for him the
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year before—and lie asked me how many acres there

was in that patch and I told him 22 and then he said

he was going to put that 22 and some more—I have

forgotten how much he said he put in.

Cross-examination by Mr. SMITH.
Q. Well, do you know who Mr. Wedum was repre-

senting at that time ?

A. I was under the impression Mr. Wedum was

representing himself.

Q. Nothing to show he was representing the 01m-

sted-Stevenson Co. ? A. Well, no.

Q. Now, then, these things you say were asked of

Mr. Miller. Do you know whom they were asked

by?

A. That I cannot say. I don't remember.

Q. There was considerable amount of that talk

at that time had with reference to the crops he was

going to plant at some time after that date?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. And considerable discussion as to how much

he would plant and how much seed grain he would

require? A. Yes, sir.

Witness excused.

[Testimony of C. W. Conger, for Bankrupt.]

C. W. CONGEE, a witness on behalf of the bank-

rupt, being duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. RODGEES.
Q. Your name is C. W. Conger ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You reside at Dillon, Montana?

A. Yes, sir.

•Q. You were the trustee in this bankruptcy pro-
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ceeding? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember about when you were ap-

pointed trustee?

A. No, I don't, but the papers there will show. I

think you have my files. The petition was filed

about February 5th, 1914, and I think I was ap-

pointed within the next 10 days, but I don't see the

order of appointment. Here is a carbon copy of

the order and it was dated the 4th day of March,

1914.

Q. Did you, after you were appointed did it come

to your knowledge that Mr. Miller had a winter crop

growing upon his homestead? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How soon after your appointment would you

say it was that you first ascertained that fact ?

A. It was prior to my making report on exemp-

tions.

Q. Do you know what date you made your report

on exemptions?

A. On the first day of April, 1914.

Q. Do you remember how that first came to your

knowledge ?

A. No, sir, I couldn't say positively whether I

heard it from you or Mr. Smith or Mr. Stevenson.

Q. Did you have any conversation with or consult

with Mr. Stevenson relative to the growing crop

upon the premises?

A. I wouldn't say positive about that. I con-

sulted with Mr. Smith in regard to it.

Q. And whom did Mr. Smith represent?

A. Well, I presumed he was representing the
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Olmsted-Stevenson Co.

Q. Do you know whether or not at any time you
had any conversation or spoke to Mr. Stevenson

about the crop?

A. I had a conversation with Mr. Stevenson in

regard to the amount of grain that was to be exempt

as grain to be planted. My impression is that we
talked of the grain that had already been planted,

but I wouldn't say positively as to that.

Q. But you know you talked it over with Mr.

Smith ? A. I talked it over with Mr. Smith.

Q. Now, did you consider the question as to

whether or not that crop should be turned over to

the trustees—to the administrators'?

A. I did consider it and I asked Mr. Smith at the

time about it and he said it was part of the real es-

tate, and I think you advised me to the same effect.

Q. Yes. That transpired before you made your

report setting out exemptions? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you —
Mr. SMITH.—If the Court please I object to this

line of questioning as being irrelevant and immater-

ial for the reason that at the present time that part

—what he may have been advised about this is en-

tirely beside the question. It is what the bank-

rupt did we are investigating. It doesn't make any

difference if the trustee knew or didn't know that

this was exempt or whether the persons that may
have been questioned about the matter knew or

didn't know what they were talking about.

Mr. RODGER S.—I call your attention to the case
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In re Hanson reported in 107 Fed. on page 252

(reading from the decision). That is a positive

statement. It is also held in another case that

—

Mr. SMITH.—You haven't shown there was any

attorneys representing the creditors there.

Mr. HASKINS.—The objection is overruled. I

think knowledge of the trustee would be the knowl-

edge of the creditors, especially under the circum-

stances in this case.

Mr. SMITH.—Do we understand Mr. Referee

that the knowledge as you say of the Trustee of the

existence of this crop becomes the knowledge of the

creditors w^hen the trustee doesn't take it up with

the creditor?

Mr. HASKINS.—The Trustee represents the

creditors, Mr. Smith, is supposed to.

Mr. SMITH.—That is very true.

Mr. HASKINS.—Supposed to represent the cred-

itors only in this matter.

Mr. SMITH.—I don't believe the record so far

shows that Conger conferred with the creditors

about this. He hasn't said he conferred with any

one who stated they represented the creditors in this

matter.

Mr. HASKINS —But, Mr. Stevenson said you

were his attorney at all times and I believe Conger

said he consulted you.

Mr. SMITH.—I believe the entire record will

show that Mr. Stevenson said that ordinarily I

represent his company in matters of this kind and

that I had prepared their claim.
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Mr. HASKINS.—As I understand, Mr. Steven-

son answered in response to a question asked him
that you had been his attorney.

Mr. SMITH.—No, he said that I had been his at-

torney as to this procedure. I have been in this

matter of the Olmsted-Stevenson petition filed here

a few days ago.

Mr. HASKINS.—Anyway, I think, Mr. Conger

would represent the creditors, his knowledge would

represent the creditors as he represents all the

creditors.

Mr. SMITH.—Then that would have the effect

that we w^ould suffer by his laches, of which we knew

nothing.

Mr. HASKINS.—You had the opportunity of

questioning him at all times.

Mr. SMITH.—A creditor couldn't fathom his

mind as to what he might have known as to existing

conditions. We cannot see how to meet a proposi-

tion of that kind because it is impossible that these

creditors should have been held accountable for what

we may term laches on the part of the Trustee, if

such it be. He might have discovered a gold mine

or some other kind of property. Could we fathom

that?

Mr. RODGERS.—He is the agent of the creditors.

Mr. SMITH.—Any way you look at it—if it were

the duty of the trustee to report this to somebody I

do not see how his failure to do so is any laches on

the part of a creditor.

Mr. HASKINS.—It is his duty to make a report
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every two months, Mr. Smith, the creditors have the

opportunity of examining those reports, examining

them for themselves.

Mr. SMITH.—They didn't know of this crop.

Mr. HASKINS.—I overrule the objection.

To which ruling of the Referee the petitioner then

and there duly asked for and was granted an excep-

tion.

Mr. RODGERS.—Did you tell the attorney for

the bankrupt what conclusion you had come to rela-

tive to the crop that was in the ground ?

A. I think I talked to them about it.

Q. Do you remember what you told him?

A. Well, I think I asked you in the first place

whether it was part of the real estate or not, and I

had talked to Mr. Smith at the same time and I think

I told him you said it was part of the real estate.

Q. And did you at that time state whether or not

you told the attorney for the bankrupt that you were

going to decide that that was correct, or anything to

that effect?

A. I couldn't say as to that, but I supposed it was

correct.

Q. The land upon which this crop was growing

was set up as exempt, was it not? A. It was.

Cross-examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. Now, Mr. Conger, you didn't have any knowl-

edge that I was ever talking to you as the attorney

for the Olmsted-Stevenson Co. in that matter, did

you?

A. Why, I don't know that I had ever been told
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so. I know that at the time there was talk of pre-

senting claims against the bankrupt Mr. Stevenson

talked about going to you and getting you to prepare

the claims and even asked me about the forms.

Q. Yes. You knew I had prepared these claims

and helped him to make it up and file it ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, then, Mr. Conger, was there ever any

question in your mind as to whether or not that

schedule should be amended, or whether it was up

to you to report or not report the fact that a growing

crop of grain was in existence 1

A. I think I was in doubt about it. That is the

reason I asked you.

Q. Well, did you consider that you were asking

that to find out whether or not you would report that

he had a growing crop of grain ?

A. I asked the question of you because of the fact

that I thought you were representing the Olmsted-

Stevenson people.

Q. You understood that I was attorney for them

in a number of matters, in different matters, and

that I had talked with you about their claim and

was in, and active in this matter? A. Yes.

Q. Did you inquire of anybody about this grow-

ing crop of grain?

A. 1 didn't need to. It was reported to me that

the crop was growing there.

Q. Could you say who reported it to you ?

A. Couldn't say positive. I think I heard so

from Mr. Eodgers, and I am of the impression that
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Mr. Stevenson and I talked of it, but I wouldn't say

positively as to them. I know we talked of the other

grain.

Q. About the amount he should retain for seed ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And whether or not he should retain seed to

plant in the spring or to plant in July or August ?

A. Yes, sir, I took the matter up with the Referee

too.

Q. That was the law point you really threshed

out?

A. That was the one I really tested, yes, sir.

Q. Well, you discussed with Mr. Rodgers, the

man you knew was attorney for the bankrupt, the

question of the existence of this crop of grain ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you received from him advice to the effect

that it was not entitled to be listed'?

A. That it was part of the real estate .

Q. And in other words would be exempt along

with the real estate?

A. Yes, sir, received the same advice from you I

think.

Q. And received the. same advice from me?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you didn't know whether I was talking

to you as attorney for the Olmsted-Stevenson Co. or

merely because I happened to be an attorney?

A. I couldn't say positively as to that, no, sir.

Redirect Examination by Mr. RODGERS.

Q. Mr. Conger, you didn't have any idea but what
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it was youi^ duty, if there was assets belonging to

the bankrupt, to collect it in? A. No, sir.

Q. There was never any question in your mind
about that?

A. Never. I tried to collect everything that be-

longed to the estate.

Recross-examination by Mr. SMITH.
Q. Mr. Conger, did you at any time report to the

Olmsted-Stevenson Co. or any one you knew to be

representing them that there was a crop of growing

grain on the land of the bankrupt?

A. No, sir, I don't think I ever did.

Q. You didn't do that, and you didn't request

them to enlighten you as to whether or not you

should include it and require it to be included?

A. No, I don't think I ever took the matter up

with either Mr. Stevenson or any of the firm in re-

gard to the growing crop.

Witness excused.

[Testimony of H. Gr. Rodgers, for Bankrupt.]

H. G. Rodgers, a witness on behalf of the bank-

rupt, after being duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. Your name is Henry G. Rodgers?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Of Dillon, Montana? A. I am.

Q. You remember the meeting of creditors for

Mr. Miller heard here in this office? A. I do.

Q. Well, just give us what happened there ac-

cording to your recollection.
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A. As I remember it, Mr. Stevenson was looking

over the schedules and questioning Mr. Miller rela-

tive to what property he had. Among other ques-

tions he asked Mr. Miller what—if he had any fall

wheat. Mr. Miller replied that he had, and I think

he told him the number of acres. And as I remem-

ber it, either Mr.—I think it was Mr. Stevenson

asked him if he had listed that separately in the

schedule. Mr. Miller said no, he had not.

Cross-examination by Mr. SMITH.
Q. Now, Mr. Rodgers, you say he asked about fall

wheat? A. That is as I remember it.

Q. You didn't explain whether he meant a grow-

ing crop or 1913 grain?

A. It was relative to fall wheat in the ground.

Q. Are you positive as to that?

A. That is my best recollection. I have always

remembered it that way.

Q. And in the questions regarding acres could it

not have been discussing the number of acres he was

to plant during the summer of 1914?

A. As I remember it I remember both subjects

being discussed. How much he had in and what

was to be planted.

Q. From the standpoint of acres ?

A. From the standpoint of acres.

Q. Now, Mr. Rodgers, there has been some tes-

timony to the effect that the trustee was advised by

both you and me.

Mr. RODGERS.—I object to that as not proper

cross-examination. That matter wasn't gone into
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cause you cannot ask an attorney what bis client

told bim or what he told bis client.

Mr. SMITH.—I am not asking him what bis client

told him or what he told bis client.

Mr. RODGER S.—Not proper cross-examination.

I asked merely about bis hearing here.

Mr. SMITH.—I am merely trying to give Mr.

Rodgers a chance to give

—

Mr. RODGERS.—That is not proper testimony.

Mr. HASKINS.—I suppose you can recall Mr.

Rodgers, Mr. Smith.

Witness excused.

[Testimony of R. S. Miller Recalled.]

Mr. R. S. MILLER, recalled, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. I will ask you, Mr. Miller, whether or not you

have always claimed this crop as exempt?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you now claim it as exempt?

A. Well, I couldn't now—at the present time as

near as I can see it, it is for Mr. Haskins to judge as

to whether it was exempt or not.

Q. Do you claim it as exempt?

Mr. SMITH.—I object to that as being a useless

question. What he claims doesn't have anjrthing

to do with it.

Mr. RODGERS.—May be it is.

Q. Now, what work, if any, have you done on

that crop since the date upon which you were ad-

judged a bankrupt, February 5, 1913?

A. I done all the work. I harrowed it, harvested
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it, threshed it and hauled it from the field to the

granary.

Q. Can you give us any idea as to what you have

expended and what the reasonable value of your
services has been in taking care of that crop ?

A. Approximately $326.

Q. Have you kept an account or made a record

or figured out how—^what composed that amount?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could you tell us what it consists of?

A. Harrowing, use of binder, horses, 3 different

men to shock with, binder twine, cook, teams, men
to help meals hay, oats threshing, oil for engine,

sacks, hauling in wheat from field to granary so it

wouldn't spoil.

Q. Amounting in the total to how much?

A. Practically $45 worth of sacks I never put

down there at all. $325.33 ; that is not figuring the

$45.

Q. Now, that $45 isn't calculated in that and it

represents what you paid for the sacks?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, is there included in that amount an esti-

mate of the rental value of that ground from the

time you went into bankruptcy until the crop was

taken care of? A. No, sir.

Q. What would be your estimate as to the rental

value of the ground for that period of time?

A. What would be my estimate?

Q. Yes, sir.

A. Everybody who rents land or has rented land
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the renter; tliat is the man who rents the land puts

in the crop and takes it out, and the man who owns

the land has been getting one-third of the crop.

That is what it has been through there.

Q. That is what you use to figure from?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much would you say then, figuring from

that, Avould be the reasonable rental value of this

land for the period from February 5th until the crop

was taken care of?

A. Well, it would be one-third of the amount of

wheat I had there, 987 bushels. It was one-third of

that it would be.

Q. About how much would that be worth in dol-

lars?

A. At the present time the way wheat is going

now it would be worth in the neighborhood of $300

I guess, $250; something of that sort. I never fig-

ured it up.

Q. Are you living now on your homestead ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was you living upon your homestead at the

time you filed this petition? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have you lived upon it ever since?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you a family? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Wife?

Mr. SMITH.—We admit he is man of family en-

gaged chiefly in tilling the soil.
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Cross-examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. Now, Mr. Miller, you say you harrowed this

wheat? A. Yes, sir.

"Q. What did it cost you to harrow if?

Redirect Examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. What have you done with the wheat, if any-

thing ?

A. Why, some of it I sold, paid out bills, in bills,

some I got some money for. Used the money to pay

for groceries.

Q. About how much would you say you had sold?

A. I think—it is mighty hard to make an estimate

on it. I think probably there is 350 bushels gone

now.

Q. And have you kept the rest of it there on the

ranch? Have you fed any of it?

A. Yes, sir. I don't know how much I have fed.

Q. About how much would you estimate there was

on the ranch?

A. I think close to 600 bushels.

Q. Have you been paid for all the wheat you sold?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What have you done with the money ?

A. Paid bills and ate it up.

Q. Ate it up ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Bought stuff to eat? A. Paid some bills,

Q. Have you expended all the money you received

for that wheat in payment of bills and for goods that

have been used? A. Yes, sir, and more.

Q. The wheat you have sold—you haven't got it
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now? A. No, sir.

Q. And you haven't got anything in place of the

wheat, have you ?

A. Well, that would be pretty hard to say now.

You see I got binding twine and enough—some sacks

and one thing and another

Q. That was used in putting up the crop?

A. Yes, sir.

Recross-examination by Mr. SMITH.

Q. How long did it take you to harrow this crop

of wheat? A. Why—
Q. What kind of a tool did you harrow that grain

with? A. With a harrow.

Q. What kind of a harrow ?

A. Spike tooth harrow.

Q. How many horses did you have on it?

A. Four.

Q. How many men did it take to run that?

A. One.

Q. How many acres would you harrow in a day?

A. I don't know how many acres I would harrow

in a day.

Q. How wide was the harrow ?

A. Blamed if I know.

Q. Well, estimate it, Mr. Miller. You know some-

thing about—^how near?

A. Oh, I would safely say about 12 feet, I think.

Q. About 12 feet wide, and you worked it with

four horses ? A. About that.

Q. Can you tell us about how many acres you

would drag over in a day ?
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A. No, that would be pretty hard to say because

some days I would not work a long day, you under-

stand, and that is pretty hard to say how long a day

I would put in. It would depend upon the day we

put in.

Q. With that kind of an outfit couldn't you easily

harrow two acres in an hour"? A. Well, no, sir.

Q. You think you couldn't? A. No.

Q. Were you lap-harrowing it? A. No.

Q. Just once over? A. Onceover.

Q. And do you think in a day of 8 hours you could

have handled 16 acres?

A. Well, it seems to me I ought to be able to

handle 16 acres all right in a day, you understand?

Q. Well, then it would take you but very little

over 3 days to handle all of it, wouldn't it?

A. No, it wouldn't take probably over 3 days.

Q. Now, what is the use of 4 horses worth for a

day?

A. A man and 4 horses is worth $10' per day.

Q. $10 a day?

A. Yes, sir. By the time you feed them.

Q. Then at that figure the cost of harrowing it

would be practically $30?

A. I put it down at $25.

Q. You put it down at $25, then, the original cost?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever get $10 per day for a man and 4

horses ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Where? A. I got it in Washington.

Q. What was the nature of the work?
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A. Most every kind of work. Everything.

Q. Is that kind of a basis the basis on which you

figured out this $325 expense ? A. No.

Q. Is anything else?

A. You understand, Mr. Smith, I didn't figure that

at $10 per day. You stated approximately

—

Q. At 50^ per acre ?

A. And that is what everybody charges to harrow.

Q. Now, what did it cost you to cut this grain?

What do they charge per acre for cutting grain ?

A. It all depends upon who it is. The use of the

binder—I paid 40^ per acre, just for the use of the

binder. I figured the use of my horses and myself

was worth 50^ per acre, because I have to feed them

and it cost me approximately $100 last year to have

it cut. It cost me practically last year to have my
grain cut, $1.00 per acre.

Q. Then it cost you to cut it $1.00 per acre, which

would be $50. Is that right?

A. Why, no. I don't want to job you there. I

put down here use of binder 40^ per acre, which I

paid out just for the use of the binder alone, came

to $20. Use of horses and myself came to $25 at

50i^ per acre, that is a cost of 90^ per acre.

Q. That is $45 then. Is that right?

A. Yes, yes, sir, you're right.

Q. Now, then, you to shock the grain?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what that cost you ?

A. Cost me about $25.

Q. What did it cost to get it threshed? What did
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you pay per bushel for threshing %

A. I paid 4^ per bushel to have it threshed.

Q. And you had how many bushels'?

A. 987, yes, sir.

Q. It cost you about $40 for threshing <?

A. Right close to it, yes. The whole bill was

$40.48

.

Q. $40.48?

A. Yes, sir. Then of course there was 25 bushels

of barley that was figured. It w^ent the same as the

wheat did.

Q. Now, then, did you have any expenses incident

to threshing. Outside of paying for the threshing?

In other words, was it threshed by community help

or independently ?

A. Why, independently and community help.

Q. What help did you require during threshing?

A. You understand we have more expenses, binder

twine 125 lbs. at 12^ per lb. If I remember right

that is what I paid for it. Mr. Stevenson knows

what

—

Q. What did your twine come to ?

A. I got it $12.50.

Q. And your sacks was how much?

A. $45. I paid 10^ a piece for the sacks.

Q. Pay anything for string, sewing twine?

A. Yes. Oh, it couldn't have been over a couple

of dollars any way.

Q. All right we will put it down a couple of dol-

lars. Now, what help did you require, and what was
it worth, in assisting in the threshing?
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A. Well, really, I put in everj'thing here. Now,

the outside labor time I put that down here come to

$50.90.

Q. That was labor on threshing the grain or

threshing and hauling it to the granary?

A. Outside labor, that is what was hired outside,

not figuring myself whatever, just hired help to help

with the threshing, men and teams, and a

man to pitch it together with the sack sewer, one

sack sewer.

Q. Hired help, $50', you say?

A. And 90^, not figuring myself.

Q. What is yours ?

A. The way I rustled around, see, I figured $5 per

day.

Q. How many days did it take you to thresh?

A. I was threshing 2 days and a half.

Q. $12.50? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that bring all the expense down to hauling

it to the granary? A. No, sir.

Q. What other expense ? A. About 14 men.

Q. I have put down here hired men 14.

A. You understand that w^as help to bring the

grain into the machine and thresh it—it was not

figuring meals or anything of that sort. There were

14 men and I charged 50c^ per meal.

Q. 14 men there for 8 meals, $56? A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right, what else ?

A. I fed up a ton of hay worth $15, laid on the

ranch.

Q. You would have been required to feed your
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horses if you hadn't been threshing. Wouldn't they

have eaten anything if threshing hadn't been going

on? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You charge that to threshing'?

A. I hired these teams to come out and do the

threshing. They wouldn't have threshed if I didn't

feed them.

Q. Outside teams?

A. My own teams was in with them.

Q. A ton of hay is worth how much!

A. $15.

Q. Do you know of any $15 hay in Beaverhead

County, Mr. Miller?

A. No, I don't, Mr. Smith. I put that down at

$15, because as a rule we have to go out and get hay,

haul it ourselves, and I figure up to $15 for that load

of hay.

Q. I am not objecting, I am asking you what a ton

of hay costs delivered at your ranch. You are under

oath. You may say what you think it is. I am not

going to quarrel with you about it. You want it cal-

culated at $15, do you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is there anything

—

A. They fed up a thousand lbs. of oats while they

were there.

Q. A thousand lbs. of oats? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many horses did you have there at that

threshing? A. 19 head.

Q. 19 head of horses? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Two days and a half? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would be equal to how many horses for
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one day? A. How's that?

Q. We will say 50 horses for one day. Is that

right?

A. Well, I don't want to give you the worst of it.

That would be giving me the best of it. It wouldn't

hardly be that much.

Q. Figuring it at 50 horses for one day then, each

horse had how many lbs. of oats?

1. 10' lb. bucketful. How much will that weigh ?

A. I don't know.

A. Now, I will tell you. 30 lbs. a day to each

horse. 50 times 30 would be 1500 lbs., is it not?

Q. Did you ever feed a horse 30 lbs. of wheat in

one day?

A. You stated you would give 10' lbs, to the bucket-

ful.

Q. I am saying 10 lbs of oats to a—I am not stating

what your bucket weighed. You say you fed 1000

lbs of oats. What were they worth ?

A. Well, they cost me $12.50 besides the hauling

of them.

Q. Now, then, is there anything further?

A. That makes $12 dollars, $17.50.

Q. How's that? A. $17.50. There is oil.

Q. All right, how much oil? A. $11.70'.

Q. What were you oiling? A. Gas engine.

Q. Did you own the engine?

A. No, W. L. Leek.

Q. Is there anything further?

A. Then I had to get that too—let that go in with

the other. Then I put hauling wheat inside shed

$15.
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Q. Didn't you haul this wheat during the same 2

days and a half?

A. No, stacked it up outside and hauled it in after.

Q. Is that the end of the expense items f

A. No, sir.

Q. What else have you got?

A. I believe it is. I believe that is—yes, I believe

that is the end of it.

Q. You figure $352.38? According to your figures

you say it cost you that to harrow, harvest, thresh

and house your grain?

A. I have it here, $325.33. Yes, that is about

right. I got it a little less the way I figured it, but

—

Q. You still have 600 bushels of grain on hand at

the ranch ? A. Approximately 600.

Redirect Examination by Mr. RODGERS.
Q. Mr. Miller how did you arrive at the amount of

oath the horses ate ?

A. Well, really—I have an oat box out there just

holds 1000 lbs. filled to the top. Wlien I

turned the fellows loose it was full and when I come

to get my oats I looked in the box and found it

empty. That is how it was.

Witness excused.

[Testimony of H. G. Rodgers—Recalled.]

Direct Examination by Mr. SMITH.
Q. Mr. Rodgers, it appears that in the testimony

here that we both gave some advice in this matter

voluntarily or as counsel, was it not, to the effect that

this growing crop of grain was real estate and that
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that advice was perhaps acted upon by the trustee

and the bankrupt. Now, I will ask you if it isn't a

fact that many of the law books treat growing crops

as realty until severed from the ground'?

A. Why, that is a hard question to answer.

Mr. RODGE'RS.—I don't think I would try to an-

swer what the law is under

—

Mr. SMITH.—I recognize that it was properly

outside of this case, Mr. Referee, going into the mat-

ter, but it might appear that Mr. Rodgers and I

didn't know much about what we was talking about.

My idea is still that we were correct and it has noth-

ing to do with this case.

Witness excused.

[Certificate of Clerk U. S. District Court to

Transcript of Testimony.]

I, Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk U. S. District Court for

the District of Montana, do hereby certify the fore-

going to be a true copy of the transcript of testimony

taken before the Referee, on file in my office as such

clerk.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By Harry H. Walker,

Deputy.
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[Exhibit "B"—Order Overruling Referee's Order.]

In the District Court of the United States, for the

District of Montana.

No. 762.

In the Matter of R. S. MILLER, Bankrupt.

This cause came on at this time for decision of the

Court. And thereupon after due consideration, it is

ordered that the Referee's order be and the same

hereby is overruled.

GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By Harry H. Walker,

Deputy Clerk.

I, Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Montana, do hereby

certify that the above is a full, true and correct copy

of the minute entry made in the above-entitled cause

on the 27th day of March, 1915.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By Harry H. Walker,

Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed]: No. 2628. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. In re R. S.

Miller, a Bankrupt, Olmsted-Stevenson Co., Plain-

tiff, vs. C. S. Miller, Defendant. Amendment to

Petition for Revision. Filed Oct. 9, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk. By , Deputy

Clerk.
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[Endorsed]: No. 2628. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Olmsted-

Stevenson Company, a Corporation, Petitioner, vs.

R. S. Miller, Bankrupt, Respondent, In the Matter

of R. S. Miller, Bankrupt, Petition for Revision

Under Section 24b of the Bankruptcy Act of Con-

gress, Approved July 1, 1898, to Revise, in Matter

of Law, of a Certain Order of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Montana.

Filed July 27, 1915.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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No. 2628

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

In the Matter of R. S. Miller^

A Bankrupt.

OLMSTED-STEVENSON COMPANY
(a corporation),

Petitioner,

vs.

R. S. MILLER,
Respondent.

BRIEF FOR PETITIONER.

This hearing is upon a petition to revise and

review an order of the District Court of the United

States for the District of Montana, made and

entered in the above matter on or about the 27th

day of March, 1915.

Statement of Facts.

The undisputed facts, as disclosed by the record,

are that the bankrupt, R. S. Miller, had entered a



piece of government land as a homestead, under the

Acts of Congress, in September, 1910 (Tr. p. 14),

and was in possession thereof as such homesteader

during the years 1913 and 1914; that in the fall of

1913 he planted fifty acres of this homestead in

winter wheat, which at the time of the filing of his

petition in bankruptcy was a growing crop (Tr.

p. 14) ; that on February 5, 1914, he filed his volun-

tary petition to be adjudged a bankrupt, and that

he was adjudged a bankrupt and received a dis-

charge in April, 1914. The petitioner was named in

the bankrupt's schedule of creditors for the amount

claimed as due it. It proved its claim, which was

recognized and allowed by the trustees.

It seems that the bankrupt did not place in his

schedule of assets and property such growing crop

of grain, and, after his discharge but prior to the

closing of the estate, petitioner herein sought to

have the bankruptcy proceeding opened and the

bankrupt directed and ordered to amend his schedule

of property and assets so that it might include the

growing crop of wheat (Tr. pp. 3 et seq.).

The bankrupt contested the relief asked on the

ground that the crop was exempt to him under the

statutes of Montana, and also under the laws of the

United States, and insisted that the trustee in bank-

ruptcy and the petitioner were guilty of such laches

as to be estopped from being entitled to the relief

asked (Tr. pp. 10 et seq.).

The Referee who heard the matter upon the origi-

nal petition, found in favor of your petitioner (Tr.



p. 20), but upon the petition of the bankrupt to

the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana, that court reversed the decision

of the Referee (Tr. pp. 29 and 84).

Argument.

But two questions seem necessary to be consid-

ered by this court upon this hearing, namely:

(I) Was the growing crop of wheat an asset of

the bankrupt which passed to the trustee for the

benefit of creditors; and (II) Is petitioner estopped

from procuring the relief sought because of laches

in the filing of his petition?

Logically, these questions should be considered in

their inverse order, because if the petitioner is

estopped by laches, the first question becomes im-

material.

I.

WAS THE PETITIONER ESTOPPED BY LACHES?

It is too well settled a proposition to require the

citation of authority, that a bankrupt court sits as

a court of equity and is governed by equitable rules.

The question of laches must, therefore, be deter-

mined by the application of equitable rules as estab-

lished in the federal courts of the United States.

It is held in the case of Valvona, etc. v. Marchiony,

207 Fed. 380, that laches in equity is based upon the

doctrine of an equitable estoppel against the party



bringing the suit or proceeding. It is held in Gal-

liher v. Cadwill, 145 U. S. 368, that in applying the

doctrine of laches or estoppel, courts of equity pro-

ceed upon the assumption that the party to whom
laches is imputed has had full knowledge of his

rights and an ample opportunity of establishing

them; that by reason of his delay the adverse party

has good reason to believe that the alleged rights

are deemed worthless, or haVe been abandoned, and

because of the change in conditions or relations dur-

ing the period of delay it would be unjust to the

defendant to permit the opposing party to assert

his rights. Therefore, unless the bankrupt has

disclosed some injury or prejudice occurring to him

or his estate during the delay of petitioner in

filing its original petition, or that he has changed

his position relying upon the non-action of this

petitioner, so that the granting of the order prayed

for would be inequitable, the question of laches

amounts to nothing.

Nowhere in any of the pleadings or proceedings is

it alleged that the bankrupt had changed his position

or was injured by relying on the fact that the peti-

tioner had waived or abandoned its claim.

We concede that upon this hearing this court may
not consider disputed questions of fact, only ques-

tions of law can be considered. Whether the evi-

dence introduced is sufficient to sustain the order

sought to be reviewed is a question of law and may
therefore be considered by this court.

Kirsner v. Taliaferro, 202 Fed. 51;

In re Frank, 182 Fed. 794;



In re Lee, 182 Fed. 579;

In re Knosher, 197 Fed. 136 (this court).

True, it is alleged in the bankrupt's answer to

the original petition filed herein, that the petitioner,

''with full knowledge of all the facts in this

case as aforesaid, consented, advised, and know-
ingly permitted the said trustee to proceed with
the administration of said estate and set aside

to this bankrupt his exemptions including the

real estate on which said crop was growing, and
to permit this bankrupt in good faith to expend
his labor, time, material and money in taking
care of, harvesting and marketing said crop,

and that by reason thereof said petitioning cred-

itor now is estopped from claiming or requir-

ing this bankrupt to surrender said crop or to

surrender the proceeds of said crop in order
that the same may be administered and distrib-

uted to this bankrupt's creditors herein" (Tr.

p. 17).

But there was no allegation that he took care of,

harvested and marketed the crop in reliance upon

the silence of this petitioner, or that he was led

to spend his money or change his position relative

to the crop in reliance upon any action of your

petitioner. There was not one syllable of evidence

offered at the hearing before the Referee to support

the above allegation. All the evidence introduced

in behalf of the bankrupt simply tended to show that

he acted in good faith and upon the advice of his

attorneys in not placing this growing crop in his

schedule of assets and property (Tr. pp. 53-54,

56, 71) ; that petitioner's agent knew of the exist-

ence of the crop; knew that the bankrupt claimed



that it was exempt and that the land upon which

the crop was growing had been set aside to him as

exempt property. There was absolutely no evidence

introduced even tending to show that your petitioner

ever consented to anything or that the bankrupt

spent his time and money in caring for, harvesting

and marketing the crop in reliance on the inaction

of your petitioner to his injury, but the testimony

introduced conclusively shows that he performed

all these acts because he believed and had been

advised that he was the owner of the crop (Tr. pp.

53, 54, 56, 71). There was no testimony to indicate

that your petitioner had led the bankrupt to believe,

or that the bankrupt did believe, that your peti-

tioner had waived any rights which it might have

had or claimed, or would never attempt to enforce

them. There is nothing to bring the matter within

the doctrine of GalUher v. Cadwill, supra. The

bankrupt doubtless believed that he was the owner

of the crop and that no one questioned it.

It appears exceedingly strange to us that if the

bankrupt had relied upon the acquiescence and

silence of your petitioner concerning the ownership

and right to the crop, he should have kept so accu-

rate an account of the time, money and labor he

placed upon the growing crop, even to the value of

harrowing the same (Tr. pp. 72 to 82). Presumably

he made his memoranda of expenses at the time he

incurred the same (Tr. p. 72), realizing that it was

doubtful as to his ownership of the crop, and in-

tended to ''play safe", so that he might recover his



expenses of caring for the crop in case the matter

should finally be decided against him.

Under the circumstances disclosed by the plead-

ings and testimony we concede that it would be only

equitable and right that the bankrupt be allowed to

retain out of the proceeds of this crop every dollar

he has spent in caring for, harvesting and market-

ing the same, and reasonable compensation for any

time or labor he expended, together with a reason-

able rental for the land upon which this crop was

growing. We have no doubt that he acted in good

faith and upon the advice of his attorneys, although

he evidently was aware of the fact that his rights

were doubtful. We cannot consent, however, that

he be allowed to retain anything beyond what would

be sufficient to make him whole. This would be

inequitable to the creditors and place a premium

upon dishonesty of a debtor.

It seems that the bankrupt insisted in the court

below that the trustee was agent for the creditors

and that he, the trustee, was guilty of such laches

as to prevent him from claiming this crop as a

part of the estate of the bankrupt for distribution

among his creditors, and that petitioner, being one

of the creditors, was and is bound and concluded

thereby. It appears from the opinion of the court

below that he coincided with this view and held the

trustee guilty of such laches as to bar petitioner.

In this view, we insist that both were mistaken.

The court says

:
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''No fraud appearing, it is final and concludes
creditor. The bankrupt assumed all risk and
hazard of failure, the trustee none, and in

justice to the former he is entitled to whatever
success was achieved" (Tr. p. 32).

The court disregarded the fact that the trustee

had made no effort to have the bankrupt turn over

this crop or its proceeds for the benefit of the cred-

itors. He has always maintained the position that

this crop was exempt. He states in his testimony

that he was so advised by the bankrupt's attorneys.

The court was also evidently impressed with the

idea that the laches of the trustee bound the cred-

itors, and concluded that the trustee was estopped,

and that therefore the creditors were also estopped.

This idea was probably based upon the language

of the court in the case of In re Hansen, liO Fed.

252, cited in the brief for the bankrupt. This con-

clusion could only arise from the application of the

principle that the trustee is agent for the creditors

and that knowledge of an agent is always knowledge

of the principal. The court in the case last cited,

and the court below herein, failed to recognize the

principle often announced by the federal courts that

under the Bankrupt Act of 1898, the trustee does

not stand in the relation of an agent of the creditors.

The relationship between the trustee in bankruptcy

and the creditor under the Act of 1898 is that of

trustee and cestuis qui trustent. This from its very

nature precludes the relationship of principal and

agent. The trustee is at least a quasi officer of the



court, and is not bound by the actions, orders or

directions of the creditors. This of itself precludes

the relationship of principal and agent.

Under the Bankruptcy Act of 1867, a trustee was

properly held to be the agent of the creditors, be-

cause they had full control, not only over the pro-

ceedings in bankruptcy but also over the trustee

himself. There is no provision corresponding to

this in the Act of 1898, and such relationship does

not exist.

In re Columhia Iron Works, 142 Fed. 237;

In re AMen, etc., Co., 133 Fed. 388.

Inasmuch as under the Act of 1898 the trustee

in bankruptcy is beyond the control of the creditors

and is a quasi officer of the court, it would indeed

be a strange doctrine to hold the creditors liable for

his acts or knowledge. The trustee is charged with

the duty of correcting the schedules of a bankrupt,

the creditors have nothing to do with it. Sup-

pose the trustee knowingly permits a large amount

of the bankrupt's property to be omitted from the

schedule of assets. Suppose no creditor has knowl-

edge of the existence of such omission. To hold

that the creditors should lose their claims upon such

assets would so clearly be inequitable that it cannot

stand as the law.

We therefore confidently submit that your peti-

tioner was not guilty of such laches as would pre-

clude it from receiving the relief sought by its

petition.
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II.

WAS THE GROWING CROP OF WHEAT AN ASSET OF THE
BANKRUPT WHICH PASSED TO THE TRUSTEE FOR THE
BENEFIT OF CREDITORS?

In order to properly determine this question a

careful examination of the Bankrupt Act seems

necessary.

Under Section 70, Subdivision A, the trustee is

vested by operation of law with the title of the

bankrupt to all

''property which, prior to the filing of the peti-

tion, he could by any means have transferred, or
which might have been levied upon and sold

under judicial process against him." (Excep-
ting, of course, property exempt under the

Bankrupt Act.)

It has been held that by virtue of the above quoted

language, an adjudication in bankruptcy brings all

the property of the bankrupt, wherever situated,

in custodia legis, and the court acquires full right

and jurisdiction to administer the estate.

Knauth et al. v. Latham Co.;, 219 Fed. 71;

Lazarus v. Prentice, 23f[J. S. 266.

It will be noticed that the language of Section 70,

Subdivision A, above quoted, is in the alternative,

and if the bankrupt is possessed of any property

''which he could hy any means have transferred^',

it passes to the trustee, as well as all of the property

which ''might have been levied upon and sold under

judicial process against him".

In re Burnett Co., 29 Am. Bnk. Reg., 872.

In this case the bankrupt claimed as exempt an.

undivided one-half interest in a growing wheat crop.
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The trustee declined to set it aside, and the Referee

entered an order sustaining him. The bankrupt

based his claim on a statute of Tennessee which pro-

hibited a levy upon a growing crop until November

15th of each year, being after the maturity of the

crops. The statutes of exemptions of that State

did not include growing crops among exempt prop-

erty. The State court had recognized the right to

sell or mortgage growing crops. The federal court

said:

''It therefore follows that, not being exempt
property and property which the bankrupt
could have transferred at the time the petition

was filed and the adjudication in bankruptcy
made, title thereto must be held to have passed
to the bankrupt, under provisions of Section 70
of the Bankrupt Act."

The Supreme Court of Montana has always recog-

nized the right of the owner to mortgage growing

crops.

Ford i'. SutJierlin, 2nd Mont. 440;

Brande v. Bah cock, 35th Mont. 256.

The same right is recognized by the statute of

Montana.

Revised Code, Sees. 5773, 6824 and 6826.

Growing crops are not mentioned in the statute

of exemptions of the State of Montana.

The court below^ held that crops growing on land

inchided in a homestead entry were not property

of the character which could vest in a trustee in

bankruptcy. It is beyond our comprehension to

understand why not. A crop growing on a home-
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stead entry is not endowed with any peculiar sanc-

tity, because of that circumstance, nor does any

peculiarity of title or right attach to it. The home-

steader is entitled to the possession of the land and

all the fruits thereof so long as he complies with

the provisions of the homestead law. He may raise

any crop he desires and such crop is his own prop-

erty. From the time the seed is placed in the

ground, such ownership exists, and it continues dur-

ing the germination of the seed and throughout its

grow^th and ripening. It is alw^ays his own, and

clearly comes witlim the common law designation

of fructus indnstriales. He may sell, mortgage or

do what he pleases with it. It may be seized, levied

upon and sold by his creditors at any time. This

has always been the rule of the common law.

Evans v. Roberts, 5 Barn. & Cress, 829

;

Swafford v. Spratt, 67 N. W. 701

;

PJiillips V. Keysand, 56 Pac. 695;

Johnson v. Walker, 37 N. W. 640;

Polley V. Johnson, 35 Pac. 8;

Aye7^s V. Hatvk, 11 Atl. 744.

It is impossible for us to understand why any

difference should exist between the land held under

a homestead entry and the land held under a con-

tract of purchase from an individual owner. Unless

the contract is complied with in the latter case, the

person loses possession of the land, while in the

former case he loses possession by failure to comply

with the homestead law. The legal effect of non-

compliance is the same in each case.
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We cannot agree with the court below in its con-

struction of Section 70 of the Bankrupt Act, where-

in it limits the operation of its provisions to ''prop-

erty capable of change of ownership or enjoyment

without recourse to or draft upon property and

labor of the bankrupt". Section 70 provides that all

property of the bankrupt which he could by any

means have transferred or which might have been

levied upon or sold under judicial process should

pass to the trustee for the benefit of creditors. That

the bankrupt could have sold and transferred this

crop is, we submit, beyond question, and if he could

have sold the same it might be levied upon by his

creditors. The effectuality of a sale or of a levy

is not the standard for the determination of the

right to sell or to make a levy. Such right is deter-

mined by the ownership of the property. If the

right of sale or levy exists, then the property passes

to the trustee, irrespective of the question of what

may be realized therefrom.

We are also of the opinion that the court erred

in holding that

"when the bankruptcy petition was filed, this

crop had no separate existence. It was in the

nature of an incident that followed the land.

Its value was potential only—that might be
created by the land and future labor. Of itself

it had no transfer value".

We can conceive of no legal distinction between

the law applied to this case and other cases of

growing crops. There can be no doubt but that

the bankrupt might sell growing crops to anyone.
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If so, such crops were capable of separation from

the land and would have a separate existence.

Whether it could be levied upon is immaterial under

Section 70, but in our opinion such levy could have

been made.

It is difficult to understand why any distinction

should be made between this case and one where

crops are growing on a statutory homestead, which

is exempt under the Bankrupt Act. In such instance

no creditor could claim that the land passed to the

trustee; no creditor would have the right to the

labor of the bankrupt in maturing, harvesting and

marketing the crop. Yet the authorities are uniform

in holding that in such cases the title to the crop

would pass to the trustee.

It is equally difficult to conceive how the court

could conclude that this crop was not subject to

levy and sale,

*' because otherwise the owner thereof might be
prevented from performing the conditions

precedent, of which was cultivation of the crop,

with the government".

How could a levy or sale of the growing crop

possibly prevent or interfere with a bankrupt's

performance of the necessary conditions precedent

to his right to the homestead ? He would still retain

the possession of the land. It would still be pro-

ducing and bearing crops. All the requisites of the

United States Homestead Act would be complied

with. The only possible diiference would be that

the entryman would be deprived of his crop, but

we know of no statute which this would violate and
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cannot understand how it could possibly endanger

his homestead right. That the bankrupt could

abandon his homestead rights, plow up the crop, or

otherwise destroy it, is immaterial, because such

acts tvould only go to the value of the right sought

to be gained hj the levy, and not the right itself.

The rights of the bankrupt in growing crops has

been before the federal courts many times, as shown

by the following authorities

:

In re Sidlivan, 148 Fed. 115;

In re Baubner, 76 Fed. 805;

In re Frederick, 28 Am. Bnk. Reg. 656;

In re Iloag, 97 Fed. 503.

In each iij^^ance tne federal court has held that

the growing crop passes to the trustee in bank-

ruptcy.

In re Siillivan, supra, the court held that crops

of ripe grain growing on a homestead are not exempt

unless made so by the State statutes or decisions.

The bankrupt in that case claimed the crop was

exempt because it was the product of exempt prop-

erty, namely, his homestead. The court said:

^^If all growing crops upon an exempt home-
stead are ipso facto exempt anyone may secure

a homestead near a large 'city, expend much
money in seed, in fertilizing the ground and in

growing and harvesting the crops, and in that

way secure large returns from vegetable and
other products, sell them in a convenient and
available market, accumulate a fortune and
successfully defy creditors. Such possibility

demonstrates that the theory of Inw which
makes it possible is probably not sound, and in-
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duces fraud from a construction of the statute,

if the same could be reasonably done, which will

not permit it."

In re Hoag, supra, the court holds that where the

State statute exempts a homestead the bankrupt

cannot claim as exempt, in addition thereto, the

crops growing on the land at the time of filing his

petition in bankruptcy. The court said:

''Growing crops are personal property in

law. Although on a sale of the land without
reservation, they go with the land because the

implication is clear that such is the intention,

they pass by bill of sale or chattel mortgage
without sale, and even by oral agreement, and
may be levied upon by execution or attachment
as personal estate, and on the death of the ow^ner

descend to his personal representatives, and not
to his heirs. It is also claimed that the crops
are exempt as being the product of a home-
stead which is itself exempt. If this be so it

would follow that cattle, horses, and other stock
grown on the homestead are o1so exempt for tlie

same reason. So that it Avould be possible for a
thrifty debtor wdth an eye to business to easilv

double or quadruple the exemptions enumerated
by the statute."

In re Dauhner, supra. This case holds that land

acquired under homestead law of the United States

cannot be subject to bankruptcy proceedings for the

payment of any debt contracted before the issuance

of patent, yet crops growing on such homestead at

the time of the adjudication of a voluntary bank-

rupt, are not exempt but pass to the trustee for the

benefit of creditors. The court said

:

"While for many purposes growing crops

are held to be a party of the realty yet in many
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cases they have been treated as personalty and
held liable to attachment or execution and levy

and sale. Upon a sale of the land the growing
crops, unless reserved, would pass to the pur-

chaser, but they are capable of reservation and
of mortgage and sale to the owner of the land,

and when such owner voluntarily goes into

bankruptcy he must be held to the intent that

such of his property and rights as are the sub-

ject of disposition by him, and are not neces-

sarily exempt, shall vest in the trustee for the

benefit of creditors. Such crops are the fruits

of the bankrupt's industry or of his investment
of money, or both. It would be productive of

great injustice if the owner of a homestead is

permitted to spend his money upon exempt
land, and then between such time and harvest
procure a discharge in bankruptcy, and so reap
what was sown at the expense of the creditor.

By such device the bankrupt might secure a
discharss'e from his debts and retain his prop-
erty, with its increase, and the bankruptcy law
be made a mistreatment of law."

We therefore submit that the order of the order

of the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana reversing the order of the

Referee, be itself reversed, and the order of the

Referee reinstated.

Dated, San Francisco,

October 15, 1915.

Respectfully submitted,

John" B. Clayberg,

Attorney fo7' Petitioner.
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No. 2628.

IN THE
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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

OLMSTED-STEVENSON COMPANY,
a corporation,

Petitioner,

VS.
•

R. S. MILLER, Bankrupt,

Respondent.

In the Matter of R. S. MILLER, Bankrupt.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

Respondent has filed a motion herein to dismiss the

Petition upon the grounds and for the reasons set forth

in the motion (Record 36-37).

Without waiver of any of the grounds set forth in

the motion, respondent submits that said petition does

not state facts sufficient to entitle petitioner to the re-

lief prayed or to any relief.

There does not appear in the record herein a state-

ment of any findings of fact made by the District

Court, if any were made, and it does not appear from

the record whether the matter was heard in the lower

Court solely upon the evidence taken before the Ref-



ree or whether other additional evidence was pre-

sented.

"The record should include a statement of the

findings of fact and conclusions of law by the

court below, or its equivalent, and not a certified

copy of the evidence itself. The opinion of the

court IS not sufficient for this purpose, and may
only be referred to for the purpose of ascertain-

ing what propositions of law governed the court
in which the opinion was filed."

In re Richards, 96 Fed. 935, 37 C. C. A. 634;
In re Taft, 133 Fed. 511, 66 C. C. A. 385;
Steiner vs. Marshall, 140 Fed. 710, 72 C. C.

A. 103;
In re Pettingill & Co., 137 Fed. 840, 70 C.

C. A. 338.

The record will not be considered where the tran-

script contains neither an agreed statement of facts

nor findings of fact. (This was a petition for review

of an order reversing an order of a referee disallow-

ing a secured claim.)

Landing vs. San Antonio Brewing Assn., C.

C. A., 5th Cir., 20 A. B. R. 226.

"The allegation in the petition for review in

this court is no evidence of such fact; nor is the

allegation referred to put in issue. The Court

is confined to the record attached to the petition

or sent up in connection with the proceedings to

review."

In re Rodarmour, (C. C. A., 6th Cir.), 177

Fed. 379;
In re Boston Dry Goods Co., (C. C. A., ist

Cir.), 125 Fed. 226.



In the case last above mentioned it is said by the

Court:

"As we have already said, the petitioners as-

sume that the opinion of the learned Judge of

the District Court states the findings, rulings and
orders of that Court. This, as we have said,

forms no part of the record, so that there are no
findings of that Court in any proper sense of the

word. (The decree of the Court is general in its

terms, not containing any findings.) The record
discloses no application to the district court for

specific findings of fact, so that in all respects,

the record is as the petitioners saw fit to make it.

In this particular case we should not undertake to

revise the findings and conclusions of the Ref-
eree. The petition in this case is dismissed for

the foregoing reason."

In re Pettingill & Co., supra, it is said:

"This Court is not authorized to revise the find-

ings of the Referee but only those of the District

Court, and the record must contain a statement of

the ultimate facts as will enable us to dispose of

its proceedings on mere questions of law. The
opinion filed by the judge does not present find-

ings of fact of the character described in our de-

cisions, unless made a matter of record by order

of the Court in which it is passed down."

In re Taft, supra, it is said by the Court:

"It is not unusual for the record to include the

whole of the evidence instead of a statement of

ultimate facts as found by the Referee or Judge,

and this is improper because this Court cannot re-

view the evidence to determine the facts, but is

limited to reviewing the questions of law neces-



sarily raised and decided upon the facts found by
the Court of Bankruptcy."

To the same effect see Steiner vs. Marshall, supra.

It seems to be the plan of petitioner here to ask this

Court to decide as a matter of law that the evidence

herein is insufficient to justify the order of the District

Court. That the Court cannot do in this proceeding,

for the reasons above stated, and for the further rea-

sons that this Court cannot review the evidence because

there is nothing in the record to show that all the evi-

dence is contained therein.

Alkon vs. United States, (C. C. A. ist Cir.)

163 Fed. 810.

PETITIONER IS ESTOPPED FROM NOW
BRINGING FORTH THE MATTERS
UPON WHICH IT SEEKS A REVISION.

It appears from the petition filed herein that in

February, 1914, the petitioner was adjudicated a bank-

rupt (Petition 29) ; that in April he was discharged

in bankruptcy, and thereafter the Referee in Bank-

ruptcy made an order citing the bankrupt to show cause

why he should not amend his schedule by incorporat-

ing therein a crop of wheat planted upon his United

States homestead, and that he be required to deliver

same to the trustee in bankruptcy.

The petition alleges among other things:

"XL

"That at the time of filing the schedule of prop-

erty owned by him as aforesaid, and at all times



thereafter, the said R. S. Miller, KNOWINGLY,
AND FRAUDULENTLY, CONCEALED SAID PROPERTY,

and KNOWINGLY AND FRAUDULENTLY FAILED AND
NEGLECTED TO INCLUDE THE SAME IN THE SCHED-

ULE OF PROPERTY filed by him, and failed to sur-

render the same for the benefit of his creditors,

and that said property was not delivered up or

surrendered by said Miller, for the use and bene-

fit of said creditors.

"That neither your petitioner, nor any of its

officers or employees had knowledge of the fail-

ure of said R. S. Miller to include said crop in

his schedule of property until on or about the

i8th day of September, 1914, etc." (Pet. 5-6.)

Upon these and other allegations issue was joined

by the bankrupt, who, in addition to denying them,

alleged, among other things

:

"That at all the times mentioned in the an-

swer, B. N. Stevenson was the secretary-treasurer

of the Olmsted-Stevenson Company, and Jos.

C. Smith was one of its attorney, representing its

interests as a creditor of this bankrupt.

"That at the time of the filing of this bank-

rupt's petition and schedules, and at the time of

his adjudication as a bankrupt therein, the said

petitioner, Olmsted-Stevenson Company, and its

agents and servants knew and ever since have

known, that said crop was upon said lands and

that this bankrupt owned and was in possession

of said crop, and that the said Charles W. Con-

ger, after his appointment and qualification as

trustee herein as aforesaid, and prior to the mak-
ing of an order by the said trustee, setting apart

to this bankrupt his exemptions and prior to the

date upon which this bankrupt was discharged as
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aforesaid, well knew that said crop was upon
said lands and premises aforesaid and that this

bankrupt claimed to be and was the owner thereof,

and that this bankrupt, after the appointment and
qualification of said trustee and before the order
setting apart to this bankrupt his exemptions, told

said trustee that said crop was upon said lands

and that he, the said bankrupt, was the owner
thereof, and that said trustee before making said

order, considered said matter and consulted with
the said Olmsted-Stevenson Company, its agents,

attorneys and servants, and was advised by the

attorney for said Company that said crop was
a part and portion of said real estate, and as such,

belonged to the bankrupt, and that said trustee

thereupon told the attorney for this bankrupt that

said crop was a part of and admitted to be a part

of said real estate, and as such exempt to said

bankrupt, and that he would make an order set-

ting apart to this bankrupt said real estate as ex-

empt.

"That this bankrupt honestly believing that said

crop was a part of said real estate, and as such

was not entitled to be administered by said trus-

tee for the benefit of said bankrupt's creditors

herein, remained in POSSESSION OF SAID CROP,

TOOK CARE OF, HARVESTING AND THRESHING SAID

CROP AND EXPENDED LARGE AMOUNTS IN TAKING
CARE OF, HARVESTING AND THRESHING SAID CROP,

IN WORK, LABOR, MATERIALS AND MONEYS EX-

PENDED; THAT SINCE THE THRESHING OF SAID

CROP, HONESTLY AND IN GOOD FAITH BELIEVING

THAT SAID CROP WAS NOT ENTITLED TO BE AD-

MINISTERED FOR THE BENEFIT OF HIS CREDITORS

HEREIN, has sold and disposed of a large portion

of said crop and has laid out and expended the

proceeds thereof, etc.

"That the said petitioning creditor herein,

WITH FULL KNOWLEDGE OF ALL THE FACTS IN
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THIS CASE AS AFORESAID, CONSENTED, ADVISED AND
KNOWINGLY PERMITTED SAID TRUSTEE TO PROCEED
WITH THE ADMINISTRATION OF SAID ESTATE AND
SET ASIDE TO THIS BANKRUPT HIS EXEMPTIONS IN-

CLUDING THE REAL ESTATE UPON WHICH SAID

CROP WAS GROWING, AND TO PERMIT THIS BANK-
RUPT IN GOOD FAITH TO EXPEND HIS LABOR, TIME,
MATERIAL AND MONEY IN TAKING CARE OF, HAR-
VESTING AND MARKETING SAID CROP, AND THAT
BY REASON THEREOF, SAID PETITIONING CREDITOR
IS ESTOPPED FROM CLAIMING OR REQUIRING THIS
BANKRUPT TO SURRENDER SAID CROP OR TO SUR-

RENDER THE PROCEEDS OF SAID CROP IN ORDER
THAT THE SAME MAY BE ADMINISTERED AND DIS-

TRIBUTED TO THIS bankrupt's CREDITORS HERE-
IN." (Pet., pp. 12, 15-17.)

Then follows allegations as to the value of the

work, services, materials furnished and money ex-

pended by the bankrupt, and the value of the use of

the land upon which the crop was grown, etc., in rais-

ing, maturing, harvesting, threshing and caring for

the crop and showing its exempt character.

It will be observed that the charge made against

the bankrupt by the creditor was fraudulent conceal-

ment of property and this is one of the grounds upon

which the creditor might have opposed the discharge.

Sec. 14, Bankruptcy Act; 32 Gen. Order in Bankr.

The objection now raised being open to the creditor

when the bankrupt applied for his discharge and the

bankruptcy law providing for the manner of making

it, he has waived his right, and cannot now bring the

matter forward after the discharge and without mov-

ing to set aside the order of discharge. This order
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until revoked is binding and is res adjudicata not only

as to every matter offered or received to sustain or

defeat it, BUT AS TO ANY OTHER ADMISSIBLE MATTER
WHICH MIGHT HAVE BEEN OFFERED FOR THAT PUR-

POSE. Cromwell vs. Sac. County, 94 U. S. 351, 24

L. Ed. 195.

In petitioner wanted to rely upon the matters set

up in its petition, its remedy was to apply to the

court to revoke the discharge. (Sec. 15, B. Act.)

"The SUMMARY JURISDICTION OF THE BANK-
RUPT COURT OVER THE PERSON OF THE BANKRUPT
CEASES ON THE GRANTING OF HIS DISCHARGE FROM
HIS DEBTS, AND HE CANNOT THEREAFTER BE RE-

QUIRED BY SUMMARY ORDER TO SUBMIT TO EXAM-
INATION TOUCHING HIS PROPERTY ALLEGED TO
HAVE BEEN CONCEALED OR FRAUDULENTLY TRANS-
FERRED."

In re Dole, Fed. Case, No. 3964, 1 1 Blatch. 499;
In re Jones, Fed. Case No. 7449;
In re PVittaski, Fed. Case No. 17,920.

It is said in the brief of the petitioner that unless

the bankrupt "has changed his position relying upon

the non-action of this petitioner, so that the granting

of the order would be inequitable, the question of

laches amount to nothing."

No challenge to pleading or evidence by demurrer,

objection or otherwise was made on this ground in the

Court below, and it cannot be raised here for the

first time,

A fair construction of the pleadings and evidence

is that even before the filing of the bankrupt's peti-
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tioner and its agents and servants, know about the crop

;

it was disclosed at the first meeting of creditors, and

the bankrupt then told Mr. Stevenson (the secretary-

treasurer of petitioner—Pet. 8, 43) about it. (Pet.

70.) He told Mr. Stevenson about it before he filed

his petition. (Pet. 60, 52-54.) The trustee asked

Mr. Smith, attorney for petitioner, whether the crop

was exempt and was advised that it was because a part

of the real estate. (Pet. 63, 68.) In fact it was

admitted by Mr. Smith that he gave advice that the

crop was realty until severed from the ground. (Pet.

82-83.)

The petitioning creditor has had its day in court and

its opportunity to appear and object to the bankrupt's

discharge upon the same ground now urged. It was

notified of the hearing upon the petition for discharge.

(58a Bankr. Act.) The evident reason it did not then

do so was because the crop had not at that time reached

that state of maturity whereby it could be ascertained

whether it would net a profit or a loss. Later in Sep-

tember, when it appeared that the crop would net a

profit, these proceedings were instituted. Had it been

a failure, would the petitioner have come forward and

offered to compensate the bankrupt for his loss?

Would it then have offered to pay the bankrupt the

reasonable rental value of the land, or to pay him for

his services and expenses? It is needless to say that in

the event of a loss this proceeding would not have

materialized.



10

What a monstrous equitable doctrine the petitioner

advances. It asserts the right to stand in court first on

one foot and then on the other. To speculate as to

which position would be most advantageous to it.

"It may be laid down as a general proposition

that, where a party assumes a certain position in

a legal proceeding, and succeeds in maintaining
that position, he may not thereafter, simply because

his interests have changed, assume a contrary po-

sition, especially if it be to the prejudice of the

party who has acquiesced in the position formerly
taken by him."

David V. Wakelee, 156 U. S. 680, 39 L. ed. 578,

584.

It is not reasonable to suppose that the bankrupt

would have harrowed he grain (Pet. 51) and

have cared for it and harvested it unless he believed

that the trustee would not claim it and that the peti-

tioner would not claim it, and was he not justified in

so believing, when its attorney had advised that it

was exempt as a part of the realty? The bankrupt

may rely not only on the evidence but upon all legal

inferences from it.

Of course, the record does not show that the evi-

dence is all here in this petition, or that no new evi-

dence was introduced before the District Court. The

certificate of the clerk fails to disclose that the evi-

dence is full or complete. (Petition, p. 83.)

It is said in petitioner's brief "Whether the evi-

dence introduced is sufficient to sustain the order

sought to be reviewed is a question of law." Whether
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there is any evidence is a question of law. The evi-

dence cannot be weighed in this proceeding, for the

reason that it is not shown to be all here, and further,

the evidence is conflicting, and the nature of the pro-

ceeding will not permit of it. Only questions of law

may be reviewed.

In re Grassier vs. Reichwold, (this Court),
1 8 Am. B. Rep. 694.

"All presumptions are in favor of the order,

and where evidence is not in the record (or where
the record fails to disclose that it contains all

the evidence) it will be presumed the facts were
sufficient to sustain the order, 'and finding'."

Alkon vs. U. S., (C. C. A.), 163 Fed. 810;
In re O'Connell, 127 Fed. 838;
Sec. 2951, Rem. Bankr.

The evidence could only be looked to to ascertain

whether the findings were wholly unsupported, and

not for the purpose of weighing the evidence or

reconciling any conflict, and since there is no finding

in the record, nor any agreed statement of facts, or

any equivalent, it cannot be made to serve that pur-

pose.

Hall vs. Reynolds et al., (C. C. A., 8th Cir.),

34 Am. B. Rep. 707-8.

It is conceded in petitioner's brief "That it would

be only equitable and right that the bankrupt be al-

lowed to retain out of the proceeds of this crop every

dollar he has spent in caring for, harvesting and mar-

keting the same, and reasonable compensation for and
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time or labor expended, together with a reasonable

rental for the land upon which this crop was growing.

We have no doubt that he acted in good faith and

upon the advice of his attorneys."

It might be added that the same advice was given

by the petitioner's attorneys. (Pet. 63, 68, 82, 83.)

The answer to this is tersely and logically contained

in the opinion of the trial court as follows:

*'It will not do to concede payment out of the

crop for such of the bankrupt's land and labor.

The Bankruptcy Act does not authorize either to

be commandeered; and if the crop failed or was
destroyed at harvest, from where would come this

payment? The bankrupt having a right to exclu-

sive use of his homestead land, no levy and sale

could prevent him from lawfully replowing and
reseeding the land after his bankruptcy petition

was filed. To property of this evanescent quality

no levy could attach. The case is distinguishable

from those wherein it has been held that growing
crops are so far personal property that though
upon lands exempt by state law, they are subject

to levy and sale; for in these latter the personal

obligation of the owner of the land continues un-

til after the crop is matured and severed, and the

creditor, until paid, has claims upon the fruits of

his debtor's exempt land and labor. In bank-

rupty it is otherwise. The debtor's personal obli-

gation is extinguished at adjudication, and there-

upon his exempt and after acquired property are

free from creditor's claims though never paid.

To the argument of possible injustice, in that a

homestead entryman might devote such labor and

money to put much land to crop, and then invoke

bankrupty between seed time and harvest, it may
be responded,—No more than if he erected build-

ings and fences, cleared, ditched and broke the
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land, none of which would inure to the benefit

of his estate in bankruptcy."

It is said in petitioner's brief that "it was insisted

in the court below that the trustee was the agent for

the creditors and that he, the trustee, was guilty of

such laches as to prevent him from claiming this crop

as a part of the bankrupt estate, and that it appears

from the opinion of the court below that he coin-

cided with the view that the trustee was guilty of

such laches as to bar petitioner."

Nothing is said about this in the opinion of the

Court, except this

:

"Another sufficient reason for the conclusion

herein is that, by standing by and permitting the

bankrupt to devote his time, money and labor to

maturing the crop as his own, the trustee is now
estopped to claim it. He made his election. No
fraud appearing, it is final, and concludes credit-

ors. The bankrupt assumed all risk and hazard
of failure, the trustee none, and in justice the

former is entitled to whatever success was
achieved. It goes without saying that, if the

crop had failed, this proceeding would not have

materialized, and no one would propose com-
pensating the bankrupt for his loss."

It was not necessary for the court to find a strict

agency between the trustee and creditors. The peti-

tioner's secretary-treasurer, Mr. Stevenson, knew all

about the crop, even before the petition in bank-

ruptcy was filed. (Pet. 52-54-60.) The petitioner's

attorney, Mr. Smith, knew about it, and advised the

trustee that it was exempt "because it was a part of
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represent the creditors, he is elected by them, he

stands to them in a fiduciary relation, he holds the

estate primarily for them, and IT IS His DUTY TO FUR-

NISH SUCH INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ESTATE

AND ITS ADMINISTRATION AS MAY BE REQUESTED BY

PARTIES IN INTEREST. B. Act, sec. 47 (a) 5.

In re Sauer, 122 Fed. loi

;

In re Lowensohn, 121 Fed. 539;
In re Wrisley & Co., 133 Fed. 388 (C. C. A.).

The legal presumption is that he regularly per-

formed his duty. The knowledge of the trustee is also

the knowledge of the creditors. In re Hansen, 107

Fed. 252. There is nothing in either In re Colum-

bia Iron PForks, or In re Allen etc. Co., cited by

the petitioner, which in any way militates against

this view.

In the Hansen case, supra, at page 254, the Court

said:

(Application to revoke discharge—to reach

other property.)

"Moreover, this petition comes too late. It is

not claimed that any fraud has been perpetrated

by Hansen upon the creditors, or that there has

been any concealment by him in the premises.

The trustee in bankruptcy represents the credit-

ors. He was fully informed of all the facts in

relation to Hansen's right. His information was

that of the creditors by whom he was elected.

I am convinced that these creditors, knowing all

the facts, believed that Hansen had no right, in

view of the adverse decision of the land office
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in this tract of land; and they were willing while
the situation remained as it was, that Hansen
should have his discharge in bankruptcy. The
reversal of the decision of the local land office

by the commissioner and the secretary of the

interior accounts for the petition that has been
filed. The application to set aside the discharge
is denied."

To summarize: The petitioning creditor well

knew all about this crop, even before the filing of the

petition in bankruptcy; knew that it was not sepa-

rately listed in the bankrupt's schedules; and that it

was claimed as exempt by the bankrupt as a part of

the homestead; that petitioner's attorney had so ad-

vised the trustee; that the trustee set aside the home-

stead as exempt, believing that the crop passed with

it as a part of the exemption; that by the conduct of

the petitioning creditor, its attorney, and the trus-

tee, the bankrupt was led to believe that the crop

was exempt as a part of the homestead, and there-

after he harrowed it, and devoted his time, labor and

money, in maturing, harvesting and marketing it;

that he was discharged in bankruptcy without any ob-

jection, so far as the record shows, on the part of

the petitioning creditor.

Respondent, therefore, respectfully submits that the

creditor having full knowledge of the facts and hav-

ing stood by and permitted the bankrupt to devote

his time, labor and money, in maturing, harvesting

and marketing the crop, as his own, he has proven

the allegations of his answer, to which no objection
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was made below, that the petitioning creditor failed

to prove the allegations of its petition, the trustee,

who has succeeded to the legal title to the bankrupt

estate, and the creditor, are estopped to now claim it.

And that from their misleading silence with knowl-

edge or passive conduct it became their duty to

speak; that it was fair to equate their silence with a

declaration that neither the trustee nor the petitioning

creditor had any interest in the planted crop.

Bigelow on Estoppel, Sec. 4, p. 648 (6th ed.).

And this defense is favored by the federal courts.

Lasher vs. McCreery, 66 Fed. 834, 840;
St. Paul etc. R. Co. vs. Sage, 49 Fed. 315, 326,

I C. C. A. 256;
Hahtead vs. Grinnan, 152 U. S. 412, 14 Sup.

Ct. 641, 38 L. Ed. 495.

As stated in the third and fourth grounds of the

motion to dismiss, the petition to revise on this ground,

involves the decision of a controverted issue of fact,

which cannot be decided in this proceeding; and the

facts are not before the court from which the court

below drew its conclusions of law, or made its order,

stated as the seventh ground. (Pet. 36-37.) For

these reasons the motion to dismiss the petition should

be sustained.

Without waiver of the foregoing reasons why the

motion to dismiss the petition should be sustained,

respondent submits that the question, WAS THE GROW-
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ING CROP OF WHEAT AN ASSET OF THE BANKRUPT

WHICH PASSED TO THE TRUSTEE FOR THE BENEFIT OF

CREDITORS, should be answered in the negative.

In the petitioner's brief it is claimed that because a

growing crop can be mortgaged, it is, therefore, prop-

erty the title to which vests in the trustee by opera-

tion of law under the Bankruptcy Act, but this begs

the question, for if the property is exempt, then the

Act itself excepts it from its operation, and it does not

pass to the trustee. (Sec. 70 B. A. s. d. (a). Exempt

property does not pass to the trustee in bankruptcy,

nor does it become a part of the estate for distribu-

tion among the creditors.

Bank of Nez Perce vs. Pendel, (this Court),

193 Fed. 917;
Lockwood vs. Exch. Natl. Bank, 190 U. S.

294, 47 L. ed. 1 06 1.

Moreover, exempt property may be transferred or

mortgaged, but that is not determinative of whether

or not it is exempt.

It is conceded that the United States homestead is

itself exempt. But if the reasoning of the petitioner

were logically carried out, it would not be exempt,

because it may be mortgaged and the mortgage would

be valid even if made before receiver's receipt. Ful-

ler vs. Hunt, 48 Iowa ib^^Lang vs. Morey, 40 Minn.

396.

Forgy vs. Merryman, 14 Neb. 5^3 5

Orr vs. Ulyatt, 23 Nev. 134;

Spiess vs. Neuberg, 71 Wis. 279;
Klemp vs. Northrup, 137 Cal. 414.



i8

It said that the Supreme Court of Montana has

recognized the right to mortgage growing crops. But

the courts of all the states recognize the right of a

homesteader on public lands to mortgage the home-

stead before patent.

Please see the decisions from the different states

cited in note to Sec. 2296, Vol. 6, Fed. Stat. Ann.,

p. 308.

And if mortgageability of the crop is to be the test,

then the homestead would not be exempt. The reason-

ing applies with equal force to one as well as the

other.

It is also said b)^ petitioner in his brief that growing

crops are not mentioned in the statute of exemptions of

the State of Montana. Neither is United States home-

steads. But seed and grain, not exceeding in value

the sum of $200, actually provided or on hand, for the

purpose of planting or sowing the following spring is

mentioned as exempt. Rev. Codes Mont. 1907, sec.

6825. Is the grain any the less exempt because planted?

The Court's attention is called to Sec. 2296, Rev. St.,

Vol. 6, Fed. St. Ann., page 307, which reads:

"(Homestead lands not subject to prior debts.)

No lands acquired under the provisions of this

chapter shall in any event become liable to the

satisfaction of any debt contracted prior to the

issuance of the patent therefor."

Residence upon the land and cultivation are by the

federal statutes made conditions precedent to patent.

Failure to perform these conditions causes the land to
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revert to the government. Since the entryman must

reside upon the land, he must be allowed to make a

living by tilling the soil, and it was, unquestionably the

intention of Congress that there should be included in

the exemption the beneficial use of the land. A failure

to reside on the land causes the land and crop grow-

ing thereon to revert to the United States. And this

distinction is important, as marking the difference be-

tween this character of a homestead and that allowed

under state statutes.

It is said by petitioner in its brief that the crops

may be sold, mortgaged, seized and levied upon. The

cases cited do not involve the question of a crop upon

United States Government homestead.

It is said by petitioner:

"It is impossible for us to understand why any

difference should exist between the land held un-

der homestead entry and land held under con-

tract of purchase from an individual only. Un-
less the contract is complied with in the latter

case the person loses the possession of the land,

while in the former case he loses possession by

failure to comply with the homestead law. The
legal effect of non-compliance is the same in each

case."

It is also said:

"It is difficult to understand why any distinc-

tion should be made between this case and one

where crops are growing on the statutory home-
stead, which is exempt under the banl^ruptcy act.

In such instance no creditor could claim that the

land passed to the trustee. No creditor would
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have the right to the labor of the bankrupt and
maturing, harvesting and marketing the crop,
yet the authorities are uniform in holding that

in such cases the title to the crop would pass

to the trustee."

It occurs to us that there is a vast difference in the

two cases. The state homestead is created upon prop-

erty already possessed by the beneficiary. The fed-

eral homestead is donated to him by the government

on certain conditions, while the state homestead is

exempt from ordinary debts of the owner contracted

after notice and not from antecedent debts, the federal

homestead is exempt from debts antecedent to the

acquisition of title and not from those subsequent.

Land is donated to the settler on the condition of

limitations prescribed by the statute, provides for oc-

cupancy, cultivation, etc. The principles governing

the benefits conferred under the homestead laws of

the United States are other than those controlling

state exemptions. From the date of entry to that of

patent, the homestead is not liable for any debts of

the occupant for the reason that he does not own it.

Title is in the United States. A private citizen in

making a contract 'with an individual cannot confer

land in fee simple upon a donee which shall not be

liable for the latter's debts; cannot make non-liability

a condition for he has no control over the subject, but

the United States can, and does, donate its public

land to settlers and makes the property free from

existing debts. The exemption is based upon the prin-
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ciple of the sovereign right to protect the donation

after it has been bestowed. This the individual has

no right at all to do. The government, therefore,

has the right to exempt the homestead from ante-

edent debts after ceasing to own it. The individual

has not.

The United States statute has been construed " to be

manifestly intended for the protection of the entry-

man, to prevent the appropriation of the land in

invitum to the satisfaction of debts incurred anterior

to the issuance of patent."

Lewis vs. Wetherell, 36 Minn. 386;
Orr vs. Stewart, 67 Cal. 275.

It has been generally held that all improvements

made by the settler become a part of the real estate

so that a mechanic's lien for work and labor does not

create a lien upon the property or the building, for

the settler has yet no title and the government does

not become the debtor of the mechanic.

Waples on Homestead & Exemption, Sec. 10,

p. 952.

The statute concerning homesteads, like other stat-

utes of exemption, is founded upon considerations of

public policy, beneficial in their nature, and is there-

fore to be liberally construed in furtherance of the

object intended to be attained.

Thompson on Homesteads, Sees. 4, 7, and au-

thorities there cited.
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In determining what constitutes a homestead ex-

emption the reason and spirit of the law must be con-

sidered, and such construction given as will include,

within the exemption all things coming under that

reason and not contrary to the letter of the law, while

excluding all things not within that reason, even

though apparently within the law. In conformity

with this rule, the courts have always been liberal in

ascertaining the extent of this exemption, so as to

carry the legislative intent into effect. The object of

the homestead exemption is not merely to afford a

naked shelter to the family, but like all other ex-

emptions to afford it a means of livelihood and thus

to prevent its members from being driven by destitu-

tion to seek a support from public charity. The

policy of the law in this country has always been, so

far as possible, to prevent persons, whether through

misfortune or improvidence, from becoming a charge

upon the public purse; and, to this end, the statutes

of exemption have been so framed as to secure to all

persons the means of obtaining a support through

their own exertions. In view of this fact, it would

be absurd to suppose that the Congress intended that,

though the land constituted a homestead, the owner

should not be allowed to use it for any useful pur-

pose, and if the products of such farm were not ex-

empt then all motives for exertion are withdrawn in

the very cases to which the statute was intended to

apply, viz.: those in which the owners are in im-

poverished circumstances.
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To construe the federal statute as contended for by

the petitioner here would not only defeat its mani-

fest object, but would convert it into an instrument

of fraud and oppression.

Upon the theory of petitioner a man might invest

$5000 in a splendid and luxurious mansion, and place

it beyond the reach of his creditors, but if he has a

little farm worth $1000 and is content with the humble

shelter of a cottage he dare not raise food for his

hungry family upon those premises without allow-

ing a rapacious creditor to seize it before it can be

used. To so hold would make the statute a mockery.

The exemption laws in the State of Montana have

always received a liberal construction by the high-

est court of that state.

Ferguson vs. Speith, 13 Mont. 487, 34 Pac.

1020, 102 1, 1022;

Lindley vs. Davis, 7 Mont. 206, 14 Pac. 717,

720,

at which page it is said:

"A late senator, in advocating in the United

States Senate the adoption of the general home-

stead law, said: 'Tenantry is unfavorable to free-

dom. It lays the foundation of separate orders

in society, annihilates the love of country, weak-

ens the spirit of independence. The tenant has,

in effect, no country, no hearth, no domestic altar,

no household God. The freeholder is the only

supporter of the free government, and it should

be the policy of republics to multiply their free-

holders, as it is the policy of monarchies to mul-

tiply their tenants.'
"
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The cases cited in petitioner's brief to the effect that

growing crops are not exempt, but that they pass to

the trustee in bankruptcy, are not convincing in sup-

port of the proposition contended for by petitioner and

all involve the question of the bankrupt's right to the

growing crops upon his homestead held under the laws

of the state in w^hich he resided.

In re Sullivan corn was matured at the date of bank-

ruptcy and this, as well as other authorities, make a

distinction between crops which are matured and those

which depend upon the soil for its nourishment and

support, as in the case of Ellithorpe vs. Reidesil, Ji

lovv^a 315, 32 N. W. 238, in which it was determined

that an execution could not be levied upon immature

growing crops. The Court observes:

"The whole proceeding was on the theory that

the crops were personal property and could be
levied on and sold as such. But while they re-

mained immature and were being nurtured by
the soil, they were attached to and constituted

part of the realty. They could no more be levied

upon and sold under execution as personalty

than could the trees growing upon the premises."

The Court further said:

"It has been well observed that the value of

the growing crops depends upon the soil for its

nourishment and support, and, if disconnected

at once, as in this case, would be nothing and

levy and sale usually afford but little return to

the creditors, while it is sometimes serious loss

to the debtor."
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In re Daubner, so far as the crops on the home-

stead were concerned a patent to the lands had been

issued prior to the proceedings in bankruptcy, and

crops were claimed as exempt under the state home-

stead laws.

The case of In re Hoag involves the question as

to the bankrupt's right to crops growing upon land

set apart and claimed as exempt under state home-

stead laws.

The rule is laid down as to the extent and scope

of the exemption in 21 Cyc. 497, as follows:

"The exemption extends to crops growing
upon the land, and according to some decisions

to crops which have been severed therefrom.

Others, however, hold that the crops are exempt
only so long as they are not severed from the

soil."

See, also, to the same effect, the following cases:

McCullough Hardware Company vs. Call,

155 S. W. 718 (Tex. Civ. App.)
;

Neblett vs. Shackelton, 69 S. E. 946 (Va.)
;

Coats vs. Caldwell, yi Tex. 19, 8 S. W. 922;
Morgan vs. Rountree, 88 la. 249, 55 N. W. 65;
Jewitt vs. Guyer, 38 Vt. 209;
Cox vs. Cook, 46 Ga. 301

;

Alexander vs. Holt, 59 Tex. 205

;

Parker vs. Hale (Tex. Civ. App. 1903), 78
S. W. 555;

Staggs vs. Piland, 31 Tex. Civ. App. 245, 71

S. W. 762;
Allen vs. Ashburn, 27 Tex. Civ. App. 239, 65

S, W. 45;
Cunningham vs. Coyle, 2 Tex. Civ. App.

cases, Sec. 422;
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Citizens Nat. Bank vs. Green, 78 N. C. 247;
In re Wood, 147 Fed. 877;
In re Cohn, iji Fed. 568;
Waples on Homestead & Exemption, p. 242.

15 A. & E. Enc. Law, 593.

In re Wood it was claimed that only such exemp-

tions in bankruptcy were available as provided by the

state law, and the Court finds against this narrow

construction.

In the case of Coats vs. Caldwell, supra, the Court

says

:

"Upon a levy upon such property the officer

must either take possession of the land to gather

the crop or must sell it ungathered. In the latter

case, the right would pass to the purchaser at

the sale to go upon the land and take ofif the

crop. In order to complete a sale or to make it

effective, possession MUST BE TAKEN OF THE
land upon which the crop is found, and for
a time at least the officer or purchaser
must exercise dominion and control over it.

This, in our opinion, is an invasion of the
homestead right, and cannot be permitted."

In the case of Neblett vs. Shackelton, supra, the

Court says:

"Unless these decisions (referring to certain

decisions holding that crops severed from the

soil of a homestead are not exempt from execu-

tion) are governed by something in the statutes

of the states referred to, they strike us as being

narrow and technical in the extreme. Of what
value unpicked cotton could be to the house-

holder it is difficult to perceive. As long as it

remained in the field exposed to the weather and

to be utterly wasted, it was protected by the
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homestead, but as soon as it was picked and
assumed a useful and marketable form, the pro-

tection of the homestead was withdrawn and it

became subject to seizure by the creditor."

It was pressed upon the Court in Citizens' Bank

vs. Green, supra, that a homestead having been se-

cured to the debtor by law, all income derived from

its use is merely an incident which follows the prin-

cipal and belongs absolutely to him, and may be used

in improving the property or any other improve-

ments, and that unless this be so the law rather dis-

courages than invites improvement and enterprise by

cutting off all inducements to industry, the legitimate

rewards of which, when in excess of the exemption,

would be seized and sold by the creditor.

"That this is true cannot be successfully re-

futed, and the answer which was made by the

Court does not appeal to us. We have no fear

that colossal fortunes in defiance of debts past

or future will be built up upon the nucleus of

incomes derived from a capitalization and re-

capitalization of the proceeds of crops derived

from lands set apart as homesteads."

The Supreme Court of Iowa, has had this subject

under consideration in Morgan vs. Rountree, 88 Iowa

249, 55 N. W. 65, and also reported in 45 Am. St.

Rep. 234, where the conclusion was reached that

moneys due for rent of a homestead are exempt from

execution. In the course of the opinion, the Court

said:

"We think it is in harmony with the evident

spirit and purpose of our statute to hold that the
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head of a family owning a homestead has a right

to hold as exempt not only the homestead and its

use, but also crops or money which he may de-

rive from its use while the property continues to

be his homestead. If the homestead is terminated
by abandonment or otherwise, the exemption
ceases. To hold that the owner of a homestead
can only hold as exempt such proceeds of its use

as the industry of himself or family has pro-

duced would be in many cases to deny the bene-

fits of such exemption entirely. Take the case of

an owner who cannot, from any cause, cultivate

the homestead garden of 40 acres; there is no

good reason why he may not rent them to another,

and hold the proceeds exempt for the use of his

family. This case furnishes another apt illustra-

tion; also the case of one having a spare room in

the homestead, who takes lodgers, or one who,
having no use for a stable on the homestead
premises, rents it to another. We are clearly of

the opinion that proceeds derived from the use

of the homestead while it remains such are ex-

empt to the head of a family. Whether property

purchased with such proceeds, not otherwise ex-

empt, would be subject to execution wo do not

determine."

This case derives additional value from having been

annotated by Mr. Freeman, who in a note says in part

as follows:

"As to certain leases of homestead, the object

of the statute is not restricted to affording a mere

shelter to the family; and perhaps there is no

class of which it may fairly be said that the statute

did not intend the debtor to have the advantage

accruing from the profitable use of the homestead

for such purposes as it might be devoted to with-

out impairing its homestead character or aban-
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doning all exemption rights therein. The prin-

cipal case goes further than any other falling

within our observation in securing to a debtor the

profits of his homestead, accruing when he was
absent therefrom. We are not inclined to doubt
or criticise it on that account. The claimant has

a right to the full use of his homestead, and if he
denies himself part of this right and thereby be-

comes entitled to compensation, as when he lets

the whole, or some part of it, the courts, in deny-
ing creditors the right to garnish or otherwise

subject to execution the proceeds of such letting,

inflict no wrong on the creditor. A case, equitably

still less subject to doubt, arises whdn the owner
of an agricultural homestead plants and harvests

a crop which his creditor undertakes to seize in

satisfaction of a debt. By not restricting such a

homestead to the dwelling house and its appurte-

nances, and in permitting it to extend over lands

useful only for the production of crops, the Legis-

lature impliedly expressed an intention to include

the beneficial use of those lands in the homestead
exemption. It is true that in many instances there

is an enumeration of the personal property which
a debtor is entitled to retain as exempt from exe-

cution, and that the produce of the homestead
may exceed this enumeration or be of a different

character. Hence some courts have denied that

the produce, unless of a character or quantity

which would exem.pt it, is exempt though it had
been acquired from other sources. Others affirm

that the exemption of a homestead extends to the

crops grown thereon."

It would be inconsistent for the government to say

to a homestead entryman, you must live hereon, you

must cultivate this land and raise crops hereon, you

must devote your time, energy and labor and what-



30

ever capital you may be able to command in making a

living for yourself and those dependent upon you upon

this land, and at the same time say to him, your credi-

tors can confiscate your crops which you plant, can de-

prive you of the living which we require you to make

upon this land, can by taking charge of your growing

crops prevent you from devoting your labor to the

improvement upon this land and making a living for

yourself and those dependent upon you.

For the reasons hereinbefore stated respondent re-

spectfully submits that his motion to "dismiss the peti-

tion to revise should be sustained or an order of this

Court made affirming the order of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Montana.

Respectfully submitted,

L. P. FORESTELL,

Attorney for Respondent.
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In reply to respondents brief, the
followixig is suggested hy the attorney
for the petitioner.

1. To the point th?it there is no
showing in the record that it contains
all the evidence considered by the court
below, jve desire simply to sug^^est, that
in the Terified amendment to the petition
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it is stated that, *'the said district
court of the U. 3. District of Montana,
heard aaid batJKrupts petition €tr re«
vi ew , upon the teatiiaony returned by
the referee Rxid upon the briefs of
counsel for the respective pRrtie9**.(Tr.

p. 38).

A motion to diamias the petition,
under the new equity rules, is equiva-
lent to a demurrer under the old prac-
tice, therefore everything properly al-
leged in the petition, is deemed to be
true, upon the argument of the motion.

I^one of the cases cited by respond-
ent on nis first point, (iJrief pgs. <',,3&,4)

are parallel ^ith or applicable to the
case at bar. In each case the record
contained no findings of the court be-
lOTs? or of the referee, and no testimony
which vvas considered by the referee ajid

by the court, at the hearing of the var-
ious petitions. Therefore #e submit
there is notJiing in respondents first
point of tVieir brief.

We have found great difficulty in
preparing the record on this petition.
The Bankruptcy Act yaakea no provision
for the procedure, and amny of the dif-
ferent Courts of Appeal of the United
litates have enacted rules providing what
the record should contain, and the pro-
cedure whereby the record is completed.
We find no such rules in this circuit.

It is said by the Appellate Court
in ineyex Drug Company vs . P opt in Drug
Company 136 Jl?ed. 936;
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••the trustee of the Daiikrupt*9
estate moves to dismiss this peti-
tion to revise, because it was not
allowed by any judge of this lower
Court; no bond has been given; the
transcript of the record filed is
not certified by the cleric of the
lower Court; tne transcript does not
contain the aleadiiigs in whicli the
issues were tried, nor show who are
the proper parties to this proceed-
ing the transcript doesnot Contain
the evidence upon which the find-
ings of the referee were based; the
petition to revise .vas filed more
than turee raonths after the entry of
the judgment below, and lastly no
supers elias has been granted.

In our opinion none of these
grounds are will taken. The ^Statute
allovva the petition to revise to be
filed on due notice, but provides no
rules as to any of the requisites or
formalities referred to in the motion
to dismiss."

As stated in the argument, if the
court is of the opinion that anything
further is necessary to complete the re-
cord, we ask that we may be allowed to
make it complete before the case is de-
cided by the court.

2 A3 to the estoppel.

(a) Counsel only quote from orje

paragraph of the original petition filed,
wherein is alleged a charge of fraud up-
on the part of the bankrupt in conceal-
ing property. Paragraph 8 of said peti-
tion (Tr. p. 5) should also be considered.
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In this paragraph there is RllQged the
omiasioxi of the growing crop from the sche-
dules, "by the ba/jicrupt, -irith no p^llego-
tion of -fraud. Paragraph 10 of said pe-
tition ('i'r, p. 5) alleges that the banic-
rupt never turned over the growing crop
to the trustee in hanicraptcy, witnout any
allegation of fraud.

So that we have in the petition, not
only the allegf»tion of fraudulent oonceal-
ment of property, bat allegations that
the banicrupt failed ?ind omitted uo place
the growing crop in the schedule of aaaeta and
that he never turned it over to the trustee
in bankruptcy.

Counsel says that fraud is a ground
of opposition to the disonarge of the
bankrupt, and not having been presented
against the granting of the discharge, it
is waived. He evidently over looked the
proposition that what -ever rofiy be urged
against a discharge, way be equally urged
in a proceeding to set aside a discharge,
especially when the facts upon which tiie

application is based are discovered after
the bankrupt has been discharged, as was
alleged in the original petition herein.
(Tr.p,6). Counsel has evidently over
looked the fact that the purpose of the
original petition was to revoke the dis-
charge, opeii the caae, and have the bank-
rupt directed to amend his schedule. (Tr.
p . 6ft 7 ; .

(b) Counsel says that we did not
raise the question in court below, that
the bankrupt had not properly pleaded and
proven the estoppel claiiu^d by hira and
therefore the sarae can not be urged at
thfcs hearing. It is difficult ot con-
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ceive ho^ oounsel can conclude that this
point was not urged at the court below.
The record does not disclose "nhnt points
were urged, ±Jut we submit, tnnt, even
though it was not presented to the court
below, this court has full authority ot
determine whether the resxjondent proper-
ly pleaded the estoppel claimed or intro-
duced any evidence in support thereof.
As stated in the argument, we have been
unable to find any proper allegation or
any evidence sufficient to sustain the
estoppel claimed. Counsel for respond-
ent has not seen fit to direct the atten-
tion of the court to ^ny such allegation or
evidence. This being the condition, the
court must conclude tiisjt the estoppel
does not exist, v»ith refereiice to this
matter -^e desire toagain call tVie atten-
tion of the court to the proi30sitions
announced in our openin^^ orief, that the
respondent never claimed that he expend-
ed any money or labor upon tVie growing
crop, in reliance upon the inaction of
the owner of the growing crop, and Hever
claimed that such ownership arose from
an estoppel against petitioner. The
court*8 attention is also ngain directed
to the fact, that respondent kept and
accurate ?>nd itemized recount of ail la-
bor and money spent upon said crop, in
maturing, thrashing, '^nd ra??riceting the
same--even so closely as to include the
njimber of pounds of oats the horses ate
while taking care of the crop.

Under all the circumstances we sub-
mit that respondent is not entitled to

rely upon the estoppel claim.
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A.i ?a ^i. . ^la: i^iiuwiKo ci^p

oeiT«4 our j^osition upoi* -.. ..njln .laeiiiiot}

J.nvoiv<i'i. Vt^ h#?>vc not inslot^*! timt^ b««»

Slot <3Xi3h4pw. i,>><ih poai.ti.on wou^'i hfive b<e«a

«re wot «2«xo«iJi>t uudex th^ atfitut^a fw*'i 4«ioi«»

Aiona of l^ont/*ru5k.

vjeu» C of the iir»j •?«

th»t bHiiAriii?i.» lire ;i;.-.^,.- , .. .- . -, „i,-

in force Mt thti ti»ae of th*s filAng ot the pe-
tition.

zha Court of .'>i?pii»ii {iilh Ciro'^it i in
the c«»c JtttttJL^ ya. Buei (i04/«fl.^^6oi,
»ftcr quw>tir>» tw« provitiioi^f* of nsisotion 6
of t>ciBi^tioii itt the istoat abtJolute nnd un-
quaiijri.<;d tisriusJ, ^ti'i iJ*i«*t rui?". i^ th«
6tAt«r iftw**, trhe uupr&ia»* uourt Ol U,ii» i»
tho cnati of .;«i#*li<i^ VB, l,?*it(;<2nour 1196 «^-U.

©5) hBii etti'i; "'Zu.-. rii^hii?* of n b«iijirupt to
property ?5iB e^^-swpt, nre thO'se >;iYeij *iita

by tft*r «tHite atJitiiteB,"

Council el hrtve not 4jl9pat<K} thl» t***©-

£>o«ition* i<oit1ior hrm l«f^ rM^-^erted thnt
un*ler tho j«tRtut«f?i of i^imt'aiA, i^roisiii^

crop"^ r*ro ©-*eif3>»t'«

•

i«r h«» booii, ih?%t <$ro^i»g «to;ia r^re tto^

tXQBtpt ujri<l«r th9 iniwii of koiitft{iH, '«jri

th«r«for«;, th« b«nicruja>t, hf»y:inji -x riglit

to a«iJL ta« »iuitii« %ins^ ^rt»» to the trua*
t«« Xit brntkruptoy^ •')t» ^n ^^tot for th«
bc4iofit of or?&4itora.
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Coux).iel*3 entire nr^uinent on uhe
question iiereia involved, aecioa to onl^
to be effort on Uia p<*rt, to oonvinoee the
court thrtt thtj ^rowiritj orop was exempt to
the bonkrupt '=in'i tharofore di'l not pass to
the trustee, lie 'ioaa not diapute the pro-
position that court of bBnxrui,»to:r, in de-
termining wimt i» exempt to the bnnicrupt,
oni^ recognize tlie atntutes of *^he atflte
in *hich the Vjpnissruptoy proofed ingB f^re in-

stituted Mud carried on,

Neither do^n counsel coiiteat the pro-
position th«t {^rowing crops ore not inclu-
ded in the e^iewption statute of LonfeRna.

i'hijs beinti true, this court hne not
poorer to hold auch crop ejiempt, imd the
question involved xauat be determined b^
the applicnition of th;.^ provisions of Ueo.
7G of t)ie iirmicrupt Act,

Xhere cnn be no doubt that the bank-
rupt lai^jht h«ve aold or tr«i7s|:err'id ihi -.

growing crop, «t wn^ tii;*e «fter the oaine

WRB planted, nnd t>i«t b^ t^uch i^ale, and
in order to iimxie Ejfjwe effective, the pjr-
cVmtier woi-tid Aave ha'l -he ri^^iit ot enfeer
upon the land :.o o?4re for, ViJjrv^jit, nnd re*

wove t}io crop withoul ^f^iug ;-. tre:vy''«i*^er,

"ihis brinfiH the onvire i^attcr ciearli' iviUv
in the firat cl^mne of ;.ubd. n ec.VO of
the uanicrupt Act,

i5/ filing hi 53 voluntary petition in
bankrupt jv, the bnjikrupt pl^^oed hirfnelf
in the smae lefiBl rii^hi reBviits, .he
trustee vfouid h»ve the rifjht to enter up-
on the Innd, cnre for, harvcBt, nnd remove
the crox) Ju-jt the same «« vsould ?* purchas-
er.
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tlon of recti-Yiij;^ thf b«2jii,*it of ihe JcMtniC-

rupt Aei, vvhlch \vrto thereby eoulfeht, to
tui-ji over to %h^ tru»t««, {*ii hi?* proper*
*jy not «;tem^t. Vh« tlti« to ouoh proj^cr-
ty i*«itHC'i 0^ op^irf^tion of i;'**, uvl -^it)!

thl'A title tbexe «/u» given per^siaaion to
^.^ier upon Uie lfu>4, CJir«^ ior, hpirv«?»t.

In iiluiitr xtion mrl *uypart of thin
portltiofi wc *i©3ir© to o^xi Viv. ^:jouri rot-

ten t ion to in r«? coffjpan t>3 ;/t><l. 4ii2, in
%hAt «s«Ji<» a cejpt^tin cotton tirop wn«u <^rowi«g
upon f* h;>ifie4jtep*d rit tha tlis^ of filjn^ »%

volun^ajp;; petition of b-mjcruptc^ , Vhe
bankrupt h'^nreijted the orop, mid thtsi

trunt«e .'iout^iit tf> oo'S^^ell i'iiTii io ^,urn the
fimiie ov'jr f;3r tho buftfjfit of <3re*iAtor«,
iimnarapl oli^itui^^ %hht th® jjrowirii; ox'op ^iit>

e^CTn-?^, tUi'i i!l'4i:5t<3'5 %\^nl it coui*^) liOi

pm%^ to the tyu!!it<*« be'S'^'i'^e His nvoul'l b«
ooeip<*ll«rl to isotiHiiit a lrit»p;isiii in goin,|
upon th^ l'-*jrl to i^'tth^r th*5 arop, *rh«

cjoart, liov^'^f^sr, rtJ»yi5; --''but in oi*ae of
volunt^*r;.* ^nn^TU'^tGj , ^hm\ tho b-^nj<ru3?t

coxa««3 fi-iv^i^^d Mi'J t(5n<i<sr^ r*ll hivj pr^^p^sr-
t^, not aubj'sol to cJtturatioa, to bo '?.>•

pliirl rf*tnoXy Jijon hiu d«bfesi in orflur thiit

h« »i.n^ roa^^ th* l^*2n^fitvs of tha 3J*'*nkra^t

^^tft, tha qU<5«tio*i ?j..'i>' ^Oil be miiiufi, 'io«8i

)">€! not b^/ his ?*cjtion d.Uen'5 m in»it?%tiaij
fin'J give s- - t'4 tVi<> tfuiito*? t^ oojco
upon the- h;-. , ,:*vj mri ,-;.•« titer -.i-nttt g<'—

ioni^A to nXs or«'Utortt,'*

Iho oourt oriere^i ^Ji« b-»n icrui^t to ?i«j-

iiver th« yro^uot of ih« crop to th<^ trudt^o*

k.« eiubi&it w«( QHa t>t« »o 4ixonp« for
the bi*n*trupt in thla oii«« «a<i th€?rofor«a»
oonfi^enil^^ tiubifiit th9 imttt^r to ti^« oour%
for doci'^ion*

Attoriiii^ ..itionor.
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IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

In the Matter of R. S. Miller,

A Bankrupt.

Olmsted-Stevenson Company

(a corporation),

vs.

R. S. Miller,

Petitioner,

Respondent.

PETITION FOR A REHEARING.

To the Honorable William B. Gilbert, Presiding

Judge, and the Associate Judges of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit :

Now comes Olmsted-Stevenson Company, the pe-

titioner in the above entitled action, and files this

its petition for a rehearing and re-argument of the

petition for revision and review of the decision of

the District Court of the United States in and for

the District of Montana, and for the reversal of the

judgment of this court upon said petition for revi-



sion and review, made and entered by this court

on the 6th day of March, 1916, upon the following

grounds for the following reasons

:

I.

That the prevailing opinion, filed March 6, 1916,

upon which said judgment has been entered, seems

to be based upon the proposition that the federal

cases cited and relied upon by this petitioner at the

hearing of said petition for said revision and

review, were and are contrary to and in conflict

with the decisions of the several Supreme Courts,

of the several States which were within the dis-

tricts in which said federal cases arose and were

decided. That no opportunity has been given coun-

sel for this petitioner to argue such questions before

this court or to be heard thereon; that such ques-

tions were not raised or argued either in the briefs

filed in this court by respondent or in the argument

of counsel for respondent upon the hearing by this

court upon said petition for revisal and review.

II.

That the Honorable Judges of this court on or

about the 7th day of February, 1916, filed opinions

herein, and by virtue of the prevailing opinion thus

filed, the order and judgment of the District Court

of the United States in and for the District of

Montana, sought to be revised and reviewed by said

petition, was reversed, and a judgment entered by



this court in favor of this petitioner reversing the

same; that on or about the 11th day of February,

1916, this court made and entered its following

order

:

'^ ORDER VACATING JUDG^NfENT OF THIS COURT, ETC.

Good cause therefor appearing, it is ordered
that the judgment of this court that was filed

and entered, and the opinion and dissenting

opinion that were filed in the above entitled

matter on the 7th day of February, A. D. 1916
be, and hereby are vacated and set aside and
that said opinion and dissenting opinion be
withdrawn by the court from the files herein,

and that the petition for revision herein shall

stand submitted to the court for consideration

and decision as if said judgTnent, opinion and
dissenting opinion had not been rendered."

That thereafter and on or about the 6th day of

March, 1916, the Honorable Judges of this court,

filed opinions herein, and by virtue of the prevail-

ing opinion thus filed, the judgment and decision

of the District Court of the United States in and

for the District of Montana was affirmed, and judg-

ment ordered to be entered affirming the same ; that

it is apparent from the foregoing that two judges

of this court, who heard the arguments upon said

petition for revision and review, first agreed and

decided that the judgment of the District Court of

the United States in and for the District of Mon-
tana, sought to be revised and reviewed, should be

reversed, and filed an opinion to that effect, and

that thereafter one of the judges so deciding, felt

obliged to and did change his opinion and agreed

to the affirmance of the judgment and order of the



District Court of the United States in and for the

District of Montana.

While we do not desire to be understood as ques-

tioning the power of this court to take the pro-

ceedings recited above, but we respectfully submit

that petitioner should have been permitted to argue

all questions upon which any member of this court

felt obliged to change his opinion, before such mem-

ber amiounced such contrary opinion. We submit

that in all fairness when this court ordered a re-

submission, such re-submission should have been

upon a re-argument by respective counsel, at which

such counsel could have had an opportunity of pre-

senting their views.

Dated, San Francisco,

April 12, 1916.

Olmsted-Stevenson Company,

Petitioner.

John B. Clayberg,

Its Attorney.

Certificate of Counsel.

I hereby certify that I am counsel for petitioner

in the above entitled cause and that in my judg-

ment' the foregoing petition for a rehearing is well

founded in point of law as well as in fact and that

said petition is not interposed for delay.

John B. Clayberg,

Counsel for Petitioner.
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Names of Attorneys.

DANIEL O'CONNELL, Esq., Attorney for Peti-

tioning CreditOX'S.

Messrs. MASTICK & PAETRIDGE, Attorneys for

Alleged Bankrupt.

UNITED STATES OF AMEEICA,

District Court of the United States, Nortliern Dis-

trict of California.

Clerk's Office.

No. 8196.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY,
Involuntary Bankrupt.

Praecipe [for Transcript of Record on Appeal to

U. S. Circuit Court of Appeals].

To the Clerk of said Court.

Sir: Please issue in the form in accordance with

equity rules 75 and 76 of the Supreme Court of the

United States and the annexed statement of the rec-

ord in this proceeding to be incorporated into the

Transcript on Appeal to the U. S. Circuit Court of

Appeals, and which comprises all the material allega-

tions and parts of the testimony of the witnesses

stated in narrative form and excludes the formal and

immaterial parts of all exhibits, documents, records,

files and other papers used in said case and not essen-

tial to the questions presented by the Appeal, being

a simple and condensed statement of the material

portions of the following

:

1. Creditors' petition.
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2. Demurrer to that petition.
'

3. Order overruling the demurrer.

4. Answer of Herman Murphy to the petition.

5. Order referring to Referee in Bankruptcy.

6. The report of the Referee in Bankruptcy in

full.

7. The exceptions to that report in full. [1*]

8. The opinion and decisions of the U. S. District

Judge on that report and those exceptions in full.

9. Appeal to U. S. Circuit Court of Appeals in

full.

10. Asssignment of errors in full.

11. Portions of testimony of James A Johnston

and his exhibits admitted in evidence before Hon. M.

T. Dooling, U. S. District Judge, on hearing excep-

tions to report of the referee.

12. Portions of testimony of William Miller, R.

V. Whiting, G. A. Lavender, J. P. Williams, Herman
Murphy, Ella M. Murphy, C. E. King, Daniel O 'Cou-

ncil, H. V. D. Johns, A. B. Cathcart, L. A. Myers,

and substance of the exhibits admitted in evidence

in this cause before the Referee in Bankruptcy, and

said U. S. District Court.

13. Portions of exhibit being transcript of testi-

mony of Herman Murphy and Ella M. Murphy on

proceedings supplementary to execution in the Su-

perior Court in and for the County of Alameda, Sep-

tember 23, 1910.

Yours truly,

DANIEL O'CONNELL,
Solicitor for Petitioning Creditors Appellants.

*Page-number appearing at foot of page of original certified Kecord.
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[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 30, 1915, at 3 o'clock and
30 min. P. M. W. B. Maling, Clerk. By Lyle S.

Morris, Deputy Clerk. [2]

Appellant's Statement for Transcript on Appeal.

[Style of Court, Title and Number of Cause.]

Before ARMAND B. KREFT, Referee in Bank-

ruptcy.

Report of Referee in Opposition to Adjudication.

To the Honorable MAURICE T. DOOLING, Judge

of the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California

:

The undersigned, referee in bankruptcy, to whom
was referred the issues joined by the answer of Her-

man Murphy to the creditors' petition herein, to

ascertain and report the facts and his conclusions

thereon, respectfully certifies and reports

:

That upon the hearing of said matter Daniel

O 'Council, Esq., appeared on behalf of the petition-

ing creditors, and H. F. Chadbourne, Esq., represent-

ing Messrs. Mastick & Partridge, attorneys for the

alleged bankrupt, appeared on behalf of the alleged

bankrupt. The hearing of said matter having been

concluded, the same was submitted on briefs.

The petitioning creditors are James R. Ryan and

Peter Bazinet, holding a joint claim in the sum of

$644.56, M. M. Carrigan, holding a claim for $115.25,

and AVilliam Miller, holding a claim for $3,909.76.

All of said claimants have recovered judgment

against Murphy upon their said claims. It is not

necessary to review the nature of these claims, as the
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amounts proven herein exceed the jurisdictional re-

quirement. [3]

It appears that on September 1st, 1905, William

Miller loaned to Herman Murphy, $1,000 ; on March
8th, 1906, $1250; and on March 28th, 1906, $300. On
December 6th, 1910, Miller recovered a judgment in

the Superior Court of San Francisco against Mur-

phy in the sum of $3,377.77. Prior to July 19th,

1906, Herman Murphy was the owner of certain real

property in Alameda County, described in the pe-

tition herein. It is claimed by Murphy, and he so

testified upon the hearing, that on July 19th, 1906,

he conveyed said real estate to Ella M. Murphy, his

wife, but the deed was not recorded until June 22d,

1908. This property was thereafter conveyed by his

wife to the Progressive Investment Corporation,

and a deed from her to said corporation was recorded

in Alameda County on July 5th, 1910. Said corpo-

ration was organized on April 10th, 1910, and on

November 30th, 1910, its charter was forfeited under

the state law, for nonpajTuent of license tax. It is

claimed by Miller that the transfer of said real prop-

erty by Murphy to his wife was in fraud of his credi-

tors, and void as to them.

A suit was commenced by him on March 28th, 1912,

against said Murphy, Ella M. Murphy, the Pro-

gressive Investment Corporation and others (a copy

of the pleadings, findings and judgment in w^hich

action is contained in Respondent's Exhibit No. 2),

to set aside various conveyances made by Herman
Murphy to his wife, and conveyances made by her to

the Progressive Investment Corporation. This suit
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was tried before the Honorable Everett J. Brown,

Judge of the Superior Court of Alameda County,

and findings were made by said court on April 3d,

1913, whereby it was found that the allegations of

the complaint of said William Miller contained in

paragraph 14 of his complaint, alleging that the con-

veyances sought to be set aside were made by said

Murphy to his wife, and by her to the Progressive

Investment Corporation with intent to defraud him,

William Miller, were not true; and judgment was

entered on the same day, that said William Miller

take nothing by said action.

On March 24th, 1913, said Miller caused a sale to

be made by [4] the sheriff of the County of Ala-

meda, of all the right, title and interest of Herman
Murphy in the real property described in the petition

herein under an execution issued on the judgment

obtained by him December 6th. 1910, and at which

sale said Miller was the purchaser, the property so

sold being one of the pieces of property which had

been conveyed by Murphy to his wife, and which con-

veyance said Miller had sought to set aside in the

suit in which judgment was entered on April 3d,

1913, against the contentions of said Miller.

On July 21st, 1913, the petition in bankruptcy

herein was filed, in which petition it was charged that

said Murphy committed an act of bankruptcy on

March 24th, 1913, in that he suffered and permitted,

while insolvent, the said Miller to obtain a prefer-

ence by reason of said sale, and not having within

at least five days before the sale or final disposition

of said property, vacated or discharged his prefer-
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ence. From all of which it appears that said Miller

charges as an act of bankruptcy, an alleged prefer-

ence received by himself.

The deed from Murphy to his wife was recorded

June 22d, 1908. If such deed was made with intent

to defraud creditors, an act of bankruptcy was com-

mitted under Sec. 3^a (1), which must be taken ad-

vantage of by the creditors within four months after

the deed was recorded. In this case William Miller

having permitted such four months to expire, now

seeks by means of such execution sale to create an

act of bankruptcy under Sec. 3-2 (1).

The petition further recites certain facts concern-

ing the conveyance of certain real property by said

Murphy to his wife in 1906, and the subsequent con-

veyance to the Progressive Investment Corporation,

which facts are the same facts charged in the action

aforesaid of Miller against Murphy and others in the

Superior Court to set aside conveyance. In view of

the fact that the claims of William Miller were at

the time of said sale on execution in the course of

trial in the State Court, I can conceive of no reason

for the proceeding taken by Miller in causing such

sale to be made, [5] other than it was intended

thereby to lay a foundation of a charge of prefer-

ence upon which a bankruptcy proceeding might be

brought, with the object in view of transferring from

said court to this Court the issues in the suit then

pending.

From the above state of facts the question is pre-

sented whether this Court shall entertain this peti-

tion. I am satisfied that the other petitioning credi-
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tors have been caused to join in this proceeding at

the instance of William Miller.

At the outset of this hearing, when it became

known to the referee that the property which is the

subject of the alleged preference was adversely

claimed, the referee stated to the parties that in his

opinion this Court should not proceed to try the is-

sues relating to such adverse claim, but that it might

proceed with the inquiry as to whether the alleged

bankrupt was insolvent at the time the alleged pref-

erence was acquired, and that if insolvency at that

time was proven, the making of the adjudication of

bankmptcy should be suspended until the question

of title had been determined in the proceeding

which the transferee and present claimant of said

property is a party. Counsel for petitioners, how-

ever, desired to present his case as to the alleged

fraudulent character of the transfers, and invoked

the rule of iyi re Barnette, No. 5611, in this Court,

namely, thaFthe Referee should not exclude evidence

offered, although he may decide it incompetent, ir-

relevant or immaterial ; and he was permitted to do

so, the Referee not anticipating the length to which

such hearing would be prolonged. The testimony

taken comprises 459 pages, practically all of which

is directed to the question of the invalidity of the

transfers made by Heraian Murphy to his wife, and

by her to the Progressive Investment Corporation.

I am making no finding upon such issues, for the

following reasons : First, That the determination of

such issues in petitioner's favor would not establish

the ultimate fact to be proven, namely, that William
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Miller will receive a preference by virtue of Ms pur-

chase at the execution sale, such determination not

being [6] binding on the transferees who claim

the property. Second. That the State Court hav-

ing first acquired jurisdistion over the issues con-

cerning the title to said property, it should, in my
opinion, retain the same. The judgment of said

court is, in part, in the following language

:

'

' That the directors or trustees of the defend-

ant Progressive Investment Corporation in office

at the date of the forfeiture of the charter

thereof, to wit, on the 30th day of November,

1912, as trustee for the creditors and stockhold-

ers of said Progressive Investment Corporation

are the owners of all the described property,"

describing the property mentioned in the peti-

tion herein ; and this judgment is res adjudicata

as to the claims of William Miller unless re-

versed on the appeal now pending, taken from

such judgment by William Miller, being between

the same parties and on the same issues.

It is contended by counsel for petitioning creditors

that this Court can always decide questions of title

w^hen necessary to the granting of relief. Cases are

referred to where bankruptcy courts have considered

questions of frauduknt transfers although the trans-

ferees were not parties to the proceeding.

Under the first and second acts of bankruptcy as

defined in Section 3 of the Act, namely, transfers with

the intent to hinder, delay and defraud creditors, and

preferential transfers, the Court will try the ques-

tion as to whether the transfers were made ^\^th
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intent to defraud or prefer without the transferee

being a party, although its judgment is not binding

upon hiin. But under said acts of bankruptcy the

intent of the bankrupt to defraud or prefer, is the

essential element. The question as to whether the

property can be recovered from the transferee is

inunaterial. Under Sec. 3-a (3), being the provi-

sion covering the act of bankruptcy charged herein,

it must be proven that the property of the bankrupt

will be obtained by the creditor through legal pro-

ceedings. And where the property is adversely

claimed, the fact that value will be received by the

creditor cannot be established until the question of

title has been determined in a proceeding binding

upon the adverse claimant. Otherwise a person may
be adjudged a bankrupt for failing to [7] release

a levy on property which he did not owm. It may be

that this Court has power to bring such adverse claim-

ant before the Court so that it may determine the

rights of all parties. But in the case at bar the State

Court having first acquired jurisdiction in a suit

brought by one of the petitioning creditors herein,

presenting the same issues, such court should be per-

mitted to proceed to a final determination thereof,

even if this Court could stay such proceedings and

bring all the parties before it.

Counsel for petitioners further contend that such

adverse claim can only be made by Mrs. Murphy or

the Progressive Investment Corporation, and that

neither of said parties has inten-ened to assert such

claim in this proceeding.

Certainly the alleged bankrupt charged with suf-
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fering a creditor to obtain a preference through legal

proceedings by an execution, upon property which it

is claimed belongs to the bankrupt, can disclaim own-

ership of the property and show that it is held by

another, adversely to the claim of the creditors. It

may be that this Court will inquire into the adverse

claim sufficiently to ascertain whether the same is

merely colorable. The bankrupt in this case has

shown that it has been decreed by the State Court

that the property is not his property, which is con-

clusive proof that a l)ona -fide adverse claim exists.

As to the insolvency of Herman Murphy at the

date of the alleged commission of the act of banli-

ruptcy charged and at the date of the filing of the

petition herein, the evidence shows that Murphy at

said times owned no property of any ascertainable

value, and I find that at such times he was insolvent.

My conclusion is that the petition herein either

should be dismissed, or further hearing stayed until

the appeal aforesaid by William Miller from the

judgment of the State Court can be determined.

Respectfully submitted

:

San Francisco, July 3, 1914.

A. B. KREFT,
Referee in Bankruptcy. [8]

The expense of this proceeding has been as follows

:

Paid reporter by petitioning creditors $396 . 20

respondent 37 . 50U ii u

Total $433.70



vs. Herman Murphy. 11

Papers transmitted herewith:

Transcript of testimony, 2 vols.

Order setting hearing.

Notice to Herman Murphy et al. to produce books,

etc.

Seven summonses to witnesses.

Opening brief of petitioners.

Reply brief of bankrupt.

Closing brief of petitioners.

Petitioners' Exhibits A to Z and AA to II.

Respondents' Exhibit 1, 2 and 3. [9]

[Style of Court, Title and Number of Cause.]

Exceptions to Referee's Report.

Now come the petitioning creditors and within

the time extended by said United States District

Court herewith present and file their exceptions to

the Referees' Report in the above-entitled proceed-

ing as follows

:

FIRST EXCEPTION.
The order referring the petition of said creditoi'S

and the answer thereto is as follows

:

"On motion of Daniel O'Connell, Esquire, by the

Court ordered that this matter be and the same

hereby is referred to A. B. Kreft, Referee in Bank-

ruptcy, to ascertain and report the facts and his con-

elusions therefrom on the issues joined by the answer

to the creditors' petition herein."

Among "the issues joined by the answer to the

creditors' petition herein" were as follows:

1. At the date of filing the petition was Herman
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Murphy indebted to James E. Eyan and Peter Bazi-

net in the sum of $644.50 or any other sum"?

2. At the date of filing the petition was the judg-

ment in favor of M. M. Corrigan against Herman
Murphy in full force and effect?

3. Was the respondent Herman Murphy the

owner of any part of the real estate described in the

creditors' petition at anytime since July 19, 1906?

[10]

4. Was the respondent Herman Murphy the

owner of any part of the real estate described in the

creditors' petition when said property was attached

July 1, 1908, and July 20, 1908, in the action of

William Miller against Herman Murphy?

5. Was the respondent Herman Mui^hy the

owner of any part of the real estate described in the

creditors' petition at the time of the commencement

of the suit against Herman Murphy and others to

foreclose the mortgage of Berkeley Bank of Savings

and Trust Company on the property ?

6. Was the respondent Herman Murphy the

owner of any part of the real estate described in the

creditors' petition at the time of the commencement

of the said suit against Herman Murphy to foreclose

the mortgage of Berkeley Bank of Savings and Trust

Company on the property ?

7. Was Herman Murphy insolvent on the 24th

day of March, 1913, when said real estate was sold on

execution against him ?

8. Was Herman Murphy at the time of the sale

of said property at execution on March 24, 1914, the

owner of any right, title, estate or interest in the
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same real property described in tlie creditors' peti-

tion?

9. At the time of said sale was said real estate

or any part of it the property of said Herman Mur-

phy, respondent?

10. Did Herman Murphy, while insolvent, on

July 19, 1906, or at any time, make, sign and deliver

to his wife, E. M. Murphy, a deed of gift of said real

property ?

11. Did Herman Murphy while heavily indebted

and in contemplation of insolvency make, execute

and deliver and record a gift deed of said property

to his wife, Ella M. Murphy, in July 19, 1906?

12. Did Herman Murphy execute July 19, 1906,

and record a gift deed of said property to his wife,

Ella M. Murphy, with the intent or for the purpose

of hindering or delaying or cheating or defrauding

any of the past or any of the present or any of [11]

the future creditors of said Herman Murphy?

13. Was the said deed made or recorded with the

intent, or for the purpose of hindering or delaying,

or defrauding William Miller, or James R. Ryan,

or Peter Bazinet?

14. Did the said Ella M. Murphy have knowledge

or notice of said intent or purpose ?

15. Did the said Ella M. Murphy participate in

said intent or purpose ?

16. Was there any change in the possession or

control of said property after the said making or

recording of said deed?

17. Was there any consideration whatever at

any time paid for said deed so recorded ?
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18. Was the organization of the corporation Pro-

gressive Investment Corporation a mere contriv-

ance and. sliam for the purpose of putting the record

title to said property in the name of said corpora-

tion and beyond the reach of the creditors of Her-

man Murphy, or for the purpose of hindering, or

delaying or hindering or defrauding the creditors of

Herman Murphy?

19. Was the conveyance of said real estate by

said Ella M. Murphy and recorded July 5, 1910,

made or executed or recorded with the intent or for

the purpose of hindering or delaying or defrauding

any of the creditors of Herman Murphy?

20. Did the said conveyance so recorded July 5,

1910, hinder or delay or defraud any of the creditors

of said Herman Murphy?

21. Was there any consideration whatever paid

for said conveyance %

22. Did the said Progressive Investment Com-

pany or its incorporators and directors Ella M.

Mui-phy, Helen B. Murphy and C. E. King have any

notice or knowledge of any writs of attachment

being recorded against said property July 1, 1908, or

on July 20, 1908, or on February 10, 1909, or of any

said attachments [12] before the making or re-

cording of said deed which was recorded July 5,

1910?

23. Did the said corporation and its officers and

directors know before or at the time of the making

or of the recording of said conveyances that Herman

Murphy was insolvent?
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24. Was Hemian Murphy insolvent June 22,

1908?

25. Was Herman Murphy insolvent July 19,

1906?

26. Has Herman Murphy been insolvent since

June 22, 1906?

27. Did the recording June 22, 1908, of the deed

dated July 19, 1906, hinder or delay the creditors

of Herman Murphy from collecting the debts due

them from Herman Mui*phy?

None of the facts arising on these twenty-seven

issues, except the first are contained in said report,

and no report whatever is made on the other twenty-

six issues, or of any of the facts arising therefrom.

SECOND EXCEPTION.
The findings and report of the referee are worth-

less, in that, he had no jurisdiction to make the

findings and report that he does make, because they

are not of facts relating to, or arising from, the is-

sues raised by the answer to the creditors petition,

which were the only issues referred to him, and he

had no jurisdiction, power or authority whatever ex-

cept that which was contained in the order of refer-

ence aforesaid.

THIRD EXCEPTION.
The referee knew the issues referred to him, and

deliberately and wilfully refused to find and report

any of the facts relating to said issues as plainly ap-

pears from said report wherein said Referee says

:

[13]

"It is claimed by William Miller that the trans-

fer of said real property by Murphy to his wife w^as
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in fraud of his creditors and void as to them."

(Page 2.) This was admittedly the main and de-

cisive issue in the case. Again, on page 4 of that

report he says:

"The testimony taken comprises 459 pages, prac-

tically all of which is directed to the question of the

invalidity of the transfers made by Herman Mur-

phy to his wife, and by her to the Progressive In-

vestment Corporation." Also on page 7 of said re-

port he says:

"The cost of this proceeding has been as follows:

Paid reporter by petitioning creditors .... $396 . 20

Paid reporter by respondent 37 . 50

$433.70"

"I am making no finding upon such issues, for the

following reasons: first, that the determination of

such issues in petitioner's favor would not establish

the ultimate fact to be proven, namely, that William

Miller will receive a preference by virtue of his pur-

chase at the execution sale, such determination not

being binding on the transferees who claim the prop-

erty: second, that the state court having first ac-

quired jurisdiction over the issues concerning the

title to said property, it should, in my opinion, re-

tain the same."

Neither of those two "reasons" or questions he

refers to, were referred to him, and he had no juris-

diction or authority to determine, or consider, or

even hear them ; his reasons were not called for, and

they have no bearing whatever on the issues in-

volved.
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The petitioning creditors orally and in their briefs

specifically called the attention of the Referee to

their evidence showing plainly the said fraud and

specifically requested the Referee to report the facts

bearing upon that question, and the Referee [14]

promised to do so, that question of fraud was speci-

fically argued by respondent but an examination of

his report shows that he failed to do so and reported

irrelevant and immaterial facts which were not

based on any evidence in the record, or were ad-

mitted in the pleadings or by the parties.

FOURTH EXCEPTION.
The Referee usurped the jurisdiction of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals in the fol-

lowing particulars:

1. It was a part of the record before him and

brought to his attention that the United States Dis-

trict Court had overruled respondents' demurrer

and decided that the petition should not be dis-

missed from which decision no appeal was taken and

it had become final judgment, yet in the fact of this

record and the judgment of the United States Dis-

trict Court he says on page 4 of his report

:

"From the above state of facts the question is

presented whether this Court shall entertain this

petition.
'

'

Whereas the only questions before the Court were

presented by the pleadings on which that question

was settled before the case was referred to him and

had become the law of the case binding on the world,

and beyond the jurisdiction of the Referee to review,
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it could not then be revived by the U. S. Circuit

Court of Appeals.

2. The Referee did in fact usurp a jurisdiction

greater than that of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals and did reverse the United States Dis-

trict Court when he says on page 6 of his report

:

"My conclusion is that the petition herein either

should be dismissed or further hearing stayed until

the appeal aforesaid by William Miller from the

judgment of the State Court can be [15] deter-

mined." This conclusion was stated not only in the

face of the contrary and final judgment made by the

District Court after oral argument and typewritten

briefs, that is should not be dismissed, but also that

the hearing should not be stayed but should proceed

and that said Referee should hear the evidence and

report the evidence and the facts on the issues raised

by the pleadings.

3. That conclusions shows a plain disregard of

the decision of the Supreme Court of the United

States in the case of the U. S. F. and D. Co, vs.

Bray, 225 U. S. 205, 217; 56 Law edition 105 which

decides that the U. S. Bankruptcy Court must not

surrender its jurisdiction and control in bankruptcy

matters to any other tribunal; and other well estab-

lished principles governing the exercises of complete

jurisdiction by courts of equity and other courts.

FIFTH EXCEPTION.
The Referee plainly committed prejudicial error

as shown by that part of his conclusion which says:

"or further hearing stayed until the appeal afore-

said by William Miller from the judgment of the es-
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tate Court can be determined" and also shown on

page 2 of his report showing that in direct violation

of the decision in Di Nola vs. Allison, 143 Cal. 106,

65 L. R. A. 419, and other decisions brought to his

attention admitted in evidence the record of an

action pending before Judge Brown in the Superior

Court in Oakland in which an appeal had been duly

taken, bill of exceptions settled, a motion for new

trial pending and since granted, and increased his

error by basing his conclusion on that plainly in-

competent evidence, after emphasizing his error in

his report by repeatedly referring to that judgment

which could not exist after his statement of a pend-

ing appeal. [16]

We have thus seen that of his two conclusions

they were both finally disposed of by the decision

and action of the District Court before anything was

referred to him and again that his second conclusion

was based solely on incompetent evidence and must

be rejected with the evidence.

SIXTH EXCEPTION.
The said Referee invents, raises and decides many

questions which are not raised by the petition and

answer, and which questions were not referred to

him and his decisions of such questions are without

support of law or evidence and against the law and

the evidence, as follows:

1. On page 4 of his report he says:

"I am satisfied that the other petitioning creditors

have been caused to join in this proceeding at the

instance of William Miller.
'

'

No such question was raised by the pleadings, or
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was referred to the Referee, or is of the slightest

materiality. It is plain that in order to have three

creditors join in a petition they cannot be forced to

join, and there must be a community of interest and

purpose before they will join, and some one must in

every case, apply to, and persuade, the other cred-

itors to join in the petition with him.

2. Its immateriality is further shown by the

fact that it is alleged on page 3 of the petition and

admitted that the w^liole number of creditors is less

than 12 and therefore only one creditor was neces-

sary as a petitioner, Ryan and Bazinet alone were

sufficient. But the petitioning creditors submit that

whatever satisfied the Referee, there was not a par-

ticle of evidence offered, and there is not a particle

of evidence in the record, directly or indirectly

showing that William Miller persuaded the other

creditors to join him, or that the other creditors

[17] persuaded William Miller to join them.

3. Indeed there is an insinuation that this de-

frauded judgment creditor whose savings were

loaned to the alleged bankrupt February 1, 1905, and

who has been during the past nine years in every

court vainly trying to collect the money justly due

him, is now guilty of some wrong in applying to the

bankruptcy court to assist him in collecting his

money and securing justice.

SEVENTH EXCEPTION.
The Referee bases his conclusions in his report on

grounds which are not good in law and equity and

which were decided before any matters were re-

ferred to him, as follows:
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On page 3 of Ms report the Referee says

:

"On July 2, 1913, the petition in bankruptcy

herein was filed, in which petition it was charged

that said Murphy committed an act of bankruptcy

on March 24, 1913, in that he suffered and permitted,

while insolvent, the said Miller to obtain a prefer-

ence by reason of said sale, and not having within

at least five days before the sale or final disposition

of said property vacated or discharged his prefer-

ence, rom all of which it appears that said Miller

charges as an act of bankruptcy, an alleged prefer-

ence received by himself."

The immateriality of such statement and ground

is as follows:

1. These facts being stated in the petition the

overruling of the demurrer settled the law that they

did not in any way obstruct the granting of the peti-

tion or any of the judgment creditors resorting to

the court of bankruptcy to collect their judgments.

2. There is no law whatever which would pre-

vent even William Miller or any other judgment

creditor complaining to a [18] court of bank-

ruptcy that his judgment debtor committed an act

of bankruptcy by permittinf his property to go to

execution sale when any person could be a pur-

chaser, even though that judgmq(nt creditor hap-

pened to be the purchaser, and thus force the bank-

rupt to deliver up all his concealed property towards

the payment of his honest debts, which cannot in-

jure, but will benefit him by so far reducing his in-

debtedness. If he has no other property he is not

damaged. The judgment creditor can secure no
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advantage, for if the purchase is a perference it is

set aside by the bankruptcy proceedings which must

be instituted within four months after the sale.

There is certainly no wrong in a creditor bidding

and buying at an execution sale open to all persons

to bid and buy.

3. The petition shows that Ryan and Bazinet

were creditors to the amount of $600.00 and that

there were less than 12 creditors in all and they

could maintain the petition regardless of Miller, and

anything that Miller did or did not do could not

affect them in prosecuting the petition.

EIGHTH EXCEPTION.
There is no claim to the real estate referred to in

the petition, nor was there any adverse claim to the

property by any other person or corporation than

Herman Murphy.

NINTH EXCEPTION.
There is no excuse w^hatever for the Referee not

finding and reporting the material and decisive facts

in the case for they plainly appeared from admis-

sions and evidence to be as follows:

1. It was both admitted and proved that the al-

leged fraudulent deed of the property in question

dated July 19, 1906, from [19] Herman Murphy
to his wife was a gift deed made without any con-

sideration. But the Referee does not report those

facts.

2. It was admitted and proved and appears on

page 2 of the Referee's Report that at the time and

long prior to the date of said deed, William Miller

was a creditor of Herman Murphy for money bor-
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rowed by Herman Murphy $100.00 borrowed Febru-

ary 1, 1905; $1,250.00 March 8, 1906, and" $300.00

March 28, 1906, not one cent of which loans has ever

been paid.

3. It was admitted, proved and unexplained, and

it appears on page 2 of the Referee's Report, that

the deed was not recorded until June 22, 1908, nearly

two years after its date.

4. It was proved but does not appear in the

Referee's Report, that this real estate was attached

July 1, and July 20, 1908, in an action by William

Miller against Hennan Murphy to collect those

three items of indebtedness. Judgment was en-

tered in said action December 6, 1910, for the full

amount claimed with interest from June 1, 1908.

5. It was proved but does not appear in the

Referee's Report, that no motion for new trial was

made in that action, no bill of exceptions was filed,

and that Herman Murphy admitted that the money

was always justly due Miller, yet in June, 1909, and

about the last day allowed by law, he filed an appeal

from said judgment and December 12, 1912, the

Supreme Court dismissed said appeal.

6. There was no evidence whatever that said

deed of July 19, 1906, was ever delivered by Herman
Murphy to his wife or to any other person for her,

but on the contrary it appears from the uncontra-

dicted evidence of the said wife of Herman Murphy
that said deed was never delivered to her, but that

it has always been and is now in the possession of

said Herman Mui*phy who [20] caused it to be

recorded, and has had it in his possession before and
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ever since it was recorded. But the Referee's Re-

port does not mention any of these facts.

7. It appeared that prior to and on July 19, 1906,

Herman Mui-i^hy was heavily indebted, and that

ever since July 19, 1906, he has been insolvent.

8. On July 19, 1906, Herman Murphy owed:

William Miller (Trans, page 11) . .$2250.00

George C. Richards (Trans, page

60) $2000.00

$4250.00

His property on that date and August 1, 1906, was

as follows:

Balance in bank July 1, 1906 $717.81

" " '' August 1, 1906... 92.83

Interest in certain mining claims, on w^hich no

value was or could be set by Herman Murphy or any

one else, and they were also exempt to a value of

$5000.00, about $1500.00 to $2000.00 in a safe de-

posit box to which himself and his wife had keys and

access.

Payment of these sums had been continually de-

manded from him, but he was unable to pay, and no

part of the said sum due to Miller has ever been paid

and no part of the money due Richards was ever

paid until March 25, 1913, when it was compromised

by the payment of $900.00 for a judgment of more

than $2000.00.
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It plainly appeared from the evidence that the

conveyances of July 19, 1906, made Herman Murphy
insolvent and he has been insolvent ever since.

9. At the dates of the recording of those deeds

June 22 and June 30, 1908, said Herman Mui^hy
owed the same debts [21] of $4250.00

and the following additional:

C. L. Hooper $ 200.00

William Miller . 300.00

William Miller note of June 16,

1908 4000.00 $4500.00

Making in all an unsecured in-

debtedness of $8750.00

There was no more property accessible to his cred-

itors on execution except a debt of $1000.00 was due

to him as a bill receivable.

There was since October 31, 1907, a suit pending

against him to collect that debt of G. L. Hooper.

Miller and the other creditors repeatedly de-

manded the payment of their debts but Murphy was

unable to pa)^, and did not pay, any of them.

It plainly appears from the evidence that he was

insolvent when the deeds were recorded, and had

been for nearly two years before, and has been ever

since.

10. It plainly appeared that but for the said con-

veyance of July 19, 1906, William Miller and the

other then creditors could have collected their debts

out of that property, and by reason of that convey-

ance they have been delayed and prevented collect-

ing their debts. Also the circumstances were such
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that Herman Murphy knew and intended that such

would be the consequences of such conveyance and

especially the recording of said conveyance.

11. It plainly appeared from the uncontradicted

evidence that there was no change whatever in the

possession or control of the property since said con-

veyance July 19, 1906, and that the conveyance was

a mere sham and contrivance to hinder, delay and

defraud the creditors of Herman Murphy, and that

it has so [22] succeeded thus far, and therefore

that the conveyance was void that the real estate

was owned by Herman Murphy when it was sold

March 24, 1913, on execution sale and the failure to

prevent that sale was an act of bankruptcy as al-

leged in the petition.

WHEREFORE the said petitioning creditors

pray this Honorable Court to reject the conclusions

and recommendations of the Referee and set the

earliest convenient date for hearing and considering

the evidence reported by the Referee and make and

enter an order and judgment granting the prayers

of the petition and adjudging said Herman Murphy

a bankrupt, and such other orders and decrees as

the evidence and circumstances require.

DANIEL O'CONNELL,
Attorney for Petitioning Creditors. [23]

Opinion and Decision.

DANIEL O'CONNELL, Esq., Attorney for

Petitioning Creditors.

MASTICK & PARTRIDGE, Attorneys for

Herman Murphy.

The argument on the demurrer to the petition
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herein was directed solely to the time of the sale

averred in the petition and not to the character

thereof and the only question decided in overruling

the demurrer was that the petition was filed in time.

No authority has been cited to the effect that the

failure of an alleged bankrupt to release the levy of

an attachment upon his supposed interest in prop-

erty transferred by him nearly seven years pre-

viously, constitutes an act of bankruptcy, even

though followed by aveiments that such transfer was

a fraudulent one. Nor can it appear that such at-

taching creditor will obtain a preference until such

sale has been determined to be fraudulent in an ac-

tion to which the transferee is a party. Nor will a

Court listen with much patience to a petitioning cred-

itor who complains that he himself has received a

preference under such proceedings. For these

reasons the report of the Referee is affirmed, the peti-

tion for adjudication denied, and the proceedings

dismissed.

M. T. DOOLING,
Judge.

December 4, 1914. [24]

[Style of Court, Title and Number of Cause.]

Petition for Appeal in Bankruptcy (and Order

Allowing Appeal).

Petition on appeal of James R. Ryan, Peter

Bazinet and William Miller, and each of them peti-

tioning creditors in bankruptcy of Herman Murphy,

alleged involuntary bankrupt.
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The above-named James R. Ryan, Peter Bazinet

and William Miller, petitioning creditors in bank-

ruptcy against Herman Murphy, alleged involuntary

bankrupt, considering themselves, and each of them-

selves, aggrieved by the judgment and decree made
and entered on the fourth day of December, A. D.

1914, in the above-entitled cause, affirming and con-

firming the report of the Referee, and denying the

petition to adjudge said Herman Murphy a bank-

rupt, and dismissing said proceedings in bankruptcy,

do hereby appeal from such judgment to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, for the reasons specified in the assigmnent of

errors which is filled herewith, and they and each

of them pray that this appeal may be allowed and

that a transcript of the record, proceedings and

papers upon which said judgment was made, duly

authenticated, may be sent to the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

DANIEL O'CONNELL,
Attorney for Petitioning Creditors.

The foregoing claim of Appeal is allowed.

M. T. DOOLING,
United States District Judge. [25]

[Style of Court, Title and Number of Cause.]

Assignment of Errors.

Now, on this fourteenth day of December, 1914,

come James R. Ryan, Peter Bazinet and William

Miller and each of them, the petitioning creditors,

and say the decree entered in the above cause on the
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fourth day of December, A. D. 1914, is erroneous and

unjust to said petitioning creditors and file the fol-

lowing assignment of errors

:

First. Because the said District Court erred in

ruling, holding and deciding that the Eeferee in

Bankruptcy had any jurisdiction other than "to as-

certain and report the facts and his conclusions there-

from on the issues joined by the answer to the cred-

itors' petition herein," especially as the record and

evidence show that the only authorization given to

said Referee was in the following order: "On motion

of D. O'Connell, Esq., it is by the Court ordered that

this matter be and the same is hereby referred to A.

B. Kreft, Referee in Bankruptcy, to ascertain and

report the facts and his conclusions therefrom on the

issues joined by the answer to the creditors' petition

herein.
'

'

Second. Because the said District Court erred in

ruling, holding and deciding that the Referee in

Bankruptcy had jurisdiction to consider and deter-

mine the sufficiency of the allegations of the cred-

itors' petition, or other questions of law other than

for admission or rejection of offered evidence. [26]

Third. Because the said District Court erred in

approving and affirming the report of said Rerefee

in that said report did not, in fact, or even pretend to,

"ascertain and report the facts and his conclusions

therefrom on the issues joined by the answer to the

creditors' petition herein"; although said report

states, on page 4 thereof, that "the testimony taken

comprises 459 pages, practically all of which is

directed to the question of the invalidity of the trans-
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fers made by Herman Murphy to his wife, and by her

to the Progressive Investment Corporation" and

again on page 7 of said report he says :

'

' The cost of

this proceeding has been as follows: Paid reporter

by petitioning creditors, $396.20, paid reporter by

respondent, $37.50, total, $433.70"; and said report

further says: "I am making no finding upon such

issues, for the following reasons : First, that the de-

termination of such issues in jjetitioners ' favor

would not establish the ultimate fact to be proven,

namely, that William Miller will receive a preference

by virtue of his purchase at the execution sale, such

determination not being binding of the transferees

w^ho claim the property. Second: They, the State

Court, having first acquired jurisdiction over the is-

sues concerning title to said property, it should in

my opinion, retain the same."

Fourth. Because said District Court erred in ap-

proving and affirming the report of said Referee in

that said referee in his said report states that he de-

liberately fails to comply with the said order refer-

ring the matter to him and also states that he de-

liberately fails to ascertain and report the facts on

the material and decisive issues raised by the answer

to the creditors' petition and on which issues the

Referee states nearly all of the great amount of evi-

dence was offered before him.

Fifth. Because the said District Court erred in

not sending the matter back to said Referee ordering

him to comply with the [27] said order referring

said matter to him and ^'to ascertain and report the

facts and his conclusions therefrom on the issues
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joined by the answer to the creditors' petition here-

in," as originally ordered by said District Court,

which order has never been revoked or modified in

any manner.

Sixth. Because the said District Court erred in

disregarding, and not considering as binding and

conclusive upon said District Court, the decision and

judgment of said District Court made August, 1913,

overruling the respondent's demurrer to the said

creditors' petition, which decision and judgment has

never been reversed or modified and from w4iich no

appeal was ever taken, and thus conclusively estab-

lished the sufficiency of the allegations of an act or

acts of bankruptcy committed by respondent and to

have said respondent adjudged a bankrupt regard-

less of any argument made before the overruling of

said demurrer.

Seventh. Because the said District Court erred

in approving and affirming said report as it thereby

deprives the petitioning creditors of a trial and as-

certainment and determination of the facts on which

the rights of said petitioning creditors depend

and which will enable them to properly and fully

present their claims to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals, especially as evidence and proof

was offered before said Referee show^ing that the title

to the real estate involved, never passed from the

bankrupt, by reason of the established fraudulent

intent of the grantor, and also because the gift deed

was never delivered to the grantee.

Eighth. Because the said District Court erred in

not giving the petitioners a trial on the facts and
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making findings of the facts on the issues raised by

the answer to the petition of the creditors as the law

requires said District Court to do w^ien a [28]

jury trial is not claimed and where the judgment

overruling the demurrer is unappealed and has be-

come final and conclusive as in this case, and regard-

less of any Eeferee, or any reference to any Referee.

Ninth. Because said District Court erred in rul-

ing, holding and deciding that "the only question

decided in overruling the demurrer was that the peti-

tion was filed in time," in that the record of the

decision and judgment overruling the demurrer

August, 1913, must govern, and is decisive of what

w^as decided at that time and cannot be modified or

changed collaterally, December 4, 1914, and said de-

murrer alleges as follows: "Now comes Herman

Murphy, respondent above named, and demurs to

the petition in involuntary bankruptcy in the above-

entitled matter, and for grounds of demurrer

specifies : that said petition does not state facts suffi-

cient to constitute a cause of bankruptcy against said

respondent. Wherefore, respondent prays that his

demurrer be sustained with costs," and therefore the

said judgment "demurrer overruled" and allowing

so many days to answer decided that the petition

stated
'

' facts sufficient to constitute a cause of bank-

ruptcy against respondent."

Tenth. Because said District Court erred in hold-

ing, ruling and deciding that "the failure of an al-

leged bankrupt to release the levy of an attachment

upon his supposed interest in property transferred

by him nearly seven years previously does not con-
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stitute an act of bankruptcy even though it is averred

that such transfer was a fraudulent one," in that a

fraudulent transfer is void and the property remains

that of the bankrupt the same as if no transfer had

been made, no matter how many years previous the

deed was recorded, and it is alleged and proven that

the attachment by virtue of which the property was

sold was made within [29] 30 days after the re-

cording of the fraudulent transfer, and continued in

force until the property was sold on the execution

issued on the judgment in the same action in which

the attachment was issued.

Eleventh. Because said District Court erred in

holding, ruling and deciding that ''it cannot appear

that such attaching creditor will obtain a preference

until such sale has been determined to be fraudulent

in an action to which the transferee is a party," in

that the court of bankruptcy has the power to deter-

mine any fact necessary to the exercise of its own

exclusive jurisdiction; also neither the bankrupt or

grantee or transferee made any objection whatever

on the record to the determination of the fact, and

the grantee or transferee personally testified fully

before the Eeferee as to her claim and title and the

transcript of her testimony on the same subject,

September 23, 1910, before the Superior Court of

the State of California, was also put in evidence be-

fore the Referee ; and it also appeared from the cred-

itors' petition and the answer and also it was ad-

mitted and proved that the alleged fraudulent deed

was a voluntary gift deed from the bankrupt to his

wife and therefore the intent or knowledge or guilt
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or innocence of the grantee or transferee is imma-
terial and that it is not necessary that she should be

a party, and the fraudulent intent or insolvent condi-

tion of the grantor alone was sufficient and decisive.

It appeared that said grantee or transferee never

conveyed the property, and it was not alleged or

claimed that she ever attempted to convey it prior to

the placing of the said attachment on the property.

These allegations appeared in the said petition to

which said demurrer was overruled.

Twelfth. Because said District Court erred in

holding, ruling, and deciding that the fact that the

petitioning creditor, [30] William Miller, being

the purchaser at said execution sale of the real estate

of the alleged bankrupt, which sale is alleged to con-

stitute an act of bankruptcy, cannot, as one of the

petitioning creditors, complain of it as a preference,

in that the said District Court in overruling said de-

murrer, August, 1913, decided and adjudged that he

could and, no appeal having been taken from said

judgment on said demurrer, and it remaining in full

force and effect December 4', 1914, is conclusive and

binding on said District Court until reversed by some

direct proceeding for that purpose. Also in that the

said creditors' petition to which said demurrer was

filed and the respondent's answer each directly and

specifically allege that said William Miller purchased

said real estate at said execution sale on March 24,

1913. Also in that said petition alleges and it is

not denied in the answer and thereafter admitted,

and there was no evidence to the contrary offered at

the hearing that the number of creditors of said
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Herman Murphy was less than twelve, and therefore

under the law only one petitioning creditor was nec-

essary and the claim of the petitioners Eyan and

Bazinet was alleged, proved and reprtoed to be for

more than $600.00, and the fact that V^^illiam Miller

as a complaining petitioner was mere surplusage and

immaterial and could not affect the rights of the

other petitioners. Also no facts were proved or al-

leged showing any estoppel of said Miller; or that

he had done any wrong ; or that he did not come into

court with clean hands ; or that the petition of Her-

man Murphy was in any way changed by such pur-

chase; or even that said Miller purchased with any

intent to subsequently make it an act of bankruptcy

on the part of Murphy; or to complain of it as a

preference.

Thirteenth. The said District Court erred in not

directly or by reference finding the facts on the is-

sues raised by the said creditors' petition and the

answer of the respondent Herman Murphy as fol-

lows: [31]

Whether or not Herman Mm^phy was insolvent

when that voluntary gift deed was made to his wife

July 19, 1906.

Whether or not Herman Murphy was insolvent

when that deed was recorded June 22, 1908.

Whether or not that deed to his wife was made

July 19, 1906, in contemplation of insolvency.

Whether or not that deed was recorded June 22,

1908, in contemplation of insolvency.

Whether or not that deed was made July 19, 1906,

with the intent and purpose to delay and defraud
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any creditor of said Herman Murphy.

Whether or not that deed was recorded June 22,

1908, with the intent and purpose of delaying and

defrauding any creditor of said Herman Murphy,

Whether or not said deed was ever delivered to his

wife.

Whether or not said deed was ever delivered to his

wife before the recording of the said attachment.

If said deed was ever delivered to his wife, when.

Because there was before said Referee uncontra-

dicted evidence that there never was a delivery of

said deed, which evidence was the testimony of said

wife given in the Superior Court of the State of

California in and for the County of Alameda more

than two years after the recording of said attach-

ment, to wit: September 23, 1910, in supplementary

proceedings as a judgment against said Herman
Murphy, at which time she swore that she knew noth-

ing of those deeds and therefore could not have ac-

cepted them, and there could not have been any de-

livery. It appeared that she also testified at said

time and place that she knew absolutely nothing

about her property, or business, and left all entirely

in the control of her said husband since their mar-

riage, and that she never received or requested any

accounting whatever from him. She also testified

before the Referee that all her books, deeds, [32]

papers of every kind, were always, since her mar-

riage, in the possession and control of her husband

since their marriage, and she did not know what they

were or where they were, or anything about them,

except that she knew as he had them they must be
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safe, showing that said Herman Murphy never

parted with the custody, control and dominion of

said deed. She also testified that said Progressive

Investment Corporation never received or accepted

any deed of said property and never had a meeting

of its board of directors, and that prior to her testi-

mony for her own private reasons she had destroyed

all the books and papers of every kind of said cor-

poration and also all her own books and papers that

she had in her possession or control. It was ad-

mitted and also proved that the said judgment of said

William Miller was recovered on promissory notes

given February 1, 1905, and March, 1906, and which

became due before July 19, 1906, and no part of the

principal of which notes has ever been paid. There

was other evidence that said Herman Murphy was

heavily indebted on July 19, 1906, and many of those

other debts then due have never been paid. It was

admitted and also proved that the real estate has

been continually under various attachments placed

on it July 1, and July 20, 1908, and February 5, 1909,

and a judgment lien for more than $2,000.00 since

•September, 1909.

There was evidence that Herman Murphy was in-

solvent July 19, 1906, and on that date pretended to

convey all his property to his wife, and has continued

insolvent ever since.

There was evidence that July 19, 1906, and ever

since he had such insolvent condition in contempla-

tion when he made, and also when he recorded that

deed. There was evidence that the said deed was

made with the intent and purpose on the part of said
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[33] Herman Murphy to delay and defraud Ms
creditors, and that he had succeeded in delaying and

defrauding his creditors ever since.

Fourteenth. The said District Court erred in

failing and refusing to consider the evidence on the

said issues referred to in the thirteenth assignment

of error.

Fifteenth. The said District Court erred in not

finding and reporting whether or not Herman
Murphy had any right, title, estate, or interest, legal

or equitable, in trust, or otherwise, in said real estate

on March 24, 1913, when the same was sold on execu-

tion and the permitting of which sale is alleged as an

act of bankruptcy because regardless of the validity

of the deed dated July 19, 1906, the banki'upt might

have, since that date, and before the sheriff's sale,

acquired an equitable or other interest in said real

estate or it might have been held on secret trust for

him and his interest, whatever they were passed at

the sheriff's sale and an act of bankruptcy was there-

by committed.

Sixteenth. The said District Court erred in ap-

proving and affirming the report of the said referee

wherein the said referee refuses to find the facts on

the issues raised on the petition and answer and after

making a statement of a few immaterial and irrel-

evant facts proceeds as follows:

'

' From the above state of facts the question is pre-

sented whether this Court shall entertain this peti-

tion.
'

'

Whereas no such question was presented, no such

question was open, as the District Court decided the
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question August, 1913, more than eleven months be-

fore and not appeal was taken from that judgment,

and the matter became res judicata and final and con-

clusive on said court, and all parties, and said Dis-

trict Court could not and did not send, or present any

such question to said Referee, and the question was

not then presented to said Referee [34] and the

question was not then presented to said Referee or

said District Court.

Seventeenth. The said District Court erred in ap-

proving and affiraiing the report of said Referee

w^herein the said referee states as follows: ''My con-

clusion is that the petition herein either should be

dismissed or further hearing stayed until the ap-

peal aforesaid by William Miller from the judgment

of the State Court can be determined. " In that said

Referee had no jurisdiction to make any such con-

clusion and the District Court could not and did

not give him any authority to make any such con-

clusion or recommendation, or any conclusion what-

ever until he had report all the facts on the issues

raised by the petition and the answer thereto.

Eighteenth. The District Court erred in approv-

ing and affirming the report of said referee in that

no claim whatever was made to the real estate re-

ferred to in the petition, nor was there any adverse or

other claim to said real estate presented by anyone

other that said Herman Murphy.

Nineteenth. The said District Court erred in

affinning said report of the Referee and denying

said petition for adjudication and dismissing the

proceedings because of each and all of the reasons
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and errors hereinbefore set forth in the previous

eighteen assignments of errors.

Dated San Francisco, CaL, Dec. 14, 1914.

Respectfully submitted,

DANIEL O'CONNELL,
Attorney for Petitioning Creditors. [35]

[Style of Court, Title and Number of cause.]

Record on Appeal.

I.

This was a petition in involuntary bankruptcy filed

in the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, July 21, 1913, by James E.

Ryan and Peter Bazinet of Madera County, State of

California, and M. M. Corrigan and William Miller,

both of the City and County of San Francisco, State

of California, as three (3) judgment creditors of

Herman Murphy of Berkeley, in the County of

Alameda, State of California, who, it is alleged, was

not a wage earner, or engaged chiefly in fanning, or

the tilage of soil, but is a person subject to be ad-

judged a bankrupt upon a creditors' petition, and

contained the allegations as to residence of more

than six (6) months, and that he owes debts to the

amount of Four Thousand ($4,000.00) Dollars and

more.

The judgment of James R. Ryan and Peter Baz-

inet was recovered June 2, 1910, in the Superior

Court of the State of California, in and for the

County of Madera, on which a balance of $540.52,

with interest from June 24, 1910, at the rate of 7%
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per annum, making in all $644.56 due and unpaid at

the time of filing the petition.

M. M. Corrigan alleged a judgment recovered May
14, 1913, in the Justices' Court of the City of

Berkeley, County of Alameda, State of California,

for the sum of $100.00 and $15.25 costs, all of which

remained unpaid at the time of filing the petition.

[36]

William Miller alleged that he recovered a judg-

ment against Herman Murphy in the Superior Court

of the State of California, in and for the City and

County of San Francisco, on December 6, 1910, for

the sum of $3,377.77 and $1.00 was paid for execu-

tion, together with fees of the sheriff and his ex-

penses ; and that no part of the judgment was paid,

and that the sum of $3,909.76 was unpaid and owing

at the time of filing the petition.

It is further alleged: "That according to their in-

formation and belief, and on their information and

belief, that the whole number of creditors of the said

Herman Murphy are less than twelve."

It further represented that '

'Herman Murphy was

insolvent, and that within four months next pre-

ceding the date of filing the petition he committed an

act of bankruptcy in that he did, heretofore, to wit,

on the 24th day of March, A. D. 1913, suffer, and

permit, while insolvent, a creditor to obtain a prefer-

ence, through legal proceedings, and not having at

least five days before a sale or final disposition of his

property affected by such preference, vacated or dis-

charged such preference, in that on said March 24,

1913, all the right, title, estate and interest which the
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said Herman Murphy had in the real estate situated

in Berkeley, in said county of Alameda, and State of

California, bounded and described as follows": (and

a description of the property follows) :

Said petition further alleges as follows

:

"Said real estate was duly attached on a writ of

attachment issued in said action July 20, 1908, and

again on the w^rit of execution issued on the judgment

entered December 6, 1910, issued in the action of

William Miller against HeiTaan Murphy, and said

sale was duly made on said execution by the sheriff

of [37] said County of Alameda, on said March

24, 1913, to said William Miller, and said William

Miller then and there received a certificate of said

sale, which has been duly recorded in the office of the

County Recorder of Alameda County."

The petition further alleges as follows:
'

' Said Herman Murphy, while insolvent, and very

heavily indebted, on July 16, 1908, and prior thereto,

and ever since, executed and afterwards, on June 22,

1908, caused to be recorded in the office of the County

Recorder of the County of Alameda, a gift deed and

deed of gift of the above-described real estate, con-

veying said property, or pretending to convey said

property, from said Herman Murphy to his wife,

said Ella M. Murphy, and said deed was so executed

and recorded in contemplation of said insolvency,

with the intent and for the purpose of hindering, de-

laying, cheating and defrauding the creditors of the

said Herman Murphy, both the past, the present and

future creditors of said Herman Murphy, and your

petitioners, James R. Ryan and Peter Bazinet, and
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William Miller were then creditors of said Herman
Murphy and said Ella M. Murphy then and there-

after had notice and knowledge of the said intent and

purpose, of said Herman Murphy, and participated

in said intent and purpose, and in carrying it out,

and there never was then or at any time thereafter

any change in the possession or control of said prop-

erty, and no consideration whatever was at any time

paid for said pretended conveyance so recorded, and

said conveyance was and is absolutely void and con-

veyed nothing to said Ella M. Murphy, and during

all the times mentioned herein said Herman Murphy
remained and continued to be, and is now, the real

owner of said real estate, both at law and in equity.
'

'

[38]

Said petition further alleged that on July 5, 1910,

there was recorded in the office of the County Re-

corder of Alameda County, a purported and pre-

tended deed of said real estate from said Ella M.

Murphy to Progressive Investment Corporation, in-

corporators of which corporation were said Ella M.

Murphy, Helen B. Murphy, her daughter, and C. E.

King, a stenographer in the employ of said Herman

Murphy, who were the only directors and trustees

of said corporation ; and on November 30, 1910, said

corporation ceased to exist by authority of proclama-

tion of the Governor and Secretary of State of Cali-

fornia for nonpayment of corporation assessments

and taxes ; and alleged that no stock was ever issued

and no certificates of stock ever issued by said cor-

poration, and that no attempt had ever been made to

wind up the affairs of the corporation, and the cor-
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poration was a mere pretense and sham for the pur-

pose of putting the record title of said property

beyond the reach of the creditors of said Herman
Murphy, and for the purpose of hindering, delaying,

cheating and defrauding said creditors past, present

and future, of said Hennan Murphy, and that they

were so hindered, delayed, obstructed, cheated and

defrauded by the said conveyances; that the said at-

tachments of the property on July 1, and July 20,

1908, and February 10, 1910, were all duly recorded

in the office of the County Recorder, and that said

King and Helen B. Murphy, Ella M. Murphy, Her-

man Murphy, and Progressive Investment Corpora-

tion had notice and knowledge of said attaclunents

from the said dates that they were recorded, and

that they also knew that said Herman Murphy was

insolvent during all the time of the existence of the

corporation; and also that they knew he was in-

solvent on June 22, 1908, and that he continued in-

solvent down to the filing of the petition. [39]

It alleged that the conveyance of the corporation

recorder July 5, 1910, and the other conveyance of

the property from Herman Murphy were void, and

that the property of Herman Murphy continued sub-

ject to said execution sale, and prayed that said

Herman Murphy be adjudged an involuntary bank-

rupt within the purview of said acts of bankruptcy.

The petition was signed and was duly verified.

II.

Subpoena was duly issued and Herman Murphy

duly appeared by his attorneys and filed his de-

murrer in the following language

:
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''Now comes Herman Murphy, respondent above

named, and demurs to the petition in invohmtary

bankruptcy in the above-entitled matter, and for

grounds of demurrer specifies

:

That said petition does not state facts sufficient to

constitute a cause of bankruptcy against said re-

spondent.

WHEREFORE, respondent prays that his de-

murrer be sustained, with costs."

The United States District Court heard the de-

murrer and ordered it overruled, and the defendant

to file his answer within five (5) days.

Thereafter defendant filed his answer in the case,

in which answer there was no denial of the allegation

that the number of his creditors was less than twelve.

The answ^er admitted the judgments recovered by

Ryan and Bazinet, and also by M. M. Corrigan, but

alleged that there was an appeal taken from Corri-

gan 's judgment, and that it was pending and un-

determined in the Superior Court of the County of

Alameda.

It also admitted the recovery of the judgment by

William Miller as alleged and the issuing of an exe-

cution thereon, and that said execution was delivered

to the sheriff of the County of Alameda, State of

California, and that by virtue of said execution said

sheriff of Alameda County did sell at the request

of William Miller [40] a pretended interest of

Herman Murphy, respondent herein, in and to that

certain real property in the City of Berkeley, County

of Alameda, State of California, described in said

petition, and alleges that at the sale of said property
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on said execution said William Miller purchased the

pretended interest of said Herman Murphy in said

property for the sum of $150.00, and alleged that

said $150.00 reduced the amount of judgment

that sum; and alleged that he was not the owner of

the property, or any part thereof, at the time of

execution sale, and denied that within 4 months prior

to the filing of the petition he committed any act of

bankruptcy; and denied that on the 24th day of

March, A. D. 1913, or at any time, he suffered or per-

mitted , while insolvent, a creditor to obtain a prefer-

ence through legal proceedings, or at all ; and alleged

that at the time of said sheriff's sale on March 24,

1913, and for long time prior thereto, said Herman
Murphy was not the owner of all right, or title, or

estate and interest in the real property described;

and alleged that at the time of the sale said property

was not the property, or was any part thereof the

property, of the said Herman Murphy; and denied

that he exercised any acts of ownership over the

property, or any part of the property.

The answer further denied that, while insolvent,

or very heavily indebted, on July 16, 1906, or at any

time prior, or since, he made, executed, or delivered

to Ella M. Murphy, or caused to be recorded in the

office of the County Recorder of Alameda County, a

deed of gift of the property, but alleged that, while

solvent, and not heavily indebted, he made, executed

and delivered on July 19, 1906, a gift deed of the

property to his wife, Ella M. Murphy; but denied

that it was executed and recorded in the contempla-

tion of insolvency; and denied that it was executed
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and recorded with the intent or for the purpose of

hindering, [41] delaying, cheating, or defraud-

ing, or of hindering, or of delaying, or of cheating,

or of defrauding his creditors, whether the creditors

were past, or present, or future creditors; or for

hindering or of defrauding the said James R. Ryan

or Peter Bazin or William Miller, or all or an}^ of

them.

It also denied that Ella M. Murphy then or there-

after had notice or knowledge of said alleged intent

or purpose of said Herman Murphy ; and denied that

she participated in the alleged intent or purpose, or

assisted in carrying it out; and denied that there

was not at any time thereafter any change in the

possession or control of the property; and denied

that there was no consideration whatever paid for

said conveyance ; and denied that it was absolutely, or

otherwise, void ; and denied that it conveyed nothing

to Ella M. Murphy ; and denied that Herman Mur-

phy remained, or continued to be, or now is, the real

owner of said real property, or any part thereof;

and denied that no stock was subscribed for or is-

sued by the Progressive Investment Corporation;

and denied that the incorporation was a mere con-

trivance or any contrivance or sham for the purpose

of putting the record title of said property in the

name of a corporation and beyond the reach of his

creditors, or for the purpose of hindering, delaying,

cheating and defrauding any of his creditors, past,

present or future; and denies that any of his credi-

tors were thereby hindered, delayed, obstructed,

cheated, or defrauded by the deeds so recorded June
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22, 1908, and July 5, 1910 ; and denies that they were

recorded with the intent and purpose to hinder, de-

lay, obstruct, or defraud any of his creditors; and

denies that any of the incorporation had any notice

of the writs of attachments being recorded July 1,

1908, July 20, 1908 or February 10, 1909 ; and denies

that no consideration was paid by the Progressive

Investment Corporation for said [42] convey-

ance; and denies that the officers of the corporation

knew that Herman Murphy was insolvent; and

denies that he w^as insolvent on June 22, 1908, when

the deed w^as recorded; and denies that he has con-

tinued insolvent down to the filing of the petition;

and denies that the conveyance to the Progressive

Investment Corporation, recorded July 5, 1910, was

void ; and denies that the property so conveyed con-

tinued to be, or now^ is, the property of Herman

Murphy and subject to said execution sale or any

other incumbrances. Said answer alleged as fol-

lows:

"Respondent denies that at the time of the con-

veyance of said property described in said petition

to said Ella M. Murphy, wdfe of respondent herein,

and at the time of the recording of said deed to the

said Ella M. Murphy, on the 22d day of June, 1908,

respondent herein was not indebted in any sum to

James R. Ryan or Peter Bazinet, and that upon both

of said debts respondent herein was solvent and able

to pay all debts owed by him, including the sum of

money due to said William Miller, petitioner

herein. '

'
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The answer prayed that the petition be denied and

dismissed.

The answer was duly verified. After the filing of

the answer, the petition and answer were duly re-

ferred to the Referee in Bankruptcy with instruc-

tions "To ascertain and report the facts and his con-

clusions therefrom on the issues joined by the answer

to the creditors ' petition herein. '

'

Thereafter hearings were had before the Referee

in Bankruptcy, and documentary evidence and oral

testimony were produced by the petitioning creditors

to prove that Herman Murphy was indebted to them

in the amounts claimed to be due them in the peti-

tion, and that he was insolvent at the date of the

alleged commission of the act of bankruptcy charged

and at the date of the filing of the petition herein.

The Referee found and reported that the amount

owing [43] to the petitioning creditors at said

dates exceeds the amount necessary to maintain the

petition, and that at the date of the alleged commis-

sion of the act of bankruptcy charged and at the date

of the filing of the petition herein, said Herman
Murphy was insolvent. No exception was taken by

said Herman Murphy to the referee's findings and

report.

When at the outset of the hearing before the Ref-

eree, it became known to him that the property

which is the subject of the alleged preference was

adversely claimed, he stated to the parties that in his

opinion this Court should not proceed to try the

issues relating to such adverse claim. Counsel for

the petitioning creditors desiring to present his case
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as to the alleged fraudulent character of the trans-

fers of the property referred to in the petition, which

transfers were made by Herman Murphy to his wdf

e

Ella M. Murphy on July 16th, 1906, and which prop-

erty was transferred to Ella M. Murphy to Progres-

sive Investment Corporation, on July 5th, 1910, un-

der the averments of the petition that such transfers

w^ere made with intent to hinder and delay and de-

fraud the creditors of said Herman Murphy, the

petitioning creditors were permitted by the Referee

to take the testimony thereon, under the rule an-

nounced in the case of In re Bartnett, No. 5611 in

this court, namely, that the Referee should not re-

fuse to take evidence offered although he may decide

it to be incompetent, irrelevant or immaterial. The

Referee refused to consider this evidence, and made

no findings thereon, for the reasons, first: Because

the determination of the issues supported by such

testimony, even if determined in favor of the peti-

tioning creditors, would not establish the ultimate

fact to be proven, to wit, that Wm. Miller will re-

ceive a preference by virtue of his purchase at the

execution sale, because such determination w^ould

not be binding on the transferees who claim the

property ; and second : Because a State Court having

first obtained [44] jurisdiction over such issues,

in an action brought by one of the petitioning credi-

tors to have the transfer set aside as fraudulent, it

should be permitted to retain the same. Counsel for

the petitioning creditors have sought to have incor-

porated in this statement on appeal a summary of

such evidence. Such summary was excluded from



vs. Herman Murphy. 51

this statement for the reason that such evidence was

not admitted in the case by the Referee as relevant,

competent or material evidence, nor was such evi-

dence considered relevant or material by the Court

upon the hearing of the exceptions taken by the peti-

tioner to the Referee's Report, and for the further

reason that recital of such evidence is not at all es-

sential to a determination by the Court of Appeals

of the question of law involved in this appeal, such

question being "did the Referee and the Court err,

upon ascertaining that the property in question was

adversely claimed, in not determining in this pro-

ceeding, and in advance of such deteraiination by

plenary action in the suit then pending in the Su-

perior Court of Alameda County, whether or no the

attaching creditor Wm. Miller did obtain a prefer-

ence by legal proceedings by virtue of the attachment

and execution sale complained of?"

On behalf of Herman Murphy alleged bankrupt,

the Referee admitted in evidence to show an adverse

claim to the property, and the fact that such claim

was already the subject of an action in the State

Courts, a judgment-roll in the case of Wm. Miller

one of the petitioning creditors herein against Her-

man Murphy, the alleged bankrupt herein, Ella M.

Murphy, Progressive Investment Corporation et al.,

in the Superior Court of the State of California, in

and for the County of Alameda. The complaint in

said action was filed March 28th, 1912, and the plain-

tiff alleges therein that said William [45] Miller

on July 1, 1908, commenced an action against Her-

man Murphy in the Superior Court of the State of
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California, in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, to recover the several sums of money due

him from said Herman Murphy; that on July 20,

1908, in said action, the sheriff of the County of

Alameda, duly attached certain real property in the

County of Alameda, (the complaint describing the

property, including the property referred to in the

petition in bankruptcy herein) ; that William Miller

recovered judgment in said action against Herman
Murphy for the sum of $3377.77, and that no part

thereof has been paid; that at the time Herman
Murphy incurred the indebtedness to William Miller,

said Herman Murphy was the owner of said real

property in the County of Alameda California, (the

complaint described the property which includes the

property referred to in the petition in bankruptcy

herein, and against which the attachment aforesaid

had been levied) ; the complaint then sets out the

factes concerning the conveyance of said property by

said Herman Murph}^ to his wife, Ella M. Murphy,

and the conveyance of the same by her to Progressive

Investment Corporation, and alleges that such con-

veyance were made with intent to defraud plaintiff

William Miller. Said complaint sets out substan-

tially the same facts in regard to said transfers as

are alleged by the petitioners creditors herein, re-

specting the fraudulent character of said transfers.

The plaintiff prays that said conveyances be ad-

judged fraudulent and void as to the plaintiff, and

that said property be sold and the proceeds be ap-

plied tot he claims of the plaintiff". An answer was

filed to the complaint by Herman Murphy, Ella M.
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Murphy, and Progressive Investment Corporation.

Answers were also filed by other defendants. The

answers denied generally and specifically the allega-

tions of the complaint. [46]

[Order Settling Statement for Transcript on

Appeal.]

The case was tried before Honorable Everett J.

Brown, and findings of facts therein filed and judg-

ment entered by said court on April 3, 1913. It w^as

ordered, adjudged and decreed in said action "that

plaintiff take nothing by this action." The judg-

ment of said court found from the facts as a conclu-

sion of law "that the directors or trustees of the

defendants' Progressive Investment Corporation, in

office at the date of the forfeiture of the charter

thereof, as trustees for the creditors and stockholders

thereof, are the owners of all the real property here-

inbefore described in finding VIII hereof situate at

Berkeley, Alameda County, California, subject, how-

ever, to said mortgage described in finding XXIV
hereof." The property described in finding VIII

in said action includes the property described in the

petition in bankruptcy herein.

An appeal from the judgment aforesaid was duly

take by William Miller.

The foregoing is settled as the statement for tran-

script on appeal herein, this 22d day of June, 1915.

M. T. DOOLING,
Judge.
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[Endorsed] : Filed Jim. 22, 1915, at 5 o'clock and

20 min., P. M. W. B. Maling, Clerk. By Lyle S.

Morris, Deputy Clerk. [47]

[Certificate of Clerk U. S. District Court to

Transcript of Record on Appeal.]

I, W. B. Maling, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States, for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify the foregoing 47 pages,

numbered from 1 to 47 inclusive, to contain full, true,

and correct tiianscript of certain records and pro-

ceedings, in the matter of Herman Murphy, in Bank-

ruptcy, No. 8,196, as the same now remain on file and

of record in the olfice of the clerk of said District

Court; said transcript having been prepared pursu-

ant to and in accordance with the "Praecipe" (a

copy of which is embodied in this transcript) and the

instructions of Daniel O'Connell, Esq., Attorney for

Petitioning Creditors and Appellants herein.

I further certify that the cost for preparing and

certifying the foregoing transcript on appeal is the

sum of Twenty-six Dollars and Seventy Cents

($26.70), and that the same has been paid to me by

the Attorney for the Appellants herein.

Annexed hereto is the original Citation on Appeal

issued herein, pages 49, 50 and 51.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the seal of said District Court
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this 2d day of Aug., A. D. 1915.

[Seal] W. B. MALING,
Clerk.

By T. L. Baldwin,

Deputy Clerk.

[Ten Cent Internal Revenue Stamp. Canceled

5/2/15. T. L. B.] [48]

[Citation on Appeal (Original).]

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals, for

the Ninth Circuit in the Northern District of

California.

The United States of America,

Ninth Judicial Circuit,—ss.

To Herman Murphy Greeting:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and ap-

pear at a session of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in the Northern

District of the State of California, to be holden at

the City of San Francisco, in said district, on the 14th

day of January next, pursuant to a petition on ap-

peal and assignment of error filed in the clerk's

office of the District Court of the United States for

the Northern District of California, First Division,

in the matter of Herman Murphy, to show cause, if

any there be why the judgment and decree in said

cause affirming and confirming the report of the

referee and denying the creditors 'petition to adjudge

said Herman Murphy a bankrupt and dismissing

said petition and bankruptcy proceedings should not
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be corrected and why speedy justice should not be

done to the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS the Hon. M. T. DOOLING, Judge of

said District Court, this 14 day of December, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and

fourteen, and of the independence of the United

States of America the one hundred and thirty-eight.

M. T. DOOLING,
United States District Judge. [49]

[Endosed] : 8196. In the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Circuit in the North-

ern District of California. Citation on Appeal in

Bankruptcy. At 3 o'clock and 30 min. P. M. Filed

Dec. 14, 1914. W. B. Maling, Clerk. By C. W. Cal-

breath' Deputy Clerk. [50—51]

[Endorsed]: No. 2632. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. James R.

Ryan, Peter Bazinet and William Miller, Petition-

ing Creditors, Appellants, vs. Herman Murphy,

Appellee. In the Matter of Herman Murphy, Bank-

rupt. Transcript of Record. Upon Appeal from

the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, First Division.

Filed August 2, 1915.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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In the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, First Division.

In the Matter of HERMAN MUEPHY, Involuntary

Bankrupt.

Order Extending Time [to January 21, 1915, to File

(Statement of Evidence and Praecipe, and Ex-

tending Time to February 1, 1915, to File Rec-

ord and Docket Case in Appellate Court].

Upon application of Daniel O'Connell, Esquire,

solicitor for petitioning creditors and appellants, and

for good cause shown,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the time mthin

which said petitioning creditors and appellants may
file their condensed statement of the evidence, and

praecipe on appeal in the office of the clerk of this

Court is hereby extended to and including January

21st, A. D. 1915, and it is FURTHER ORDERED,
that the time within which said petitioning creditors

and appellants may file the record on appeal and

docket the case with the Clerk of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is hereby

extended to and including the 1st day of February,

A. D. 1915.

Done in open court this 11th day of January, A. D.

1915.

WM. C. VAN FLEET,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed] : No. 8196. In the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Northern District of California,
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First Division. In the Matter of Herman Murphy,

Involuntary Bankrupt. Order Extending Time.

No. . United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit. Order Under Rule 16 En-

larging Time to Feb. 1, 1915, to File Record thereof

and to Docket Case. Filed Jan. 14, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.

In the United States District Court for the Northern

District of Califorma, First Division.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY, Involuntary

Bankrupt.

Order Extending Time [to February 1, 1915, to File

Statement of Evidence and Praecipe, and Ex-

tending Time to March 1, 1915, to File Record

and Docket Case in Appellate Court.]

Upon application of Daniel O'Connell, Esquire,

solicitor for petitioning creditors and appellants, and

for good cause shown,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the time within

which said petitioning creditors and appellants may
file their condensed statement of the evidence and

praecipe on appeal in the office of the clerk of this

Court is hereby extended to and including February

1st, A. D. 1915, and,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the time

within which said petitioning creditors and appel-

lants may file the record on appeal and docket the

case with the clerk of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is hereby extended to
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and including the first day of March, A. D. 1915.

Done in open court this 19 day of January, A. D.

1915.

M. T. DOOLING,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed] : In the United States District Court

for the Northern District of California, First Divi-

sion. In the Matter of Herman Murphy, Involun-

tary Bankrupt. Order Extending Time.

No. . United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit. Order Under Rule 16 En-

larging Time to March 1, 1915, to File Record thereof

and to Docket Case. Filed Jan. 19, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.

In the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, First Division.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY, Involun-

tary Bankrupt.

Order Extending Time [to March 30, 1915, to File

Statement of Evidence and Praecipe, and to

File Record and Docket Case in Appellate

Court].

Upon application of Daniel O'Connell, Esquire,

solicitor for petitioning creditors and appellants,

and for good cause shown,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the time within

which said petitioning creditors and appellants may
file their condensed statement of the evidence, and

praecipe on appeal in the office of the clerk of this
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court is hereby extended to and including March 30,

A. D. 1915, and,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the time

within which said petitioning creditors and appel-

lants may file the record on appeal and docket the

case with the Clerk of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is hereby ex-

tended to and including the 30th day of March, A. D.

1915.

Done in open court this 30 day of January, A. D.

1915.

M. T. DOOLING,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed]: In the United States District Court

for the Northern District of California, First Divi-

sion. In the Matter of Herman Murphy, Involun-

tary Bankrupt. Order Extending Time.

No. . United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit. Order Under Rule 16 En-

larging Time to Mar. 30, 1915, to File Record

Thereof and to Docket Case. Filed Jan. 30, 1915. F.

D. Monckton, Clerk.
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In the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, First Division.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY, Involun-

tai\v Bankrupt.

Order Extending Time [to May 1, 1915, to File

Statement of Evidence and Praecipe, and to

File Record and Docket Case in Appellate

Court].

Upon application of Daniel O'Connell, Esquire,

solicitor for petitioning creditors and appellants,

and for good cause shown,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the time within

which said petitioning creditors and appellants may
iile their condensed statement of the evidence, and

praecipe on appeal in the office of the clerk of this

court is hereby extended to and including May 1,

A. D. 1915, and,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the time

within which said petitioning creditors and appel-

lants may file the record on appeal and docket the

case with the Clerk of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is hereby ex-

tended to and including the 1 day of May, A. D.

1915.

Done in open court this 29 day of March, A. D.,

1915.

M. T. DOOLING,
U. S. District Judge.
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[Endorsed]
: In the United States District Court

for the Northern District of California, Fourth Divi-

sion. In the Matter of Herman Murphy, Involun-

tary Bankrupt. Order Extending Time.

No. . United States Circuit Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit. Order Under Rule 16 En-
larging Time to May 1, 1915, to File Record Thereof
and to Docket Case. Filed Mar. 2, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.

In the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, First Division.

No. 8196.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY, Involun-

tary Bankrupt.

Order Extending Time [to May 3, 1915, to File

Statement of Evidence and Praecipe, and to

File Record and Docket Case in Appellate

Court].

Upon application of Daniel 'Connell, Esquire,

solicitor for petitioning creditors and appellants,

and for good cause shown,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the time within

which said petitioning creditors and appellants may
file their condensed statement of the evidence, and

praecipe on appeal in the office of the clerk of this

court is hereby extended to and including May 3,

A. D. 1915, and,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the time

within which said petitioning creditors and appel-

lants may file the record on appeal and docket the
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case with the Clerk of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the United States Circuit Court

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is hereby ex-

tended to and including the third day of May, A. D.,

1915.

Done in open court this 30 day of April, A. D.,

1915.

M. T. DOOLING,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed] : No. 8196. In the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Northern District of California.

In the Matter of Herman Murphy, Involuntary

Bankrupt. Order Extending Time. Daniel O'Con-

nell. Solicitor for Petitioning Creditor, 942-944 Pa-

cific Bldg., San Francisco, Cal. Herman Murphy,

Pro se.

No. . United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit. Order. Under Rule 16 En-

larging Time to May 3, 1915, to File Record Thereof

and to Docket Case. Filed Apr. 30, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.

In the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, First Division.

No. 8196.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY, Involun-

tary Bankrupt.

Order Extending Time [to August 2, 1915, to File

Record and Docket Case in Appellate Court].

Upon application of Daniel O'Connell, Esq., soli-
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citor for petitinning creditors and appellants, and

it appearing that on June 22, 1915, the statement on

appeal was approved and signed by the Judge of this

court and that the clerk of this court will not have

the copies ready for delivery to the clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals before

August 1, 1915, and for other good cause appearing,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the time

within which said petitioning creditors and appel-

lants may file the record on appeal and docket the

case with the Clerk of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is hereby ex-

tended to and including the 2d da}^ of August, A. D.,

1915.

Done in open court this 15th day of July, A. D.,

1915.

WM. C. VAN FLEET,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed] : No. . United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Order

Under Rule 16 Enlarging Time to to File Record

Thereof and to Docket Case. Filed Jul. 5, 1915. F.

D. Monckton, Clerk.

No. 2632. United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit. Orders Under Rule 16 En-

larging Time to Aug. 2, 1915, to File Record Thereof

and to Docket Case. Refiled Aug. 2, 1915. F. D.

Monckton, Clerk.
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No. 2632

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth District

JAMES K. RYAN, PETER BAZINET
Creditors,

Appellants,

vs.

HERMAN MURPHY,
Appellee.

In the Matter of HERMAN MURPHY,
Bankrupt.

Upon Appeal from the United States District

Court for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, First Division

BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Herman Murphy was insolvent at the date of

the alleged commission of an act of bankruptcy

by him, March 24, 1913, and was also insolvent

at the date of the filing of this involuntary peti-

tion in bankruptcy July 21, 1913 (Trans, page

49), at which date the number of his creditors

was less than twelve (Trans, page 45) but the

amount of his debts was more than $4,000.00.

The petitioners, James R. Ryan and Peter

Bazinet, as Ryan and Bazinet, ever since June 2,



1910, were judgment creditors of said Herman
Murphy, tlie amount of their unpaid judgment

at the date of filing said involuntary petition be-

ing $644.56. (Trans, pages 3, 41, 45, 49.)

William Miller, also a judgment creditor of said

Herman Murphy for about $4,000, and M. M.

Corrigan, another judgment creditor, joined in

said petition.

The act of bankruptcy charged was, the per-

mitting of the sale of certain real estate of the

bankrupt on March 24, 1913, at sheriff's sale on

the execution issued on the said judgment in

favor of said Miller and by virtue of an attach-

ment of the said propertj^ made July 1, 1908, the

date that action was commenced. (Trans, pages

41, 42, 46.)

The petition alleged that the property at the

date of said sale, March 24, 1913, was owned by

the bankrupt and had been owned by him con-

tinuously from long prior to July 19, 1906, and

that on June 22, 1908, nine days before said at-

tachment, said Herman Murphy caused to be re-

corded in the office of the County Recorder a pre-

tended deed, pretending to convey said property

to his wife, which deed purported to be dated

July 19, 1906 ; and that on July 5, 1910, there was

recorded in the office of the same County Recorder

a pretended deed of the same real estate to Pro-

gressive Investment Corporation, a corporation

composed only of the wife, daughter and stenog-

rapher of said Herman Murphy, as the only in-

corporators, officers, or directors, or trustees, Ella

M. Murphy being its president, which corporation

ceased to exist November 30, 1910, by proclama-



tion of the Governor of the State of California,

for non-payment of taxes. It further alleged that

both said deeds were only pretended deeds, for

which no consideration was ever paid, that on

July 19, 1906, and ever since Herman Murphy
was, and has continued to be, insolvent, and said

deeds were so made and recorded in contempla-

tion and knowledge of said insolvency, and for

the purpose of hindering, delaying, cheating and

defrauding the past, present and future creditors

of said Herman Murphy, and that on July 19,

1906, and ever since, said Ryan and Bazinet and

Miller were and are creditors of said Herman
Murphy, and that Ella M. Murphy, and Progres-

sive Investment Corporation, and its incorpor-

ators and officers knew all these facts, and par-

ticipated in said intent and purpose and that said

deeds were void and never conveyed anything,

and during all the times said Herman Murphy

remained, and continued to be, and is now, the

real owner of said real estate, both at law and

in equity, (Trans, pages 41, 42, 43, 44.)

2. To this petition Herman Murphy demurred

on the ground "that said petition does not state

facts sufficient to constitute a cause of bankruptcy

against said respondent," and the District Court

heard the demurrer, made an order "demurrer

overruled," ordered respondent to answer

(Trans, pages 44, 45), and after answer referred

it to the referee "to ascertain and report the facts

and his conclusions therefrom on the issues joined

by the answer to the creditors' petition herein."

(Trans, page 11.) No appeal was ever taken

from these decisions.



3. At the bearings before tbe referee evidence

was offered and admitted tending to prove, and

proving, all tbe allegations in tbe petition, and

especially tbat tbe bankrupt bas always been in

full possession and control of said projjerty, and

tbat "said deed was never delivered to said Ella

M. Murpby, but tbat it bas always been, and is

now, in tbe possession of said Herman Murpby,

wbo caused it to be recorded, and bas bad it in

bis possession before and ever since it was re-

corded." (Trans, page 23.) Ella M. Murpby testi-

fied before tbe referee as a witness subpoenaed

by tbe petitioners.

Tbe referee against petitioners' objection and

subject to tbeir exception admitted evidence tbat

V/illiam Miller alone commenced an action in tbe

Superior Court of the State of California, in

and for tbe County of Alameda, against said Her-

man Murpby, P]l]a M. Murphy, and Progressive

Investment Corporation, March 28, 1912, to cancel,

set aside and vacate those recorded conveyances.

At tbe time of the hearings before tbe referee

said action was pending on a settled bill of ex-

ceptions, unheard motion for new trial, and duly

filed notice of appeal. Neither of tbe petitioners,

Ryan and Bazinet or Corrigan, were at any time

parties to that action. (Trans, pages 4, 19, 53.)

In said action Ella M. Murpby and Progressive

Investment Corporation filed answers denying

generally and specifically the allegations in the

complaint. (Trans, page 53.)

4. Thereupon the referee refused to make or

report on the said issues, or tbe said evidence

"for the following reasons : First, that the deter-



mination of such issues in petitioners ' favor would

not establish the ultimate fact to be proven

—

namely, that William Miller will receive a prefer-

ence by \drtue of his purchase at the execution

sale, such determination not being binding on the

transferees who claim the property. Second, that

the State Court having first acquired jurisdiction

over the issues concerning the title to said prop-

erty, it should, in my opinion, retain the same,"

and concluded his report as follows

:

"My conclusion is that the petition herein either

should be dismissed, or further hearing stayed

until the appeal aforesaid by William Miller from

the judgment of the State Court can be deter-

mined." (Trans, pages 7, 8,)

5. Exceptions were duly taken to the referee's

report and heard by the District Court, which

affirmed the report of the referee, denied the peti-

tion for adjudication and dismissed the proceed-

ings. (Trans, page 27.)

The foregoing is the manner in which were

raised the following questions:

1. Are the United States Courts deprived of

jurisdiction in bankruptcy by a mere claim of

oiniership of the bankrupt's prpoerty, sold at

sheriff's sale in violation of Section 3-a (1) of

the Bankrupt Act, regardless of whether that

claim is groundless, or a mere fraud, or void, or

valid f

2. Can such a claim of ownership be shoivn

by incompetent evidence?

3. Where the alleged claimants have full

knowledge of, and are present at, the bankruptcy
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proceedings and present no claim whatever to

said property, is the fact that the referee in bank-

ruptcy had heard from incompetent evidence that

more than a year previous in another Court in

another proceeding, acting in concert with the

bankrupt by the same attorney, had filed an

answer disputing an allegation that the bankrupt

was the owner of said property, a sufficient claim

of ownership in the bankruptcy proceedings to

deprive the Bankruptcy Courts of jurisdiction?

4. Have the United States Bankruptcy Courts

jurisdiction to investigate the basis of such claim

to ascertain whether it is merely colorable, or

whether there was any delivery of the deed, or

any transfer whatever, regardless of motives or

purposes, especially where it is alleged and proved

that the bankrupt is and has been for years in

continuous possession of the property?

5. Must tlie United States Bankruptcy Courts

dismiss the proceedings brought ivithin four

months after the Act of Bankruptcy, so that if

the adverse claims are thereafter determined

against the claimant and in favor of the bankrupt

estate it will be too late to file a new petition in

bankruptcy, as more than four m,onths have

passed since the act of bankruptcy, and fraud

will thus be triumphant, ivhen the intent and pur-

pose of the laiv was to prevent such triumphs

f

6. Can the United States Bankruptcy Courts

determine the existence or non-existence of an

alleged jurisdictional fact in order to exercise its

oimi jurisdiction, and not to preclude or conclude

any adverse claimant to any title he may have

to any property so that the Court can make the



necessary orders continuing the proceedings to

await the determination of the issues in another

Court?

7. If a referee in bankruptcy refuses to find

or report on the issues specifically referred to

him, has he any jurisdiction to find or report on

any other issues which are not referred to him,

especially on issues previously determined by the

District Court and from which neither party has

ever appealed?

8. Is it not error for the District Court to

affirm such a report and act thereon by denying

the petition for adjudication in bankruptcy and

dismissing the proceedings?

II.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS RELIED
UPON

The decree is erroneous in the following par-

ticulars :

1. It goes too far when it denies the petition

for an adjudication and dismisses the proceed-

ings, as the farthest it had jurisdiction to go was

to stay the proceedings.

2. It denies the power of the Court to ascer-

tain the existence, or non-existence, of every juris-

dictional fact necessary to determine the question

of jurisdiction.

3. It denies the power of the Court to investi-

gate the existence, or the basis, of the alleged

adverse claim of ownership of the property.



8

4. It affirms a referee's report which the

referee had no jurisdiction to make.

5. It affirms a referee's report which distinctly

states that it does not make any finding, or re-

port, on the issues referred to the referee, but

makes findings and report and suggestions on

matters that had become res judicata and final

and were not, and could not be, referred to the

referee.

6. It affirms a referee's report made only on

incompetent evidence.

7. It overrules the second exception to the

referee's report (Trans, page 15), as said referee

had no jurisdiction to make said report, not be-

ing on any of the issues referred to him.

8. It overrules the third exception to the

referee's report, as said referee deliberately and

wilfully refused to report on the issues referred

to him and the report should, therefore, be re-

jected.

9. It overrules the fourth exception to the

referee's report, as said referee knowing that the

demurrer to the petition had been overruled and

the time for appealing therefrom had expired and

no appeal taken and no application made to

change the decision overruling said demurrer and

had passed l)pyond the power of the District Court

to change it, said referee undertakes in his re-

port to change and reverse said decision on said

demurrer and deliberately refuses to pass upon

the issues referred to.

10. It overrules the fifth exception to said

referee's report, as said referee deliberately ad-

mitted tlie incompotent evidence on which he bases



his report, said evidence being a judgment and

proceedings in an action in the State Court from

which judgment there was an appeal, and a mo-

tion for new trial pending and undetermined, and

to which action the petitioners, Corrigan, Ryan
and Bazinet, were never parties.

11. It overrules the sixth exception to the

referee's report, which shows the matters re-

ported by the referee were not issues raised by

the j)etition and answers and that there was no

evidence on which to found the matters so re-

ported.

12. It overrules the seventh exception to the

referee's report, which shows the matters he re-

ported on had become immaterial and were pre-

viously decided the other way by the District

Court.

II). It overrules the eighth exception to the

referee's report, which shows that there was no

evidence whatever of any adverse claim in these

proceedings.

14. It overrules the ninth exception, which

shows that it was proved that Herman Murphy
never delivered any deeds of this property; that

at the date of the deed and ever since he was in-

solvent ; that there was no consideration for the

deed; that it was made and recorded by him for

the purpose of hindering, delaying and defraud-

ing his creditors, of which Ella M. Murphy and

Progressive Investment Corporation had knowl-

edge and participated therein; that Ella M.

Murphy conveyed any interest she had to Pro-

gressive Investment Corporation June 2, 1910,

and there were no further transfers, and the cor-
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poration became defunct November 30, 1910, and

that Herman Murphy has now, and always had,

possession of the property since prior to July

19, 1906, and said corporation did not, and could-

not, make any claim to said property, and yet the

referee made no finding on this e\'idence and re-

fused to make any finding thereon.

15. The petition and the evidence showed that

the record title stood in the name of a corporation

November 30, 1910, when said corporation ceased

to exist, and could not act thereafter, and it did

not, and could not, make any adverse claim to

said property July 21, 1913, or any other time.

ARGUMENT

I.

The District Court erred in denying the peti-

tion for adjudication and dismissing the proceed-

ings (Trans, page 27; Nineteenth Assignment of

error page 39) because:

1. The overruling of defendants demurrer

August, 1913, and ordering Herman Murphy to

answer was a decision that, if the facts alleged

in the petition were proved, an adjudication mnst

follow, and as no appeal was taken from that de-

cision, and no application made to set it aside, it

was binding on said District Court December 4,

1914. (Trans, page 45; Sixth Assignment page

31.)

U. S. Bank vs. Moss, 6 How. 31

;

Clearwater vs. Meredity, 1 Wall

;

Alley vs. Nott, 111 U. S. 475.
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All points not set forth in the demurrer were

waived.

Richards vs. Travelers, 80 Cal. 506;

Rhode Island vs. Massachusetts, 12 Pet. (U.

S.) 675;

Dunlap vs. Schofield, 152 U. S. 244.

2. The bankrupt having filed an answer con-

troverting certain facts alleged in the petition,

the law provides that "the judge shall determine,

as soon as may be, the issues presented, by the

pleadings."

Bankrupt Act, Section 18, Subdivision D.

(Trnas. pages 45 to 49.)

The judge could not proceed any further until

he determined "the issues presented by the plead-

ings," and he never made such determination.

3. The referee's report does not supply the

defect, because said report states that ''I am
making no finding upon such issues." (Trans,

page 7 ; first and third exceptions pages 11 to 17

;

fourth assignment of error page 30.)

4. The affirming of the referee's report

{Trans, page 27) does not supply any defects or

even assist, because:

a) The referee had no jurisdiction to report,

or even hear, or determine, any issue not raised by

the answer to the creditors, as that was all that

was referred to him. (Trans, pages 3, 11, 15,

29, 49.)

Branger vs. Chevalier, 9 Cal. 353;

Solomon vs. Maguire, 29 Cal. 227

;

Litz vs. Linthicum, 8 Pet. 165;

Alexandria vs. Swan, 5 How 83;

Oteri vs. Scalzo, 145 U. S. 578.
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(b) The decision of the District Court over-

ruling the demurrer and thus deciding that the

petition could be maintained was binding on the

referee.

Sherman vs. Jenkins, 70 Hun. (N. Y.) 593;

24 N. Y. Suppl. 186;

Parcher vs. Dubvar, 118 Wis. 401 ; 95 N. W.
370;

Minnesota vs. Tuteur, 127 Wis. 382; 105 N.

W. 1067.

(c) The report of the referee was bad, not

good for any purpose, and the Court should have

sent it back to the referee with orders to obey

the reference, or the Court should itself have pro-

ceeded to "determine the issues raised by the

pleadings." (Fifth Assignment, pages 30, 31.)

York vs. Myers, 18 How. 246.

11.

None, or all ,of tlie reasons given in the opinion

for the decree of the District Court are sufficient

or valid ( Trans, page 27 ) l)ecause

:

1. It was of no consequence what point the

argument on the demurrer was directed to, as

iJie matter is to he decided by the record alone

and the record of the demurrer itself and that

it was overruled and defendant ordered to answer

in five days (Trans, page 45) had the same bind-

ing, legal effect on Court and referee, no matter

what the argument that produced it, and could

not be changed or ignored on hearing exceptions

to the referee's report, or at any otlier time.
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2. If authorities were requested for the propo-

sition that a fraudulent transfer is void and con-

veys nothing, we could furnish them, and, there-

fore when property of a bankrupt is attached and

the lawsuit is fought for seven years and the

property then sold at sheriff's sale and the bank-

rupt permits it to be sold, while insolvent, he com-

mits an act of bankruptcy, notwithstanding the

void transfer. There was no transfer, it was a

mere sham.

3. Even though it were necessary to have the

sale "determined to be fraudulent in an action

to which the transferee is a party," that ivould he

no ground for "denying the petition for adjudica-

tion and dismissing the proceedings," although

it might be for staying proceedings; as the peti-

tion must be filed within four months after the

sale, and if dismissed and later the sale is de-

termined fraudulent and, therefore, a plain act

of hnuhruptcy, then the Bankruptcy Court had

lost jurisdiction to entertain a creditor's petition.

But for the purpose of adjudication it is not

necessary to have even a stay of proceedings, as

is hereinafter more fully shown.

4. No petitioning creditor "complains tliat ]]'

himself has received a preference under sneli ]i]o-

ceedings." The receipt of a preference is not an

act of bankruptcy. The complaint is that an ar!

of bankruptcy ivas committed by permitting tin'

property to be sold under legal process. IT IS

ABSOLUTELY IMMATERIAL WHO BOUGHT
IT. Anyone is permitted to buy it.

5. Ryan and Baziuot are petitioners, having

a jn (lament of more tlum $600 and the number
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of creditors being less than twelve, they did not

purchase any property, and could maintain these

proceedings alone; therefore, it is immaterial

what any other petitioner did or did not do.

6. The law favors the collection of debts.

The bankruptcy act is remedial, and there is

nothing in law, or morals, or reason, or common
sense, or justice, to deter a creditor from present-

ing to the Court the fact that a fraudulent debtor

has committed acts of bankruptcy, even though

the complaining creditor purchased the property

at public auction.

7. But the injustice of this erroneous reason

appears greater when we reflect that the property

would be lost to the bankrupt estate if a petitioner

did not buy it, as the very fact that he joins in

the petition is an offer to deliver the property

to the bankrupt estate, and avoids any preference.

Other fraudulently concealed property will be dis-

tributed to the creditor by the bankruptcy pro-

ceedings and justice done.

III.

There was no adverse claim, or any claim, to

this property filed or presented in these proceed-

ings, although Ella M. Murphy, president of the

defunct corporation, testified as witness on sub-

]ioena of petitioners. (Trans, pages 9, 18, 19, 30.)

IV.

Ella M. Murphy having conveyed to the cor-

poration any interest she had on June 2, 1910,

had no claim, and Progressive Investment Cor-
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poration having ceased to exist November 30,

1910, could not make any claim in 1913.

V.

The admission of the record and files in the

action of William Miller vs. Herman Murphy,

Ella M. Murphy, Progressive Investment Cor-

poration, et al, commenced March, 1912, in the

Superior Court, in Alameda County, for the pur-

pose of setting aside these fraudulent convey-

ances, in which action it was alleged to be the

property of Herman Murphy, which allegation

was generally and specifically denied by Ella M.

Murphy and Progressive Investment Corporation

and from the judgment there was an appeal pend-

ing and a motion for new trial undetermined and

granted while these proceedings were pending

(Trans, page 19), was erroneous, because:

1. The pendency of the appeal made it incom-

petent evidence, even betwen the parties.

Di Nola vs. Allison, 143 Cal. 106; 65 L. R.

A. 419.

'2. Ryan and Bazinet not being parties to that

action, it was inadmissable as to them.

3. It was no evidence that a claim existed in

1913.

4. The evidence was offered by Herman

Muri)hy, and not by any alleged claimant. (Trans,

pages 18, 22, 39.)

IV.

The Court could examine into the question of

whether the alleged deeds were void or valid with-
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out rendering a decision binding on any adverse

claimant, because:

1. Every court of equity has power to deter-

mine the existence or non-existence of any fact

necessary for the exercise of its own jurisdiction.

Morton vs. Broderick, 118 Cal. 481

;

Byrne vs. Drain, 127 Cal. 668;

Mueller vs. Nugent, 184 U. S. 1.

2. The proceedings being in rem to determine

the status of the bankrupt, the Court could pro-

ceed without having any other parties before it.

3. If Herman Murphy defaulted, the Court

could have made an order of adjudication.

4. Bankruptcy Court can not delegate any of

their own powers or duties to any other Court.

U. S. F. & G. Co. vs. Bray, 202 U. S. 207.

5. Where the conveyances are voluntary, while

grantor is insolvent, the grantee does not have

to have notice or knowledge and is not a necessary

party, and fraudulent grantors are not necessary

parties.

6. A transfer may be an act of bankruptcy,

although the trustee may not be able to avoid the

preference.

In re Drummond No. 4093, Fed. Cas. S. C, 1

N. B. R. 231 ; Sect. 60 of Bankrupt Act.

7. It appeared from petition, and evidence

plainly shows, that these deeds were never de-

livered; that they were voluntary, without any

consideration; that Herman Murphy was insol-

vent before and at the time and ever since the

date they were made and recorded; and the al-

leged grantees knew it, and also knew they were
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made and recorded for the purpose of hindering,

delaying, and defrauding the creditors of Herman
Murphy, and they participated in that intent and

purpose and, therefore, said deeds were void and

the property remained Herman Murphy's on

March 24, 1913, when sold by the sheriff.

Judson vs. Lyford, 84 Cal. 505

;

Scholle vs. Finnell, 166 Cal. 553.

Wherefore, appellants pray that the decree of

the District Court be reversed, and directed to

determine the issues of fact raised by the plead-

ings.

Respectfully submitted,

DANIEL O'CONNELL,

Solicitor for Appellants.
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No. 2632

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

JAMES E. RYAN, PETER BAZINET and

WILLIA^I MILLER, Petitioning Creditors,

Appellants,

vs.

HERMAN MURPHY,
Appellee.

In the Matter of Herman Muephy, Bankrupt.

PETITION FOR REHEARING

To the Honorable Circuit Judges of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit

:

The petition of James R. R3'an, Peter Bazinet

and William Miller, petitioning creditors and appel-

lants in the above-entitled cause showeth unto your

Honors that, being aggrieved by the decree entered

in this cause on the seventh day of February,

A. D. 1916, by which the appeal of your petitioners



from the decree of the District Court was dismissed,

for the reason that the evidence before the Referee

in Bankruptcy and before the District Court was

not incorporated in the transcript on appeal.

In this a great injustice is done the appellants and

a reliearing should he granted on the following

grounds:

1. The appellants did incorporate in their bill of

exceptions for the purpose of presenting it to this

Honorable Court as a part of the transcript all the

material evidence presented to the Referee in Bank-

ruptcy and the District Court and have ahvays been

ready and anxious to have it presented and con-

sidered hy this Court, but the District Court exer-

cising its powers under Equity Rules 75 and 76 of

the Supreme Court of the United States, struck it

all out as shown on pages 49, 50 and 51 of the "Tran-

script of Record" as foUow^s:

"Counsel for the petitioning creditors have

sought to incorporate in this statement on

appeal a smnmary of such evidence. Such

summary was excluded from this statement

for the reason * * *, and for the further

reason that recital of such evidence is not

at all essential to a determination by the Court

of Appeals of the question of law involved in

this appeal."

2. The questions which the District Court in-

tended to present, and thought it had sufficiently



presented to tlie Circuit Court of Appeals have not

been decided by the Circuit Court of Appeals for

the reason that the District Court and not the

^ijipcUinits j) re rented fheiii bei)i(j proper!
jj
presented

and fl/is afjaiiisf the irislies of the appellants.

8. The appellants are greatly damaged by reason

of the decision of the Circuit Court of Appeals, and

appellants are confident that on a rehearing, any

deficiency of the record can be supplied and the

decision of the District Court reversed.

Wherefore, your petitioner humbly prays that

your Honors will grant a rehearing, humbly sub-

mitting to such orders as the Court may make if

the application be without merit, or otherwise.

Daniel O'Connell,

Solicitor for said Appellants.

I, Daniel O'Connell, counsel for the said petition-

ing creditors, hereby certify that in my judgment

this petition for a rehearing is well founded and

that it is not interposed for delay; that I know

the facts to be stated in this petition for rehearing

and that I personallv expended a large sum of money



and many da3's and nights of hard \ahov preparing

the summary of said evidence required hy said

Equity Rule, in order that it might meet with the

approval of said District Court and be presented

to this United States Circuit Court of Appeals.

Daniel O'Coxxell,

Solicitor for said Appclldiits.
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Names and Addresses of Attorneys of Record.

FRANCIS A. GARRECHT, Esquire, United States

District Attorney, Federal Building, Spokane,

Washington,

M. C. LIST, Esquire, Special Attorney, Washing-

ton, D. C,

Attorneys for Plaintiff and Plaintiff in Er-

ror,

and

CHARLES S. ALBERT, Esquire, Great Northern

Passenger Station, Spokane, Washington,

THOMAS BALMER, Esquire, Great Northern Pas-

senger Station, Spokane, Washington,

Attorneys for Defendant and Defendant in

Error.

In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.

Complaint.

Now comes the United States of America, by

Francis A. Garrecht, United States Attorney for

the Eastern District of Washington, and brings this

action on behalf of the United States against the
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Great Northern Railway Company, a corporation

organized and doing business under the laws of the

State of Minnesota, and having an office and place

of. business at Merritt, in the State of Washington;

this action being brought upon suggestion of the

Attorney General of the United States at the re-

quest of the Interstate Commerce Commission, and

upon information furnished by said Commission.

FOR A FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION,

plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

Act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance

Act, approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Stat-

utes at Large, page 531), as amended by an Act ap-

proved April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at

Large, Page 85), and as amended by Act approved

March 2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large,

page 943), said defendant, on July 9, 1914, ran on

its line of railroad its certain freight train, known
as No. 402, dra\^Ti by its own locomotive engine No.

1918; said train being run over a part of a through

highway of interstate commerce, and being [1*]

then and there engaged in the movement of inter-

state traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said de-

fendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line of rail-

road from Cascade Tunnel in the State of Washing-

ton, to Merritt, in said State, within the jurisdiction

*Page-number appearing at foot of page of original certified Record.
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of this court, when its speed was controlled by the

brakemen using the common hand-brake for that

purpose, and when said defendant did then and

there require said brakemen to use the common
hand-brake to control the speed of said train, and

when the speed of said train was not controlled by

the power of train-brakes used and operated by the

engineer of the locomotive drawing said train, as

required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act of March

2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act,

approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes

at Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved-

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large,

page 85), and as amended by act approved March

2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large, page

943), said defendant, on July 11, 1914, ran on its

line of railroad its certain freight train, known as

No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine No.

1900; said train being run over a part of a through

highway of interstate commerce, and being then and

there engaged in the movement of interstate traffic.
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Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within [2]

the jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was

controlled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use

the common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled by the pow^r or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION,

plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance

Act, approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Stat-

utes at Large, page 531), as amended by an act ap-

proved April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at

Large, page 85), and as amended by act approved

March 2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large,

page 943), said defendant, on July 13, 1914, ran on

its line of railroad its certain freight train, known
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as No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine

No. 1910; said train being run over a part of a

through highway of interstate commerce, and being

then and there engaged in the movement of inter-

state traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the

jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand.-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use the

common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of [3] said train was

not controlled by the power or train-brakes used

and operated by the engineer of the locomotive

drawing said train, as required by Section 1 of the

aforesaid act of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION,

plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington .

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance

Act, approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Stat-
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utes at Large, page 531), as amended by an act

approved April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes

at Large, page 85), and as amended by act approved

March 2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large,

page 943), said defendant, on July 14, 1914, ran

on its line of railroad its certain freight train, known

as No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine

No. 1917; said train being run over a part of a

through highway of interstate commerce, and being

then and there engaged in the movement of inter-

state traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Timnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the

jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use

the common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended. [4]

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION,

plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during
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all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the act

of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act,

approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes

at Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large,

page 85), and as amended by act approved March

2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large, page

943), said defendant, on July 15, 1914, ran on its

line of railroad its certain freight train, known as

No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine No.

1918; said train being run over a part of a through

highway of interstate commerce, and being then and

there engaged in the movement of interstate traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the

jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use

the common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-
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fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars [5]

FOR A SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance

Act, approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Stat-

utes at Large, page 531), as amended by an act ap-

proved April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at

Large, page 85), and as amended by act approved

March 2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large,

page 943), said defendant, on July 16, 1914, ran

on its line of railroad its certain freight train, known

as No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine No.

1911; said train being run over a part of a through

highw^ay of interstate commerce, and being then

and there engaged in the movement of interstate

traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the

jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use

the common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-
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trolled by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the

violation of the said act of Congress, as amended,

defendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington. [6]

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act,

approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes

at Large, page 531), as amended by an act ap-

proved April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at

Large, page 85), and as amended by act approved

March 2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large,

page 943), said defendant, on July 17, 1914, ran on

its line of railroad its certain freight train, known

as No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine

No. 1907; said train being run over a part of a

through highway of interstate commerce, and being

then and there engaged in the movement of inter-

state traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the
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jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use

the common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR AN EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act,

approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes

at Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large,

page 85), [7] and as amended by act approved

March 2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large,

page 913), said defendant, on July 18, 1911, ran on

its line of railroad its certain freight train, known
as No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine

No. 1912; said train being run over a part of a

through highway of interstate commerce, and being
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then and there engaged in the movement of interstate

traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the

jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant did

then and there require said brakemen to use the

common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the

act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act,

approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes

at Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large,

page 85), and as amended by act approved March
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2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large, page

943), said defendant, on July 18, 1914, ran on its

line of railroad its certain freight train, known as

Extra East, drawn by its own locomotive engine

No. 1904; said train being run [8] over a part

of a through highway of interstate commerce, and

being then and there engaged in the movement of

interstate traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of

Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within the

jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was con-

trolled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant did

then and there require said brakemen to use the

common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act

of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR A TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during

all the times mentioned herein, a common carrier

engaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the

State of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the
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act of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act,

approved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes

at Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large,

page 85), and as amended by act approved March

2, 1903 (contained in 32 Statutes at Large, page

943), said defendant, on July 20, 1914, ran on its

line of railroad its certain freight train, known as

No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine No.

1921; said train being run over a part of a through

highway of interstate commerce, and being then and

there engaged in the movement of interstate traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said

defendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line

of railroad from Cascade [9] Tunnel, in the State

of Washington, to Merritt, in said State, within

the jurisdiction of this court, when its speed was

controlled by the brakemen using the common hand-

brake for that purpose, and when said defendant

did then and there require said brakemen to use

the common hand-brake to control the speed of said

train, and when the speed of said train was not con-

trolled b}^ the power or train-brakes used and operated

by the engineer of the locomotive drawing said train,

as required by Section 1 of the aforesaid act of March

2, 1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

FOR AN ELEVENTH CAUSE OP ACTION,
plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during all
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the times mentioned herein, a common carrier en-

gaged in interstate commerce by railroad in tlie State

of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the act

of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act, ap-

proved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes at

Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large, page

85), and as amended by act approved March 2, 1903

(contained in 32 Statutes at Large, page 943), said

defendant, on July 21, 1914, ran on its line of rail-

road its certain freight train, known as No. 402,

drawn by its own locomotive engine No. 1904 ; said

train being run over a part of a through highway of

interstate commerce, and being then and there en-

gaged in the movement of interstate traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said de-

fendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line of

railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of Wash-
ington, to Merritt, in said State, within the jurisdic-

tion of this court, when its speed was controlled by

the brakemen using the common hand-brake for that

purpose, and when said defendant did then and there

require said brakemen to use the common [10]

hand-brake to control the speed of said train, and

when the speed of said train was not controlled by the

power or train-brakes used and operated by the en-

gineer of the locomotive drawing said train, as re-

quired by Section 1 of the aforesaid act of March 2,

1893, as amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the viola-

tion of the said act of Congress, as amended, defen-
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dant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hundred

dollars.

FOR A TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION,

plaintiff alleges that defendant is, and was during all

the times mentioned herein, a common carrier en-

gaged in interstate commerce by railroad in the State

of Washington.

Plaintiff further alleges that in violation of the act

of Congress, known as the Safety Appliance Act, ap-

proved March 2, 1893 (contained in 27 Statutes at

Large, page 531), as amended by an act approved

April 1, 1896 (contained in 29 Statutes at Large, page

85), and as amended by act approved March 2, 1903

(contained in 32 Statutes at Large, page 943), said

defendant, on July 22, 1914, ran on its line of railroad

its certain freight train, knowTi as No. 402, drawn by

its own locomotive engine No. 1901 ; said train being

run over a part of a through highway of interstate

commerce, and being then and there engaged in the

movement of interstate traffic.

Plaintiff further alleges that on said date said de-

fendant ran said train as aforesaid over its line of

railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the State of Wash-

ington, to Merritt, in said State, within the jurisdic-

tion of this court, w^hen its speed was controlled by the

brakemen using the common hand-brake for that pur-

pose, and when said defendant did then and there

require said brakemen to use the common hand-brake

to control the speed of said train, and when the speed

of said train was not controlled by the power or train-

brakes used and operated by the engineer of the

locomotive drawing said train, as required by Section
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1 of the aforesaid act of March 2, 1893, as [11]

amended.

Plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the vio-

lation of the said act of Congress, as amended, de-

fendant is liable to plaintiff in the sum of one hun-

dred dollars.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays judgment against

said defendant in the sum of twelve hundred dollars,

and its costs herein expended.

(Signed) FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsements] : Complaint. Filed December

18, 1914. W. H. Hare, Clerk. By S. M. Russell,

Deputy. [12]

In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Defendant.

Demurrer.

The above-named defendant now comes into court

appearing by its attorneys, Charles S. Albert and

Thomas Balmer, and says that the said complaint and
each and every cause of action in said complaint and
the matters therein contained, in the manner and



Great Northern Railway Company. 17

form as the same are therein stated and set forth, are

not sufficient in law, and the said defendant is not

bound by the law of the land to answer the same, and

that this, said defendant is ready to verify.

WHEREFORE, the said defendant prays judg-

ment that the said defendant be dismissed and dis-

charged from the said premises in said complaint

specified.

Said demurrer is based upon the following

grounds

:

1. That neither the said complaint nor any cause

of action set forth in said complaint, states sufficient

facts or grounds constituting an offense against the

United States or any offense.

2. That neither said complaint nor any cause of

action therein attempted to be set forth, states facts

sufficient to constitute a cause or causes of action

against the said defendant.

3. That the facts stated in said complaint and each

and every cause of action therein set forth, do not

state sufficient grounds constituting an offense

against the United States or any offense, nor do they

state any cause of action under the act of Congress

entitled, ''An Act to promote the safety of employees

and [13] travelers upon railroads by compelling

common carriers engaged in interstate commerce to

equip their cars with automatic couplers and continu-

ous brakes, and their locomotives with driving-wheel

brakes and for other purposes," approved March 2d,

1893, as amended April 1st, 1896, as amended March
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2d, 1903, and as amended April 14th, 1910.

(Signed) CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsements] : Due service of the within De-

murrer by a true copy thereof, is hereby admitted at

Spokane, Washington, this 13th day of January,

A. D. 1915.

FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

Demun'er. Filed in the U. S. District Court for

the Eastern District of Washington, January 13,

1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. By S. M. Russell, Deputy.

[14]

In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Defendant.

Stipulation [as to Certain Facts].

IT IS STIPULATED, that in consideration of the

demurrer to each of the causes of action herein in

this court or in any appellate proceedings, it may be

accepted as a fact as to each of said causes of action
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that each engine was equipped with a power driving-

wheel brake and appliances for operating a train-

brake system, and that in each train not less than 85%
of the cars therein were equipped with power or train-

brakes, which were used and operated by the engineer

of the locomotive drawing such train, to control its

speed in connection with the hand-brakes.

Dated this 14th day of June, 1915.

(Signed.) FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
M. C. LIST,

Attorneys for Plaintiff

CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsements] : Stipulation. Filed in the U.

S. District Court for the Eastern District of Wash-
ington, July 9, 1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. By S. M.
Russell, Deputy. [15]

In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.
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Opinion.

FRANCIS A. GARRECHT, U. S. Attorney.

M. C. LIST, Special Attorney.

CHARLES S. ALBERT, and THOMAS
BALMER, for Defendant.

RUDKIN, District Judge

:

This is an action to recover penalties for violations

of the Safety Appliance Act of March 3, 1893 (27

Stat., 531), as amended by the act of April 1, 1896 (29

Stat., 85), as amended by the act of March 2, 1903 (32

Stat., 943). The complaint contains twelve counts or

causes of action in all. The first count charges that

the defendant, on the 9th day of July, 1914. ran a

freight train engaged in the movement of interstate

traffic from Cascade Tunnel to Merritt, in the State

of Washington, and within the jurisdiction of this

court, "when its speed was controlled by the brake-

men using the common hand-brake for that purpose,

and when said defendant did then and there require

said brakemen to use the common hand-brake to con-

trol the speed of said train, and when the speed of said

train was not controlled by the power or train-brakes

used and operated by the engineer of the locomotive

drawing said train, as required by Section 1 of the

aforesaid act of March 2, 1893, as amended."

For the purpose of our present inquiry the remain-

ing eleven counts are in all respects similar to the

first. A demurrer for want of sufficient facts has

been interposed by the defendant, accompanied by a

stipulation: [16]
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That in consideration of the demurrer to each

of the causes of action herein in this court or in

any appellate proceedings, it may be accepted as

a fact as to each of said causes of action that

each engine was equipped with a power driving-

wheel brake and appliances for operating a train-

brake system, and that in each train not less than

85% of the cars therein were equipped with pow-

er or train-brakes, which were used and operated

by the engineer of the locomotive drawing such

train, to control its speed in connection with the

hand-brakes."

The sole question presented for decision therefore

is, may a railroad company require or permit brake-

men to use the common hand-brakes to control the

speed of trains engaged in the movement of interstate

traffic when the locomotives drawing the trains are

equipped with power driving-wheel brakes and ap-

pliances for operating the train-brake system, and

when not less than 85% of the cars in the train have

their brakes used and operated by the engineers of

the locomotives, as required by the order of the In-

terstate Commerce Commission of September 1, 1910,

without incurring the penalty imposed by the act of

1893 and the amendments thereto.

Section 1 of the act of March 2, 1893, declares

:

"That from and after the first day of Janu-

ary, eighteen hundred and ninety-eight, it shall

be unlawful for any common carrier engaged in

interstate commerce by railroad to use on its line

any locomotive engine in moving interstate

traffic not equipped wdth a power driving-wheel



22 The United States of America vs.

brake and appliances for operating the train-

brake system or to run any train in such traffic

after said date that has not a sufficient number
of cars in it so equipped with power or train-

brakes that the engineer on the locomotive draw-

ing such train can control its speed without re-

quiring brakemen to use the common hand-

brakes for that purpose."

Section 2 of the act of March 2, 1903, provides

:

"That whenever, as provided in said act, any

train is operated with power or train-brakes,

not less than fifty per centum of the cars in such

train shall have their brakes used and operated

by the engineer of the locomotive drawing such

train ; and all power-brake cars in such train

which are associated together with said fifty per

centum shall have their brakes so used and oper-

ated; and, to more fully carry into effect the

object of said act, the Interstate Commerce

Commission may, from time to time, after full

hearing, increase the minimum percentage of

cars in any train required to be operated with

power or train-brakes which must have their

brakes used and operated as aforesaid; and

failure to comply with any such requirement of

the said Interstate Commerce Commission, shall

be subject to the like penalty as failure to com-

ply with any requirement of this section.
'

'

On the 6th day of June, 1910, the Interstate Com-

merce Commission promulgated the following order

:

[17]
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'*It is ordered, that on and after September 1,

1910, on all railroads used in interstate com-

merce, whenever, as required by the Safety

Appliance Act as amended March 2, 1903, any

train is operated with power or train-brakes, not

less than 85% of the cars of such train shall have

their brakes used and operated by the engineer

of the locomotive drawing such train, and all

power-brake cars in each such train which are

associated together with the 85 per cent shall

have their brakes so used and operated."

Briefly stated, the railway company contends that

having fully equipped its locomotives and cars as

required by law and the order of the Interstate Com-

merce Commission, it has incurred no penalty, while

the Government takes the broad position that the

company must not only equip its locomotives and

trains as required by the Interstate Commerce Com-

mission, but must so equip them that the engineers

on the locomotives drawing the trains can control

their speed without requiring the brakemen to use the

common hand-brakes for that purpose, and that the

use of the hand-brakes for the purpose of control-

ling the speed of trains engaged in the movement of

interstate traffic i^hy implication prohibited by the

statute. These several contentions call for a con-

struction of Section One of the act of 1893 and Section

Two of the act of 1903. It occurs to me that these

two sections are in irreconcilable conflict in so far as

they relate to train-brake equipment and that the

latter supersedes the former. Each section prescribes

a standard to which the railroads of the country must
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conform, but the two standards are radically dif-

ferent. The original act required the equipment of

a sufficient number of cars with power or train-

brakes, to control the speed of the train without the

necessity of using hand-brakes for that purpose,

while the amendment prescribes a fixed and definite

standard. The standard prescribed by the original

act was indefinite and uncertain at best. Under its

provisions the sufficiency of the equipment must in

every case be determined by a jury from expert testi-

mony, and one jury might find that the equipment of

25% of the cars w^ith power-brakes was sufficient,

while under similar facts and conditions another

jury might find that 50% was insufficient. To [18]

obviate this uncertainty Congress, in my opinion,

intended, by the amendment of 1903 to prescribe

a fixed and definite standard, through the action

of the Interstate Commerce Commission —a stand-

dard binding alike on the railroads and on the courts.

If I am correct in this conclusion, the sufficiency of

the equipment is determined by the order of the

Interstate Commerce Commission and so much of

the original act as required a sufficient equipment

has been repealed. But if I am in error in this, I

am still of opinion that the complaint in this case

does not charge a violation of either act, or of both

acts combined. It does not charge that a sufficient

number of cars in the trains were not equipped with

power or train-brakes to enable the engineers on

the locomotives drawing the trains to control their

speed, without requiring brakemen to use the hand-

brakes for that purpose, as provided in the original
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act; nor does it charge a failure to comply with the

requirements of the Interstate Commerce Commis-

sion, as provided by the amendment. It charges

matters upon which the acts of Congress are wholly

silent. The purpose of Congress in the enactment

of these laws is so apparent that it is unnecessary

to look to either reports of the Interstate Commerce

Commission or of Congressional committees for

light in their construction. The inquiry, however,

is not the evil against which the legislature is di-

rected, but the remedy prescribed by Congress to

correct that evil. A mere reference to the statutes

will show that the legislation is limited exclusively

to railroad equipment, and penalties are only pre-

scribed for failure to furnish or provide that equip-

ment. Congress no doubt thought that by requir-

ing automatic couplers and power-brakes it would

obviate the necessity of men going between the

cars to couple or uncouple them, or of going on top

of trains to use the hand-brake; but in this Congress

may have been mistaken. If mistaken, and the

remedy is inadequate, relief must be had through

further congressional action, not through judicial

legislation. If prohibited at all the use of hand-

brakes [19] is only prohibited by implication;

and crimes are not defined or created in that way.

As said by Chief Justice Marshall in United States

V. Wiltberger, 5 Wheat. 76:

"The rule that penal laws are to be construed

strictly is perhaps not less old than construc-

tion itself. It is founded on the tenderness of

the law for the rights of individuals, and on
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the plain principle that the power of punish-

ment is vested in the legislative, not in the

judicial department. It is the legislature, not

the Court, which is to define a crime, and ordain

its punishment. It is said that, notwithstand-

ing this rule, the intention of the law-makers

must govern in the construction of penal as well

as other statutes. This is true, but this is not

a new, independent rule which subverts the old.

It is a modification of the ancient maxim, and

amounts to this, that though penal laws are

to be construed strictly, they are not to be con-

strued so strictly as to defeat the obvious in-

tention of the legislature. The maxim is not

to be so applied as to narrow the words of the

statute to the exclusion of cases, which those

words, in their ordinary acceptation, or in that

sense in which the legislature has obviously

used them would comprehend. The intention

of the legislature is to be collected from the

words they employ. Where there is no ambi-

guity in the words, there is no room for con-

struction. The case must be a strong one, in-

deed, which would justify a Court in departing

from the plain meaning of words, especially

in a penal act, in search of an intention which

the words themselves did not suggest. To de-

termine that a case is within the intention of a

statute, its language must authorize us to say

so. It would be dangerous, indeed, to carry

the principle, that a case which is within the

reason or mischief of a statute, is within its
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provisions, so far as to punish a crime not enu-

merated in the statute, because it is of equal

atrocity, or of kindred character, with those

which are enumerated."

The case of Johnson v. Southern Pacific Co., 196

TJ. S. 1, does not conflict with these views. It was

there held that statutes in derogation of the com-

mon law and penal statutes are not to be construed

so strictly as to defeat the obvious intention of Con-

gress as found in the language actually used accord-

ing to its true and obvious meaning, and the Court

quoted approvingly the following language of Mr.

Justice Story in United States v. Winn, 3 Sumner,

209:

"I agree to that rule in its true and sober

sense; and that is, that penal statutes are not

to be enlarged by implication, or extended to

cases not obviously within their words and pur-

port."

It is conceded in this case, and must be conceded,

that if the use of hand-brakes to control the speed

of trains is prohibited at all it is by implication

only. As already stated, Congress has sought to

obviate the necessity for going upon trains to use

hand-brakes to control their speed by requiring the

use of certain equipment and has imposed penalties

for failure to furnish that equipment. [20] If it

is now deemed necessary to go further and prohibit

the railroads from requiring or permitting their

employees to go upon trains to use the hand-brakes

Congress must act. For the Court to impose pen-
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alties for an act which Congress has not directly

prohibited is judicial legislation which finds no war-

rant under our system of government. I am not

unmindful of the fact that the Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Fourth Circuit reached a different

conclusion on a somewhat similar state of facts

in the recent case of Virginia Railway Co. v.

United States, decided May 4th, 1915, but the

Court there conceded that the use of hand-brakes

is prohibited by implication only, and I am un-

unwilling to subscribe to the doctrine that a crime

may be defined or worked out in that way. For

aught that appears on the face of the complaint in

this case the defendant has equipped its engines and

trains with every safety appliance required by law,

and for failure to do this, and for nothing else, has

Congress prescribed penalties.

The demurrer is sustained and the action dis-

missed.

[Endorsements] : Opinion. Filed in the U. S. Dis-

trict Court for the Eastern District of Washington.

July 8, 1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. By S. M. Russell,

Deputy. [21]
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In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Defendant.

Judgment.

This cause came on regularly to be heard before

the Honorable Frank H. Rudkin, Judge, plaintiff

appearing by Francis A. Garrecht, United States

Attorney, and M. C. List, Special Attorney, and

defendant appearing by Charles S. Albert and

Thomas Balmer, attorneys for defendant, upon the

demurrer by the defendant to the complaint and

each and every cause of action in said complaint,

setting forth that the same are not sufficient in law,

and the defendant is not bound by the law of the

land to answer the same, praying judgment that it

be dismissed and discharged from the premises in

said complaint specified, the grounds being set

forth in said demurrer that neither the said com-

plaint nor any cause of action set forth in said

complaint stated sufficient facts or grounds con-

stituting an offense against the United States,

or any offense, nor stated facts sufficient to con-

stitute a cause or causes of action against the de-
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fendant, and that the facts stated therein did not

state sufficient grounds constituting an offense

against the United States or any offense, nor any
cause of action under the act of Congress entitled,

''An act to promote the safety of employees and

travelers upon railroads by compelling common car-

riers engaged in interstate commerce to equip their

cars with automatic couplers and continuous brakes

and their locomotives with driving-wheel brakes

and for other purposes," approved March 2d, 1893,

as [22] amended April 1st, 1896, as amended
March 2d, 1903, and as amended April 14th, 1910;

and a stipulation of facts having been filed by the

respective parties, and after argument of counsel

and after consideration thereof and of said stipula-

tion, the Court being duly advised in the premises,

found for the defendant, sustaining said demurrer and

dismissing said action;

It is therefore CONSIDERED and ADJUDGED
that the said demurrer be, and the same is hereby,

sustained to said complaint and to each and every

cause of action therein, and that the said plaintiff,

the United States of America, take nothing by this

action, and that said action and each and every

cause of action therein set forth be, and the same

is hereby, dismissed, and said defendant is hereby

discharged from the premises in said complaint con-

tained.

Dated this 9th day of July, 1915.

By the Court:

(Signed) FRANK H. RUDKIN,
Judge.
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[Endorsements] : Judgment Filed in the U. S.

District Court for the Eastern District of Washing-

ton, July 9, 1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. By S. M.

Russell, Deputy. [23]

In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Defendant.

Order Extending Time to File Bill of Exceptions.

Upon motion of Francis A. Oarrecht, United States

Attorne}^ for the Eastern District of Washington,

it is

ORDERED that the time in which plaintiff may

serve and file its hill of exceptions in the above-

enfitled cause be, and the same is, extended to and

including the 15th day of August, A. D. 1915.

Done in open court this 17th day of July, A. D.

1915.

(Signed) FRANK H. RUDKIN,
Judge.

[Endorsements]: Order Extending Time to File

Bill of Exceptions. Filed July 17, 1915. W. H.

Hare, Clerk. [24]
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In the District Court of the United States for the

Eastern District of Washington^ Norihern Divi-

sion.

No. 2075.

THE UNITED STATES OE AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.

Assignment of Errors.

Now comes the United States of America, by-

Francis A. Garrecht, United States Attorney for

the Eastern District of Washington, and says that

in the record and proceedings herein in the District

Oonrt of the United States for the Eastern District

of Washington there is manifest error to the great

prejudice of the said United States of America, to

wit:

1. The said District Court erred in sustaining

the demurrer of the said Great Northern Railway

Company to the complaint filed herein by the said

United States of America, and to each and every

cause of action of said complaint, for the reason that

it appears from said complaint that said defendant

operated over its line of railroad the train men-

tioned in each and every cause of action of said

complaint, when its speed was controlled by the

brakemen using the common hand-brake for that

purpose.

2. The said District Court erred in sustaining
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the demurrer of the said Great Northern Railway

Company to the complaint filed herein by the said

United States of America, and to each and every

cause of action of said complaint, for the reason

that it appears from said complaint that said [25]

defendant operated over its line of railroad the train

mentioned in each and every cause of action of said

complaint, and did then and there require the brake-

men to use the common hand-brake to control the

speed of said train.

3. That said District Court erred in sustaining

the demurrer of the said Great Northern Railway

Company to the complaint filed herein by the said

United States of America, and to each and every

cause of action of said complaint, for the reason

that it appears from said complaint that said de-

fendant operated over its lines of railroad the train

mentioned in each and every cause of action of said

complaint, when its speed was not controlled exclu-

sively by the power or train-brakes used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive engine draw-

ing said train.

4. The said District Court eiTed in sustaining

said demurrer, for the reasons that the matters set

forth in each and every cause of action of said com-

plaint constitute a cause of action against said de-

fendant.

5. The said District Court erred in rendering

judgment in favor of the said Great Northern Rail-

way Company and against the said United States

of America upon each and every cause of action of
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said complaint, for the reasons stated in the fore-

going assignments of error.

WHEREFORE, by reason of the errors afore-

said, the said United States of America prays that

the judgment rendered and entered in this action

be avoided, annulled and reversed, and that the

same be remanded with instructions to overrule the

demurrer of said Great Northern Railway Company

to said complaint and to each and every cause of

action of the same.

(Signed) FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsements] : Assignment of Errors. Filed

July 30, 1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. [26]

In the District Court of the United States, for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.

Petition for Writ of Error.

The United States of America, plaintiff in the

above-entitled cause, feeling itself aggrieved by the

judgment entered herewith on the 9th day of July,

1915, sustaining the demurrer interposed to the com-

plaint by the said defendant and dismissing the com-

plaint on file herein, and in the record and proceed-
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ings had in said cause, complains that manifest er-

ror was committed to the prejudice of the said

United States, all of which is more fully alleged and

set forth in the assignment of errors filed herein in

aid of this petition for a Writ of Error.

WHEREFOEE, said plaintiff, United States of

America, prays that a Writ of Error be issued in

this behalf out of the Circuit Court of Appeals of

the United States in accordance with the provisions

of the laws of the United States, for the correction

of the errors complained of, and that a transcript

of the record, proceedings and papers in this case,

duly authenticated, may be sent to the said United

States Circuit Court of Appeals.

(Signed) FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsements] : Petition for Writ of Error.

Filed July 30, 1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. [27]

In the District Court of the United States, for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.

Order Allowing Writ of Error.

The plaintiff. United States of America, having

this day filed its petition for a Writ of Error from
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the judgment entered herein on the 9th day of July,

A. D. 1915, sustaining the demurrer interposed by

the defendant to the complaint herein and dis-

missing said action, to the Circuit Court of Appeals

of the United States, together with an Assignment

of Errors specifying the matters complained of, and

of which it will complain. Now, therefore, it is

ORDERED that a Writ of Error be and hereby

is allowed for the purpose of review in the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judi-

cial Circuit of the judgment heretofore entered

herein.

Done in open court this 30th day of July, A. D.

1915.

(Signed) FRANK H. RUDKIN,
Judge.

[Endorsements] : Order Allowing Writ of Error.

Filed July 30, 1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. [28]

In the District Court of the United States, for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.

Bill of Exceptions.

BE IT REMEMBERED, that this matter having
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come on to be heard before the Honorable Frank
H. Rudkin, United States District Judge; plaintiff

appearing by Francis A. Garrecht, United States

Attorney, and M. C. List, Special Assistant United

States Attorney, and defendant appearing by

Charles S. Albert, Esquire, and Thomas Balmer,

Esquire, upon the demurrer of the defendant to the

complaint filed in the above-entitled cause; and

counsel having agreed to certain facts which were

embodied in a stipulation and filed by the parties

hereto, as follows, to wit:

"IT IS STIPULATED, that in consideration of

the demurrer to each of the causes of action herein

in this court or in any appellate proceedings, it may

be accepted as a fact as to each of said causes of ac-

tion that each engine was equipped with a power

driving-wheel brake and appliances for operating a

train-brake system, and that in each train not less

than 85% of the cars therein were equipped with

powed or train-brakes, which were used and oper-

ated by the [29] engineer of the locomotive

drawing such train, to control its speed in connec-

tion with the hand-brakes.

Dated this 14th day of June, 1915.

FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
M. C. LIST,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant.

And after argument of counsel, and consideration

of the same and of said stipulation, and the matter
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having been taken under advisement, the Court filed

its judgment sustaining the demurrer herein and

dismissing said action.

(Signed) FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsements] : Service of a copy of the within

Bill of Exceptions hereby acknowledged this 30th

day of July, A. D. 1915.

CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant.

Bill of Exceptions. Filed July 30, 1915.

(Signed) W. H. HARE,
Clerk. [30]

In the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United States,

for the Ninth Circuit.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant in Error.

Writ of Error [Copy].

The United States of America,

Ninth Judicial Circuit,—ss.

The President of the United States to the Honorable,

the Judges of the District Court of the United

States for the Eastern District of Washington,

Northern Division, Greeting

:

Because of the record and proceedings as also in

the rendition of the judgment sustaining the demur-
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rer interposed by the defendant to the complaint and

dismissing said action, in the case pending before

you, or some of you, between the United States of

America, Plaintiff, and Great Northern Railway

Company, Defendant, a manifest error hath hap-

pened to the great damage of the plaintiff. United

States of America, as by its complaint appears. We
being willing that error, if any hath been, should be

duly corrected and full and speedy justice done to

the parties aforesaid in this behalf, do command you,

if judgment sustaining the demurrer to the com-

plaint and dismissing said action be therein given,

that then under your seal distinctly and openly, you

send the records and proceedings aforesaid, with all

things concerning the same, to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to-

gether with this Writ, so that you have the same at

the City of San Francisco, in the State of California,

[31] on the 28 day of August next, in the said Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, to be then and there held, that

the record and proceedings aforesaid being inspected,

the said Circuit Court of Appeals may cause further

to be done therein to correct that error what of right

and according to the laws and customs of the United

States should be done.

WITNESS, The Honorable EDWARD D.

WHITE, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of the

United States, this 30th day of July, in the year of

our Lord, one thousand nine hundred and fifteen, and

in the one hundred and fortieth year of the Ide-

pendence of the United States.
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The above writ is hereby allowed.

(Signed) FRANK H. RUDKIN,
United States District Jndge, for the Eastern Dis-

trict of Washington.

[Seal] Attest:

(Signed) W. H. HARE,
Clerk United States District Court, Eastern District

of Washington.

[Endorsements] : Writ of Error. Filed July 30,

1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. [32]

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant in Error.

Citation [Copy].

The President of the United States of America, to

the Great Northern Railway Company, and to

Charles S. Albert, Esquire, Your Attorney,

Greeting

:

YOU ARE HEREBY CITED AND ADMON-
ISHED to be and appear at a session of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, to be held at the City of San Francisco, in the

State of California, within thirty days from the date

of this Citation, pursuant to a Writ of Error filed in

the office of the Clerk of the District Court of the

United States for the Eastern District of Washing-
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ton, wherein the United States of America is Plain-

tiff in Error, and you, the said Great Northern Rail-

way Company, is Defendant in Error, to show cause,

if any there be, why the judgment rendered against

the plaintiff in error sustaining defendant's demur-

rer to the complaint and dismissing said action, as

in said Writ of Error mentioned, should not be cor-

rected and why speedy justice should not be done to

the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS, The Honorable EDWARD D.

WHITE, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of the

United States, this 30th day of July, 1915, and in

the One Hundred and Fortieth year of the Inde-

pendence of the United States.

FRANK H. RUDKIN,
United States District Judge.

[Seal] Attest: W. H. HARE,
Clerk United States District Court, Eastern District

of Washington. [33]

[Endorsements] : Service of a Copy of the Within

Citation hereby acknowledged this 30th day of July,

A. D. 1915.

CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant in Error.

Citation. Filed July 30, 1915. W. H. Hare,

Clerk. [34]
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In the District Court of the United States, for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant.

Praecipe for Record.

To the Clerk of the United States District Court for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division

:

YOU ARE HEREBY REQUESTED in making

up your return to the Citation on appeal herein, to

include therein the following

:

Complaint
;

Demurrer to Complaint;

Stipulation of Facts;

Opinion of Court;

Judgment;

Assignment of Errors;

Petition for Writ of Error;

Order Allowing Writ;

Bill of Exceptions;

Writ of Error;

Citation;

Praecipe;

Order Extending Time to File Bill of Excep-

tions,
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which include all of the papers, records and other

jDleadings necessary to the hearing of the Writ of

Error in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals,

and that no other records or pleadings than those

above mentioned need be included by the clerk of

said court in making up his return to said Citation.

Dated this 30th day of July, A. D., 1915.

(Signed) FRANCIS A. GAERECHT,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsements] : Service of a copy of the within

Praecipe for Transcript of Record is hereby ac-

knowledged this 30th day of July, A. D. 1915.

CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant.

Praecipe for Transcript of Record. Filed July 30,

1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. [35]

[Certificate of Clerk U. S. District Court to

Transcript of Record.]

In the District Court of the United States, for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 2075.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
a Corporation.

Defendant.
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United States of America,

Eastern District of Washington,—ss.

I, W. H. HARE, Clerk of the District Court of the

United States for the Eastern District of Washing-

ton, do hereby certify that the foregoing typewritten

pages are a full, true, correct and complete copy of

the record, papers and other proceedings in the fore-

going entitled cause as called for by the plaintiff and

plaintiff in error in its praecipe as the same remains

of record and on file in the office of the clerk of said

District Court, and that the same constitute the rec-

ord on Writ of Error from the judgment of the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Eastern Dis-

trict of Washington, to the Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Judicial Circuit, San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, which Writ of Error was lodged and filed in

my office on July 30, 1915.

I further certify that I hereto attach and herewith

transmit the original Writ of Error and the original

Citation issued in this cause.

I further certify that the fees of the clerk of this

court for preparing and certifying to the foregoing

typewritten record amounts to the sum of $14.45,

which sum will be included in my quarterly account

as clerk against the United States, plaintiff and

plaintiff' in error, for the quarter ending September

30, 1915. [36]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the seal of said District Court
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at Spokane, in said District, this 7th day of August,

1915.

[Seal] W. H. HARE,
Clerk. [37]

In the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United States,

for the Ninth Circuit.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant in Error.

Writ of Error [Original].

The United States of America,

Ninth Judicial Circuit,—ss.

The President of the United States to the Honorable,

the Judges of the District Court of the United

States for the Eastern District of Washington,

Northern Division, Greeting:

Because of the record and proceedings as also in

the rendition of the judgment sustaining the demur-

rer interposed by the defendant to the complaint and

dismissing said action, in the case pending before

you, or some of 3^ou, between the United States of

America, Plaintiff, and Great Northern Railway

Company, Defendant, a manifest error hath hap-

pened to the great damage of the plaintiff, United

States of America, as by its complaint appears. We
being willing that error, if any hath been, should be

duly corrected and full and speedy justice done to
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the parties aforesaid in this behalf, do command you,

if judgment sustaining the demurrer to the com-

plaint and dismissing said action be therein given,

that then under your seal distinctly and openly, you

sent the records and proceedings aforesaid, with all

things concerning the same, to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to-

gether with this Writ, so that you have the same at

the City of San Francisco, in the State of California,

[38] on the 28 day of August next, in the said Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, to be then and there held, that

the record and proceedings aforesaid being inspected,

the said Circuit Court of Appeals may cause further

to be done therein to correct that error what of right

and according to the laws and customs of the United

States should be done.

WITNESS, The Honorable EDWARD D.

WHITE, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of

the United States, this 30th day of July, in the year

of our Lord, one thousand nine hundred and fifteen,

and in the one hundred and fortieth year of the

Independence of the United States.

The above writ is hereby allowed.

FRANK H. RUDKIN,
United States District Judge, for the Eastern Dis-

trict of Washington.

[Seal] Attest: W. H. HARE,
Clerk United States District Court, Eastern District

of Washington. [39]

[Endorsed] : No. 2075. In the Circuit Court of

Appeals. United States of America, Plaintiff in

Error, vs. Great Northern Railway Company, De-
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fendant in Error. Writ of Error. Filed July 30,

1915. W. H. Hare, Clerk. By ,
Deputy.

No. 2036. Filed Aug. 10, 1915. Frank D. Monck-

ton. Clerk U. S. Circuit Court of Appeals, for the

Ninth Circuit. By , Deputy Clerk.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY,
Defendant in Error.

Citation [Original].

The President of the United States of America, to

the Great Northern Railway Company, and to

Charles S. Albert, Esquire, Your Attorney,

Greeting:

YOU ARE HEREBY CITED AND ADMON-
ISHED to be and appear at a session of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, to be held at the City of San Francisco, in the

State of California, within thirty days from the date

of this Citation, pursuant to a Writ of Error filed in

the office of the Clerk of the District Court of the

United States for the Eastern District of Washing-

ton, wherein the United States of America is Plain-

tiff in Error, and you, the said Great Northern Rail-

way Company, is Defendant in Error, to show cause,

if any there be, why the judgment rendered against

the plaintiff in error sustaining defendant's demur-
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rer to the complaint and dismissing said action, as

in said Writ of Error mentioned, should not be cor-

rected and why speedy justice should not be done to

the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS, The Honorable EDWARD D.

WHITE, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of

the United States, this 30th day of July, 1915, and

in the One Hundred and Fortieth year of the In-

dependence of the United States.

FRANK H. RUDKIN,
United States District Judge.

[Seal] Attest: W. H. HARE,
Clerk United States District Court, Eastern District

of Washington.

[Endorsed]: No. 2075. In the Circuit Court of

Appeals. United States of America, Plaintiff in

Error, vs. Great Northern Railway Company, De-

fendant in Error. Citation. Filed July 30, 1915.

W. H. Hare, Clerk. By , Deputy.

No. 2636. Filed Aug. 10, 1915. Frank D. Monck-

ton. Clerk U. S. Circuit Court of Appeals, for the

Ninth Circuit. By , Deputy Clerk.

Service of a copy of the within citation hereby

acknowledged this 30th day of July, A. D. 1915.

CHARLES S. ALBERT,
THOMAS BALMER,

Attorneys for Defendant in Error.
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[Endorsed]: No. 2636. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. The United

States of America, Plaintiff in Error, vs. Great

Northern Railway Company, a Corporation, Defend-

ant in Error. Transcript of Record. Upon Writ of

Error to the United States District Court of the

Eastern District of Washington, Northern Division.

Filed August 10, 1915.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Meredith Sawyer,

Deputy Clerk.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals,

Ninth Circuit.

United States of America, plaintiff"

in error,

V.

Great Northern Railway Company,

a corporation, defendant in error.

-No. 2636.

BRIEF AND ARGUMENT FOR PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

STATEMENT OF CASE.

This suit consisting of 12 counts was brought

against the Great Northern Railway Co. to recover

penalties for violations of the safety-appliance act

approved March 2, 1893 (27 Stat. L., 531), as amended

by the act of April 1, 1896 (29 Stat. L., 85), and as

amended by the act of March 2, 1903 (32 Stat. L.,

943).

The first count, after alleging that defendant is a

common carrier engaged in interstate commerce,

states that:

Said defendant on July 9, 1914, ran on its

line of railroad its certain freight train, known
as No. 402, drawn by its own locomotive engine

No. 1918, said train being run over a part of a

through highway of interstate commerce and
being then and there engaged in the movement
of interstate traffic.

7426-15 1



Plaintiff further alleges that on said date

said defendant ran said train as aforesaid over

its line of railroad from Cascade Tunnel, in the

State of Washington, to Merritt, in said State,

within the jurisdiction of this court, when its

speed was controlled by the brakemen using

the common hand brake for that purpose, and

when said defendant did then and there require

said brakemen to use the common hand brake

to control the speed of said train, and when the

speed of said train was not controlled by the

power or train brakes used and operated by
the engineer of the locomotive drawing said

train, as required by section 1 of the aforesaid

act of March 2, 1893, as amended.

Counts Nos. 2 to 12 are identical with count No. V,

except as to dates, train numbers, and engine num-

bers.

To this complaint, defendant filed its demurrer,

assigning three causes therefor:

That neither said complaint nor any cause

of action set forth in said complaint states

sufficient facts or grounds constituting an

offense against the United States or any offense.

That neither said complaint nor any cause of

action therein attempted to be set forth states

facts sufficient to constitute a cause or causes of

action against the said defendant.

That the facts stated in said complaint and

each and every cause of action therein set

forth do not state sufficient grounds constitut-

ing an offense against the United States or any

offense, nor do they state any cause of action

under the act of Congress entitled " An act to



promote the safety of employees and travelers

upon railroads by compelling common car-

riers engaged in interstate commerce to equip

their cars with automatic couplers and con-

tinuous brakes, and their locomotives with

driving wheel brakes and for other purposes, ",

approved March 2, 1893, as amended April 1,'

1896, as amended March 2, 1903, and as

amended April 14, 1910.

In addition to the demurrer the following stipula-

tion appears:

It is stipulated, that in consideration of the

demurrer to each of the causes of action herein

in this court, or in any appellate proceedings,

it may be accepted as a fact as to each of said

causes of action that each engine was equipped

with a power-driving wheel brake and appli-

ances for operating a train brake system, and
that in each train not less than 85 per cent of

the cars therein were equipped with power or

train brakes, which were used and operated by
the engineer of the locomotive drawing such

train, to control its speed in connection with

the hand brakes. (Rec, p. 18.)

The district court sustained the demurrer and dis-

missed the action.

The assignments of error are as follows:

1. The said district court erred in sustaining

the demurrer of the said Great Northern Rail-

way Company to the complaint filed herein

by the said United States of America, and to

each and every clause of action of said com-
plaint, for the reason that it appears from

said complaint that said defendant operated



over its line of railroad the train mentioned
in each and every cause of action of said

complaint, when its speed was controlled by
the brakemen using the common hand brake

for that purpose.

2. The said district court erred in sustaining

the demurrer of the said Great Northern Rail-

way Company to the complaint filed herein by
the said United States of America, and to each

and every cause of action of said complaint,

for the reason that it appears from said com-
plaint that said defendant operated over its

line of railroad the train mentioned in each and

every cause of action of said complaint, and

did then and there require the brakemen to

use the common hand brake to control the

speed of said train.

3. The said district court erred in sustaining

the demurrer of the said Great Northern Rail-

way Company to the complaint filed herein by
the said United States of America, and to each

and every cause of action of said complaint, for

the reason that it appears from said complaint

that said defendant operated over its line of

railroad the train mentioned in each and every

cause of action of said complaint, when its

speed was not controlled exclusively by the

power or train brakes used and operated by

the engineer of the locomotive engine drawing

said train.

4. The said district court erred in sustaining

said demurrer, for the reasons that the matters

set forth in each and every cause of action of

said complaint constitute a cause of action

against said defendant.



5. The said district court erred in rendering

judgment in favor of said Great Northern Rail-

way Company and against the said United

States of America upon each and every cause

of action of said complaint, for the reasons

stated in the foregoing assignments of error.

The material part of the act in question is as fol-

lows:

THE STATUTE.

(27 Stat. L., 531, approved Mar. 2, 1893;

amended by 29 Stat. L., 85, Apr. 1, 1896.)

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of

Representatives of the United States of

America m Congress assembled, That from

and after the first day of January, eighteen

hundred and ninety-eight, it shall be unlaw-

ful for any common carrier engaged in in-

terstate commerce by railroad to use on its

hne any locomotive engine in moving inter-

state traffic not equipped with a power driv-

ing-wheel brake and appliances for operat-

ing the train-brake system or to run any

train in such traffic after said date that has

not a sufficient number of cars in it so

equipped with power or train brakes that

the engineer on the locomotive drawing such

train can control its speed without requiring

brakemen to use the common hand brake for

that purpose.

* * * Sec. 6 (as amended Apr. 1,

1896). That any such common carrier using

any locomotive engine, running any train, or

hauling or permitting to be hauled or used

on its line any car in violation of any of



the provisions of this act, shall be liable to

a penalty of one hundred dollars for each

and every such violation, to be recovered,

etc. * * *

AMENDED ACT.

(32 Stat. L., 943, approved Mar. 2, 1903.)

Sec. 2. That whenever, as provided in said

act, any train is operated with power or

train brakes, not less than fifty per centum

of the cars in such train shall have their

brakes used and operated by the engineer of

the locomotive drawing such train; and all

power-braked cars in such train which are

associated together with said fifty per

centum shall have their brakes so used and

operated; and, to more fully carry into effect

the objects of said act, the Interstate Com-

merce Commission may, from time to time,

after full hearing, increase the minimum
percentage of cars in any train required to

be operated with power or train brakes which

must have their brakes used and operated as

aforesaid; and failure to comply with any

such requirement of the said Interstate Com-

merce Commission shall be subject to the like

penalty as failure to comply with any re-

quirement of this section.



POINTS AND AUTHORITIES.

1. Use of hand brakes to control speed of trains is

unlawful. Virginian Ry. v. United States (4th

C. C. A.; 223 Fed., 748).

2. Legislative history of act indicates that one of

the leading purposes of the act was to keep brake-

men off the tops of cars moving in trains.

House Report No. 3014, 51st Cong., 1st sess., p. 1,

being report of House Committee on Railways and

Canals on House bill No. 9682, made Aug. 25, 1890.

House Report No. 1678, 52d Cong., 1st sess., p. 3.

Cong. Rec, Feb. 8, 1893, p. 1381, chairman of

Committee on Interstate Commerce, Senator CuUom,

explains purpose and scope of bill.

Cong. Rec, Feb. 10, 1893, p. 1500.

11 Ann. Rep. Interstate Commerce Commission,

p. 129.

13 Ann. Rep. Interstate Commerce Commission,

p. 55.

14 Ann. Rep. Interstate Commerce Commission,

p. 78, et seq.

3. The express words in the first section of the act,

''without requiring brakemen to use the common
hand brakes" in controlling the speed of train, indi-

cated unmistakably the congressional purpose to

make such use unlawful. (27 Stat. L., 531.)

(7)
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4. The later statutory requirement of an efficient

hand brake on each car (act of Apr. 14, 1910) does

not and was not intended to authorize their use to

control the speed of moving trains. Senate Report

No. 250, February 18, 1910.

5. A statute ^^ directing a thing to be done in a

certain manner implies that it shall not be done in

any other manner." Potter's Dwarris on Statutes

and Constitutions, p. 228, note 30, and cases cited.



QUESTION INVOLVED.

Does the safety-appliance act prohibit and make
unlawful the use of the common hand brake in

controlling the speed of a train on an interstate

highway?

The facts upon which this case is predicated, as set

forth in the complaint and stipulation, are, briefly:

Each of the 12 trains in question had its speed con-

trolled by the use of hand brakes between Cascade

Tunnel and Merritt in the State of Washington on

the line of the defendant in error's railroad, which

railroad was engaged in interstate commerce; and

Each of the 12 trains in question was equipped

with power or train brakes, 85 per cent of which were

connected up and used in connection with the hand

brakes in controlling the speed thereof.

In other words, the speed of the train was not con-

trolled by the use of the power or train brakes oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing such

train, but by the hand brake assisted by the power

brake, or by the power brake assisted by the hand

brake; that is, its speed was not controlled ^'without

requiring brakemen to use the common hand brake

for that purpose."

PTJRPOSE AND INTENT OF CONGRESS.

The purpose and object of a law is the key to its

interpretation.

The purpose and object of the air-brake provi-

sion of the safety-appliance law was to remove the

7426—15 2 (9)
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menace to trainmen resulting from their pres-

ence on tops of cars to manipulate the hand brake.

As the purpose of the coupler provision was to

keep employees from the danger of going between

cars to couple or uncouple them, so the object of

the train-brake provision was to keep men from

going on the tops of cars to set hand brakes.

A train brake operated by the engineer was sub-

stituted for the hand brakes operated by the train

crew. To be sure the car brake or hand brake could

still be used when the car was isolated or sepa-

rated from the train, but whenever cars were

joined together and attached to the locomotive for

hauling or movement so that a train existed, then

the braking was to be done by the train brake op-

erated by the engineer. That such was the pur-

pose and object of the train-brake provision is

made clear from the legislative history of the act

to which we are at liberty to refer.

House bill No. 9682, reported favorably by the

House Committee on Railways and Canals on Au-

gust 25, 1890, contained practically the same pro-

vision relative to the control of the speed of trains

as does the present law, and in its report that com-

mittee said

:

The object of this bill, as partly set forth

in its title, is to requu-e those using railroad

cars in the work of interstate commerce to

so equip the cars with such safety or auto-

matic safety couplers as will not require

trainmen to go between the ends of the cars
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to couple or uncouple them, or to go on top of

the cars to use hand brakes in controlling

the speed of traiiis, as it is now the general

custom to do, resulting in such serious conse-

quences, as shown by the following state-

ments. (H. Rep. No. 3014, 51st Cong., 1st

sess., p. 1.)

Now, when it is remembered that of the

thousands of brakemen injured and killed

yearly, not 1 per cent of these are injured

in coupling passenger cars or of handling

brakes on such cars, simply because these

cars have brakes controlled by the engineer,

and when also it is now well known that auto-

matic couplers and power brakes are as prac-

tically applicable to freight as to passenger

cars (p. 5).

The House Committee on Interstate Commerce,

before which was advocated a provision "to obvi-

ate the necessity of men traveling on tops of cars to

handle the hand brakes in controlling the train," in

favorably reporting House bill No. 9350, which bill

is the present law, said

:

The number killed in falling from trains

and engines was 561, and the number in-

jured was 2,363; that is to say, 38 per cent

of the total number of deaths and 46 per cent

of the total number of injuries sustained by
railway employees resulted while coupling

cars or setting brakes, and whatever cuts off

these two sources of great danger would

largely reduce the total losses of life and

limb.
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REMEDY SUGGESTED.

It is the judgment of this committee that

all cars and locomotives should be equipped

with automatic couplers, obviating the ne-

cessity of the men going between the cars,

and continuous train brakes that can be op-

erated from the locomotive and dispense

ivith the use of men on the tops of the cars;

that the locomotive should be provided with

power driving-wheel brakes, rendering them

easy of control. (H. Rep. 1678, 52d Cong.,

1st sess., p. 3.)

The brakes now have to be largely operated

by the brakemen, traveling over the tops of

the cars by night and day, through sleet and

rain, exposed to great danger of falling from

the cars, orfrom overhead obstructions.

But with the train brake that can be

immediatel}^ applied to the entire train, the

necessity of their going on top of the cars is

obviated and a great measure of safety to

all who travel will be brought into general

use; for when the rails are in constant use

by passenger and freight trains, indiscrimi-

nately running within a few minutes of each

other, the driving brake and the train brake

are essential means of safety to the traveler

and the employee alike. No opposition has

been heard to this requirement. [Our

italics.]

Hon. Shelby M. Cullom, of Illinois, chairman of

the Committee on Interstate Commerce, who favor-

ably reported the bill and had charge of it on the
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floor of the Senate, explained this feature of the bill

as follows:

Senator Cullom. The purpose of the com-

mittee in this bill is simpty to provide for a

uniform coupler and for an air brake about

which there shall be no particular contro-

versy. When we get the cars of this country

equipped with uniform couplers, with air

brakes, so that the men will not be required

to go between the cars, so that the men who
are on top of the cars to-day will be taken off

arid thereby relieved from the danger of such

positions, there will be no occasion for any

further legislation on the subject, in my
judgment. (Cong. Rec, Feb. 8, 1893, p. 1381.)

Senator Cullom. * * * Here are some
further statistics of the number falling from

trains and engines. With reference to that,

I desire to say that there is a provision in the

bill looking to getting rid of the necessity of

trainmen standing upon the tops of cars and
running from one car to another to turn the

hand brakes. One purpose of the bill is to

get rid of the necessity for the men to go on

the tops of cars and to run from one to an-

other, as well as to provide against the neces-

sity of the switchmen going in between the

cars to couple and uncouple. There are

some statistics on the subject of falling from
trains and engines. [Our italics.]

Senator McPherson, of New Jersey, explained

this provision of the law in these words:

Senator McPherson. * * * Section 1

provides that there shall be power applied
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to the engine which will enable a train to be

controlled by a brake, so that in a season of

the year like the present, when the cars are

covered with ice, a hrakeman shall not he re-

quired to run from one end of the train to

the other, and in that way endanger life and
limh, for the purpose of braking the train.

Now, that is a very proper provision.

(Cong. Rec, Feb. 10, 1893, p. 1500.) [Our

itahcs.]

In referring to the act in its eleventh annual re-

port, the Interstate Commerce Commission makes

this statement

:

The first section prohibits a carrier from

hauling a train in interstate traffic which is

not controlled by train brakes. * * *

The requirement, therefore, is not that a car-

rier shall equip its cars with the brake or the

coupler, but that it shall not use in interstate

traffic a train which is not controlled by the

train brake. * * * (11 Ann. Rep. I. C. C,

p. 129.)

Again, in its Thirteenth Annual Report, the Com-

mission said

:

It is believed that the number of killed

and injured by falling from trains must be

very largely reduced when the train brake

comes into general use. The men will not

then be obliged to use the tops of the cars for

braking, nor to walk on the running boards.

The freight train will be as completely under

control of the engineer as passenger trains

are at the present time. The number of
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killed and injured from this cause is as great

as, if not greater, than the number of killed

and injured in coupling and uncoupling cars

(p. 55).

In its Fourteenth Annual Report, again, the

Commission said

:

In last year's report mention was made of

the large number of persons killed or injured

by falling from trains. The casualties from

this cause during the year ending June 30,

1898, were: Killed, 473; injured, 3,859.

For 1899 the fatal accidents \vere 459, as

compared Vvith 644 for the year 1893. The
injuries not fatal v,-ere 3,970, as compared

with 3.780 for the year 1893. It is believed

that the accidents resulting from falling

from trains will be greatly reduced in time

through the general use of the train brake.

(14 Ann. Rep. I. C. C, pp. 78 et seq.)

In judicial decisions upon this section of the safety-

appliance act there are found expressions of opinion

which justify the position of the plaintiff in error that

the purpose and object of the power or train-brake

provision of the statute was aimed at the danger to

men going on the tops of cars to manipulate the hand

brakes.

Circuit Judge Knapp in The Virginian Railway

Company v. The United States (223 Fed., 748), a case

involving the identical issue raised in the instant case,

in the course of his opinion said

:

In our judgment the legislation here con-

sidered manifests the plain intention of Con-
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gress to require the control of trains in ordi-

nary line movement by the train brakes pre-

scribed and to make unlawful the use of hand

brakes for that purpose. True, the use of

hand brakes is not in express terms prohibited,

but this is the necessary implication of the lan-

guage used, and it admits of no other reason-

able construction. It was the evident pur-

pose of the train-brake provision to prevent the

danger resulting from the operation of hand

brakes on the tops of cars in moving trains.

Just as the object of the automatic coupler is

to keep employees from going between cars, so

the object of the train brake is to keep em-

ployees from going on top of cars to set and

release the hand brakes. The purpose of the

law is the guide to its interpretation, as the

courts have repeatedly said.

It is sufficient to add that the views herein

briefly expressed are supported by numerous

decisions construing the analogous language

of other sections of the safety-appliance law:

United States v. C. N. W. R. R. Co., 157 Fed.,

321; Atlantic Coast Line v. U. S., 168 Fed.,

165; Atchison, Topeka & Santa Fe Ry. Co.

v. U. S., 198 Fed., 637; Delk v. ;S. L. & S. F.

R. R. Co., 220 U. S., 580; Southern Ry. Co,

V. U. S., 222 U. S., 20.

In Erie Railroad Co. v. United States (197 Fed.,

287), the court said of this act:

Its purpose was to compel railroads to

equip trains in interstate transit with air

brakes, thereby contributing not only to the

safety of passengers and crews, but saving
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hrakemen, as far as possible, from the dan-

gers incurred in manipulating hand brakes.

[Our italics.]

And later in the course of that opinion its pur-

pose is referred to as "to obviate as far as possible

the danger to men working hand brakes on icy

footings."

Judge Hazel, in United States v. Grand Trunk Rail-

way of Canada (203 Fed., 775), cited with approval in

237 U. S., 402, in construing this provision of the law,

said:

The statute, which is broadly phrased, does

not contain any exceptions or specifically refer

to yard movements or switching movements
or to any conditions under which such power

brakes are not required to be controlled by the

engineer, * * *.

There is no appreciable hardship to the de-

fendant in requiring compliance with the pro-

visions of the act, which obviously was passed

to minimize dangers and risks to which brake-

men and switchmen are subjected. [Our

italics.]

As the court said in Atchison, T. & S. F. Ry. Co.

Y. United States (198 Fed., 637), also cited with ap-

proval in 237 U. S., 402, with reference to a movement

of a train without air brakes being operative within

terminal limits:

But, in our opinion. Congress, in requiring a

train to be ''so equipped with power or train

brakes that the engineer on the locomotive

drawing such train can control its speed with-
7426—15 3
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out requiring brakemen to use the common
hand brake for that purpose," employed the

word '^ brakemen" generically as including

any and all men, whether specifically known
as '^conductors" or '^ brakemen" or 'S^ard

foremen" or
' 'switchmen," whose duties in

connection with the train would oblige them to

use the common hand brakes in the absence

of au' brakes, and inteiided that the engineer

should he able to ^^ control the speed' ^ and bring

quickly to a standstill a train moving slowly

through a congested region of drawbridges

and railroad crossings as well as a train moving

rapidly on a single clear track in the country.

* * * and the dangers to the men engaged

in moving those cars and to the interstate

traffic itself were at least as imminent as the

dangers on the ''road."

In the case of The United States v. Chicago, Bur-

lington & Quincy Railroad Company (237 U. S., 410),

Mr. Justice Van Devanter, in the course of the

opinion, said:

Giving effect to the views quite recently

expressed in United States v. Erie Railroad

Company, ante, p. 402, we think these trains

came within the air-brake requirements,which

the amendatory act of 1903 declares "shall

be held to apply to all trains * * * on

any railroad engaged in interstate commerce."

According to the fair acceptation of the term

they were trains in the sense of the statute.

The work in which they were engaged was not

shifting cars about in a yard or on isolated

tracks devoted to switching operations, but
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moving traffic over a considerable stretch of

main-line track—one that was a busy thor-

oughfare for interstate passenger and freight

traffic. Every condition suggested by the

letter and spirit of the air-brake provision was

present. And not only were these trains ex-

posed to the hazards which that provision was

intended to avoid or minimize, but unless their

engineers were able readily and quickly to

check or control their movements they were a

serious menace to the safety of other trains

which the statute was equally designed to pro-

tect. That they carried no caboose or mark-

ers is not material. If it were, all freight

trains could easily be put beyond the reach of

the statute and its remedial purpose defeated.

Now, what are these "dangers" which Congress

had in mind and to which the courts refer?

They were clearly the dangers of falling or being

thrown from the cars; from passing over the tops of

cars, ice covered, or in the dark to reach the hand

brakes on different cars; the passing over cars of

different heights; being struck by overhead obstruc-

tions, such as bridges, tunnels, etc.

When coupler conditions of a car necessitate the

presence of employees between cars to couple or un-

couple them, the act is violated.

So when brake or ti'ain conditions require the

presence of men on top of the cars to manipulate

hand brakes to control the speed of the train, the

act is violated.

The literal provisions of the act are so similar in

the coupler and air-brake provisions that a similar
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construction of the air-brake clause to that familiar

now in the interpretation of the coupler section

seems to be logically necessary.

The purpose of the act to take men from the tops

of the cars while in trains, can not be qualified or

limited or restricted.

Any such qualification or limitation would nullify,

to a large extent, the purpose of Congress in legis-

lating for the purpose of taking men off the tops of

the cars.

No court should interpret the act to permit, to any

extent, the existence of the dangers which Congress

intended to eliminate.

CONTEMPORANEOUS CONSTRUCTION.

In its Seventeenth Annual Report, in speaking of

the amendment of 1903, which required that at least

50 per cent of the train or power brakes in each train

should be operated, the Commission said:

At the same time the railroads are in no way
relieved from the obligation to have a ''suffi-

eient" number of "air cars" on every train.

In cases where, because of steep grades or

high speed, safety requires more than the 50

per cent specified in the amendment, the rail-

road is responsible, in accordance with the

terms of the original law, for the use of enough

power brakes to insure efficient control of

speed without hand brakes. (17 Ann. Rep.

I. C. C, p. 84.)

It is respectfully submitted that this construction

of the act, made by the Interstate Commerce Com-
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mission, while not conclusive upon the courts, is

entitled to consideration and should be supported

unless it is clearly and plainly an erroneous inter-

pretation.

The contemporaneous construction of a statute

by those charged with the duty of executing it is

"entitled to very great weight." (White, Justice, in

United States v. Trans-Missouri Freight Association,

166 U. S., 290-370.) Such construction is entitled

to "most respectful consideration that ought not to

be overruled without cogent reasons." (Swayne,

Justice, in United States v. Moore, 95 U. S., 763.)

The rule is also stated in the following cases:

Heath v. Wallace, 138 U. S., 582.

Merritt v. Cameron, 137 U. S., 552.

United States v. Pugh, 99 U. S., 269.

"The construction given to a statute by those

charged with the duty of executing it is always

entitled to the most respectful consideration, and

ought not to be overruled without cogent reasons.

The officers concerned are usually able men and

masters of the subject. Not infrequently they are

the draftsmen of the laws they are afterwards called

upon to interpret." (Justice Swayne in United States

V. Moore, supra.)

" It is a familiar rule of interpretation that in the

case of a doubtful and ambiguous law the contem-

poraneous construction of those who have been called

upon to carry it into effect is entitled to great re-

spect." (Chief Justice Waite in United States v.

Pugh, supra.)
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" Moreover, if the question be considered in a some-

what different Hght, viz, as the contemporaneous con-

struction of a statute by those officers of the Gov-

ernment whose duty it is to administer it, then the

case would seem to be brought within the rule

announced at a very early day in this court, and

reiterated in a very large number of cases, that the

construction given to a statute by those charged

with the execution of it is always entitled to the most

respectful consideration, and ought not to be over-

ruled without cogent reasons." (Justice Lamar in

Heath v. Wallace, supra.)

The following cases also follow the rule with respect

to contemporaneous construction:

Edwards' Lessee v. Darby, 12 Wheat., 210.

Brown v. United States, 113 U. S., 586.

Pennell v. Philadelphia & Reading Ry. Co.,

231 U. S., 675.

Delano, et al.. Receivers of Wahash R. Co., v.

United States, 220 Fed., 635.

The safety- appliance act as amended applies to all

trains and cars used on any railroad engaged in

interstate commerce.

The safety-appliance act applies to all cars and

trains operated by carriers of interstate commerce

over an interstate railroad, and the act makes uni-

form regulations affecting all railroads and parts

of railroads in all the States. It establishes only

one system, applicable alike to all interstate rail-

roads throughout the whole country.
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In the case of United States v. Erie R. Co. (237 U.

S., 402) Mr. Justice Van Devanter, delivering the

opinion of the court, said:

The first section makes it unlawful, among
other things, for a railroad company engaged

in interstate commerce "to run any train" in

such commerce without having a sufficient

number of the cars so equipped with train

brakes^commonly spoken of as air brakes—

•

that the engineer on the locomotive can con-

trol the speed of the train " without requiring

brakemen to use the common hand brake for

that purpose." * * * The act of 1903,

by its first section, provides that the require-

ments of the original act respecting train

brakes, automatic couplers, and grab irons

shall be held to apply to "all trains" and cars

"used on any raihoad engaged in interstate

commerce," * * *.

It will be perceived that the air-brake pro-

vision deals with running a train, while the

other requirements relate to hauling or using a

car. In one a train is the unit and in the other

a car. As the context shows, a train in the

sense intended consists of an engine and cars

which have been assembled and coupled to-

gether for a run or trip along the road. When
a train is thus made up and is proceeding on its

journey, it is within the operation of the air-

brake provision.

* * * Thus it is plain that, in common
with other trains using the same main-line

tracks, they were exposed to hazards which

made it essential that appliances be at hand
for readil}'' and quickly checking or controlling
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their movements. The original act prescribed

that these appHances should consist of air

brakes controlled by the engineer on the loco-

motive, and the act of 1903 declared that this

requirement should "be held to apply to all

trains." We therefore conclude and hold that

it embraced these transfer trains.

Again, in the case of United States v. Chicago, B.

& Q. R. Co. (237 U. S., 410), Mr. Justice Van De-

vanter said

:

Giving effect to the views quite recently

expressed in United States v. Erie Railroad

Company, ante, p. 402, we think these trains

came within the air-brake requirement, which

the amendatory act of 1903 declares ''shall be

held to apply to all trains * * * on any

railroad engaged in interstate commerce."

According to the fair acceptation of the term

they were trains in the sense of the statute.

* * * Every condition suggested by the

letter and spirit of the air-brake provision was

present. And not only were these trains ex-

posed to the hazards which that provision was

intended to avoid or minimize, but unless

their engineers were able readily and quickly

to check or control their movements they

were a serious menace to the safety of other

trains which the statute was equally designed

to protect.

In Southern Railway Company v. Crockett (234

U. S., 725), Pitney, Justice, delivering the opinion of

the court, said

:

We deem the true intent and meaning to

be that the provisions and requirements re-
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specting train brakes, automatic couplers,

grab irons, and the height of drawbars shall

be extended to all railroad vehicles used

upon any railroad engaged in interstate

commerce, and to all other vehicles used in

connection with them, so far as the safety

devices and standards are capable of being

installed upon the respective vehicles.

As was said by Mr. Justice Van Devanter in

Southern Railway Company v. United States (222

U. S., 20)—

the act of March 2, 1903 (32 St., 943, ch. 976),

amended the earlier one and enlarged its

scope by declaring, inter alia, that its pro-

visions and requirements should "apply to

all trains, locomotives, tenders, cars and

similar vehicles used on any railroad en-

gaged in interstate commerce, and in the

Territories and the District of Columbia

and to all other locomotives, tenders, cars

and other similar vehicles used in connec-

tion therewith." [Our itaUcs.]

Use of hand brakes to control speed of trains unlawful.

The only use of a brake is to control speed. When

hand brakes are used their application is for the

purpose of controlling speed. The act requires speed

of trains to be controlled by the engineer. When
speed of a train is controlled by a cooperation of

engineer using air brake and brakeman using hand

brake, by requirement of the carrier, the act is

violated as much as if a combination of link-and-pin

and automatic couplers were in required use.

7426—15 i
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The words "without requiring hrakemen to use the

common hand brake^^ to control the speed of the train

were not made a part of the statute without meaning.

These words indicate the congressional purpose by the

act to prevent and make unlawful the use of the

hand brake.

The word "without," in this section of the statute,

signifies an absolute exclusion. The exclusion of the

requirement of the use of the common hand brake to

control the speed of a train is thus manifest from the

literal wording of the act. By the obvious meaning

of these literal terms the carrier is excluded from

requiring brakemen to use the common hand brake

for the purpose of controlling the speed of trains.

The braking of trains was intended to be exclusively

by the power brakes operated by the engineer.

When the engineer gives the whistle for hand

brakes, the brakemen are "required" to use the

hand brakes to control the speed of the train, and

the law is violated.

In United States v. Pere Marquette R. Co. (211

Fed., 220, 223), cited with approval in U. S. v.

Erie R. Co. (237 U. S., 402), Sessions, D. J., said:

Should the statutory requirement con-

cerning the use, connection, and operation

of train brakes be given a different construc-

tion or interpretation from that which has

been applied by the courts to the provisions

relating to car-coupling apparatus? Clearly

not. The two sections of the statute are

identical in the form of language employed,
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in legislative intent, in remedial purpose, and

in the mandatory obedience thereto which is

required, the only difference being that in

the one the unit is a train or combination of

cars and in the other a single car.

In the case of the Virginian Railway Company v.

The United States (supra) it was said:

It is impossible to believe that the Congress

compelled the equipment of locomotives and

cars with the appliances specified in the act,

for the declared purpose of doing away with

the dangerous operation of hand brakes, and

then left it to the carriers themselves to decide

when and under what circumstances those

appliances should be used.

On the contrary, we deem it beyond doubt

that the duty imposed by the provision here

considered is mandatory and absolute. There

is no express or implied qualification which in

any way related to the question at issue, and

it is not for the courts to introduce an exception

which the Congress did not see fit to make.

The peculiar and unusual conditions which

existed on this section of defendant's road

can not be permitted to excuse an avoidance

of the positive requirements of the act.

Moreover, those conditions disclose no emer-

gency or extraordinary difficulty. They sim-

ply show that the defendant, for the sake of

convenience or economy, deliberately ordered

the use of hand brakes in the daily and custom-

ary operation of its trains. The justification

set up is that trains of 100 cars can not be

moved on this stretch of track at the slow
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speed of 10 miles an hour or less and kept under

safe control with the use only of the prescribed

power brake. But those operating conditions,

which occasioned the need of hand brakes, are

evidently of defendant's own creation. All

it has to do to comply with the law is to make
up trains of such smaller number of cars as

can be safely and properly handled without

resorting to the use of hand brakes. In short,

the mandate of the Congress is disregarded in

this instance, not because compliance involves

any physical difficulty which is inherent or

or practically serious, but merely because it

involves some increase of expense. It is too

plain for argument that no such reason can

serve to condone disobedience to the command
of the statute.

The statute in its literal terms makes mandatory

the use and operation of the train-brake system on

all trains on any railroad engaged in interstate

commerce.

Section 2 of the amended act, March 2, 1903,

specifically says, "and all power-brake cars in such

trains which are associated together with the said

50 per centum (now 85 per centum) shall have their

brakes so used and operated," i. e., used and oper-

ated by the engineer of the locomotive drawing such

train.

In the case of New England Railroad Company

V. Conroy (175 U. S., 323), Mr. Justice Shiras in

delivering the opinion of the court clearly indi-

cated that under the provisions of this statute,
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brakes that control the speed of the train should be

applied by the engineer and not by brakemen or

switchmen. He said:

* * * the engineer, as railroads are

now operated, is a much more important

functionary in the actual movement of the

train, when in motion, than the conductor.

It is his hand that regulates the application

of the brakes that control the speed of the

train, and in doing so he acts upon his own
knowledge and observation and not upon the

orders of the conductor. Particularly has

this become the case since the introduction

of the air train brake system. We can take

notice of the act of March 2, 1893 (27 Stat,

at L., 531), which enacted:
"^ * * it shall be unlawful for any

common carrier engaged in interstate com-

merce by railroad to use on its line any loco-

motive engine in moving interstate traffic

not equipped with a power driving-wheel

brake and appliances for operating the

train-brake system or to run any train in

such traffic after said date that has not a

sufficient number of cars in it so equipped

wif^h power or train brakes that the engineer

on the locomotive drawing such train can

control its speed without requiring brake-

men to use the common hand brake for that

purpose."

We do not refer to this statute as directly

applicable to the case in hand, hut as a legis-

lative recognition of the dominant position

of the engineer. [Our italics.]
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Attention is again directed to the opinion of the

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit in

the case of The Virginian Railway Company v. The

United States, from which the following is quoted:

In our judgment the legislation here con-

sidered manifests the plain intention of Con-

gress to require the control of trains in ordinary

line movement by the train brakes pre-

scribed and to make unlawful the use of hand

brakes for that purpose. True, the use of

hand brakes is not in express terms prohibited,

but this is the necessary implication of the

language used, and it admits of no other rea-

sonable construction. It was the evident pur-

pose of the train-brake provision to prevent the

danger resulting from the operation of hand

brakes on the tops of cars in moving trains.

Just as the object of the automatic coupler is

to keep employees from going between cars,

so the object of the train brake is to keep

employees from going on top of cars to set and

release the hand brakes. The purpose of the

law is the guide to its interpretation, as the

courts have repeatedly said. For example, in

Erie R. R. Co. v. [7. S., 197 Fed., 287, where it

was held that the train-brake requirement does

not apply to switching movements in railroad

yards, the court took occasion to say of the

act:

"Its purpose was to compel railroads to

equip trains in interstate transit with air

brakes, thereby contributing not only to the

safety of passengers and crews, but saving
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brakemen, as far as possible, from the dangers

incurred in manipulating hand brakes."

The whole argument of plaintiff in error rests

upon the proposition that, since the statute

requires that all cars be equipped with hand

brakes and does not expressly forbid their use

for controlling the speed of trains, there is left

to 'Hhe judgment or discretion of the men
operating the trains the decision as to when
and under what circumstances the power brake

should be used, and as to when and under what
circumstances the hand brake should be used."

The proposition is also stated in this form:

"The object of Congress was evidently that

the automatic power brakes should be used to

control the speed of the train at all times when
good railroad practice would require the use

of such brakes, and to permit the use of hand

brakes under such circumstances as, in the

judgment of the people in charge of the oper-

ation of the trains, would promote the safety

of the operation."

It is obvious that such a construction would

practically nullify the train-brake requirement

and take all effective meaning from the pro-

vision which makes it unlawful to run "any
train" unless the locomotive and cars are so

equipped that the engineer can control its

speed " without requiring the brakemen to use

the common hand brake for that purpose."

The contention must be rejected as clearly

unsound. It is impossible to believe that the

Congress compelled the equipment of loco-

motives and cars with the appUances specified
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in the act, for the declared purpose of doing

away with the dangerous operation of hand
brakes, and then left it to the carriers them-
selves to decide when and under what circum-

stances those appliances should be used.

On the contrary, we deem it beyond doubt
that the duty imposed by the provision here

considered is mandatory and absolute. There

is no express or implied qualification which in

any way related to the question at issue, and

it is not for the courts to introduce an excep-

tion which the Congress did not see fit to make.

The decision of the court below states

:

If prohibited at all the use of hand brakes

is only prohibited by implication; but crimes

are not defined or created in that way.

But we are not dealing with a criminal offense or

a criminal statute. And the implication which the

Government urges is one that arises naturally

from the express words of the act.

In the course of the opinion of the court below

the following also appears:

As already stated. Congress has sought to

obviate the necessity for going upon trains

to use hand brakes to control their speed

by requiring the use of certain equipment

and has imposed penalties for failure to fur-

nish that equipment.

If ''Congress," as Judge Rudkin says, "sought to

obviate the necessity for going upon trains to use

the hand brakes," then the act indicates that its

purpose was to prevent such use of the hand brakes.
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A carrier may not require the brakemen to assume

the peril which it was the purpose of the act to

prevent.

Congress did not legislate against the necessity to

use the hand brakes and leave lawful and compulsory

the assumption of the peril which the act by its

express words was intended to obviate.

This is not a case where the purpose of the legis-

lature is not apparent from the language used. The

words employed indicate the legislative purpose

that brakemen should not be required to operate

the hand brakes. There is no failure of the words

of the act to make clear the legislative purpose. It

is not at all like the case of Rex v. Shone (6 East,

518), in which Lord Ellenborough said: "We can

only say of the legislature quod voluit non dixit.''

In this case Congress said it. It clearly expressed

its condemnation of the use of the dangerous hand

brakes. This stands forth clearly in the strong

terms of the section of the act now under consider-

ation.

The section is not to be construed as if it ended

with the provision as to the control of the train by

the engineer. Congress, in the use of the words

which followed, was not merely recording its pur-

pose, was not expressing an explanation or apology

for what went before, but was still legislating

against the particular danger at which the section

was wholly aimed.
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It is not a fair construction of this section to say

that it legislates against the means by which danger

exists and that its mention of the danger itself was

without purpose or intention to legislate upon that

subject. Is it to be fairly assumed from the lan-

guage used that Congress, in its anxiety to keep the

men off the cars in the use of the hand brake, made
unlawful the nonuse of power brakes, and that the

requirement of the use of the hand brake was still

to be lawful? If the requirement of the use of the

hand brake was still to be lawful, why make unlaw-

ful the nonuse of the power brake? The nonequip-

ment with the power brake was made unlawful be-

cause such nonequipment was a temptation to the

use of the hand brake. Can it reasonably be held,

when the whole section is taken together and con-

sidered as a whole, that the legislation was directed

solely against the necessity for the use of the hand

brakes and that the actuality of their use was to

remain legal and permissible?

If lack of statutory equipment is made unlawful

because it tends to require brakemen to operate the

hand brakes, by so much more it is evident that

Congress intended to make unlawful the require-

ment itself that brakemen should operate the hand

brakes. The "essence of the thing required to be

done" was not particular equipment, but keeping

brakemen from the tops of cars in the use of the

hand brakes.

Two special forms of accidents to railroad em-

ployees were particularly in the legislative mind.
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These were accidents from "falling from cars''

and from "coupling cars." This stands out

clearly in the language of the act, in the testimony

before the legislative committees in the hearings

before the bill was reported, and in the reports of

the committees before the bill became a law.

The following table compiled from the Accident

Bulletins of the Interstate Commerce Commission,

shows the number of employees killed and injured,

caused by falling from the roofs of box cars while

setting hand brakes:

Year.

Employees.

Injured.

1902
1903
1904
1905
1906
1907
1908
1909
1910
1911
1912
1913

Total (12 years)

27 232
25 370
44 412
27 364
32 454
37 472
23 434
25 430
22 543
37 512
25 639
28 765

5,627

It was to 'prevent such deaths and injuries that

the act was passed. It was recognized by Congress

that the provisions of the common law failed to pre-

vent these particular accidents, and therefore its

somewhat stringent provisions were enacted into

law to prevent accidents and to save lives.



36

The terms of the act itself show that it has a

"broader scope" than "merely the regulation of

the character of appliances to be used." This is

the construction of the act which is deducible from

the Johnson case (196 U. S., 1); the Taylor case

(210 U. S., 281, 294); the Schlemmer case (205

U. S., 1), and from the general current of judicial

authority in this country.

Let us proceed with a study of the ,act itself. It

is provided that power brakes shall be '^sufficient/'

so that men may not be required to go on the tops

of the cars to operate hand brakes. It is provided

that couplers shall couple automatically, so that it

may not be necessary for men to go between cars.

These provisions must be given similar construc-

tion. Can anything be clearer than the particular

intention of Congress to prevent by these pro-

visions and requirement of men to go on top of cars

to operate hand brakes and to go between cars to

couple them? These were the specific dangers

legislated against. These were the particular dan-

gers the legislation was intended to prevent. These

provisions are to be given like construction. No

good reason can be asserted for the application of

a different rule in the construction of the power-

brake provisions than that which has been applied

to the coupler provision. The obligation imposed

by section 1 of the original act, that the power brakes

shall be sufficient so that brakemen need not be re-

quired to go on the tops of cars to operate the hand
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brakes, is not in the least degree modified, affected,

or impaired by the provision of section 2 of the

amended act fixing a minimum of the cars in a

train the power brakes of which shall be operative.

Section 3 of the amended act provides

:

Nothing in this act shall be held or con-

strued to relieve any common carrier * * *

from any of the provisions, powers, duties,

liabilities, or requirements of said act of March

second, eighteen hundred and ninety-three, as

amended by the act of April first, eighteen

hundred and ninety-six; and all of the pro-

visions, powers, duties, requirements, and

liabilities of said act of March second, eighteen

hundred and ninety-three, as amended by the

act of April first, eighteen hundred and ninety-

six, shall, except as specifically amended by
this act, apply to this act.

By virtue of this section no construction is per-

missible which suggests repeal of any of the provi-

sions of the first section by implication. Congress

clearly expresses its intention not to repeal any of

the ^'liabilities or requirements" of the former act.

Furthermore, there is no logical conflict between

a provision that power brakes shall be sufficient to

enable the engineer to control the speed of the train

and a provision fixing a minimum of power brakes

in a train. It is to be noted that the percentage of

power-braked cars in any train required by the act

is required as a minimum and not as a standard.

Congress had some reason to declare the percentage

required by the act to be a minimum and not a
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standard. If a lower percentage of power-braked

cars in a train were sufficient, it would still be a

violation of law, because not up to the minimum.

But if the minimum was not sufficient to enable the

engineer to control the speed of the train without

requiring men to go upon the cars to operate the

hand brakes, the statute is violated. No other con-

struction is admissible if the proper meaning is

attributed to the word "minimum" used by Con-

gress. No other meaning or construction is admis-

sible to carry out the manifest intent of Congress.

Both provisions indicate the congressional intent

to require the taking of trainmen off the tops of the

cars to operate hand brakes. To hold that at an

attempt to make more specific a requirement of

power-brake operation, and more surely to provide

against the necessity of men operating hand brakes

on the tops of cars, could operate as a repeal of

the provision against such operation of the hand

brakes, would be an interpretation hostile to the

legislative intent. No purpose can be asserted for

the fixing of a minimum of power-braked cars, ex-

cept the purpose declared in section 1 of the earlier

act, to make unnecessary the requirement of the

operation of the hand brakes. The congressional

intent is the guide for judicial interpretation.

To make an interpretation that acts are lawful

which Congress has twice indicated its purpose to

restrain would be unjustifiable in the extreme.

The language of both acts could have been clearer,

but in both the legislative intent is manifest. In
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the general current of judicial authority on this

act, so far as it has been interpreted by the courts,

the intent of Congress has been relied upon, and a

line of judicial decisions on the subject of the

coupler provisions has had the effect of cutting

down the large number of deaths and injuries

resulting from coupler accidents. The figures on

this subject are startling and must give great

satisfaction to every court which has contributed

to this beneficent result.

The train-brake provision, if judicially sup-

ported in the same manner, will cut down the num-

ber of fatalities resulting from trainmen falling

from the tops of cars, v/hich number is large and

alarming, and will be a source of gratification to

every court which may aid in bringing about this

laudable result.

This can be done by approaching the subject on

broad lines, carrying out the manifest intent of the

Congress, and by disregarding, in the construction

of a humane remedial statute, those merely techni-

cal rules of statutory construction which had their

basis originally in a judicial effort to save life when

death was the sentence under most penal statutes.

The humanity of judges established the strict

and technical rules of statutory construction.

Humanity and the desire to save human life may
justify broader rules of construction of an act in-

tended to save the lives of brave men in a particu-

larly hazardous and useful calling.
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In Johnson v. Southern Pacific Co. (196 U. S., 1),

Chief Justice Fuller held that the test of compli-

ance with the act was whether or not it was neces-

sary for a man to go between the ends of the cars

to effect couplings and uncouplings between them.

He said

:

The risk in coupling and uncoupling was
the evil sought to be remedied, and that risk

to be obviated by the use of couplers actually

coupling automatically. True, no particular

design was required, but whatever the devices

used they were to be effectively interchange-

able. Congress was not paltering in a double

sense. And its intention is found '4n the

language actually used, interpreted according

to its fair and obvious meaning" (p. 19).

* * *

In the present case the couplings would not

work together. Johnson was obliged to go

between the cars, and the law was not com-

plied with (p. 20).

To apply the construction of section 2 as made

by Chief Justice Fuller in the Johnson case, and its

application is unquestionable, it would be para-

phrased thus:

The test of compliance with the act is

whether or not brakemen were required to

use the common hand brake to control the

speed of the train. The risk in going on the

top of cars to use the hand brakes was the

evil sought to be obviated by the use of the

train brakes operated by the engineer. True,
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no particular design of power brakes was re-

quired, but whatever the devices used, they

were to be effectively sufficient for the engi-

neer to control the speed of the train with-

out requiring brakemen to use the common
hand brake for that purpose. Congress was
not paltering in a double sense, and its

intention is found ''in the language actually

used," interpreted according to its fair and
obvious meaning. In the present case the

railroad was satisfied that there was a lack

of sufficiency in the power brakes for the or-

dinary freight traffic. As the same was made
up in heavy trains on the descending grade

and required the speed of the train to be par-

tially controlled by hand brakes to supple-

ment the power brakes, the brakemen were

required to use the hand brakes to control

the speed of the train, and the law was not

complied with.

If the power brakes were "sufficient" to control

the speed of the train, the requirement that brake-

men also use the common hand brake for that pur-

pose was placing these men in the very danger that

Congress legislated against, and is a violation of

the act. To hold otherwise would be to hold that

Congress did not legislate against the danger, but

only as to equipment.

If equipment be the sole requirement, the pro-

vision as to the control of the speed of the train by

the engineer is surplusage. The legislation is spe-

cific that the control of the speed of the train shall

be in the hands of one man—the engineer. This
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expressly negatives any legislative intention to per-

mit the speed of the train to be controlled other-

wise.

Control of the speed of the train by the engineer

is clearly defeated if train brakes are set and released

under orders from the conductor.

If the power brakes were not "sufficient to con-

trol trains" on such grades as those from Cascade

Tunnel to Merritt, and the brakemen were required

to aid in the control of the train with the common

hand brakes, then the law was clearly violated.

That the railroad acted upon the belief that

power brakes were not sufficient is a fact from

which some evidence may be inferred that the

power brakes were not sufficient. If power brakes

were not sufficient, the statute was clearly violated.

If the power brakes w^ere sufficient, the men were

unnecessarily imperiled in violation of the clear in-

tent and purpose of Congress in passing the act.

The first section of the act was framed for the

purpose of obviating the necessity of brakemen

going on the top of the cars to operate hand

brakes. This was the specific danger legislated

against. This purpose stands forth clearly from

the language of the act. The implication is irre-

sistible that Congress intended to make illegal the

requirement that brakemen should go on the top

of cars to operate hand brakes. Any construction

that such use of the hand brakes is not illegal de-

feats the evident and manifest purpose of Congress.

It also deprives those injured by falling from cars
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when required to operate hand brakes of the ad-

vantages of the remedial provision of the act, espe-

cially of that provision abolishing the assumption

of risk.

Furthermore, such a construction permits the

continuance of the peril which the act sought to

abolish. It places human life in jeopardy and de-

feats the humane purpose of Congress. It leaves

the first section of the act, to comply with which

the railroads expended millions, without any reason

or purpose for its enactment.

The purpose of the law was to enable the speed

of the train to be controlled solely and exclusively

by the engineer through the use of train or power

brakes, and to avoid the necessity of trainmen going

upon the tops of the cars to operate the hand brakes.

It is the duty of the railroad to comply with the

provisions of this law. This duty is mandatory and

absolute.

If it be true that on certain grades long trains

of heavily loaded cars can not, with safety, be han-

dled with the air-brake equipment available at that

time and place, it becomes the duty of the railroad

so to regulate the length of train and the load carried

that the air or power-brake equipment at such time

and place shall be sufficient for the control of such

train without the use of the hand brakes for that

purpose, or so to regulate or increase the efficiency

or power of its air-brake equipment that the heavier

loaded train may be safely handled without the use

of the hand brakes to control its speed.
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If the power-brake equipment, at a particular

time and place, is overloaded so that the same may
not be safely relied upon to control the speed of the

train, the statute has been violated, and the use of

the hand brakes to control the speed of the train is

not justified.

IT IS THE MANDATORY DUTY OF THE RAILROAD TO
MAINTAIN A PROPORTION BETWEEN ITS POWER-BRAKE
EQUIPMENT AND THE LOAD IN THE TRAIN TO BE CARRIED
OVER ANY PARTICULAR GRADE ON ITS RAILROAD, SO THAT
AT ALL TIMES THE ENGINEER SHALL BE ABLE TO CONTROL
THE SPEED OF THE TRAIN BY THE POWER BRAKES, AND
IN ORDER THAT IT MAY NOT BE NECESSARY FOR THE
TRAINMEN TO GO UP ON THE CARS AND OPERATE THE
HAND BRAKES TO CONTROL THE SPEED OF THE TRAIN.

In the case of United States v. Standard Oil Com-

pany of New Jersey and others, 173 Fed., 177, Cir-

cuit Judge Hook, in his concurring opinion, said:

The construction of the act should not be

so narrow or technical as to belittle the work

of Congress, but on the contrary it should

accord with the great importance of the sub-

ject of the legislation and the broad lines

upon which the act was framed. * * *

The wisdom of a law lies in its spirit, as well

as in its letter, and unless they go together in

its construction and application justice goes

astray, [p. 194.]

It is an ancient rule of statutory construction

that " a law directing a thing to be done in a certain

manner implies that it shall not be done in any

other manner." (Potter's Dwarris on Statutes and
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Constitutions, page 228, note 30, citing U. S. v.

Han Penals, 1 Paine, 406; Dane's Abr., vol. 6, 591

to 593.)

It is clear that this act requires that the speed of

trains be controlled by power brakes. Under the

rule of construction just above quoted, the act for-

bids such control by hand brakes. Not only is the

use of the hand brakes forbidden by the act by im-

plication, from the compulsion of power brakes un-

der the rule of construction just above quoted, but

it is made expressly b}^ the terms used at the con-

clusion of the first section.

The first and second sections of the act are to be

given the same construction.

The several sections of the act of Congress

of 1893 (196, 27 Stat., 531), making it un-

lawful for railroad companies engaged in

interstate commerce to use cars not equipped

with certain specified appliances, are framed

upon the same general plan, and notwith-

standing any minor differences in their lan-

guage, a declaration by the Supreme Court

of the United States that one of them is in-

tended to impose upon the carrier the abso-

lute duty of keeping in good repair the

equipment therein required, irrespective of any
question of negligence, determines that a

like interpretation is to be given to the others.

(Justice Mason's opinion, rendered for the

Supreme Court of the State of Kansas in the

case of Brinkmeier v. The Missouri Pacific Ry.

Co., 105 Pac, 221.)
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The second section, the construction and inter-

pretation of which is famiUar, legislates against

the necessity of men going between the cars. The

first section legislates against the requirement of

brakemen to use the common hand brakes to con-

trol the speed of trains.

To facilitate comparison, the two provisions are

set forth in parallel columns:

SECTION 1. SECTION 2.

Be it enacted hy the Senate That on and after the first

and House of Representatives day of January, eighteen hun-

of the United States of Am.er- dred and ninety-eight, it shall

ica in Congress assemhled, be unlawful for any such corn-

That from and after the first mon carrier to haul or permit

day of January, eighteen hun- to be hauled or used on its line

dred and ninety-eight, it shall any car used in moving inter-

be unlawful for any common state traffic not equipped with

carrier engaged in interstate couplers coupling automati-

commerce by railroad to use cally by impact and which

on its line any locomotive can be uncoupled without the

engine in moving interstate necessity of men going be-

traffic not equipped with a tween the ends of the cars,

power driving-wheel brake

and appliances for operating

the train-brake system, or to

rim any train in such traffic

after said date that has not a

sufficient number of cars in it

so equipped with power or

train brakes that the engi-

neer on the locomotive draw-

ing such train can control

its speed without requiring

brakemen to use the common
hand brake for that purpose.
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Now, bearing in mind the similarity of these sec-

tions in grammatical construction, let us examine

the question in the light of judicial construction of

the second section.

* * * The object of the act, as ex-

pressed in the title, is " to promote the safety

of employees and travelers; and in so far as

it applies to employees engaged as brake-

men on trains, it was intended to protect

them from the danger of entering between

cars in order to couple them up." {U. S. v.

Gt. Northern Ry. Co., 150 Fed., 229, 230.)

So it may reasonably be concluded that the first

section of the act "was intended to protect them

from the danger" of being required to use the com-

mon hand brake to control the speed of the train.

The highest duty of Government is to conserve

the lives of the people.

Legislation conducing to this end should be lib-

erally interpreted by the courts.

In the construction and interpretation of such

laws technical and rigid adherence to the strict

grammatical construction may be disregarded when

necessary to carry out the manifest life-saving pur-

pose of the legislation, if that purpose is clearly

evident from the words used.

Act of April 14, 1910, requiring eflficient liand braises

applies to individual cars.

It may be contended that the requirement by the

statute of an efficient hand brake legalizes the use of

the hand brake to control the speed of trains. But
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it is important to note that the act which contains

the hand-brake provision is specifically applicable

to cars.

The exact language of the hand-brake section of

the act is as follows:

Sec. 2. That on and after July first, nine-

teen hundred and eleven, it shall be unlawful

for any common carrier subject to the pro-

visions of this act to haul, or permit to be
hauled or used on its line any car subject to

the provisions of this act not equipped with

appliances provided for in this act, to wit:

All cars must be equipped with secure sill

steps and efficient hand brakes; all cars re-

quiring secure ladders and secure running

boards shall be equipped with such ladders

and running boards, and all cars having lad-

ders shall also be equipped with secure hand-

holds or grab irons on their roofs at the tops

of such ladders: Provided, That in the loading

and hauling of long commodities, requiring

more than one car, the hand brakes may be

omitted on all save one of the cars w^hile they

are thus combined for such purpose.

That this section applies to individual cars, as was

intended by Congress, is fully borne out by the report

of Senator Elkins, from the Committee on Interstate

Commerce, submitted February 18, 1910, Senate

Report No. 250, Sixty-first Congress, second session:

Another serious menace to employees has

developed during recent years from the poor

condition of hand brakes.
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It is now customary at a great many large

terminals to switch cars by gravity in what

are known as "hump" yards. In these situa-

tions men are required to control the speed of

the cars by means of hand brakes. Because

of the rapid development of air-brake equip-

ment, the hand brake has been neglected, and

when men are called upon to use it in these

exceptional situations they find it inefficient or

inoperative. As a result, employees are sub-

jected to unnecessary risk, and many of them
are killed and injured from this cause. The
inefficiency of the hand brake also produces

collisions between cars in these hump yards,

and results in serious damage both to equip-

ment and lading:

The lawfulness of the use of the hand brake to

control the speed of a car or cars when segregated

from a train in no manner controverts the conten-

tion that the use of hand brakes to control the speed

of trains is unlawful.

And so the law may and does require the main-

tenance of efficient hand brakes, but this is solely

and entirely for use in handling individual cars and

in no manner affects the requirement that the speed

of trains must be controlled by the use of power

brakes by the engineer.

That the contention of the Government is sound

regarding section 2 of the act of April 14, 1910, is

sustained by the case of United States v. Erie R. Co.
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(237 U. S.; 402), wherein Mr. Justice Van Devanter

said:

It will be perceived that the air-brake pro-

vision deals with running a train, while the

other requirements relate to hauling or using

a car. In one a train is the unit and in the

other a car. As the context shows, a train

in the sense intended consists of an engine

and cars which have been assembled and

coupled together for a run or trip along the

road. When a train is thus made up and is

proceeding on its journey, it is within the

operation of the air-brake provision. But it

is otherwise with the various movements in

railroad yards whereby cars are assembled

and coupled into outgoing trains and whereby

incoming trains which have completed their

run are broken up. These are not train move-
ments but mere switching operations, and so

are not within the air-brake provision. The
other provisions calling for automatic couplers

and grab irons are of broader application and

embrace switching operations as well as train

movements, for both involve a hauling or

using of cars.

The statute made mandatory the use and opera-

tion of power brakes by the engineer of the locomo-

tive drawing such train when it provided in section

2 of the act of 1903, that ''all power-braked cars in

such train * * * shall have their brakes so used

and operated."

That use and operation of the power brakes are

requisite and the mere equipment with power brakes
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is not sufficient, is a necessary inference to be drawn

from the following decisions which were based upon

trains which were equipped with power brakes but

not used and operated:

Belt Railway Company of Chicago v. United States,

168 Fed., 542; Atchison, T. & S. F. Ry. Co. v. United

States, 198 Fed., 637; United States v. Grand Trunk

Ry. Co., 203 Fed., 775; United States v. Pere Mar-

quette R. Co., 211 Fed., 220; La Mere v. Ry. Transfer

Co. of Minneapolis, 145 N. W., 1068.

When used only partly to control the speed of the

train and supplemented by or assisted by or in con-

joint use with hand brakes, then the speed of the

train is not controlled by the air brakes.

When air brakes control, their operation governs

the speed.

When both kinds of brakes are used, it can not be

said that the engineer controls the speed of the train

with the power or train brakes.

The speed of passenger trains is controlled solely

by the train brakes. The law is the same as to both

classes of trains. Freight trains when their power

brakes are maintained in efficient condition for use

may be even more safely operated by the train brake

alone than by any partial use of both.

CONCLUSION.

The contention of the Government is sustained

—

1. By the legislative history of the act.

2. By the express words of the act.
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3. By the purpose of the act to prevent injury and

death of brakemen called upon to use the hand brake.

4. By the well-considered precedent in Virginian

Ry. Co. V. United States (4 C. C. A.).

Respectfully submitted.

Francis A. Garrecht,

United States Attorney.

Philip J. Doherty,

Special Assistant United States Attorney.
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